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The road to recovery is about transforming challenges into
growth opportunities and competitive advantage. With
focus on long-term sustainability, we have remained resilient
throughout 2019, continuously building on our strengths
and, identifying, evaluating and mitigating risks in response
to managing our operations better.
To balance financial stability and business sustainability, we
have to increase our agility, encourage continuous learning
among our employees, heighten our productivity levels and
maximise our resources to capture further value from our
core businesses.
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Through our pragmatic approach, since embarking on our
Business Recovery Plan in 2017, we still have the ability to
drive economic development, catalyse socioeconomic
empowerment and promote environmental protection.

Tuesday, 28 July 2020
10.30 a.m.

In Striving Towards Sustainability, we are taking a proactive
approach in effectively managing our operations and
engaging in activities, which is aligned with our business
goals for the benefit and betterment of our shareholders,
partners, associates, employees, suppliers, the communities
and all other stakeholders in which we operate.

Gamelan 3, Primula Beach Hotel,
Jalan Persinggahan,
20400 Kuala Terengganu,
Terengganu Darul Iman.
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Vision

To become a premier natural resources
organisation

Mission

•

To improve our results

•

To maximise return to our shareholders

•

To provide workforce with rewarding employment

•
•
•

To meet our customer expectations
To promote green and eco-friendly environment

To use our position as an integrated timber producer

Core Values
Gemilang

Optimis

Lestari

Dedikasi

Efektif

Nekad

All images in this Annual Report were taken prior to the COVID-19 pandemic outbreak in Malaysia.
GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD
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Logs are assembled in a log yard before being distributed to factories.

Clear and calm river at Camp Y along Chemerong-Berembun-Lansir expedition trail.

A GP Glass Sdn Bhd employee handles the glass processing machine at the factory in Telok Panglima Garang, Klang, Selangor.
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At a Glance
GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD
WAS INCORPORATED IN

1986

LISTED ON THE MAIN
MARKET OF

FIRST DIVIDEND PAYMENT
AFTER 11 YEARS OF

1.27SEN
PER SHARE

MALAYSIA EXCELLENCE
BUSINESS AWARDS
(MEBA) 2019

LOAN REPAYMENT TO
TERENGGANU INC
AMOUNTING

GOLDEN PHAROS GLASS
SDN BHD (GP GLASS) AWARDED
BRAND LEADERSHIP AWARD

BURSA
RM3.17
MALAYSIA MILLION

SECURITIES BERHAD
SINCE 1993

DATO’ NADZA ABDUL, GPB CEO
NAMED
MASTERCLASS BUMIPUTERA
CEO OF THE YEAR

AFTER 10 YEARS
OF DEBT

BRANDLAUREATE
BESTBRANDS
AWARDS
2018/2019

ISO 14001:2004

CERTIFIED FOR GOLDEN PHAROS GLASS SDN BHD

SEGMENT REVENUE FOR OPERATING UNIT

65%

HARVESTING & SAWMILLING

GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD

35%

MANUFACTURING

0.2%

OTHERS
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Key Highlights

REVENUE

LOSS BEFORE TAX

RM57.47million

(RM8.98million)

LOSS PER SHARE

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(FY2018: RM70.40 million)

(6.79sen)
(FY2018: (2.14 sen))

(FY2018: (RM2.30 million))

RM62.90million
(FY2018: RM72.52 million)

GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD
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Who We Are
Golden Pharos Berhad (GPB)

has been listed on the Main Board of

Bursa Securities Malaysia Berhad (Bursa Securities) since 1993. GPB is also a Terengganu state

Government Link Corporation (GLC) by virtue of 71.59% shareholding via the State’s investment
arms, Terengganu Incorporated Sdn Bhd and Lembaga Tabung Amanah Warisan Negeri Terengganu
which hold 63.1% and 8.4% respectively.

Its principal activities cover forest concession management, harvesting and distribution, sawmilling
and value-added processing of wood-based products, as well as manufacturing and sales of
architectural panel glass.

GPB was
incorporated.

GPB is listed on the
Main Board of the
Kuala Lumpur Stock
Exchange.

GPB became a fully
integrated timber
corporation.

1986

1993

onwards

1992

Converted into a public
company.
Production of tempered
glass started.

GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD

1997

1996

GPB acquired
Permint Timber
Corporation Sdn Bhd.
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Morning view at Lansir Waterfall in the
Group’s concession area.
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Milestones & Achievements

1980
n

GPB took over the
manufacturing of timber
doors from Golden Pharos
Wood Industries Sdn Bhd.

2006
n

1992
n

n

May - Tempered glass plant
was set up at Telok Panglima
Garang Industrial Site,
producing 20,000 square
metres of tempered glass per
month.
November - The second
phase of glass production
was implemented to supply
architectural glass and shower
screens for domestic buildings
and the construction industry.

1996
n

March - GPB became a
fully integrated timber
corporation with the
acquisition of Permint Timber
Corporation Sdn Bhd.

GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD

GPB was ranked 1st place
in the consumer product
industry sector and 2nd place
overall under the Corporate
Governance Survey Report
for the small capital public
listed companies, conducted
by the Minority Shareholder
Watchdog Group (MSWG)
in collaboration with the
Nottingham University
Business School.

2007
n

GPB was ranked 1st place
in the consumer product
industry sector and 1st place
overall under the Corporate
Governance Survey
Report for the small capital
public listed companies,
conducted by the MSWG
in collaboration with the
Nottingham University
Business School.

2012
n

n

n

Golden Pharos Glass Sdn Bhd
(GP Glass) certified with
ISO 14001:2004 International
Standards.
GP Glass awarded ISO 9001-2006
certification.

Pesama Timber Corporation
Sdn Bhd (Pesama) obtained FSC®
endorsed certification for Cherul
Forest Concession.

STRIVING TOWARDS SUSTAINABILITY
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Milestones & Achievements (Continued)

2014

2017

n

n

GPB entered into a
Memorandum of Understanding
with Malaysian Timber Industry
Board (MITB) and Pengusaha
Kayu Kayan & Perabot
Bumiputera Malaysia (PEKA).

n

2015
n

n

GPB entered into a Memorandum
of Understanding with Dongwha
Malaysia Sdn Bhd.
Permint Plywood Sdn Bhd (PPSB)
entered into a Joint Venture
Agreement with Cymao Plywood
Sdn Bhd (CPSB) to revive PPSB’s
facility by establishing a JV
company, GP Dynamic Venture
Sdn Bhd (GPDV).

2016
n

n

n

PPSB entered into a Shareholders’
Agreement with CPSB.
PPSB subscribed to RM0.96 million
(60%) of GPDV’s paid up capital.
GPDV’s intended activities were
to manufacture and sell veneer,
plywood and decorative plywood.
In June 2016, PPSB commenced
the production of wood chips to
maximise the value of the Group’s
wood waste.

GP Glass was awarded
Company of The Year
(Small Medium Enterprise)
at Terengganu Inc Group
Excellence Award 2017.
Pesama and Pesaka were
awarded the Performance
Award for Sawmill Category
(Air Pollution Control) by the
Department of Environment
Terengganu.

2018
n

n

n

n

n

2019
n

n

n

PPSB re-started operations after
closing down its business in 2005.
PPSB was certified with PEFC for
veneer production.
PPSB signed an agreement with
BioBenua Teknologi to process
agar wood oil.
Kumpulan Pengurusan Kayu-Kayan
Trengganu Sdn Bhd initiated
commercial Forest Plantation for
long-term timber supply.
PPSB was awarded the PEFC
'Chain of Custody of Forest Based
Products' certification at Majlis
SIRIM Industri 2018 'Best Partner
For Innovation'.

n

n

First dividend payment of
1.27 sen per share was
declared and paid after
11 years.
GP Glass was awarded
Brand Leadership Award
at the BrandLaureate
BestBrands Awards
2018/2019.
The former Minister of
Human Resource,
YB M Kulasegaran
appointed CEO Dato’
Nadza Abdul as Director of
SOCSO.
CEO Dato’ Nadza Abdul
received the Malaysia
Business Awards (MEBA)Masterclass Bumiputera
CEO of The Year Award.
GPB paid RM3.17 million
as partial repayment of
advances to Terengganu Inc
after 10 years of debt.

GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD
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Corporate Information
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
YBM DATO’ HAJI TENGKU HASSAN BIN TENGKU OMAR
DATO’ BENTARA DALAM DATO’ HAJI A. RAHMAN BIN YAHYA

Non-Independent Non-Executive Chairman
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

DR WAN AHMAD RUDIRMAN BIN WAN RAZAK

Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

MUHAMMAD RAMIZU BIN MUSTAFFA

Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

ASSOCIATE PROFESSOR DR MOHD ZAKI BIN HAMZAH

Independent Non-Executive Director

MOHD BADARUDDIN BIN ISMAIL

Independent Non-Executive Director

HAJI SAIFFUDDIN BIN OTHMAN

Independent Non-Executive Director

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

AUDITORS

DATO’ AHMAD NADZARUDIN BIN ABDUL RAZAK

Ernst & Young
Level 23A, Menara Milenium
Jalan Damanlela, Pusat Bandar Damansara
50490 Kuala Lumpur
Tel : +603 2087 7000
Fax : +603 2095 5332

COMPANY SECRETARY
SURAYA BINTI MOHD HAIRON (LS 0007314)
(SSM PC No. 202008000100)
REGISTERED OFFICE
66-2, Taman Seri Intan
Jalan Sultan Omar
20300 Kuala Terengganu
Terengganu Darul Iman
Tel : +609 630 1330
Fax : +609 631 0617
SHARE REGISTRAR
Tricor Investor & Issuing House Services Sdn Bhd
Unit 32-01, Level 32,
Tower A, Vertical Business Suite
Avenue 3, Bangsar South
No. 8, Jalan Kerinchi, 59200 Kuala Lumpur
Tel : +603 2783 9299
Fax : +603 2783 9222

GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Maybank Islamic Berhad

Bank Islam Malaysia Berhad
STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING
Main Market
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad
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Group Structure

GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD
(198601003051) (152205-W)

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Permint Timber
Corporation
Sdn Bhd

Golden Pharos
Glass
Sdn Bhd

GP Forest
Plantation
Sdn Bhd

Golden Pharos
Overseas
Sdn Bhd

Golden Pharos
Overseas Sales
Sdn Bhd

Golden Pharos
Fiber
Sdn Bhd

100%

100%

100%

100%

Permint Plywood
Sdn Bhd

Pesaka
Trengganu
Berhad

Kumpulan Pengurusan
Kayu-Kayan
Trengganu Sdn Bhd

Pesama Timber
Corporation
Sdn Bhd

100%
GP Dynamic
Venture
Sdn Bhd

Wholly owned by Golden Pharos Berhad
Wholly owned by Golden Pharos Berhad
via Permit Timber Corporation Sdn Bhd

19.54%

GP Tropical
Furniture Sdn Bhd

30.85%

14.10%

Kemaman
Furniture Industries
Sdn Bhd

29.49%

Konsortium
Perumahan Rakyat 35%
Terengganu Sdn Bhd
Pesama Renors
(M) Sdn Bhd

25%

Subsidiary
Minority interest

GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD
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Chairman’s Message
Assalamualaikum
Warahmatullahi Wabarokatuh
dan Salam Sejahtera

Dear Valued Shareholders,

There is opportunity in every
crisis even as the current
COVID-19 pandemic resets and
reconfigures life as we know it in
Malaysia and around the world
unlike any other event in the
past 75 years.
This cataclysmic event has actually given rise to
the opportunity of taking stock of what is truly

important to us as individuals, communities,
companies, industries and nations, especially on
the balance between lives and livelihoods.

Golden Pharos Berhad (GPB or the Group) was not
spared during this unprecedented situation as we
YBM DATO’ HAJI TENGKU HASSAN BIN TENGKU OMAR
Chairman

contemplated on how to survive down markets.
The cascading reactions that ensued has resulted in

a prolonged pullback and moderated contraction

of the economic cycles, both domestically and
internationally.

GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD

STRIVING TOWARDS SUSTAINABILITY

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

13

Chairman’s Message (Continued)

At GPB, we have taken a holistic approach towards sustainability, which extends
beyond the economic aspect and encompasses such values as environmental

preservation, social protection and empowerment. This has contributed to the

Group’s strong fundamentals which are business longevity and financial stability

to safeguard the asset security of shareholders, income security of employees
and also our associates, vendors and suppliers, as well as dependants of all these
stakeholder groups.

At this juncture, it is worth noting that GPB’s Annual Report 2018 was finalist in two

categories for sustainability reporting at the prestigious Asia Sustainability Reporting Awards
(ASRA) 2019. The two categories were the Asia’s Best Sustainability (Public Sector) and Asia’s

Best Sustainability Report within Annual Report. While we may not have emerged as winners,
we were placed as top nine and top seven in the respective categories, pitting against other
companies in Asia.

As such, it is perhaps prescient that we had selected the theme of Striving Towards
Sustainability for our Annual Report 2019 even before the onset of the pandemic and
subsequent restrictions to movement and business activities.

This theme reflects our efforts throughout 2019, when we persisted against unfavourable
external market forces and internal operational issues.

At the end of 2019, the trajectory of the global economy completely changed and we are
aware of the weakened markets and the myriad risks associated with an impending global
recession going forward into 2020 and 2021. We also recognise that planning and forecasting
is challenging in this extraordinarily fluid situation.

As such, while we have to brace ourselves and take a cautionary approach, we remain focused

on prioritising all business activities to soften the blow of direct impacts of the pandemic and
veer us back to the path of recovery.

Financial results in 2019 were significantly impacted by the application of the new Malaysian
Financial Reporting Standards (MFRS), which prevented the previous practice of revenue
recognition, which unfortunately turned our results into a significant loss-making statement.

For the record, the Group registered revenue of RM57.47 million in the financial year ended

31 December 2019 (FY2019), declined by 18% from RM70.40 million in FY2018 (restated) and
a Loss Before Tax (LBT) of RM8.98 million in FY2019 compared with LBT of RM2.30 million the
previous financial year (restated).

GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD
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Chairman’s Message (Continued)

Pesama has obtained the FSC® certification for its 20,243 hectares Cherul Forest Concession.

Details of GPB’s financial performance are featured
in the Management Discussion and Analysis in this
Annual Report.

APPRECIATION
On behalf of the Board of Directors, I would like to

acknowledge the efforts of our management team
led by CEO Dato’ Nadza Abdul for the resolve and

resilience shown in steering the Group towards business
and corporate sustainability. In addition, I take this
opportunity to congratulate Dato’ Nadza on being
Exterior glass at Southern Airline Corporation, Vietnam supplied by
GP Glass Sdn Bhd.

declared the ‘Masterclass Bumiputera CEO’ at the Malaysia

Excellence Business Awards 2019, which was held on
5 December 2019.

My sincere appreciation goes out to all my fellow Board

members for their wise counsel and judicious guidance
throughout the year. My gratitude also goes out to the

Group’s diligent and dedicated employees including our
contractors and sub-contractors.

GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD
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Chairman’s Message (Continued)

GP Glass Sdn Bhd also supplied glass panels for the construction of Gleneagles Hospital in Ampang, Kuala Lumpur.

I would also like to convey my heartfelt thanks to the State Government of Terengganu, in

particular Menteri Besar YAB Dato’ Seri Dr Ahmad Samsuri bin Mokhtar, and State investment
arm Terengganu Incorporated Sdn Bhd for the trust and confidence in the Group.

It takes many hands to uplift and support the Group in undertaking its role and responsibility in

contributing effectively to the economy of both the State and the nation. At this juncture, I would
like to pay tribute to our shareholders, partners, customers, bankers, lawyers and government
officials for your loyalty and continuing support.
Thank you and wassalam.

YBM DATO’ HAJI TENGKU HASSAN BIN TENGKU OMAR
Chairman
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The following Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is intended to convey the

Management’s perspective on the operating performance and financial review of Golden Pharos

Berhad (GPB or the Group) for the year ended 31 December 2019. We recommend that you
read the MD&A in conjunction with the Financial Statements, notes thereto and other information
included elsewhere in the Annual Report.

The MD&A is presented in accordance with the Main Market Listing Requirements (MMLR) of

Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (Bursa Securities) and the Malaysian Financial Reporting

Standards (MFRS), and in relation to the disclosure requirements as per the Malaysian Code on
Corporate Governance.

Significant details on the Group’s business operations, performance and strategy, as well

as financial review and position, governance, risks and capital management, are covered in

the MD&A. Your attention is also drawn to sections on our human capital management and
sustainability efforts.

This MD&A contains forward-looking statements that are provided to enable investors to gauge

GPB’s business prospects and make informed investment decisions. However, they involve

inherent risks and uncertainties and other factors that are in many cases beyond our control.
The forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, for instance, our 2020 business

prospects and outlook, as well as our expectations with regards to the macroeconomic and
socio-geographic conditions, and their anticipated impact on the Group’s business operations.

We have tried, wherever possible, to identify such statements by using words such as ‘anticipate’,
‘expect’, ‘intend’, ‘plan’, ‘believe’, and words of similar substance in connection with any discussion
of future performance. Although GPB believes that the expectations of its Management as

reflected by such forward-looking statements are reasonable based on current information,
no assurance can be given that such expectations will prove to have been correct. Should one
or more of the risks and uncertainties materialise, actual results may vary materially from those
anticipated or projected.

GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

DATO’ AHMAD NADZARUDIN BIN ABDUL RAZAK
Chief Executive Officer

In 2017, Golden Pharos Berhad (GPB or the Group) implemented a
three-year Business Recovery Plan (BRP) 2018-2020 to turn around its
performance. In 2017, the Group recovered and the BRP succeeded
in halting a prolonged period of losses. In 2018, the Group grew the
recovery momentum into a more sustainable financial performance.

GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

2019 OBJECTIVE
For 2019, our objective was to sustain this recovery
momentum and generate resilience for future financial

performance. This objective is echoed in our 2019 Annual
Report theme: Striving Towards Sustainability.

In addition, Striving Towards Sustainability also reflects our
intensifying adoption of holistic corporate sustainability as
an integrated timber company and glass producer.

To lower operating costs further, we are currently evaluating

the installation of solar photovoltaic technology on the
rooftop of our factories. At the same time, we are continuing

with efforts to implement our forest plantation strategy
to ensure sustainable log supply in the long run, while

also enhancing the wood chip business by optimising
utilisation of wood residues.

UNLEASH DORMANT ASSETS
The Group has parcels of land in various locations that can

be divested, re-developed or optimised to contribute to
STRATEGIES
BUSINESS RECOVERY PLAN
Introduced in response to back-to-back losses from

2012 to 2016, the BRP was successful in turning us around

the Group’s bottom line. This initiative, which will require a

longer period for implementation, will be beneficial to the
Group, shareholders and all the stakeholders.
PURSUE NEW REVENUE STREAMS
Currently, our revenue is derived from upstream i.e. logging

in 2017 by addressing various issues related to operations,

and midstream i.e. manufacturing activities. Going forward,

was to generate sustainability in operational and financial

the Group. We are currently exploring convenient and

cash flow and management culture. The goal for 2019

downstream activities will be the new revenue stream for

performance for the years to come.

expedient ventures closely related to our natural resources

The Group’s BRP is now in the third year. Broadly, the BRP

mini-hydroelectric plants in the many rivers and streams

prescribes the following strategic thrusts:
ENHANCE THE CORE BUSINESS

GPB is anchored on timber and wood products. We

and product range. These include electricity generation via
within our forest concession areas.

Another area is the production of biomass from wood waste

while a third potential is installation of photovoltaic solar
panels to save energy usage.

continue to focus on improving our value chain from forest
management to the production of wood-based products.

Under this strategic thrust, we are remodelling the Group’s

two sawmills to eliminate duplication and focus each sawmill
on producing different rather than similar products.

GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

STRENGTHEN HUMAN CAPITAL
To complement the three aforementioned thrusts, we will source new talents and enhance the capability of the human capital

base in the Group. Although a traditional business mainly engaged in primary industries, nevertheless, we understand and
appreciate the need to cultivate knowledge and new skillsets in order to navigate tomorrow’s innovative and digital world of
business.

FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR 2019
TABLE 1: 2019 FINANCIAL RESULTS AT A GLANCE
INCOME STATEMENT

FINANCIAL POSITION
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (RM’000)

REVENUE (RM’000)
2019
2018

57,472
70,399

2019
2018

LOSS BEFORE TAX (RM’000)
(8,977)

TOTAL ASSETS (RM’000)
(2,299)

2019
2018

2019
2018

LOSS AFTER TAX (RM’000)
(9,206)

62,896
72,515

113,697
113,263

NET ASSETS PER SHARE (RM)
(2,892)

2019
2018

2019
2018

0.46
0.53

EARNINGS PER SHARE (SEN)
(6.79)

(2.14)

2019
2018
FINANCIAL INDICATORS

CURRENT RATIO (TIMES)

TOTAL ASSETS TURNOVER (TIMES)

2019
2018

2019
2018

1.29
1.35

0.50
0.62

QUICK OR ACID TEST (TIMES)

GEARING RATIO

2019
2018

2019
2018

1.10
1.12

GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD

0.02

0.20

NET LOSS MARGIN

RETURN ON TOTAL ASSETS

2018: (4%)

2018: (3%)

(16%)

RETURN ON EQUITY

(15%)

2018: (4%)

(8%)

STRIVING TOWARDS SUSTAINABILITY
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Our financial performance in 2019 was lower than expected

MFRS 15: 5-step Mode

due to one primary reason: Loss of revenue. This loss of
revenue in turn was due to two reasons:
(1)

Weaker performance by our business segments and

(2)

Application of new accounting standards under the

Identify the
contact
Separate
performance
obligation

Malaysia Financial Reporting Standard (MFRS).

The new accounting standards, specifically MFRS 15: Revenue

from Contracts with Customers, forced us to reverse the
revenue which we have already received from contracts we

Determine
transaction
price

have signed as early as 2017. As such, while we have already

Allocate
transaction
price

received some of the cash from these contracts, we just could

not recognise their full revenue. Even worse, we also had to
reverse the revenue and profits we already recognised in the

previous year 2018, thereby restating our results for 2018 from
a profitable year to a loss.

Recognise
revenue

If not for these accounting reversals, our group revenue for 2019 would have been higher at RM65.95 million
(not RM57.47 million) while our loss before tax would have been lower at just RM0.50 million (not RM8.98 million)
(See Table 2 on the following page). On this score, GPB is not alone as the implementation of new MFRS accounting standards
have had similar adverse impact on the financial results of many other companies across various industries.

FINANCIAL INDICATORS
Revenue
The Group recorded revenue of RM57.47 million in 2019, which was a decline of 18% from the restated RM70.40 million the

year before (previously reported as RM74.12 million).

Revenue was negatively impacted by three issues: weaker market for glass; delays in logging activities; and the previously

mentioned MFRS adjustment. The construction sector was generally tepid during the year in review with numerous projects

facing delays and this led to slower demand for our glass and related products. Meanwhile, harvesting and sawmilling activities
were affected by a non-performing logging contractor who could not complete the work on a timely basis as well as stop work
orders on three logging compartments.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

TABLE 2: 2019 REVENUE AND PBT BEFORE THE MFRS ACCOUNTING REVERSALS

FY2019

REVENUE (RM’000)

57,472

Additions

FY2019

PBT/(LBT) (RM’000)

(8,977)

Additions
Forward sales of
standing trees
Clearance of 2
forest plantation
compartments
Adjusted pre-MFRS

3,679
4,799

revenue from the Key Recovery Action (KRA) of forward

sales of standing trees amounting to RM3.68 million and
contract for the land clearance of two forest plantation

compartments totalling RM4.80 million. These additions

would have resulted in a pre-MFRS Revenue of RM65.95
million, as shown in Table 2.
PROFITS/(LOSSES)
The significant decline in revenue resulted in a Loss Before
Tax (LBT) of RM8.98 million in 2019 as compared with a

restated LBT of RM2.30 million in 2018 (previously reported

as a Profit Before Tax (PBT) of RM1.82 million). However,
as shown in Table 2, we would have recorded a small LBT
of RM0.50 million before the MFRS standard of revenue

recognition was changed. Loss After Tax (LAT) was RM9.20

million for 2019 against the restated LAT of RM2.89 million
for 2018 (previously reported as a Profit After Tax (PAT) of

RM0.51 million). Likewise, Earnings Per Share (EPS) dropped

to -6.79 sen in 2019 from a restated -2.14 sen the year before
(previously reported as 0.38 sen).

GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD

4,799

Land clearance of
2 forest plantation
compartments

65,950

In the case of the MFRS, we were unable to recognise

3,679

Forward sales of
standing trees

(499)

Adjusted pre-MFRS

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY & ASSETS
As at 31 December 2019, GPB’s Shareholders’ Equity
stood at RM62.90 million, representing a decrease of

13% from RM72.52 million. Consequently, Net Assets Per

Share dropped to 46 sen at the end of 2019 from 53 sen at
the end of 2018. Meanwhile Total Assets for 2019 was

RM113.70 million. The decline in financial results were
also reflected by lower Return on Equity (ROE) and Return

on Total Assets for 2019. ROE slid to -15% against -4%
previously and Return on Total Assets dropped to -8% from
-3% the financial year before.
GEARING
Despite the drawdown of loans during the year in

review, GPB has what is considered low leverage
with

a

RM12.51

gearing
million

ratio

in

of

total

0.20

or

borrowings

approximately
against

its

shareholders’ equity of RM62.90 million. This ratio

increased from 0.02 the year before. We will continue
to operate with low gearing in order to minimise
non-operational costs and maintain solvency.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

FINANCE COSTS
As a direct result of our borrowings, the Group incurred
finance costs of RM0.35 million for 2019, vs RM0.14 million
the year before.

REVIEW OF OPERATING ACTIVITIES
KNOWN TRENDS IMPACTING GROUP OPERATIONS
WEATHER
The rainy season in November, December and January of

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN PERFORMANCE

each year always impact our logging operations adversely.

As mentioned earlier, the weaker performance of our

timber roads in the jungle interiors are inundated with rain

business segments and the change in revenue recognition

under the MFRS has resulted in the Group recording

unfavourable results for 2019 as compared with 2018.
We would have achieved better results in the form

of much higher revenue and a marginal loss for 2019
if not for the revenue that we have to reverse out due to

the change in accounting standards. The change due to
MFRS 15 has reversed out RM8.8 million in profits.

Harvested logs cannot be hauled out to the logyard as the
water. Log production thus decreases significantly during
the wet season.

SECOND ROTATION
The forest management units under the Group’s concession,
namely the Dungun Timber Complex (DTC) and the Cherul
Forest Concession (CFC) are now in their second rotation of

logging. Each rotation cycle lasts 25-30 years, and a widely

acknowledged trend is that logging yields in the second
CAPITAL EXPENDITURE REQUIREMENTS

cycle is about 15 hoppus tonne per hectare (hpt/ha), versus
20 hpt/ha in the first cycle.

The Capital Management Plan (CMP) outlines fund

raising requirements for any expansion as well as capital
expenditure (Capex) and operational expenditure (Opex)

enhancement for the Group. However, our only outlay

was RM1.7 million to acquire motor vehicles and for
building renovations under Capex. We did not undertake
any major plant expansions or any other acquisition in

2019. The Group commenced its veneer operations
in July 2018.

To ensure sustainable supply of logs in the future, the

Group is embarking on a forest plantation initiative with
approximately 2,800 hectares of its own forest concession

have been earmarked. This project is expected to incur a

high capital expenditure. To lower the Capex commitment,
the Group plans to carry out the development into 10
annual phases, in order to mitigate the high Capex.

MAIN FACTORS AFFECTING OPERATING ACTIVITIES OF
BUSINESS SEGMENTS

Continuing slowdown in construction sector: Demand
for glass products are invariably tied to the construction

sector where the market environment has been soft over the
past two years. Added to this is stiff price competition by

other players which has effectively suppressed prices and
fuelled customer demand for longer credit terms. Steps
taken to cushion the soft construction sector in Malaysia

include expanding our customer base into overseas market,
lobbying for more projects including State government
projects, proper selection of projects and progressive
marketing including the use of online platform such as
Alibaba.com to market our products.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

We consistently review risks that could impact operations
which would influence the Group’s performance. Among
the key risks affecting the Group are as follows:

Timeliness of issuance of logging licence: The standard

period required to approve a logging licence is 24 months,
with any hitches likely to result in a delay in issuance of

license by the state forestry authority, Jabatan Perhutanan
Negeri Terengganu (JPNT) which in turn will affect logging
operations and distribution to the sawmilling subsidiaries.
Sawntimber for export.

Stop work orders: The possibility of stop work orders by
the State Forestry Department could hamper the supply

To prevent this, we established a five-year logging licence
issuance plan, an annual logging plan, and monthly

monitoring of the licence issuance progress at the
headquarters level.

and distribution of timber. During the year in review, our

Annual Allowable Cut (AAC): Potential reduction in

to non-compliance by one of our contractors. To mitigate

The maximum annual quota or the AAC given by the JPNT

timber output was affected by three stop-work orders due
any such risks in the future, we have increased the depth of

our supervisory team’s close monitoring on our contractors.
KNOWN RISKS AFFECTING OPERATIONS
The Group is vigilant against risks to the operations of

our business. We have in place a risk management and

internal control system to identify, evaluate and manage

significant risks at strategic, financial, operational and
compliance levels.

Specifically, we have an Enterprise Risk Management
(ERM) framework which defines the process to manage risks
on a continuous basis and also action plans towards effective

risk management and internal control practices. This applies
to all of our business divisions, subsidiary companies and
corporate departments. This ERM is explained further in the

Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control, also
included in this Annual Report.

GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD

Annual Allowable Cut by JPNT, which would affect output.
for the Group is 2,600 ha. However, this limit is always
subject to changes by that authority. For example, the
Group’s AAC was cut to 1,500 ha/year in 2015, 1,987 ha/

year in 2017 and cut again to 2,000 ha/year in 2018.
There was no reduction in 2019. However, there is always

a risk that similar cuts may be imposed by the JPNT
in the future.

In addition to our existing business activities, risk

assessments are also conducted on new projects and

initiatives. Such exercises cover their impact on current
operations and business objectives so as to facilitate
better

decision-making

by

the

management,

the

board committees and ultimately the Board before any
commitment of resources for these new ventures.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

REVIEW OF BUSINESS SEGMENTS
During the year in review, our core businesses were beset

by internal operational issues as in the case of Harvesting

and Sawmilling, and primarily market conditions for

PRODUCTION
(HARVESTING & SAWMILLING)

LOGS

a below-par performance even though we would have

23,522

MFRS, as explained earlier.

2018: 32,823 hoppus tonnes

Manufacturing. The combination of these factors led to
achieved a marginal loss if not for the implementation of

HARVESTING AND SAWMILLING
This business segment recorded a lower revenue by
24% of RM56.95 million in 2019 as compared with

RM74.74 million in 2018. As a result, the segment suffered

hoppus tonnes

TIMBER

18,286

metric tonnes

2018: 23,330 metric tonnes

LBT of RM2.39 million against PBT of RM2.86 million in 2018.
Harvesting and Sawmilling remained our largest business,
contributing approximately 65% to Group Revenue
(2018: 66%).

The performance was affected by a significant reduction in

log extraction, which fell to 23,522 hoppus tonnes in 2019
from 32,823 hoppus tonnes in 2018. This then led to a
22% decline in sawn timber production to 18,286 tonnes in
2019 from 23,330 in 2018.

This was mainly due to the delay in logging commencement

by a contractor that did not adhere to the schedule set
for logging activities as well as stop work orders on three
logging compartments following the enforcement of
stringent regulations by JPNT.

PRODUCTION (MANUFACTURING)

GLASS

406,976

square metres
2018: 488,429 square metres

VENEER

3,539

cubic metres
2018: Nil

MANUFACTURING
Revenue for this business segment declined by 17.4% to

RM20.01 million in 2019 from RM24.22 million previously,
resulting in a higher LBT of RM5.62 million against PBT of

RM1.03 million in 2018. Manufacturing represents more
than one third of GPB’s business with a 35% share of

WOOD CHIPS

10,439

metric tonnes
2018: 11,757 metric tonnes

Group Revenue (2018: 35%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

TABLE 3: PERFORMANCE OF BUSINESS SEGMENTS (BEFORE ELIMINATIONS)

2019

HARVESTING & SAWMILLING

SEGMENTAL ASSETS (RM’000)

REVENUE (RM’000)

2019

96,396

56,951
74,744

2018

45,049
120,456

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX (RM’000)

SEGMENTAL LIABILITIES (RM’000)

2019

(2,386)

2,862

2018

41,702
23,214
149,688

MANUFACTURING
REVENUE (RM’000)

2019

2018

20,005
24,219

2018

SEGMENTAL ASSETS (RM’000)
100,272

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX (RM’000)
(5,624)

47,979

2019
2018

1,028

109,182
SEGMENTAL LIABILITIES (RM’000)

OTHERS (RENTAL & INVESTMENT INCOME)

20,662

REVENUE (RM’000)

2019

8,437
5,311

2018

PROFIT BEFORE TAX (RM’000)

2019
2018
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40,829

8,040
4,884

153,363
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Logs being transported to Pesama’s sawmill.

The construction sector remained soft throughout much of 2019 with some projects cancelled and others hit by delays
in commencement coupled with a lack of new developments across Malaysia. This led to the postponement of orders for
glass and related products.

Meanwhile, our veneer operations ran at a low capacity due to absence of equipment such as a dryer. Wood chip production
was also affected by the decline in the sawn timber production with a drop of 11% to 10,439 tonnes from 11,757 tonnes
previously.
OTHERS
Our non-core income comes from rental and investment. In 2019, this segment registered a notable increase in revenue
to RM8.44 million from RM5.31 million previously, mainly attributed by the increase in dividend and management fees
from subsidiaries.

OUTLOOK & PROSPECTS
The outlook for 2020 is bleak due to the widespread lockdown of society and economic activity pursuant to the Movement

Control Order (MCO) which has resulted in substantial loss of business across almost all industry sectors. The outlook also is
dismal due to the post-MCO economic fallout pursuant to the COVID-19 pandemic.

The current year is expected to bring on the deepest global recession in decades despite the unprecedented efforts of
governments worldwide to soften the blow with generous fiscal and monetary support.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

The World Bank’s June 2020 Global Economic Prospects,

These forecasts are in part based on three economic

Yet, the organisation cautioned that this forecast could be

by the Malaysian Government in March, April and

projected a 5.2% contraction in global growth for 2020.
optimistic, warning that the world economy could shrink
by as much as 8.0% if the pandemic persists along with

the expected restrictions to movement and disruptions to
economic activity.

For Malaysia, the World Bank had in its June 2020 Malaysia
Economic Monitor forecasted a 3.1% economic contraction

stimulus packages worth almost RM300 billion announced
June 2020.

PROSPECTS
HARVESTING AND SAWMILLING
As we look forward to 2020 and beyond, we are grateful

for 2020 while the International Monetary Fund (IMF)

to have our employees and contractors return to work in

Negara Malaysia (BNM), on the other hand, expects the

imposed by the Government of Malaysia.

forecasted an even worse contraction of 3.8%.

Bank

local economy to grow by between -2.0% and 0.5% in 2020.

full force on 4 May 2020 after several weeks of the MCO

Subsequently, the Government and relevant industry

Both the World Bank and IMF expect Malaysia’s economy

bodies evaluated companies in the wood-based industry

grow by 6.9% in 2021 while IMF forecasts Malaysia to grow

upon contracts.

to recover only in 2021. World Bank forecasts Malaysia to
by 9.0% in 2021.

for resumption of operations, particularly to fulfil agreed-

Moving forward, for our logging and harvesting operations,

we have to ensure that appointed contractors ramp up

operations and maximise resources in order to meet
our production targets this year to cushion the shortfall
experienced in 2019.
MANUFACTURING
Even before the MCO, our glass processing business was

already affected by the slowdown in the construction

sector. The pandemic only served to further dampen the
construction sector, which is expected to continue to be
slow for the rest of 2020.

To help mitigate this, our glass marketing team has

stepped up efforts to engage our customers and
use

non-traditional

Alibaba.com portal.

The construction of Thilawa Multipurpose International Terminal 3,
Myanmar used glass products supplied by GP Glass Sdn Bhd.

GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD

marketing

channels

such

as

STRIVING TOWARDS SUSTAINABILITY

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

29

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

As part of our five-year Business Plan, we are in the early

stages of reviewing potential in the downstream and

renewable energy business. This includes mini-hydro for

electricity generation, the installation of photovoltaic solar
panels and the conversion of wood wastes into biomass.

Dwindling raw material supply is one of the critical issues

faced by the timber industry. To ensure sustainable

supply going forward, the Group is embarking on a forest

plantation initiative. As a start, approximately 2,800 hectares
of the Group’s forest concession have been earmarked for
forest plantation.
Sawntimber product for export market.

Insyaallah, as we emerge from the post COVID-19 and face

its subsequent economic fallout, we will tread carefully

with our recovery plan that addresses the bleak outcome.
On 16 April, the veneer producing subsidiary PPSB received

We continue to maintain operational tempo, reduce costs,

approval from the Ministry of Plantation Industries and

safeguard our employees, and seek new revenue.

(MTIB) to continue its operations at 50% capacity during the

DIVIDEND

Commodities through the Malaysian Timber Industry Board
period of the MCO.

Given the unfavourable financial results in 2019, the Group

MOVING AHEAD

has not met the requirements of our own Dividend Policy

GPB expects the temporary restriction of business

As such, the Board of Directors is not recommending any

and the test under Companies Act 2016 to pay any dividend.

operations as well as current global and domestic market

dividend payment.

performance in 2020.

Going forward, we have put in place a robust plan to

We have addressed this negative impact by undertaking a

proper implementation of this plan, we are cautiously

essential costs. Under phase 1, non-essential operating

I look forward to sharing this better results with you next

conditions to have a significant negative impact on our

counter the bleak economic outlook for 2020. With the

2 phase cost-cutting programmes to eliminate some non-

optimistic that 2020 will be a much better year than 2019.

costs such as corporate social responsibility expenditures

year.

such as bonus payments were also frozen. The Group tries to

ENHANCE • UNLEASH • PURSUE • STRENGTHEN

were frozen. Under phase 2, non-essential manpower costs
preserve all of its manpower and not resort to retrenchment
to reduce costs.

This said, we are confident of making up lost ground and

time in the following financial year 2021 when the economy
expectedly recovers and market demand regains traction.

DATO’ AHMAD NADZARUDIN BIN ABDUL RAZAK
Chief Executive Officer
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Financial Highlights

Revenue
(Loss)/Profit Before Tax
Shareholders’ Equity

2015
RM’000

2016
RM’000

2017
RM’000

2018
RM’000

2019
RM’000

74,099

57,598

65,643

70,399

57,472

499

(2,299)

(3,555)
82,728

(6,356)
74,450

74,945

72,515

(8,977)
62,896

(Loss)/Earnings per Share (sen)

(1.88)

(4.13)

0.38

(2.14)

(6.79)

Net Tangible Assets per Share (RM)

0.62

0.55

0.54

0.51

0.43

REVENUE (RM’000)
2015

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (RM’000)
74,099

2015

82,728

2016

57,598

2016

74,450

2017

65,643

2017

74,945

2018

70,399

2018

72,515

2019

57,472

2019

62,896

NET TANGIBLE ASSETS PER SHARE (RM)
2015

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX (RM’000)
0.62

2015

(3,555)

2016

0.55

2016

(6,356)

2017

0.54

2017

499

2018

0.51

2018

(2,299)

2019

0.43

2019

(8,977)

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (SEN)
2015

(1.88)

2016

(4.13)

2017

0.38

2018

(2.14)

2019

(6.79)
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Financial Highlights
– Segmental Information
2015
RM’000

2016
RM’000

2017
RM’000

2018
RM’000

2019
RM’000

HARVESTING & SAWMILLING						
Revenue

60,585

40,326

55,238

74,744

56,951

Profit/(Loss) Before Tax

(3,844)

(5,764)

7,509

2,862

(2,386)

109,129

101,996

101,101

100,272

96,396

Segment Assets

MANUFACTURING						
Revenue
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax
Segment assets

28,131

30,588

27,236

24,219

20,005

71

989

77

1,028

(5,624)

22,656

20,910

20,397

47,979

45,049

OTHERS						
Revenue

8,332

4,414

4,203

5,311

8,437

Profit/(Loss) Before Tax

1,741

(877)

(2,586)

4,884

8,040

112,466

113,488

112,623

109,182

120,456

Segment Assets

MANUFACTURING (RM’000)

Revenue

2015

28,131

2016

30,588

2017

27,236

2018

24,219

2019

20,005

HARVESTING & SAWMILLING (RM’000)

OTHERS (RM’000)

2015

60,585

2015

8,332

2016

40,326

2016

4,414

2017

55,238

2017

4,203

2018

74,744

2018

5,311

2019

56,951

2019

8,437
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Financial Highlights
– Sales by Region
REGION

2019

2018

Malaysia

97.14%

97.33%

0.67%

0.97%

-

0.11%

2.19%

1.59%

100%

100%

United Kingdom
East Asia
Other Regions

United Kingdom
Other
Regions

United Kingdom
Other
Regions

2019

Malaysia

GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD

East Asia

2018

Malaysia
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Investor Relations
GPB’s wholly owned subsidiary,
Kumpulan Pengurusan
Kayu-Kayan Trengganu
Sdn Bhd’s (KPKKT) tropical
forest of 106,697 hectares (ha)
in Dungun Timber Complex
(DTC) is the largest forest
concession in the East Coast
of Peninsular Malaysia. The
DTC concession area is also
the largest and the only forest
in Peninsular Malaysia to have
the FSC® certification, and
only the second natural forest
in Malaysia to achieve this
distinction.

In line with the Group’s commitment to upholding the highest
standards of corporate governance and stakeholder engagement,
we are committed to provide pertinent financial and relevant
information as part of our Investor Relations (IR) engagement
initiatives.
STRIVING TOWARDS SUSTAINABILITY
Regular channels of engagement and communication with our
multiple stakeholder groups have been established to disseminate
appropriate updates on strategic direction, business recovery plan,
operational performance, progress of current projects and financial
information as well as our growth and sustainability initiatives.
This ensures stakeholders are apprised in a timely manner and
enables investors and analysts to make informed investment
decisions.
The Head of Finance together with the Company Secretary as well
as the Heads of Corporate Services, Corporate Communications,
Human Resource and Administration, and Downstream Business
Services are responsible for IR-related activities, which are guided
by plans to align with the Group’s goals and priorities.

Pesama Timber Corporation Sdn Bhd (Pesama),
another wholly owned subsidiary of the Group,
successfully obtained the FSC® endorsed
certification for its 20,243 ha Cherul Forest
Concession (CFC) in December 2012, which is valid
until 6 December 2020.
Golden Pharos Glass Sdn Bhd (GP Glass), the Group’s
wholly owned glass manufacturing arm for the
production of tempered, double glazed, laminated
and ceramic printed safety glass is registered against
the provisions of ISO 14001: 2015 International
Standard, which is valid until 29 July 2020.

The Group’s
website contains
all relevant
information
for investors
and potential
investors to
make informed
decisions.
GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD
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Investor Relations (Continued)

SHAREHOLDER BASE AND VALUE AS SHARIAH-COMPLIANT COMPANY
As at 29 May 2020, the shareholder base was 3,059 institutional and retail/private shareholders. Terengganu
Incorporated Sdn Bhd and Lembaga Tabung Amanah Warisan Negeri Terengganu are our major shareholders
with equity holdings of 63.1% and 8.4% respectively of the total share capital. Foreign shareholding accounted
for 1.8% of the total.
As a Shariah-Compliant company, GPB is committed to responsible investments that are free from usury,
gambling and ambiguity in striving for sustainable profitability.

ENGAGING OUR SHAREHOLDERS AND
THE INVESTMENT COMMUNITY
The 32nd Annual General Meeting (AGM)
was held on 20 June 2019 at Dewan
Gamelan 3, Primula Beach Hotel, Jalan
Persinggahan, 20400 Kuala Terengganu,
Terengganu Darul Iman.
Prior to the AGM proceedings, CEO Dato’
Nadza Abdul presented the key highlights
of the Group’s performance for Financial
Year 2018. After the proceedings,
shareholders
actively
participated
in the question and answer session.
All proposed resolutions were duly
passed,
with
the
outcome
from
the AGM featured on our website,
www.goldenpharos.com.

GPB held its 32nd Annual General Meeting at Primula Hotel.

As required by the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia and in line with the guidelines of the Malaysian Code
on Corporate Governance 2017, timely and comprehensive announcements on our quarterly and annual financial results
are submitted to Bursa Malaysia which are duly uploaded on the website, www.bursamalaysia.com/market_information/
announcements/company_announcement
These announcements are also posted on our corporate website under our dedicated IR portal http://goldenpharos.com/
index.php/announcement/bursa-announcement
We continuously update the website with the latest information including annual reports, quarterly results, Bursa Malaysia
announcements, outcome of AGM and corporate information. For more specific investor-related clarification and feedback,
a dedicated email address is provided: info@gpb.com.my, whereby queries and comments from shareholders, investors,
analysts, media and general public are addressed in a timely manner. For further information on our Stakeholder Engagement
for FY2019, please refer to the Sustainability Report in this Annual Report.

GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD

STRIVING TOWARDS SUSTAINABILITY

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

35

Financial Calendar
ANNOUNCEMENT ON
QUARTERLY RESULTS
28 May 2019

FINANCIAL YEAR

1 Quarter Results
st

1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019

27 August 2019
2nd Quarter Results
27 November 2019
3rd Quarter Results
28 February 2020
4 Quarter Results

ANNUAL REPORT
Issued 29 June 2020

th

32ND AGM

held on 20 June 2019 at 10.30 am
Gamelan 3, Primula Beach Hotel, Jalan Persinggahan
20400 Kuala Terengganu, Terengganu Darul Iman

Left to right:

33RD ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
to be held on 28 July 2020

Board of Directors

HAJI SAIFFUDDIN BIN OTHMAN
Independent Non-Executive Director

YBM DATO’ HAJI TENGKU HASSAN BIN TENGKU OMAR
Non-Independent Non-Executive Chairman

ASSOCIATE PROFESSOR DR MOHD ZAKI BIN HAMZAH
Independent Non-Executive Director

DATO’ AHMAD NADZARUDIN BIN ABDUL RAZAK
Chief Executive Officer

MUHAMMAD RAMIZU BIN MUSTAFFA
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

DR WAN AHMAD RUDIRMAN BIN WAN RAZAK
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

DATO’ BENTARA DALAM DATO’ HAJI A. RAHMAN
BIN YAHYA
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

MOHD BADARUDDIN BIN ISMAIL
Independent Non-Executive Director
SURAYA BINTI MOHD HAIRON
Company Secretary
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Chairman’s
Profile

AGE

69
YBM DATO’ HAJI TENGKU HASSAN BIN TENGKU OMAR
Non-Independent Non-Executive Chairman

BOARD COMMITTEE
None

YBM Dato’ Haji Tengku Hassan bin Tengku Omar was appointed as the Chairman of
Golden Pharos Berhad (GPB) following his appointment as a Director on 1 August 2018.

He graduated with a Bachelor of Economics from Universiti Malaya, after which he served

in various positions in the Terengganu State Civil Service between 1981 to 2004, including
as State Financial Officer, Director of Lands and Mines, and Chief Executive Officer of

Majlis Agama Islam dan Adat Melayu Terengganu (MAIDAM). He was the former Chairman
of A&W Malaysia, Singapore & Thailand from 2000 until 2004.

Dato’ Haji Tengku Hassan is currently the Ladang Assemblyman and State Exco for Trade,
Industrial, Regional Development and Administrative Wellbeing. He is a Board Trustee

Member of Yayasan Terengganu and also sits on the Board of Lembaga Tabung Amanah
Warisan Negeri Terengganu (LTAWNT) and Chicken Cottage (M) Sdn Bhd.

GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD
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Board of Directors’ Profile

DATO’ BENTARA DALAM
DATO’ HAJI A. RAHMAN BIN YAHYA
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

BOARD COMMITTEE
• Chairman of SIC
• Member of LTIPC

AGE

62

Dato’ Bentara Dalam Dato’ Haji A. Rahman bin Yahya was
appointed as a Director of GPB on 22 February 2017.
He holds a Bachelor of Economics (Honours) from
Universiti Kebangsaan Malaysia and Advanced Diploma
from the University of Wales College Newport, United
Kingdom. Dato’ Haji A. Rahman began his career with
the Terengganu Economic Planning Unit in 1983 and
later moved on to hold various significant positions in
Terengganu government agencies. He has served, among
others, as the President of Kemaman Municipal Council,
Deputy Director of Terengganu Economic Planning Unit
and Comptroller of the Royal Household, Office of His Royal
Highness the Sultan of Terengganu.
He has also held many positions in organisations such
as Tesdec Sdn Bhd as the Executive Director from 1998
to 2004 and Terengganu State Economic Development
Corporation as the General Manager from January 2016 to
September 2016. He was appointed as the State Financial
Officer in 2017 and was promoted to become the State
Secretary of Terengganu on 22 April 2018 before retiring
on 21 August 2019.
In recognition of his outstanding public service, Dato’ Haji
A. Rahman was conferred the title of Dato’ Bentara Dalam
on 22 July 2019.

DR WAN AHMAD RUDIRMAN
BIN WAN RAZAK

Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

BOARD COMMITTEE
• Member of NRC
• Member of SIC

AGE

48

Dr Wan Ahmad Rudirman bin Wan Razak was appointed
to the Board of GPB on 1 August 2018. He holds a Doctorate
of Business Administration from the University of South
Australia in Adelaide, Australia.
Dr Wan Ahmad Rudirman bin Wan Razak is presently the
President/Group Chief Executive Officer of Terengganu
Incorporated Sdn Bhd, a wholly-owned strategic investment
holding company of the State Government of Terengganu.
He joined Terengganu Inc. on 1 January 2017 to spearhead
the company to a higher level and enhance its role for
future growth.
Prior to joining Terengganu Inc., he was the Group Deputy
Chief Executive Officer/Director of Selia Ekuiti Sdn Bhd.
Before his appointment with Selia Ekuiti Sdn Bhd,
Dr Wan Ahmad held a string of senior leadership positions
in prominent Malaysian companies. He was the Chief
Operating Officer/Group General Manager, Group Operation
Services of KUB Malaysia Berhad and Head, Corporate
Strategy, Group Planning Division of Malaysia Airports
Holdings Berhad.
He also sits on the Board of several private limited companies
under the State Government of Terengganu.
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Board of Directors’ Profile (Continued)

MUHAMMAD RAMIZU
BIN MUSTAFFA

Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

BOARD COMMITTEE
• Chairman of LTIPC
• Member of AC
• Member of SIC

AGE

43

Muhammad Ramizu bin Mustaffa was appointed to the
Board of GPB on 1 August 2018 and was redesignated as
Non-Independent Director following his appointment as
Chief Financial Officer of Terengganu Incorporated Sdn Bhd
on 8 January 2019.
He graduated from the University of Salford, Manchester,
United Kingdom with a Bachelor of Science (Honours) in
Finance and Accounting. He is a member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales (ICAEW) and
the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (MIA).
Muhammad Ramizu commenced his career as an auditor
with Arthur Andersen (which later merged with Ernst &
Young (EY), Malaysia) in 2000. He later joined ECM Libra
Berhad before leaving for the United Kingdom in 2004 to join
EY UK as an Executive, National Audit. His last position in the
UK was as Manager, Corporate Finance in BDO UK before
returning to Malaysia to join KLCC Group in 2010. In KLCC
Group, he played key roles in various corporate exercises
including in the establishment of KLCCP Stapled REIT.
Leaving KLCC Holdings as the Head of Corporate Finance in
2014, he later joined Sapura Resources Berhad as the Chief
Financial Officer of the Aviation Business, and subsequently
as the Group Head of Finance, Putrajaya Leisures & Services
Group Sdn Bhd. He was appointed as the Group Chief
Financial Officer of Terengganu Incorporated Sdn Bhd,
the holding company of Golden Pharos Berhad before
leaving the group on 31 January 2020.

GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD

ASSOCIATE PROFESSOR
DR MOHD ZAKI BIN HAMZAH
Independent Non-Executive Director

BOARD COMMITTEE
• Chairman of NRC
• Member of AC
• Member of LTIPC

AGE

57

Associate Professor Dr Mohd Zaki bin Hamzah was
appointed to the Board of GPB on 1 August 2018. He holds
a Bachelor’s Degree (in Biology) from Doane College, USA.
He then completed his Master of Forestry in Forest Resource
Management from Duke University, USA and obtained
his PhD in Forest Rehabilitation from Yokohama National
University, Japan.
He began his career as a Lecturer with Universiti
Putra Malaysia (UPM) at Bintulu Campus in 1988, and
thereafter continued to serve UPM, Serdang in various
capacities within the Department of Forest Production,
and later (until present) with the Department of Forest
Management under the Faculty of Forestry. He was
appointed as Associate Professor in 2006 and was the
Deputy Dean (Student Affairs and Linkages) of the Faculty of
Forestry, UPM. As for community services, he was appointed
as the Deputy Commandant for the Malaysian Civil Defence
Force Student Corp (Kor SISPA) UPM, with the rank of Colonel.
He has published referenced articles from more than 15
research studies and has been invited internationally as a
guest lecturer on Forest Management and Silviculture.
Dr Mohd Zaki is being seconded to Terengganu State
Government Secretary’s Office (Terengganu Strategic and
Integrity Institute (TSIS)) as the Deputy CEO2 of TSIS and the
Director of the Centre of Excellence Pelan Induk Terengganu
Sejahtera (CoE PITAS), for two (2) years beginning
June 15, 2020.
Dr Mohd Zaki is a member of the Society of American
Foresters. Since 1 April 2019, he also sits on the Board of
Kumpulan Pengurusan Kayu-Kayan Trengganu Sdn Bhd, a
subsidiary of GPB.
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Board of Directors’ Profile (Continued)

MOHD BADARUDDIN BIN ISMAIL

HAJI SAIFFUDDIN BIN OTHMAN

Independent Non-Executive Director

BOARD COMMITTEE
• Chairman of AC
• Member of NRC

AGE

56

Mohd Badaruddin bin Ismail was appointed to the
Board of GPB on 1 August 2018. He attained his Diploma
in Accountancy from Institut Teknologi MARA in 1985.
He is a member of the Malaysian Association of Accounting
Administration.
He had served as Assistant Accounts Manager at Kumpulan
Pengurusan Kayu-Kayan Trengganu Sdn Bhd, a subsidiary
of GPB from 1987 to 1993. He had held various positions
in several organisations such as TR Granite Industries
Sdn Bhd as the General Manager of Corporate Finance
in 1994, Sutra Beach Resort Sdn Bhd as the Corporate &
Business Development Manager from 2000 to 2004 and
Telepal Group of Companies as the Group Chief Executive
Officer from 2008 to 2013.
He was the Principal of Adib Azhar & Co, a public
accounting firm and currently, he is the Chief Executive
Officer of Terengganu Telecommunications Sdn Bhd.
Since 1 April 2019, he also sits on the Board of Permint
Plywood Sdn Bhd, a wholly-owned subsidiary of GPB.

SIC
AC
NRC
LTIPC

–
–
–
–

Strategy and Investment Committee
Audit Committee
Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Long-Term Incentive Plan Committee

Independent Non-Executive Director

BOARD COMMITTEE
• Member of AC
• Member of NRC

AGE

51

Haji Saiffuddin bin Othman was appointed to the Board
of GPB on 1 August 2018. He graduated with a Bachelor of
Law (Hons) from International Islamic University of Malaysia
in 1993 and was admitted as an advocate and solicitor
of the High Court Malaya in 1994 and Syarie Counsel for
Terengganu Syariah Court in 1995.
He started his career at Messrs Adnan & Wee as a Legal
Assistant from 1994 to 1999 before joining Messrs Wan Abd
Muttalib & Co in 2000 as a partner. Haji Saiffuddin brings
over 25 years of experience in the legal sector specialising
in civil, criminal, syariah consultancy, general litigation, estate
planning and conveyancing.

Notes:
(i) None of the Directors have any family relationship with any
Director and/or major shareholder of GPB.
(ii) None of the Directors have declared any conflict of interest with
GPB group.
(iii) None of the Directors have any convictions for any offences
within the past 5 years nor have been imposed with any public
sanction or penalty by any relevant regulatory bodies during the
financial year ended 31 December 2019.
GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD
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Chief Executive
Officer’s Profile

AGE

52
DATO’ AHMAD NADZARUDIN BIN ABDUL RAZAK
Chief Executive Officer

Dato’ Ahmad Nadzarudin bin Abdul Razak (Dato’ Nadza)
joined Golden Pharos Berhad as the Chief Executive Officer
(CEO) on 13 September 2017. He is also a director of all the
companies within the GPB Group, which include subsidiaries
in logging, sawmilling, forest plantation, manufacturing
of veneer and biomass pellet production. A professional
senior executive, Dato’ Nadza is highly experienced in the
management of government linked companies (GLCs) both
at the national and state levels.
He is also involved in several prominent Government
agencies. He is a board member of the Malaysian Employers
Federation since 2018. In 2019, he was appointed to the
Board of the Social Security Organisation (SOCSO) by the
Minister of Human Resources. In 2020, he was appointed to
the Board of Trustees of the Malaysian Timber Council by the
Minister of Plantation Industries and Commodity.
An award-winning senior leader, he has clinched several
noteworthy awards, namely the 2019 Masterclass Bumiputera
CEO of the Year at the Malaysia Excellence Business Awards
(MEBA) 2019, the Malaysian Business Leadership Awards
2010 (Logistics & Transportation sector) jointly organised
by the Kuala Lumpur Malay Chamber of Commerce
(KLMCC) and The Leaders Magazine, a leading industrial
magazine in the country and the Express Service Provider
of the Year conferred at the 2009 Frost & Sullivan Malaysia
Excellence Award.

From 2012 until 2017, he was the Group Managing Director
of Panglima Group of Companies, a private investment group
with business interests in natural resources extraction in
Indonesia, mini hydro power generation in Laos and facilities
management in Kuala Lumpur.
In 2011, he was the Head of Services Division at DRB-Hicom
Berhad, overseeing the business performance of four large
subsidiaries operating in the services sector. He supervised
the CEOs of Alam Flora Sdn Bhd, Puspakom Sdn Bhd,
Hicom Power Sdn Bhd and KL Airport Services Sdn Bhd.
From 2003 to 2010, he was attached to Pos Malaysia Berhad,
holding several senior management posts, which included
General Manager of the CEO’s Office, General Manager of
Procurement & Contracts, General Manager of Corporate
Planning & Strategic Business and Chief Operating Officer
of Poslaju.
From 1996 to 2003, he was with the UEM Berhad/Renong
Berhad Group of Companies, and held the positions of
Deputy General Manager of Corporate Affairs & Business
Development and Manager in the Office of the President.
He was responsible of managing and overseeing corporate
matters, financial performance, strategic planning and legal
aspects for Renong’s 10 subsidiaries in the property sector.
From 1993 to 1995, he was Assistant Manager in Corporate
Finance at Asian International Merchant Bankers Berhad.
His experience in corporate finance included listing of
companies, issuance of bonds and acquisitions.
Dato’ Nadza started his career in 1991 as a staff accountant
with Gulf States Asphalt Co. Inc, a manufacturing company in
Houston, Texas, USA immediately after his graduation.
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Group Senior Management
From left to right:
■ WAN ZUHAIRIAH BINTI WAN ALI @ WAN DAMSEK
Head of Human Resources and Administration
Golden Pharos Berhad

■ FAUZAN BIN ABDUL

Head of Corporate Communication
Golden Pharos Berhad

■ HILMI BIN AWANG

DATO’ NADZA ABDUL
Chief Executive Officer

■ SYUKRI BIN ALI

Head of Finance
Golden Pharos Berhad

■ ZULKIFLI BIN OMAR

Head of Corporate Services
Golden Pharos Berhad

Head of Subsidiary
Pesaka Trengganu Berhad

■ MOHD SHAMSOL BIN MOHD SHAFIE
Head of Subsidiary
Pesama Timber Corporation Sdn Bhd

■ AHMAD BAZLI BIN RAZALI
Officer-in-Charge
Permint Plywood Sdn Bhd

■ STANLEY LAU CHAN MING

■ SUHAIRI BIN SULONG

Head of Subsidiary
Kumpulan Pengurusan Kayu-Kayan Trengganu Sdn Bhd

Head of Subsidiary
Golden Pharos Glass Sdn Bhd

■ SURAYA BINTI MOHD HAIRON
■  Heads of Departments

■  Heads of Subsidiaries

Head of Company Secretarial
Golden Pharos Berhad
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Group Senior Management’s Profile

ZULKIFLI BIN OMAR

SYUKRI BIN ALI

Head of Corporate Services
Golden Pharos Berhad

Head of Finance
Golden Pharos Berhad

AGE

AGE

51

45

WORKING EXPERIENCE:

WORKING EXPERIENCE:

•

•

Commenced his career in 1999 with Permint Plywood
Sdn Bhd, where he held various positions within the
GPB Group.

•

Presently, he is the Group Finance Senior Manager of
GPB, heading the finance department since 2015.

•

More than 23 years of professional experience in
the areas of audit, accounting, finance and business
advisory. Before joining GPB in 2004, he worked for
Arthur Andersen & Co as Assistant Manager for the
Eastern Region and Head of Finance and Administration
at PTB Land Sdn Bhd.
His current position is Senior Manager of Corporate
Services.

QUALIFICATIONS:
•

Member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants

•

Fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants (ACCA)

•

ACCA, Emile Woolf College of Accountancy & University
of Northumbria at Newcastle, United Kingdom

•

Diploma in Accountancy, Universiti Teknologi MARA

GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD

QUALIFICATIONS:
•

Member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants

•

Master of Business
Kebangsaan Malaysia

•

Bachelor of Accountancy (Hons), Universiti Teknologi
MARA

•

Diploma in Accountancy, Universiti Sultan Zainal Abidin

Administration,

Universiti
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Group Senior Management’s Profile (Continued)

WAN ZUHAIRIAH BINTI WAN ALI
@ WAN DAMSEK

SURAYA BINTI MOHD HAIRON
Head of Company Secretarial
Golden Pharos Berhad

Head of Human Resources and Administration
Golden Pharos Berhad

AGE

AGE

45

45

WORKING EXPERIENCE:

WORKING EXPERIENCE:

•

Began her career with GPB in October 2006 as Senior
Executive of Human Resource & Administration.

•

•

Held the position of Assistant Manager, Human
Resources & Administration in January 2009, before
promotion to her current position as Human Resources
& Administration Manager in January 2012.

•

She has 16 years of experience in the field of human
resource management.

Started her career with GPB in 2012 as Assistant
Manager and Joint Company Secretary for dormant
companies under GPB Group. Prior to joining GPB,
she worked as Assistant Tax Manager in S.T. Toh &
Co. and was also a company secretary to several
private limited companies. She has over 15 years of
professional experience in taxation and accounting.

•

Her current position is Manager and Company
Secretary of GPB and its Group of Companies after
being promoted in 2017.

QUALIFICATIONS:
•

Panelist on the Industrial Court representing employers

QUALIFICATIONS:

•

Pengapit Majikan Kawasan Timur, Jemaah Rayuan
Keselamatan Sosial (JKRS)

•

Professional Stage of the ICSA, United Kingdom

•

Member of the Malaysian Institute of Human Resource
Management

•

Bachelor of Business Administration (Hons) Finance,
Open University Malaysia

•

Bachelor of Human Resource Management (Hons)
Degree, Universiti Utara Malaysia

•

Licensed by the Companies Commission of Malaysia

•

Diploma in Personnel Management, Universiti Sultan
Zainal Abidin
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Group Senior Management’s Profile (Continued)

FAUZAN BIN ABDUL

KHAIRUDDIN BIN KILAU

Head of Corporate Communication
Golden Pharos Berhad

Head of Downstream Business
Golden Pharos Berhad

AGE

AGE

35

51

WORKING EXPERIENCE:

WORKING EXPERIENCE:

•

•

He joined GPB in November 2008 as Assistant Manager
of the Internal Audit Department.

•

Prior to joining GPB, he gained extensive experience
in Accounts and Internal Audit with Syarikat Takaful
Malaysia Berhad and Negeri Sembilan Timber Sdn Bhd.

•

He is currently the Manager of the Group Downstream
Business.

Started his career with GPB in June 2018 as the Head
of Corporate Communication Department. Before
joining GPB, he worked as a Senior Economic Journalist
at Malaysian National News Agency (BERNAMA) from
2012-2014.

•

He joined the Terengganu State Secretariat as the Press
Secretary to Menteri Besar Terengganu from June 2014
until December 2015 before being appointed as the
Special Media Officer at Terengganu Inc Sdn Bhd from
January 2016 until May 2018.

•

He is a member of the Terengganu Media Club
since 2015.

QUALIFICATIONS:

QUALIFICATIONS:
•

Member of the Institute of Internal Auditors Malaysia
(IIA)

•

Member of the Business Continuity Management
Institute (BCCM)

•

Master of Psychology, International Islamic University
Malaysia

•

Bachelor of Management
University Malaysia

•

Bachelor of English with Communication (Hons),
Universiti Sultan Zainal Abidin

•

London Chamber of Commerce
Kolej Negri, Negeri Sembilan

•

Diploma in Manufacturing Technology, Universiti Sultan
Zainal Abidin

•

Foundation in Mechanical
Tenaga Nasional

GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD

Engineering, Universiti

(Hons)

Degree, Open
and

Industry,

STRIVING TOWARDS SUSTAINABILITY

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

45

Group Senior Management’s Profile (Continued)

SUHAIRI BIN SULONG

MOHD SHAMSOL BIN MOHD SHAFIE

Head of Subsidiary
Kumpulan Pengurusan Kayu-Kayan Trengganu
Sdn Bhd

Head of Subsidiary
Pesama Timber Corporation Sdn Bhd

AGE

AGE

48

48

WORKING EXPERIENCE:

WORKING EXPERIENCE:

•

•

He has more than 22 years of working experience in
the areas of marketing and sales in various private
companies.

•

He joined GPB in 2001 as Marketing and Sales Executive
and held various posts within the Group. He was
promoted to Assistant General Manager of Pesaka
Trengganu Berhad in 2006.

•

Currently, he is the General Manager of Pesama Timber
Corporation Sdn Bhd.

•

Joined GPB Group as Finance Manager of Pesama
Timber Corporation Sdn Bhd in September 2001 and
has since held various key positions within the Group.
Before joining GPB Group, he was attached to a Public
Accounting Firm, Arthur Andersen & Co., specialising in
audit, taxation and advisory works.
He was later appointed to the position of General
Manager of Corporate & Finance in 2012 and was
reassigned as General Manager of Pesama Timber
Corporation Sdn Bhd in 2015. He was subsequently
appointed as General Manager of KPKKT and was
promoted to Senior General Manager in 2017.

QUALIFICATIONS:

QUALIFICATIONS:
•

Master of Business Administration, Universiti Teknologi
MARA

•

Member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (MIA)

•

•

Bachelor of Accountancy (Hons), Universiti Utara
Malaysia

Bachelor of Business Administration (Hons) Marketing,
Universiti Teknologi MARA

•

Diploma in Planting Industry
Universiti Teknologi MARA

and

Management,
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Group Senior Management’s Profile (Continued)

HILMI BIN AWANG

STANLEY LAU CHAN MING
Head of Subsidiary
Golden Pharos Glass Sdn Bhd

Head of Subsidiary
Pesaka Trengganu Berhad

AGE

AGE

52
WORKING EXPERIENCE:
•
•
•
•
•

Started his career with Pesama Timber Corporation Sdn
Bhd in July 1992 and has since held several significant
positions within the GPB Group.
He went on to be the Assistant General Manager of
Pesama in 2010 before being appointed as Acting
General Manager of Pesaka.

•

•
•
•

WORKING EXPERIENCE:
•

He joined Golden Pharos Glass Sdn Bhd in June 1993
as a marketing executive. Prior to joining Golden
Pharos Glass, he was the Marketing Officer at Malaysian
Sheet Glass Berhad for four years.

•

He has held various positions in Golden Pharos Glass, as
Assistant Operations Manager before being appointed
as Sourcing and Marketing Manager from January 2001
till December 2010.

•

He was promoted to Deputy General Manager of
Golden Pharos Glass in January 2011 until March
2018, before being appointed as General Manager in
June 2019.

He was promoted to General Manager of Pesaka in
June 2019.

He has more than 24 years of experience in Marketing
and Operations as well as Sales.
He is also a Committee Member of Persatuan Kayukayan & Perabot Bumiputera (PEKA).

QUALIFICATIONS:
•

53

Diploma in Forestry, Universiti Putra Malaysia

Committee member of Capacity Building for
Compliance Project with Timber Certification under
Malaysian Timber Certification (MTCS) (cooperation
with MTIB)

Committee member of Malaysian Timber Structure
(MTIB)
Committee member of Malaysian Dressed Timber
(MTIB)
Alternate Member of the MTIB Board

GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD

QUALIFICATIONS:
•

Vice President of Safety Glass Processors Association of
Malaysia (SGPAM)

•

Committee Member of SIRIM (working Group for
Malaysia Standard on Safety Glass)

•

Charter Institute of Marketing (Part 2), Stamford College

•

Charter Institute of Marketing (Part 1), Stamford College

•

LCCI, Rima College
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Group Senior Management’s Profile (Continued)

AHMAD BAZLI BIN RAZALI
Officer-in-Charge
Permint Plywood Sdn Bhd

AGE

34
WORKING EXPERIENCE:
•

Began his career with the Ministry of Health as Assistant
Secretary (Management Services) in 2010 before joining
GP Dynamic Venture Sdn Bhd as Assistant Manager of
Human Resources & Administration in 2016.

•

In January 2018, he was the Head of Production at
Permint Plywood Sdn Bhd and was subsequently
promoted to Group Downstream Business Manager at
GPB in August 2019 until October 2019.

•

He is currently the Officer-in-Charge of Permint Plywood
Sdn Bhd since his appointment in November 2019.

QUALIFICATIONS:
•

Member of Malaysian Institute of Management (MIM)

•

Master of Business Administration, Universiti Teknologi
MARA

•

Bachelor of Science (Human Development) Degree,
Universiti Putra Malaysia

•

Pre-University Programme KPM-MSN, Sekolah Sukan
Bukit Jalil, Kuala Lumpur

Notes:
(i)

None of the Senior Management has any family relationship
with any director and/or any major shareholder nor has any
conflict of interest with GPB.

(ii)

None of the Senior Management has any convictions for any
offences within the past 5 years.
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Corporate Highlights
21 APRIL 2019
TERENGGANU INC GROUP CORPORATE
DIRECTORS’ PROGRAMME 2019
GPB
Directors
and
Senior
Management
attended the Terengganu Inc Group Corporate
Directors’ Programme 2019, which highlighted
the role of GLCs to the State and stakeholders.
The programme was conducted at Duyong Marina
Resort.

20 JUNE 2019
GPB 32ND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
GPB held its 32nd Annual General Meeting
at Primula Hotel and announced its
first dividend payment after 11 years of
1.27 sen per share.
GPB CEO Dato’ Nadza Abdul presented
the Group’s highlights and financial
performance prior to the proceedings.
Shareholders who attended the AGM
then engaged with the Board of Directors
and Senior Management Team in a
question and answer session after the
proceedings.
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Corporate Highlights (Continued)

4 JULY 2019
BRANDLAUREATE BESTBRANDS AWARDS 2018/2019
Golden Pharos Glass Sdn Bhd (GP Glass), a subsidiary of
GPB, was presented with a Brand Leadership Award at
the prestigious BrandLaureate BestBrands Awards 2018/2019.
GPB CEO Dato’ Nadza Abdul received the award at the
ceremony which was held at Majestic Hotel, Kuala Lumpur.
Stanley Lau, GP Glass Head of Subsidiary and employees
from both head office and GP Glass also attended the awards
ceremony.
The BrandLaureate Awards has become the most
prestigious and coveted branding awards in the world,
which is organised by The World Brands Foundation
(TWBC), the only brands and branding foundation in
the world.

16 JULY 2019
INTERNATIONAL ISLAMIC LEADERSHIP FORUM & AWARDS 2019

GPB was a big winner on this night, sweeping two awards including the Excellence in Corporate Social Responsibility
and the Bumiputera CEO of the Year award for Dato’ Nadza Abdul.

18 JULY 2019
MANIS FM SPECIAL INTERVIEW
WITH CEO

GPB CEO Dato’ Nadza Abdul was
interviewed on Manis FM to share GPB’s
recognition on being conferred with
the Brand Leadership Award at the high
profile BrandLaureate BestBrands Awards
2018/2019.
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Corporate Highlights (Continued)

1 AUGUST 2019
CEO’S APPOINTMENT AS SOCSO DIRECTOR
GPB CEO Dato’ Nadza Abdul was appointed to the Board of Directors of the
Social Security Organisation (SOCSO) by the former Minister of Human Resource,
YB M. Kulasegaran for a two-year tenure starting 1 August, 2019.

17 - 18 SEPTEMBER 2019
BUSINESS RECOVERY PLAN

GPB’s annual retreat to discuss the
Groups’ Business Recovery Plan was
a lively affair, with attendees from
various departments congregating
to plan targets and profits for
the upcoming financial year.
The two-day retreat was held at
Cameron Highlands.

8 OCTOBER 2019
MEF’S BEST EMPLOYER AWARD

CEO Dato’ Nadza Abdul was presented
with the Malaysian Employers Federation’s
(MEF) Best Employer Award for GPB by
the former Minister of Human Resource,
YB M Kulasegaran. Also present at the
awards ceremony was the former Deputy
Minister, YB Mahfudz Omar. The event was
held at Holiday Villa Hotel & Conference
Centre, Subang, Kuala Lumpur.
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Corporate Highlights (Continued)

9 - 10 OCTOBER 2019
ANUGERAH PLWS 2019

GPB’s Human Resources and Administration Department presented its administration systems to five experienced judges at
the PLWSS 2019 Piala Menteri Sumber Manusia (Human Resources Minister’s Cup).
Although GPB did not win the competition, it proved to be an awe-inspiring experience for our HR personnel. The event was
organised at Sunway Putra Hotel, Kuala Lumpur.

15 OCTOBER 2019
TERENGGANU INC’S CHALLENGE 2020
– STRATEGIC BUSINESS PLAN

GPB shared its Five-Year Strategic Business Plan 20202024 to Chief Executive Officer/President Dr Wan
Ahmad Rudirman Wan Razak of Terengganu Inc and
representatives from the Board of Directors’, the major
shareholder. The session was held at Primula Beach Hotel,
Kuala Terengganu and was attended by several senior
management from both Terengganu Inc and GPB.
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Corporate Highlights (Continued)

13 NOVEMBER 2019
VISIT AT DUNGUN CONCESSION AREA
GPB’s senior management personnel
visited the concession area managed
by
subsidiary
company
Kumpulan
Pengurusan
Kayu-kayan
Trengganu
Sdn Bhd, to mainly gain insight of the
safety situation to sustain logging activities
during the monsoon season.

17 NOVEMBER 2019
MIDA INVESTMENT AND BUSINESS OPPORTUNITIES BRIEFING

Representatives from GPB attended a briefing organised by the Malaysian Investment Development Authority (MIDA) on
business and investment opportunities which was held at Sumai Hotel Apartment, Kuala Terengganu.
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Corporate Highlights (Continued)

15 NOVEMBER 2019
CEO’S FIRST VISIT AND EVENT AT SOCSO TERENGGANU
GPB CEO Dato’ Nadza Abdul, who was appointed as a Director of the SOCSO in August 2019, officiated his inaugural
event for the Statutory Body. At the event held at Wisma Perkeso in Kuala Terengganu, successful bidders were awarded
for contracts for projects which were put out on tender by Perkeso.

26 NOVEMBER 2019
LOAN REPAYMENT TO TERENGGANU INC
GPB repaid debts
to Terengganu Inc
by Menteri Besar
Dr Ahmad Samsuri
Kuala Terengganu.

amounting to RM3.17 million
in an official event witnessed
Terengganu YAB Dato’ Seri
Mokhtar at Wisma Darul Iman,
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Corporate Highlights (Continued)

5 DECEMBER 2019
MASTERCLASS BUMIPUTERA CEO
OF THE YEAR
GPB CEO Dato’ Nadza Abdul Razak was
declared Masterclass Bumiputera CEO
of The Year at the Malaysia Excellence
Business Awards (MEBA) 2019, which
was held at Marriott Putrajaya Hotel.
MEBA’s 2019 theme, “Businesses
driving sustainability as a good force”
was chosen in response to embracing
Sustainable Development Goals (SDG)
adopted by United Nations and its
member states since September 2015.
The objective of the annual awards is
to recognise the accomplishments of
individuals and businesses for their
sustainable contributions to the nation’s
economy and progress.
MEBA
further
reinforces
the
Government’s call to recognise and
support the capabilities of home-grown
business that adopt sustainability
practices throughout its value chain in
order to compete more effectively in the
global business environment.
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Environmental Statement
ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY
TIMBER ENVIRONMENT POLICY
Golden Pharos Group will collaborate with all relevant parties and organisations to ensure compliance
towards the promotion of good forest management as stipulated under the Forest Stewardship
Council (FSC®) and the Malaysian Criteria and Indicators (MC&I) for Forest Management Certification
(Natural Forest).

TIMBER SOURCING POLICY
Sourcing of timber is mainly from the Group’s own certified forest. In circumstances where the Group
has to source from alternative suppliers, the Group insists that the supplies are, where applicable,
from certified forests. Timber supply is a critical factor to the Group’s expansion programmes as it
ensures the availability of logs to be processed into top-quality finished products inexpensively.
The Group has undertaken the species segregation initiative in line with the promotion of lesser
known species for commercialisation, which is encouraged by the Malaysian Government.

ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT
Kumpulan Pengurusan Kayu-Kayan Trengganu Sdn. Bhd.
(KPKKT), the Group’s timber management subsidiary, adopts the
Selective Management System (SMS) in its timber concession
area to supply logs for the consumption of the Group.
KPKKT is also responsible for developing and managing
its concession in a sustainable manner in accordance with
Sustainable Forest Management (SFM) to ensure preservation of
the environment.
In this context, KPKKT as a Forest Management Unit (FMU),
fully subscribes to the Malaysian Criteria and Indicators of which
the above SMS was incorporated. KPKKT also cooperates with
the State Forestry Department to ensure that best management
practices in logging are being observed and maintained to
meet the requirements of the Malaysian Timber Certification
Scheme (MTCS).
KPKKT has been awarded the FSC® certification endorsement
since 21 April 2008 by Scientific Certification Systems (SCS), a
leader and pioneer in third-party auditing and certification of
forest management operations around the world, which uses
the SCS-FSC Interim Standard for Forest Management
Certification in Malaysia Version 5.0 2014 for well-managed
forests. This certification verifies that KPKKT’s tropical forest of
106,697 hectares at the Dungun Timber Complex (DTC) are
managed according to the rigorous international standards
of the FSC® under a selective cutting approach that maintains
continuous forest cover and species diversity. The certification is
valid until 27 February 2024.
GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD

KPKKT’s DTC concession area is the largest and the
only forest in Peninsular Malaysia to have the FSC®
certification, and only the second natural forest in
Malaysia to achieve this distinction.
KPKKT is committed to adopting the National and
International Convention on Biological Diversity in
order to sustain the richness of flora and fauna in the
concession area.
In addition, another subsidiary, Pesama Timber
Corporation Sdn Bhd (Pesama), successfully
obtained the FSC® endorsed certification for its
20,243 hectare Cherul Forest Concession (CFC) on
10 December 2012 as certified by SCS Global Services.
The certification is valid until 6 December 2022.
With the FSC® certification, the Group would be able
to access an increasing number of markets and
customers that demand environment-friendly certified
products domestically and abroad.
The environmental management system of a subsidiary,
Golden Pharos Glass Sdn Bhd (GP Glass), for the
manufacture of tempered, double glazed, laminated
and ceramic printed safety glass has been assessed
and registered against the provisions of ISO 9001:
2015 Quality Management System, which is valid until
29 July 2020.
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Environmental Statement (Continued)

CHAIN-OF-CUSTODY CERTIFICATION
The Group’s subsidiaries, Pesaka Trengganu Berhad
(Pesaka) and Pesama, have successfully obtained the
Chain-of-Custody (CoC) certification for their sawmills
from a third-party certifier accredited by the FSC® since
July 2008. With this certification, it means that the wood
used in the sawmills come from well-managed forests,
independently certified in accordance with the criteria
and principles set by the FSC®.

This would also mean that Pesama and Pesaka are well placed
to market their sawn timber and other wood-based products in
markets which insist on wood products sourced from sustainable
and well managed forests.
Forest

Sawmill

Factory

Processor

Retailer

Chain of Custody (COC) certification

HIGH CONSERVATION VALUE FOREST (HCVF)
KPKKT adopts specific policies to protect the high conservation values in its forests. These include scientific assessment
of species, cultural assessment and conservation plans to protect species or cultural sites that are unique, rare, threatened
or endangered. A total of 4,588 hectares have been reserved as HCVF. Some of the unique areas are as follows:
•

KPKKT’s concession area has various invaluable tree species, unique and preserved sites. A Chengal tree located
in KPKKT’s concession area has been listed in the Malaysia Book of Records as the largest Chengal tree in the
world. The tree is estimated to be more than 1,300 years old, with a height of 65 metres and circumference of
16.75 metres (Rainforest Journal.com, 2013).

•

Chemerong Waterfalls, which is situated in KPKKT’s concession area, is the highest in Malaysia. It plunges
magnificently down a 305-metre slope that has the potential to be a major tourist destination and recreational area.

•

The Keruing Sarawak (Dipterocarpus sarawakensis), which is categorised as critically endangered by Malaysian Plant
Red List (2010), has been found in KPKKT’s Forest Reserve and has been designated as a protected area.
The species is also classified as endemic to Sarawak and Terengganu (Peninsular Malaysia Plant Red List, 2010).

•

KPKKT has also delineated approximately 1,064 hectares exceeding 1,000 metres above sea level as a Totally Protected
Area which are not harvestable. These areas will provide a natural habitat and sanctuary for wildlife.

KPKKT has identified HCV 1.3: Endemism and HCV 4.1: Watershed Protection of the HCVF Toolkit for Malaysia by the
World Wide Fund for Nature (WWF) as applicable to its concession area.
SOCIAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT (SIA)
Concerned with the well-being of the local communities, KPKKT and Pesama have been carrying out social impact
assessment exercises since 2009 in effort to identify the problems faced by the communities and to determine
appropriate mitigation strategies to address them. The issues raised include river water quality, damage to crops by
wildlife and road safety especially to school children. Specific mitigation measures were proposed and taken up by
KPKKT via regular consultation with the relevant authorities and local communities. As part of its continuous improvement
process, KPPKT has taken the initiative to review and update the earlier impact assessment annually.
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About this Report

(GRI 101,102-1,102-46)

This marks the second year of Golden Pharos Berhad
(GPB or the Group) Sustainability Reporting which outlines
the initiatives and activities undertaken by GPB and its subsidiaries.
This report documents the progress made by the Group in developing
the framework to continuously implement best practices, active
measures and improvements to the Group’s management of the
Economic, Environmental and Social (EES) aspects of our business.
As a state-owned enterprise, we play
a role in Malaysia’s economy. Hence,
it is important that we ensure focus
and consistency in improving our
financial performance, enhancing board
effectiveness, strengthening directors’
capabilities
and
improving
talent
management.
Our social responsibilities have to be
clearly defined to contribute meaningfully
towards elevating the socioeconomic
levels of the communities where we
operate.
The Group continues to monitor global
initiatives within the wood and glass
manufacturing industries to ensure
strict compliance as outlined in our
Environmental Policy (please refer to
pages 56 to 57 of this Annual Report).
We are mindful of the growing
environmental
concerns
especially
climate change which are intrinsically
linked to our operations. Our challenge
lies in balancing human wellbeing and
social equity, while significantly reducing
environmental risks.

The current Sustainability Report (the Report) builds on the previous
narrative by providing a more comprehensive review and overview of
GPB’s meticulous approach to incorporate sustainability considerations
throughout our business.
Apart from validating and registering amendments to the Group’s
earlier deliberations on the Governance Structure, Sustainability Policy
and Materiality Study, this Report outlines the steps forward in setting Key
Performance Indicators (KPI), formulating Action Plans and initiating a
Reporting Regime to monitor the Group’s sustainability performance.

Sungai Jerangau runs through the Jerangau Forest Reserve in KPKKT’s Dungun Timber
Complex (DTC) which is managed GP Forest Plantation Sdn Bhd.
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About this Report (Continued)
(GRI 101, 102-1,102-46)

In addition, the Sustainability Working Group (SWG) has made commendable efforts to peg disclosures to the Global
Reporting Initiative (GRI) Standards–Core Options and align our approach to the United Nations Sustainable Development
Goals (UN SDGs).

SCALE AND SCOPE OF REPORTING
(GRI 102-2, 102-4, 102-5, 102-46)

This Report covers GPB’s development of a sustainability framework including a review of the Materiality Study conducted in
2018 as well as the Group’s performance in selected indicators of the EES Sustainability Pillars as outlined by the GRI. It also
includes a new range of baseline reporting for indicators not included in the previous Sustainability Report.

In terms of scope, this Report encompasses the operations and activities of GPB, a company listed on Bursa Malaysia’s
Main Market, and its subsidiaries:

COMPANY
Permint Timber
Corporation Sdn Bhd
Permint Plywood
Sdn Bhd (PPSB)

OUR BUSINESSES
LOCAT
IO

N

Kuala T
ereng
Tereng ganu,
ganu
Bandar

Al-Muk
Shah, D tafi Billah
ungun

Pesaka Trengganu
Berhad (Pesaka)

Bandar

Kumpulan Pengurusan
Kayu-Kayan Trengganu
Sdn Bhd (KPKKT)

Bandar

Pesama Timber
Corporation Sdn Bhd
(Pesama)
Golden Pharos Glass
Sdn Bhd (GP Glass)

Bukit B
Dungu esi,
n
Bukit B
Dungu esi,
n

Bandar
Chuk
Kemam ai,
an

BUSINESS ACTIVITIES/PRODUCTS
Investment holding

Rental of buildings, plant and machinery, selling of logs, sale of rights
to logs, trading of wood chips and manufacture and sale of veneer

Sawmilling, producing wood chips

Harvesting and sustainable forest management

Sawmilling, harvesting, moulding, producing finger joints and
wood chips and kiln drying

Telok P
a

nglima
Garang
Selang
,
or

Manufacturing and trading of glass

The Sustainability Report is restricted to the Group’s activities in Malaysia. The Group does not have any operations undertaken
by joint venture partners and associate companies beyond our direct and express control. The Group’s ownership and corporate
structure are presented in the Corporate Structure on page 11 of the Annual Report.

GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD

STRIVING TOWARDS SUSTAINABILITY

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

61

About this Report (Continued)
(GRI 101, 102-1,102-46)

ENVIRONMENT

ECONOMIC

SOCIAL

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT
REPORTING FORMAT

REPORTING PERIOD AND CYCLE

We have based our reporting on the GRI Standards

The Sustainability Report covers the period from 1 January

compliance with Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad’s (Bursa

and updates on corporate sustainability.

(GRI 102-54)

Sustainability Reporting Guidelines–Core Options and in

Securities) Main Market Listing Requirements (MMLR) and
Bursa Sustainability Reporting Guide 2nd Edition.

It should be noted however, that fully integrating the GRI

(GRI 102-50, 102-52)

to 31 December 2019 as part of the Group’s annual review

FEEDBACK

(GRI 102-53)

Standards into our reporting is still at a nascent stage. As

We welcome and value any feedback on the Group’s

next reporting cycle (Sustainability Report 2020). Where

improving our sustainability efforts and reporting. Please

such, we anticipate comprehensive compliance in the
appropriate, the relevant GRI indicator is included in the
headings and sub-headings throughout this Report.

practice of sustainable development to assist us in
direct any enquiries or comments to:

GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD
66-2, Taman Seri Intan
Jalan Sultan Omar

20300 Kuala Terengganu
Terengganu

+609 630 1330
+609 631 0617
ZULKIFLI OMAR
Chief Sustainability Officer

info@gpb.com.my
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About Our Company
(GRI 102-1,102-2, 102-3, 102-4, 102-6)

GPB is a government linked company (GLC) owned by the Terengganu
State Government and headquartered in Kuala Terengganu. The Group is
primarily engaged in forest concession management, harvesting and distribution of
timber, sawmilling and processing of wood-based products, and manufacturing and
sales of architectural panel glass.
GPB is a long-standing supplier to the local construction sector with this dominant market supplemented by exports of
wood and glass products to the United Kingdom, East Asia, Southeast Asia, Australia, New Zealand and parts of Europe.

United
Kingdom

Parts of
Europe
East Asia

Southeast Asia

Australia
New
Zealand
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About Our Company

(GRI 102-1, 102-2, 102-3, 102-4, 102-6)

The principal activities of our main subsidiaries are listed as follows:

PPSB
Operating from Bandar Al-Muktafi Billah Shah in Dungun, PPSB is a
producer of wood chips and veneer for the local and export markets

Pesaka
Pesaka has a similar portfolio as Pesama with activities in sawmilling, kiln
drying and wood treatment at its plant located in Bukit Besi, Dungun

KPKKT

Pesama

KPKKT is the Group’s timber concession management of approximately
126,940 hectares of rich natural tropical rain forest (TRF) in Terengganu,
comprising 106,697 hectares at the Dungun Timber Complex (DTC) and
20,243 hectares at Cherul Forest Concession (CFC)
Located at the Jakar Industrial Area in Chukai, Kemaman, Pesama is involved
in sawmilling, moulding, kiln drying and wood treatment to produce sawn
timber, moulding, wood chips, sawdust and related products

GP GLASS

GP Glass is a manufacturer of tempered and laminated glass with a facility
in Telok Panglima Garang in Selangor. Its innovative solutions in tempered
safety glass, laminated safety glass, heat strengthened glass, double
glazing units and ceramic painted glass are installed across Malaysia and
selected markets overseas

Details of GPB’s financial performance and production figures in FY2019 are presented in this Annual Report on pages 30 to 32.
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Message by the CEO

SUSTAINABILITY
IS OUR NEW NORMAL

(GRI 102-14)

As a long-time forest management and timber company,
GPB has always placed a premium on environmental
sustainability via efforts to practise renewal and protect biodiversity
in our concession areas.

In 2018, we embarked on a formal journey towards achieving

In addressing the EES risks and opportunities, it is my hope

environmental and social (EES) domains as required

operations and activities. Striving Towards Sustainability

holistic

sustainability

encompassing

the

economic,

by Bursa Malaysia’s MMLR and as set out by the GRI
Standards-Core Options framework.

We recognise the value of corporate sustainability and

to reduce the environmental footprint of our business
therefore reinforces our emphasis on safeguarding our

employees’ wellbeing and welfare apart from stepping up
efforts in environmental and biodiversity preservation.

embrace the endeavour wholeheartedly. We started our

As we progress and advance our sustainability initiatives,

exercise in compliance. In truth, we had yet to fully grasp

sustainability reporting quality, I look forward to all these

journey in corporate sustainability by considering it as an
the potential impact such sustainability measures and

considerations would have on ourselves, the company,
community and local economy.

close the gaps, improve disclosures and upgrade our
efforts translating into achieving stronger financial and
operational performance.

Sustainability is now a pressing concern for GPB with

efforts to integrate sustainability measures throughout the

Group, its business operations and corporate activities.
In other words, corporate sustainability will become

integrated in everything we do. It is a priority that always
gets my attention as the CEO.

Dato’ Nadza Abdul

Chief Executive Officer
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Sustainability Roadmap
STATUS OF IMPLEMENTATION (GRI 103-2)

The new decade is seeing the rise of companies under pressure to embrace systemic change and disruption to address

urgent challenges in driving business towards sustainability. The development of our Sustainability Roadmap provided a
step-by-step guide towards building a comprehensive framework for implementing and reporting on our sustainability
performance.

This Roadmap was envisioned to straddle across three years from 2018 to 2020, in part to infuse a gradual acceptance,
appreciation and understanding of corporate sustainability among employees at every level of GPB as well as all our
stakeholders. Integrating sustainability into corporate strategy is essential and it demands our employees to see the bigger

picture and act responsibly in their day-to-day work tasks and responsibilities. Only by doing so, we will be able to shift
from sustainability strategy to sustainable transformation.

In 2018, we established a governance structure to oversee and coordinate all sustainability efforts, outlined a Sustainability

Policy to provide an overarching guide to sustainability priorities, and determined the Group’s most material matters important

to stakeholders and relevant to the company. This portion of the Roadmap was duly completed in financial year 2019 (FY2019).
IMPLEMENTATION ROADMAP AND TIMELINES

1

2

3

GOVERNANCE
STRUCTURE

SUSTAINABILITY
POLICY

MATERIALITY
STUDY

Establish Governance
Structure to drive
Sustainability
implementation
and reporting

Outline Sustainability
Policy to determine
overall direction

Identify and
select Materiality
Matters important
to stakeholders and
relevant to Company

2018/2019

4

KPIs, ACTION
PLANS &
REPORTING
PLATFORM

• Set KPIs for
material matters
and formulate
Action Plans
• Assign
responsibility to
compile results
and track progress

5
GRI & UN SDGs

• Prepare disclosures
according to GRI
• Align approach to
UN SDGs

2019/2020

The next phase of our Roadmap was executed during the year in review, extending to the current 2020 financial year.
It involved the setting of key performance indicators (KPI) for each of the most material matters determined in the previous

phase. Subsequently, we will craft Action Plans to meet these KPIs and also assign responsibility to the respective subsidiaries,
departments, units and individuals to monitor progress and compile results.

The final part of the Roadmap is preparing disclosures to specific GRI Standards-Core Options indicators and aligning our
sustainability approach to the UN SDGs.
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Sustainability Roadmap (Continued)
GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE (GRI 102-18, 102-20, 102-22, 102-23, 102-24, 102-26)

The Group established a provisional Governance
Structure in FY2019 and this was subsequently
detailed out and endorsed during a session on
10 February 2020 between GPB’s senior management
and appointed consultants to aid and guide us
in our sustainability journey. It also facilitates the
proper implementation and reporting of corporate
sustainability.
Under this structure, the CEO Dato’ Nadza Abdul
works in tandem with the Sustainability Committee
(SCoM) and the Sustainability Working Group (SWG)
to determine the overall direction and specific
strategies to drive sustainability, which are then
presented for endorsement by the Board of Directors
(the Board). The Board is required to evaluate the
Group’s sustainability performance periodically based
on reports presented by the SCoM. Members of
both committees consist of all heads of departments
(HOD) at the Group level and all head of subsidiaries
(HOS) of all five subsidiary companies, who are
responsible for managing and effectively implementing
GPB’s sustainability efforts.
En Zulkifli Omar was appointed as the Chief
Sustainability Officer (CSO). With focus on handling
a manageable set of sustainability issues and with
awareness that our sustainability goals will change
over time, our level of commitment will also shift
from compliance and implementing ways to achieve
cost saving initiatives while enhancing the Group’s
reputation, to advancing innovation within the Group
by integrating sustainability into the core of the
business. The role of the CSO is that of a change agent
who can lead the complex and evolving sustainability
agenda within the Group.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Dato’ Ahmad Nadzarudin bin Abdul Razak

SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE
Chief Sustainability Officer
Zulkifli Omar
Heads of Departments
Internal Audit
:
Finance
:
Human Resource
& Administration
:
		
Downstream
Business
:
Corporate Comm
:
Company Secretary :

Haji Muhamad bin Sulong
Syukri bin Ali
Wan Zuhairiah binti Wan Ali 		
@ Wan Damsek
Khairuddin bin Kilau
Fauzan bin Abdul
Suraya binti Mohd Hairon

Heads of Subsidiaries
KPKKT
Pesama
Pesaka
GP Glass
PPSB

:
:
:
:
:

Suhairi bin Sulong
Mohd Shamsol bin Mohd Shafie
Hilmi bin Awang
Stanley Lau Chan Ming
Ahmad Bazli bin Razali

Each HOD and HOS is also tasked with compiling
results of sustainability performance and tracking
progress towards achieving GPB’s key sustainability
objectives. The HODs and HOSs are also responsible
for creating sustainability teams among their respective
employees.
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Sustainability Roadmap (Continued)
SUSTAINABILITY POLICY (GRI 102-29)

A Sustainability Policy is the guiding principle for a company to plan and practise sustainability in every aspect of its operations
and other ancillary activities. It is akin to a company’s vision and values in how it intends to run its business responsibly.

The exercise to craft a Sustainability Policy was a meticulous one involving management and other employees from
all our departments and subsidiaries. During the session with the sustainability consultants on 10 February 2020, we coalesced
the views from the participants before agreeing and endorsing a policy that takes into consideration our nature of business
and addresses concerns in the EES pillars of sustainability.

SUSTAINABILITY POLICY
“Golden Pharos Group is committed to a sustainability quest that continually shows
progress in upholding the three pillars of sustainability so as to be:
Commendable in
Economic Matters

Exemplary in
Environmental Matters

Praiseworthy in
Social Matters

ECONOMIC

ENVIRONMENT

SOCIAL

We intend to grow and sustain the company
for all our stakeholders while managing our
biodiversity and resources, human and natural,
for the generations to come.”
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Sustainability Roadmap (Continued)
STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (GRI 102-21, 102-40, 102-42, 102-43, 102-44)

Stakeholder engagement is a key component of our journey towards sustainability. By understanding and then matching

the expectations of all stakeholders, we are better placed to plan and implement enhancements in those areas most important
to all concerned.

During the year in review, we engaged our stakeholders via several channels and through selected activities, which are listed
below:

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT 2019
STAKEHOLDER
Shareholders
and Investors

ENGAGEMENT METHOD

PRIORITIES

• Annual General Meeting

• Financial performance

• Extraordinary General Meeting

• Updates on business performance

• Networking sessions

• Sustainable future business

• Website
• Announcement of Quarterly Results
• Annual Report
• Group meetings
Employees

• Recreational events

• Training and career development

• Social and volunteer programmes

• Employee wellbeing, health and safety

• Training programmes
Clients/Customers

• Periodic project meetings and site visits

• Product pricing

• Customer feedback surveys

• Marketing and promotions

• Website/social media platforms

• Delivery service

• Expos/roadshows and exhibitions

• Quality product delivery

Industry Groups and
Strategic Partners

• Meetings and site visits

• Areas of collaboration

• Joint business creation

• Joint value creation initiatives

Local Communities

• Sponsorship of community service events

• Community engagement

• Social and environmental initiatives

• Life-improving programmes

• Donations

• Environmental and social impacts
• Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
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Sustainability Roadmap (Continued)
STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (GRI 102-21, 102-40, 102-42, 102-43, 102-44)

STAKEHOLDER
Government
Agencies/Regulators

ENGAGEMENT METHOD

PRIORITIES

• Regulatory discussions and meetings with
authorities

• Compliance to requirements set by government
agencies or other regulatory authorities

• Public consultation with local authorities

• Compliance to regulatory requirements of
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, Companies
Commission of Malaysia and other reporting
guidelines

• Site inspections
• Seminars, briefings and training

• Policy aligned with areas of national interests
including initiatives

Vendors/Suppliers

• Vendor/supplier registration
• Procurement policies
• Performance evaluation

• Product and service quality, service scope and
payment schedule
• Clear procurement policies and practices

• Site visits and meetings
Certification Bodies

• On-site inspections
• Regular meetings
• Submission of regulatory documentation
• Internal and external audit exercises

Media

• Media interviews, briefing sessions and media
conferences
• Press releases

GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD

• Adherence to International Organisation for
Standardisation (ISO), Forest Stewardship
Council (FSC®) and Chain of Custody (CoC)
Certification
• Compliance to requirements set by regulatory
authorities
• Brand positioning, image and credibility
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Sustainability Roadmap (Continued)
STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (GRI 102-21, 102-40, 102-42, 102-43, 102-44)

3 APRIL 2019
PROTOCOL AND SOCIAL ETIQUETTE SEMINAR
Selected employees attended a Protocol and Social
Etiquette Seminar at Terengganu Inc to elevate the level

of professionalism and cultivates a respected image in the
business world.

24 - 26 APRIL 2019
EKSPO PERKAYUAN TERENGGANU MAJU
GPB exhibited its products at the ‘Ekspo Perkayuan

Terengganu Maju’ in conjunction with the Terengganu
Timber Institute Training Centre’s (TTITC) convocation.

The event was graced by YB Haji Satiful Bahri Mamat,
the state’s Exco of Syariah Implication, Education

and Higher Education, representing Menteri Besar
Terengganu and was held at Kuala Berang, Hulu
Terengganu.
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Sustainability Roadmap (Continued)
STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (GRI 102-21, 102-40, 102-42, 102-43, 102-44)

5 MAY 2019
MANIS FM’S COURTESY CALL TO GPB
Chairman of Manis FM, YB Haji Mohd Nor Hamzah,
paid a courtesy call to GPB as part of a collaboration
on media publicity and investments. Manis FM is
a Malay language radio station located in Kuala
Terengganu, which focuses on news and activities in the
East Coast.

19 - 21 NOVEMBER 2019
MALAYSIAN WOOD EXPO 2019
GPB and some of its subsidiaries participated

in the Malaysian Wood Expo 2019 to promote
the Group’s products. The expo was officiated

by the former Minister of Primary Industries, YB
Teresa Kok at Dewan Tun Razak, Putra World
Trade Centre in Kuala Lumpur.
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Sustainability Roadmap (Continued)
MATERIALITY MATTERS (GRI 102-21, 102-29, 102-30, 102-31, 102-33, 102-34)

Materiality Matters are a crucial component in the journey towards sustainability as they serve to focus attention and efforts
on priority areas represented by a company’s business aspirations and which are balanced against the needs and concerns of
stakeholders.

In early 2019, GPB carried out a Materiality Study to select our 10 most material matters determined by our Board and

stakeholders which included a targetted group of shareholders, business partners, associates, employees, suppliers, vendors,
service providers, the various authorities and the communities in which we serve.

The study involved the identification of relevant materiality matters across all EES pillars and their sub-categories: Economic
(Financial), Economic (Governance), Environment, Social (Workplace), Social (Marketplace), Social (Community).

We then conducted a series of online surveys in collaboration with our sustainability consultant to rank each material matter
according to its importance. The results of the ranking by stakeholders were plotted against those by the Group, represented
by the Board, to produce a Materiality Matrix highlighting our 10 most material matters, as follows:
MOST MATERIAL MATTERS: ORIGINAL
MATERIALITY MATTER

SUSTAINABILITY PILLAR

1.

Hiring from the Local Community*

Economic (Financial)

3.

Protecting Land and Biodiversity

Environment

4.

Protecting the Safety and Health of Workers and Sub-Contractors

Social (Workplace)

6.

Improving Employer/Employee Relationship*

Social (Workplace)

2.

5.
7.
8.
9.

Eliminating Bribery and Corruption

Training, Education & Career Development
Preventing Workplace Discrimination*

Eliminating Child and Compulsory Labour*
Certification

10. Providing High Quality Services*

Economic (Governance)

Social (Workplace)
Social (Workplace)
Social (Workplace)

Social (Marketplace)
Social (Marketplace)

*Subsequently removed

Although we subsequently validated the results of the Materiality Study, nevertheless, we later perceived the final 10 most
material matters to be lopsided and did not accurately represent the pressing concerns relevant to the Group.
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Sustainability Roadmap (Continued)
MATERIALITY MATTERS (GRI 102-21, 102-29, 102-30, 102-31, 102-33, 102-34)

To begin with, half the materiality matters were from the Social (Workplace) pillar while there was only one in the

Environment category. Individually, Economic and Business Performance failed to make it onto the selection although this is
an ever-present materiality matter in most other companies’ lists. In addition, the materiality matter of Eliminating Child and

Compulsory Labour does not apply since GPB has never hired ineligible employees or contract workers according to prevailing
employment regulations.

During the February 2020 session with our sustainability consultants, we sought to redress this imbalance in our 10 most
material matters with the following guiding imperatives:

1
2

Eliminate those materiality matters with
little or no relevance to our operations
and activities
Eliminate those materiality matters which
are non-issues at this point in time

3
4

Replace
with
materiality
matters
deemed critical to stakeholders’ lives
and livelihoods
Ensure a balance of materiality matters
from all EES pillars

Based on these imperatives, we removed from the list Eliminating Child and Compulsory Labour based on guideline No. 1,
Hiring from the Local Community, Improving Employer/Employee Relationship, Preventing Workplace Discrimination and
Providing High Quality Services based on guideline No. 2.
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Sustainability Roadmap (Continued)
MATERIALITY MATTERS (GRI 102-21, 102-29, 102-30, 102-31, 102-33, 102-34)

In place of Hiring from the Local Community, we prioritised Economic and Business Performance and included Risk

Management (Economic Governance) to reflect our risk mitigation efforts required for our nature of business. We also included

a second Environment materiality matter in Energy Management. In place of Improving Employer/Employee Relationship,

we reached a collective agreement that Employee Engagement and Satisfaction was a more relevant materiality matter.
Finally, we also inserted into the list Customer Feedback and Satisfaction as a more tangible and measurable gauge of quality
than Providing High Quality Services. The revised 10 most material matters are listed below:
10 MOST MATERIAL MATTERS: REVISED
MATERIALITY MATTER

SUSTAINABILITY PILLAR

1.

Economic & Business Performance*

Economic (Financial)

3.

Risk Management*

Economic (Governance)

2.

Eliminating Bribery and Corruption

Economic (Governance)

4.

Protecting Land and Biodiversity

Environment

6.

Protecting the Safety and Health of Workers and Sub-Contractors

Social (Workplace)

8.

Employee Engagement and Satisfaction*

Social (Workplace)

5.

7.
9.

Energy Management*

Training, Education and Career Development
Customer Feedback and Satisfaction*

10. Certification

Environment

Social (Workplace)
Social (Marketplace)
Social (Marketplace)

*Replacements

With the revision, we could then proceed to the next stage of our Sustainability Roadmap: setting KPIs for the 10 most material
matters, formulating Action Plans to meet these KPIs, and assigning responsibility to track progress and compile results.
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Sustainability Roadmap (Continued)
MATERIALITY MATTERS (GRI 102-21, 102-29, 102-30, 102-31, 102-33, 102-34)

MANAGING RISKS

For each of these risks, we have outlined their root causes

(GRI 102-30)

or potential impact on our business before developing

Risk management is a critical aspect of operating a

below:

sustainable business by proactively preparing solutions or

respective strategies and action plans, which are detailed

alternative actions that can capitalise on opportunities or

1. Disruption in Logs Supply

mitigate risks before they occur. This aspect of business
has become all the more important given the devastating

impact the COVID-19 pandemic is having on economic
activity.

identified 30 potential risks, with six deemed to be of a high
risk nature:

2
3
4
5
6

1. Reliance on sole supplier for supply of logs.
2. Competition among sister companies for log supply.

During the year in review, our risk assessment framework

1

Background/Root Causes

3. Insufficient or irregular supply of logs due to weather,
topographical factors or technical delay in licence
approval.
4. Logistics issues, e.g. vehicle breakdown, accident, etc.
5. Ineffective procurement planning on future log supplies.
6. Breakdown in logging equipment.
7. Work stoppage by authorities due to non-compliance of
certain criteria.

Disruption in logs supply

8. Poor cutting techniques in production stage by workers.

Key Strategy
Establishment of forest plantation
Investment evaluation risk

Risk Action Plan

1. Approval of Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA)

Investment monitoring risk

•

Engage EIA consultant.

•

Obtain approval from Department of Environment
(DOE).

2. Approval of Rancangan Pengusahahasilan Ladang Hutan
(RPLH)

Business sustainability

•

To submit RPLH to Terengganu State Forestry
Department together with approved EIA, feasibility
study and species site-matching.

3. To implement forest plantation project.

Succession planning/competency gap

Untimely/inaccurate financial reporting
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Sustainability Roadmap (Continued)
MATERIALITY MATTERS (GRI 102-21, 102-29, 102-30, 102-31, 102-33, 102-34)
2. Investment Evaluation Risk

3. Investment Monitoring Risk

Background/Root Causes

Background/Root Causes

2. Lack of systematic and structured evaluation process.

2. Ineffective monitoring, budgetary control and project
supervision during implementation stage.

1. Short timeline given to carry out evaluation.
3. Inaccurate/overly optimistic assumptions used during
feasibility study.
4. Lack of risk assessment carried out in evaluating the investment.
5. Lack of technical, business competency and experience to
analyse potential investment.
6. External/internal influence during decision-making process.
7. Lack of understanding of external factors that may affect
decision making.
8. Outstanding issues highlighted in due diligence are not
followed up and recommendations not implemented.
9. Lack of employee’s integrity due to personal interest.

Key Strategy
Establishment of policy and procedures
Risk Action Plan

1. To adopt Terengganu Incorporated’s (TI) policy on investment.
2. To adopt TI’s standard operating procedures (SOP) for
investment evaluation (based on different types of investment
classifications).
3. To adopt TI’s standard templates as part of the SOP to support
investment evaluation processes and activities as stated in
action plan.
4. To adopt TI’s initial evaluation criteria (e.g. considering the
detailed ‘scoring/rating’ scale and rating weightage, etc.) for
each evaluation criterion covering nature of investment,
operating
environment,
financial
and
non-financial
considerations.
5. To enhance the investment evaluation process by including
a more comprehensive guideline and embed risk management
framework into investment evaluation based on TI’s approved
model.
6. To circulate and conduct briefing or training sessions for
relevant employees on the approved policy and procedures for
implementation throughout the Group.
7. To conduct a failure and success analysis on past investments
and develop lessons learnt, and to revisit the action plans to
enhance the evaluation and monitoring process.

1. Incomprehensive work plan for monitoring.

3. Terms and conditions presented in the investment paper
were not incorporated into agreement.
4. Lack of leadership and governance monitoring on the
investments/projects.
5. Lack of SOPs and enforcement of company policies.
6. Lack of periodic site visits to the subsidiaries/associates.
7. Lack of cooperation i.e. difficulty/challenges to perform
site visits and information was not forthcoming.
8. Absence of proper handover to the execution team.
9. Untimely reporting of budget, financial statements,
project status, etc. from subsidiaries.

Key Strategy#1
Strengthening of investment monitoring process
Risk Action Plan

1. To adopt TI’s SOPs for investment monitoring activities.
2. To adopt TI’s template highlighting key information
obtained during evaluation stage for handover to project
owners.
3. To adopt TI’s specific parameters to facilitate monitoring
process for all investment.
4. To adopt TI’s working procedures and framework on
response strategy for each of the investment category.
5. To adopt TI’s specific business recovery plan (with
timelines) for the respective identified companies that
did not meet the industry-benchmarked ratio.
6. To carry out a second feasibility study following the
investment (approximately after 2 years of initial
investment).

Key Strategy#2
Administration of investment monitoring
Risk Action Plan

1. To adopt TI’s dashboard for each investee company
which will include financial and non-financial KPIs on
submission of investment information to the Holding
Company for timely investment reporting.
2. To identify desk officers who will be responsible in the
monitoring processes of GPB’s investments.
3. To review the overall work scope of investments within
GPB Group and match against the capability of existing
employees in terms of experience, knowledge and skills
in order to fit into the requirements of the current and
future environments.
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Sustainability Roadmap (Continued)
MATERIALITY MATTERS (GRI 102-21, 102-29, 102-30, 102-31, 102-33, 102-34)
4. Business Sustainability
Key Strategy #1 (for Pesaka, Pesama and PPSB)
Remodelling of sawmill operation (ROSO)
Background/Root Causes

1. Dependency on revenue generated from logging operations.
2. External interference.
3. Unsuccessful forest plantation project.
4. Change in Government’s policy i.e. reduction of quota.
5. Perceived as a sunset industry.
6. Operational/financial performance of the mill affecting timber division project status, etc. from subsidiaries.
Risk Action Plan

1. To carry out a study on the best funding method to build Pesama’s factory at Mak Lagam, evaluating the advantages
and disadvantages in order to propose the best option.
2. To build and operationalise Pesama’s factory at Mak Lagam.

Key Strategy #2 (for Pesaka, Pesama and PPSB)
Pursuit of suitable downstream business
Background/Root Causes

1. Over-dependency on revenue generated from logging operations.
Risk Action Plan

1. To conduct fact finding for all potential downstream products for timber companies.
2. To perform preliminary study, explore suitable downstream products and recommend the best option; the study shall consider
ways to maximise the utilisation of raw materials including waste/residual from the timber subsidiaries.

Key Strategy #3 (GP Glass)
Penetration of new markets/segments
Background/Root Causes

1. Ineffective strategic plans.
2. Lack of budget for branding and marketing activities.
3. Ineffective marketing strategy and execution.
4. Insufficient sales and marketing manpower.
5. Market perception i.e. lack of trust and confidence in the branding.
6. Competitive market i.e. easy entrance for new players.
Risk Action Plan

1. To expand customer base including overseas markets.
2. To secure more Government projects with assistance from TI and the State Government.
3. To take full advantage of online platforms e.g. Alibaba.com to advertise GP Glass products including introduction of new
product range.
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Sustainability Roadmap (Continued)
MATERIALITY MATTERS (GRI 102-21, 102-29, 102-30, 102-31, 102-33, 102-34)
5. Succession Planning/Competency Gap
Background/Root Causes

1. Inability to attract skilled employees, operators or workers with knowledge on wood types and wood technologies.
2. Career development plan is not clearly defined and communicated to employees, operators or workers.
3. Complacency due to inadequate welfare, motivation, opportunities etc. for employees, operators or workers.
4. Lack of communication between superiors and subordinates.
5. Ineffective training programmes provided to the employees, operators and workers.
6. Ineffective performance appraisal process e.g. business.
7. Weaknesses in the recruitment process.
8. Lack of competency matrix to monitor growth of employees, operators and workers.

Key Strategy #1
Improvement of recruitment/promotion processes
Risk Action Plan

1. To perform review on the existing recruitment/promotion process, policy and procedures.

Key Strategy #2
Talent development/Skills gap identification
Risk Action Plan

1. To establish a succession planning framework and development programme in line with the framework.
2. To establish a Performance Improvement Programme (PIP) framework which leads to retention or exit strategy for employees with
huge gaps in performance and competency that cannot be rectified.
3. To prepare booklets on the benefits of the new terms and conditions.
4. To establish ‘job design’ for all employees.
5. To implement ‘job design’ for all other functional jobs to facilitate job evaluation.
6. To implement GPB Group’s Terms & Conditions of Service and Compensation Policy.

Key Strategy #3
Revision of procedures
Risk Action Plan

1. To perform a comprehensive review on the current SOPs and determine whether there is a need to establish or update the SOPs to
reflect the existing operating procedures.
2. To conduct awareness and training sessions on the revised SOPs to improve employees’ knowledge and application techniques on
work processes and procedures.
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Sustainability Roadmap (Continued)
MATERIALITY MATTERS (GRI 102-21, 102-29, 102-30, 102-31, 102-33, 102-34)

6. Untimely/Inaccurate Financial Reporting
Background/Root Causes

1. Delay in submission of information by relevant departments and/or subsidiaries.
2. Inaccurate information submitted by certain departments/subsidiaries.
3. Lack of financial reporting standards (MFRS) knowledge and training which may lead to inaccurate information being reported.
4. Human error e.g. error in preparation and updating of financial information.
5. Lack of monitoring and review of reports/financial information prepared by junior employees.
6. Lack of checking or verification (accountability) by various parties in GPB Group.
7. Lack of periodic accounts reconciliation.
8. Data/system integrity issue.

Key Strategy #1
Financial system improvement
Risk Action Plan

1. To adopt the consolidated system at TI-level for extraction of financial and operational information from the respective subsidiaries.
2. To enhance the efficiency of the external audit process for GPB Group.

Key Strategy #2
Knowledge enhancement
Risk Action Plan

1. To incorporate KPIs on submission of information to TI for timely financial reporting.
2. To incorporate KPIs on submission of information to GPB Group for timely financial reporting.
3. To assess the employees on their level of understanding, skills and knowledge against the required work scopes and thereafter,
to identify the type of training required by the employees based on the assessment results.
4. To evaluate employees’ understanding, skills and knowledge after three months of training.
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Sustainability Roadmap (Continued)
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (KPI), ACTION PLANS AND REPORTING REGIME

(GRI 102-31, 102-33, 102-34)

This next phase of the Roadmap involved management and employees at various levels from the Group and also GPB’s

subsidiary companies. The KPIs, Action Plans and assigning of responsibility for tracking and compilation of results were
determined concurrently with plans specifically formulated to achieve targets.

MOST MATERIAL MATTERS: KPIs, ACTION PLANS & RESPONSIBILITY
ECONOMIC AND BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
(ECONOMIC/FINANCIAL)
KPI

Baseline

Action Plan

Responsibility

3-Year Business Recovery Plan (BRP)
1. Revenue: 4% annual
increase until 2024

1. FY2019 financial
results

2. PAT: 5% annual
increase until 2024

2. Dividend Policy

3. Dividend: 30% of PAT
or 40% of EBITDA until
2024
4. NAV: % increase until
2024

1. Average selling price increase by 5%
2. Nett recovery increase by 1%

1. Respective HOS
from GPB and
all subsidiaries

3. Output capacity increase by 1%
4. Participate in trade shows (international & local
exhibitions)
5. Introduce new products (ETP & timber furniture)
6. Identify new buyers
7. Monitor company performance monthly (GMC &
HOTC meetings)

PAT
=
EBITDA =
		
NAV
=

Profit After Tax
Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation
and Amortisation
Nett Asset Value

ETP
GMC
HOTC
HOS

=
=
=
=

Engineered Timber Products
Group Management Committee
Heads of Timber Companies
Heads of Subsidiaries

GPB’s senior management
personnel with independent
consultants Monteiro
Lewis Communications
Sdn Bhd after a session on
sustainability reporting in
Kuala Terengganu.
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Sustainability Roadmap (Continued)
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (KPI), ACTION PLANS AND REPORTING REGIME
(GRI 102-31, 102-33, 102-34)

ELIMINATING BRIBERY AND CORRUPTION
(ECONOMIC – GOVERNANCE)
KPI

Baseline

1. Formation of IGU

To be implemented in
FY2020

2. Implementation of
Code of Ethics Policy

Action Plan

Responsibility

1. Propose IGU structure (2019)

1. CEO

2. Seek structure endorsement from
Audit Committee and the Board (2019)
3. Commence recruitment process for CIGO (2020)
4. CIGO to establish integrity reporting framework
(2020)
5. CIGO to obtain integrity certification from MACC
(2020)
6. Establish a Code of Business Ethics incorporating
whistleblowing policy, no-gifts policy, CSR policy
(2020)

IGU

=

Integrity Governance Unit

CIGO

=

Chief Integrity & Governance Officer

RISK MANAGEMENT
(ECONOMIC – GOVERNANCE)
1. Percentage compliance
to approved risk
management action
plans

1. RMWC

1. Disruption in log supply
• Purchase external logs
• Establish forest plantation (EIA by end 2020)

1. CEO

2. Evaluation of investment risks
• To adopt Terengganu Inc’s policy on investments
• To adopt Terengganu Inc’s SOPs
3. Business sustainability
• To execute ROSO
• To pursue suitable downstream business
• GP Glass to explore new market/segment
4. Monitoring of investment risks
• To adopt Terengganu Inc’s SOPs
5. Accurate and timely financial reporting
• Financial system improvement
• Knowledge enhancement

RMWC
EIA
Terengganu Inc

=
=
=

Risk Management Working Committee
Environmental Impact Assessment
Terengganu Incorporated Sdn Bhd

GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD

SOP
ROSO
GP Glass

=
=
=

Standard Operating Procedures
Remodelling of Sawmill Operations
Golden Pharos Glass Sdn Bhd
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Sustainability Roadmap (Continued)
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (KPI), ACTION PLANS AND REPORTING REGIME

(GRI 102-31, 102-33, 102-34)

PROTECTING LAND AND BIODIVERSITY
(ENVIRONMENT)
KPI
1. Selective Management
System (Sustainable
Logging Practice)

Baseline
NA

2. Annual FSC®
Surveillance Audit
(Poaching,HCVF)

1. KPKKT/Pesama

3. To provide training on certification standards
4. Internal pre-audit before actual surveillance
audits

4. AAC 2% imposed by
the State

5. Engagement with relevant authorities (Wildlife
Department, FRIM, JPNT) and NGOs (e.g. WWF,
Malaysian Nature Society, etc.)

5. Cutting rotation of
30 years
=
=
=
=
=
=

1. Strict compliance & monitoring with all relevant
Manuals (e.g. Forestry Manual, Outdoor Working
Manual, SMS, Operations, etc.), SOPs and PEFC
and FSC® principles

Responsibility

2. Ensure compliance to new updated standards

3. Recertification every
5 years

FSC®
HCVF
AAC
SMS
SOP
PEFC

Action Plan

Forest Stewardship Council
High Conservation Value Forest
Annual Allowable Cut
Selective Management System
Standard Operating Procedures
Programme for the Endorsement of Forest Certification

FRIM
JPNT
NGO
WWF
KPKKT
Pesama

=
=
=
=
=
=

Forest Research Institute Malaysia
Terengganu State Forestry Department
Non-Governmental Organisation
World Wildlife Fund
Kumpulan Pengurusan Kayu-Kayan Trengganu Sdn Bhd
Pesama Timber Corporation Sdn Bhd

ENERGY MANAGEMENT
(ENVIRONMENT)
1. Two renewable energy
projects in 2020

1. Breakdown
of electricity
consumption and
cost in 2019
• Harvesting
• Sawmilling
• Manufacturing
• Headquarters

1. To install PV solar at GP Glass, Pesaka and Pesama
(2021)

1. GDBM

2. To conduct feasibility study for construction of a
mini hydro power plant at KPKKT concession area
(2021)
3. To harvest forest residual and process into wood
chips (2021)
4. To process sawdust into biomass briquette
charcoal (2021)
5. To construct biomass pellet plant (To establish
timeline in 2020)

GPG
Pesaka
Pesama

=
=
=

Golden Pharos Glass Sdn Bhd
Pesaka Trengganu Berhad
Pesama Timber Corporation Sdn Bhd

KPKKT
GDBM

=
=

Kumpulan Pengurusan Kayu-Kayan Trengganu Sdn Bhd
Group Downstream Business Manager
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Sustainability Roadmap (Continued)
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (KPI), ACTION PLANS AND REPORTING REGIME
(GRI 102-31, 102-33, 102-34)

PROTECTING THE SAFETY AND HEALTH OF WORKERS AND SUB-CONTRACTORS
(SOCIAL - WORKPLACE)
KPI

Baseline

1. Reduction to maximum
4 incidents (GP Glass)

1. 6 incidents in 2019
(GP Glass)

2. Zero NOP in
compliance with DOSH

2. 2 deaths (KPKKT)

3. Zero deaths

3. Toolbox daily
meetings (GP Glass)

Action Plan
1. Conduct OSHWA inspection by SHO or 2 Group
Safety Committee members:
• KPKKT - twice per year
• Other subsidiaries - once per year

Responsibility
1. GPOSHCOM

2. Training

4. To achieve at least 80%
of yearly audited result
by DOSH
5. Proactive measures
(yearly inspection by
OSHWA)
GP Glass
= Golden Pharos Glass Sdn Bhd
NOP
= Notice of Prohibition
DOSH
= Department of Occupational Safety and 		
		Health
Pesama
= Pesama Timber Corporation Sdn Bhd

Pesaka
OSHWA
KPKKT
SHO
GPOSHCOM

=
=
=
=
=

Pesaka Trengganu Berhad
Occupational Safety and Health Workplace Assessment
Kumpulan Pengurusan Kayu-Kayan Trengganu Sdn Bhd
Safety and Health Officer
Golden Pharos Occupational Safety & Health Committee

TRAINING, EDUCATION AND CAREER DEVELOPMENT
(SOCIAL - WORKPLACE)
1. 100% utilisation of
HRDF
2. Succession planning

1. 90% of executive
employees to attend
16 hours of training
per year
2. 90% of non-executive
employees to attend
3 hours of training
per year

1. Source training providers registered with HRDF
2. Minimum 2 in-house training programmes to
be claimed from HRDF, minimum 4 hours per
company (excludes KPKKT)
3. Identify key positions in the company
4. Identify internal employees who can replace key
persons
5. Groom selected employees - provide training
6. Offer retention programme ie compensation and
benefits

HRDF
KPKKT
HRA

=
=
=

Human Resources Development Fund
Kumpulan Pengurusan Kayu-Kayan Trengganu Sdn Bhd
Human Resources and Administration Department
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Sustainability Roadmap (Continued)
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (KPI), ACTION PLANS AND REPORTING REGIME

(GRI 102-31, 102-33, 102-34)

EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT AND SATISFACTION
(SOCIAL - WORKPLACE)
KPI
1. Monthly sports events
for headquarters

Baseline

Action Plan

1. 2 events in 2019

1. Organise sport events once a month at
headquarters level

2. 10 gatherings per year
(Chief Executive Officer
and workers)

2. Organise events by subsidiaries twice a year

3. 12 gatherings per year
(HOS & workers)

4. Organise signature annual events (eg. MTB
Golden Ride and Chemerong-Berembun-Lansir
expedition)

Responsibility
1. HRA and CCD

3. Organise gatherings once a month

5. Conduct DAL briefing (Corporate Services)
HOS
DAL

=
=

Heads of Subsidiaries
Discretionary Authority Limits

HRA
CCD

=
=

Human Resources and Administration Department
Corporate Communication Department

CUSTOMER FEEDBACK AND SATISFACTION
(SOCIAL - MARKETPLACE)
1. CSI - 0.2 annual
increment until 2022

1. Expected CSI of 3.5

2. Improve process for
handling complaints
(GP Glass)
3. Establish SOPs for
customer complaints
(all subsidiaries and
headquarters)

1. Improve CSI
• Make sure your company is ‘alive’
• Set clear expectations
• Reduce reaction to customer needs
• Identify issues that may occur
• Boost employee satisfaction level

1. CSO

2. Keep track record of complaints for each
department
3. Establish SOPs for customer complaints (all
subsidiaries and headquarters)
• Complaints (Phone, email, letter)
• Stage 1 – Frontline Resolution
 Solved

• Stage 2

 Investigation (product/cause/solve)

 Acknowledge customer within maximum 3
days
 Provide decision within 20 working days
 Written response
 Solved
CSI
GPG

=
=

Customer Satisfaction Index
Golden Pharos Glass Sdn Bhd

SOP
CSO

=
=

Standard Operating Procedures
Chief Sustainability Officer
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Sustainability Roadmap (Continued)
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (KPI), ACTION PLANS AND REPORTING REGIME
(GRI 102-31, 102-33, 102-34)

CERTIFICATION
(SOCIAL - MARKETPLACE)
KPI
1. Maximum 6 CAR during
annual surveillance
audit

Baseline
1. 11 certifications

Action Plan

Responsibility

1. Compilation and monitoring of PEFC and FSC®
SOP
2. Ensure compliance to updated standards

1. Respective HOS of
Pesaka, Pesama and
PPSB

3. Provide training on certification standards
4. Internal pre-audit before actual surveillance audit
CAR
= Corrective Action Requests
PEFC
= Programme for the Endorsement of Forest
		
Certification
FSC® SOP
= Forest Stewardship Council Standard Operating 		
		Procedures

HOS
Pesaka
Pesama
PPSB

=
=
=
=

Heads of Subsidiaries
Pesaka Trengganu Berhad
Pesama Timber Corporation Sdn Bhd
Permint Plywood Sdn Bhd

DISCLOSURES ACCORDING TO GRI (GRI 102-54)
Integrating sustainability considerations into our operations

Going into the third year of our sustainability reporting,

mindset and upgrading of skillset among all management

sustainability, which include a structure for monitoring

and activities is a gradual exercise involving the changing of
and employees of GPB and the subsidiary companies.

This was the focus during the first two years of our

our attention has now shifted to the reporting aspects of

progress, compiling results and taking further action,
whether remedial or otherwise.

sustainability journey with the selection of 10 most material

In 2020, we set out to anchor our sustainability reporting on

quest to take ownership of GPB’s sustainable future.

37 areas and 177 specific disclosures (including management

matters for the Group, representing the first steps in our

By instilling a sense of ownership across the Group and
among our stakeholders, we can collectively find meaningful
solutions to even the most complex issues which we may
face in our daily operations.

GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD

the GRI Standards-Core Options framework, encompassing

approaches). While the preparatory works may be deemed

complex, we have reached the point of prioritising our
transition to a sustainable business as there is a conscious

shift to achieve the objectives of sustainable forest
management and environmental conscious manufacturing
in glass production for the industries in which we operate.
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Sustainability Roadmap (Continued)
DISCLOSURES ACCORDING TO GRI (GRI 102-54)

We also faced setbacks with the interruption to normal working conditions during the Movement Control Order (MCO) and

priority on making up for lost time and business in the following few months under the Conditional MCO and then Recovery
MCO.

Nevertheless, we are confident of remaining on track and will strive to continuously improve in the GRI disclosures.

GENERAL DISCLOSURES

SOCIAL DISCLOSURES

CODE

AREA

CODE
401

Employment

102

General Disclosures

402

Labour Management Relations

103

Management Approach

403

Occupational Health & Safety

404

Training & Education

405

Diversity & Equal Opportunity

406

Non-Discrimination

407

Freedom of Association &

101

Foundation

ECONOMIC DISCLOSURES
CODE
201

AREA

Economic Performance

202

Market Presence

203

Indirect Economic Impacts

204

Procurement Practices

205

Anti-Corruption

206

Anti-Competitive Behaviour

207

Tax

ENVIRONMENT DISCLOSURES
CODE

AREA

301

Materials

302

Energy

303

Water & Effluents

304

Biodiversity

305

Emissions

306

Effluents & Waste

307

Environmental Compliance

308

Supplier Environmental Assessment

AREA

Collective Bargaining
408

Child Labour

409

Forced or Compulsory Labour

410

Security Practices

411

Rights of Indigenous People

412

Human Rights Assessment

413

Local Communities

414

Supplier Social Assessment

415

Public Policy

416

Customer Health & Safety

417

Marketing & Labelling

418

Customer Privacy

419

Socioeconomic Compliance
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Sustainability Roadmap (Continued)
ALIGNMENT TO THE UNITED NATIONS SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOALS (UN SDGs)

The United Nations has outlined 17 UN SDGs to create

a sustainable future and improve the lives of “everyone,
everywhere”, a universal call to action adopted by all UN
member states in 2015.

In essence, the 17 UN SDGs address the myriad challenges

facing humankind including poverty, inequality, climate
change, environmental degradation, peace and justice with

the target of achieving its 2030 Agenda for Sustainable
Development.

Following the COVID-19 pandemic which surfaced towards
the end of 2019, the UN has reiterated the significance and
relevance of the UN SDGs, stating:

“This is the time for change,
for a profound systemic
shift to a more sustainable economy
that works for both people and the
planet.”

“We need to turn the recovery into a real
opportunity to do things right for the future.”
Antonio Guterres

UN Secretary-General
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Sustainability Roadmap (Continued)
ALIGNMENT TO THE UNITED NATIONS SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOALS (UN SDGs)

GPB fully subscribes to the UN’s agenda for sustainable development, more so in the wake of the pandemic and
subsequent disruptions to economic activity and daily life. In late 2019, we had begun to align our sustainability drive to

the UN SDGs, which alongside the GRI framework, provides a guide for the Group to ensure long-term sustainability for all
our stakeholders. Our efforts to map GPB’s most material matters to both agendas are tabulated as follows:

MATERIALITY
MATTER
1.

Economic & Business
Performance

2.

SUSTAINABILITY
PILLAR

MAPPING TO GRI

Economic
(Financial)

201 – Economic Performance

Eliminating Bribery
and Corruption

Economic
(Governance)

204 – Procurement Practices
205 – Anti-Corruption

3.

Risk Management

Economic
(Governance)

201 – Economic Performance
203 – Indirect Economic Impacts

4.

Protecting Land
and Biodiversity

Environment

304 – Biodiversity
307 – Environmental Compliance

5.

Energy Management

Environment

302 - Energy

6.

Customer Feedback
& Satisfaction

Social
(Marketplace)

206 –
416 417 418 -

7.

Certification

Social
(Marketplace)

416 - Customer Health & Safety
417 - Marketing & Labelling

8.

Protecting the Safety
and Health of Workers
and Sub-Contractors

Social
(Workplace)

403 – Occupational Health & Safety

9.

Training, Education
and Career
Development

Social
(Workplace)

404 – Training & Education

Social
(Workplace)

402 - Labour Management Relations
407 - Freedom of Association & 		
Collective Bargaining

10. Employee
Engagement &
Satisfaction

ALIGNMENT WITH UN SDGs

Anti-Competitive Behaviour
Customer Health & Safety
Marketing & Labelling
Customer Privacy
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Sustainability Pillars
(GRI 102-31, 103-1)

The heart of corporate sustainability lies in putting purpose
before profit. It is about weighing financial interest against its social
and environmental costs and effects. Reinforcing the sense of sustainability
ownership has to be done through a course of taking action, internally and
externally for the benefit of people, planet and profit.

At GPB, the broader focus of our sustainability measures on the three pillars or dimensions of EES are to be:
Commendable in
Economic Matters

ECONOMIC

Generate healthy financial
returns for our shareholders
and indirect economic benefits
for other stakeholders while
upholding values in business
ethics and governance

Exemplary in
Environmental Matters

ENVIRONMENT

Reduce our footprint on the
environmental by optimising
natural resources and
protecting biodiversity

The following sections highlight the Group’s sustainability performance in the EES pillars.

GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD

Praiseworthy in
Social Matters

SOCIAL

Enabling a productive
workforce, protecting
lives and empowering the
community
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Sustainability Pillars (Continued) (GRI 102-31, 103-1)

ECONOMIC: Creating and Sustaining Value
(GRI 201, 202, 203, 204, 205, 206, 207)

Every business creates and supports its own economic
ecosystem.

GPB’s value system is built by firstly, generating and

sustaining income for shareholders and investors; secondly,
by preserving job security for employees and creating
employment in the market; thirdly, by supporting a supply

chain of vendors; and lastly, by contributing to the nation’s
economic growth through taxation and other payments.

To sustain this ecosystem, we need to ensure continuity

by expanding market presence through product quality
and service reliability while also practising good business

ethics and responsible governance critical to maintaining
the Group’s reputation as well as trust and confidence of
customers.

As an integral component of the local economy responsible
for the welfare of the community where we operate, we

understand the vital economic role we play in creating and
sustaining value for all our stakeholders.
ECONOMIC PERFORMANCE

Our improved performance over the past three financial

years was anchored on a three-year Business Recovery Plan
(BRP) beginning in 2017. The goal for FY2019 and beyond
was to maintain this recovery momentum to generate

sustainability in financial performance for the years to come.
We are in the process of formulating a new strategic plan

for the next three years, which outlines cost optimisation
measures as well as potential for new business portfolios.

Details of the Group’s business objectives and BRP

strategies, and financial results are presented in the
Management Discussion and Analysis section on pages 16
to 29 of this Annual Report.

As a forest concessionaire, GPB is mindful of the financial

exposure that climate change can pose to logging
operations in the form of higher restrictions in the Annual
Allowable Cut (AAC) determined by forestry authorities as

this would reduce the supply of logs for our downstream
timber activities.

Nevertheless, we are well-placed to adapt and adjust to

such risks since we are certified by the Forest Stewardship

(GRI 201-1, 201-3, 201-4)

Council (FSC®), which opens the door to a host of new

The Group is in the midst of recovering from a period of

products.

extended losses since 2012, a trend that was reversed by

markets and customers who only accept sustainable timber

a breakeven financial year in 2017. We maintained our
recovery momentum in the past two years (FY2018 and

FY2019) although both years recorded losses on account

of the new Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards
(MFRS), which precluded recognition of revenue as was
previously practised.
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Sustainability Pillars (Continued) (GRI 102-31, 103-1)
ECONOMIC: Creating and Sustaining Value (GRI 201, 202, 203, 204, 205, 206, 207)

Regardless of our financial position, GPB understands

The Group prioritises risk management in our business

welfare such as long-serving employees who stand to

management is outlined in the Statement of Risk Management

our responsibility towards all our stakeholders and their

receive gratuity as a retirement package over and above
our contribution to their respective Employees Provident
Fund (EPF) accounts during their tenure in the Group.

The Group also has a new dividend policy for shareholders,
which leans heavily on profit sharing details, of which are
featured in the Management Discussion and Analysis
section on pages 16 to 29.
GOVERNANCE
We believe good corporate governance is the cornerstone

operations and financial management. Our approach to risk
and Internal Controls (SORMIC), found on pages 163 to 165 of
this Annual Report 2019.

As forest concession management is our key business, we are
committed towards achieving the necessary certifications and
accreditation, as listed by the table below:

SUBSIDIARIES & ISO/CERTIFICATION/ACCREDITATION
Kumpulan Pengurusan Kayu-Kayan Trengganu Sdn Bhd
• FSC® – Forest Stewardship Council

(Well Managed Forest Certification)

of a sustainable business and endeavour to comply with
all statutory requirements and adhere to good business
practices and sound financial management.

The Group’s corporate governance framework provides

Pesaka Trengganu Berhad

• FSC® – Chain of Custody Certification
• The Programme for the Endorsement of Forest

Certification (PEFC) – Chain of Custody Certification

a platform for our compliance to the following legal and
best practices guidelines:

1
2
3
4

Pesama Timber Corporation Sdn Bhd
• FSC® – Forest Stewardship Council

(Well Managed Forest Certification)

Companies Act 2016 (CA 2016)

• FSC®- Chain of Custody Certification
• PEFC – Chain of Custody Certification

Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Main
Market Listing Requirements (MMLR)

Malaysian Code of Corporate
Governance

Golden Pharos Glass Sdn Bhd
•

ISO 9001:2015 Certification

• MS 1498:2017 Certification
• British Standard (BS) 6206:1981 Certification
• AS/NZS 2208:1996 Certification

Corporate Governance Guide:
Moving from Aspiration to
Actualisation (CG Guide)

GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD

Permint Plywood Sdn Bhd

• PEFC – Chain of Custody Certification
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Sustainability Pillars (Continued) (GRI 102-31, 103-1)
ECONOMIC: Creating and Sustaining Value (GRI 201, 202, 203, 204, 205, 206, 207)

MARKET PRESENCE

Although we do not have a specific policy on local hiring,

(GRI 202-1, 202-2)

nevertheless, we lean towards providing job opportunities

As a State GLC, GPB cast a considerable footprint in the

come from immediate communities in Kuala Terengganu

market and is considered a sought-after provider of jobs

with higher-than-average remuneration, particularly in the

East Coast State of Terengganu where our headquarters
and bulk of business operations are located.

We offer significantly higher salaries of at least 1.5 times for

entry-level employees compared with Malaysia’s minimum
monthly wage of RM1,100 for 2019.

for talents in the same State. The majority of our employees
and other districts in the State. Similarly, most employees of

our Selangor-based subsidiary GP Glass are sourced from
that State and neighbouring Kuala Lumpur.

In 2019, 10 out of 11 senior management personnel at
Group level and subsidiary companies are locals from the
respective States, as shown below (All subsidiaries and
headquarters are in Terengganu except for GP Glass, which
is in Selangor):

GPB’S ENTRY-LEVEL WAGE VERSUS
MINIMUM WAGE 2019 (RM)

ORIGIN OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT
PERSONNEL – GROUP AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
Terengganu

MALE

FEMALE

GPB

1,670

1,750

Minimum Wage

1,100

1,100

1.52:1.00

1.59:1.00

Ratio

In the case of other contract workers, we ensure they are
paid as per the minimum wage requirement.

Selangor

GPB

4

-

KPKKT

1

1

Pesaka

1

-

Pesama

2

-

PPSB

-

-

GP Glass

-

2

We continue to prioritise locals for employment via

participation in events and leisure activities such as the
‘Ekspo Perkayuan Terengganu Maju’ in collaboration with

the Terengganu Timber Industry Training Centre (TTITC)

and the Golden MTB Ride 2019, which were organised in
April and September 2019 respectively.
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Sustainability Pillars (Continued) (GRI 102-31, 103-1)
ECONOMIC: Creating and Sustaining Value (GRI 201, 202, 203, 204, 205, 206, 207)

INDIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACTS

PROCUREMENT PRACTICES

(GRI 203-1, 203-2)

(GRI 102-9, 204-1)

As a leading company in Terengganu, GPB’s business

The Group generates significant business for an extensive

and other benefits for local businesses, communities and

of which are local companies although we do not have

activities invariably result in various forms of economic
also the State Government.

Overall, our business operations in forest management,
logging and related timber industries have augmented

supply chain of vendors and service providers, the bulk
specific purchasing policies favouring domestic businesses.
Instead, the emphasis on local buying is mainly due to
practical, geographical and costs reasons.

the development of parts of Terengganu, especially in

As at 31 December 2019, all 34 vendors and service

sporadic.

businesses while another subsidiary GP Glass sources its

remote areas where built-up infrastructure is sparse and

The Group’s contribution to infrastructure and ancillary

services, which in some cases are to facilitate our own
operations, have served to benefit various communities

in those areas as well as other commercial concerns. This

providers of our subsidiary company Pesaka are local

consumables, raw materials and other services from 90 local

and only 12 foreign companies on its books over the years.
During the year in review, GP Glass engaged the services
of 39 out of 41 suppliers, as follows:

initiative has also spurred economic, educational, leisure
and recreational activities in the areas where we operate.

In May 2019, we built an observation deck 329 metres

above sea level at Bukit Maras, which is the tallest peak
in

the

Kuala

Nerus

district’s

recreational

park

in

Terengganu. The deck is envisioned to encourage hiking
and para-gliding as well as for the public to enjoy a
bird’s-eye view of the idyllic islands of Pulau Redang and
Pulau Kapas from the platform.

On 17 October 2019, we constructed public toilets and a

surau at Chemerong-Berembun-Lansir, a venue for hiking

expeditions that attract participants from within and
outside Terengganu. Both areas are set to become

crowd-pullers, especially among environmental, nature
conservation and fitness enthusiasts, and spur tourist
activity.

Menara Tinjau Bukit Maras.
The observation deck was built 329 metres above sea level.
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Sustainability Pillars (Continued) (GRI 102-31, 103-1)
ECONOMIC: Creating and Sustaining Value (GRI 201, 202, 203, 204, 205, 206, 207)

PRODUCT : LABOUR-INTENSIVE SERVICES

PRODUCT : NON-STOCK ITEMS

1.

Gam Technology Sdn Bhd

1.

Winmech Industrial Supplies Sdn Bhd

2.

Toshiba Tec Malaysia Sdn Bhd

2.

Paint house hardware trading

3.

UMW Industries (1985) Sdn Bhd

3.

Supreme vista timber trading

4.

Hock Lai Auto Supply & Service

4.

WTC Electrical engineering

5.

Chai Soon Heng Commercial Vehicles Sdn Bhd

5.

SLH Industries Supply

6.

Excellent Glass Industries Sdn Bhd

6.

Ong Brothers Petroleum Sdn Bhd

7.

Smart Cooling Air Conditioning

7.

Merit Art Sdn Bhd

8.

HLTI Tyre & Auto Sdn Bhd

8.

BNB Trading

9.

DHL Express (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd

9.

Econprint Label Sdn Bhd

COUNTRY : LOCAL

COUNTRY : LOCAL

10. Fineway Engineering & Trading

10. Matrixmax Systems Sdn Bhd

11. Eng Cheep Tyres Service Sdn Bhd

11. Sonofax Sdn Bhd

12. Netsol System

12. Wawasan Best Hardware

13. Wai Hong Rewiring Enterprise

13. Syarikat Cheng Khieng Sdn Bhd

14. Eglobal Strategic Sdn Bhd

14. Kim Hing Leong Hardware Sdn Bhd

15. MMH Material Handling Systems Sdn Bhd

15. SLS Bearings (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd
16. TCAT Industrial Supply Sdn Bhd

PRODUCT : CONSUMABLE ITEMS
COUNTRY : LOCAL

1.

Use Electronics (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd

2.

Glassmac Engineering Sdn Bhd

3.

Mia Manufacturing Sdn Bhd

4.

MOHM Marketing Sdn Bhd

5.

Golden Evermore Engineering & Supply

6.

K Plus Engineering
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Sustainability Pillars (Continued) (GRI 102-31, 103-1)
ECONOMIC: Creating and Sustaining Value (GRI 201, 202, 203, 204, 205, 206, 207)

PRODUCT : RAW MATERIALS
COUNTRY : LOCAL

1.

Malaysian Sheet Glass Sdn Bhd

PRODUCT : STOCK ITEMS
COUNTRY : LOCAL

1.

Kong Weng Glass Sdn Bhd

PRODUCT : CONSUMABLE ITEMS
COUNTRY : FOREIGN

1.

Kuraray Asia Pacific Pte Ltd

PRODUCT : NON-STOCK ITEMS
COUNTRY : FOREIGN

1.

Shunde Golive Glass Machinery Co., Ltd

GPB fully complies with the procurement policies of

Terengganu Inc, the State investment holding company
which is our largest shareholder. The policy sets out various
guidelines on procurement including the Discretionary

Authority Limits (DAL) and ISO standards for any purchases
by the Group and all its subsidiary companies.

ANTI-CORRUPTION
(GRI 102-17, 205-3)

GPB is a firm believer and advocate of anti-corruption
in business practices. We have a Code of Conduct which
outlines our ethics and other governance-related issues
to ensure management and employees at every level
maintain a high level of integrity in all dealings within and
outside the company. During the year in review, we did
not record any incidents of corrupt activities within the
Group or its subsidiary companies.
In addition, our Code of Conduct also features mechanisms
for reporting any breaches in ethical conduct via
whistleblowing and other policies. These are communicated
to our stakeholders: shareholders, customers, employees
and vendors in the following manner:

1
2
3

Employees are informed that the company
will work on developing (or updating)
company policies and procedures
Anti-corruption and related policies are
emailed to all human resource units
of subsidiaries to be disseminated to
employees
Meetings are conducted with all employees
to introduce any new handbooks or
manuals to review their intended purpose

ANTI-COMPETITIVE BEHAVIOUR
(GRI 206-1)

We are not a monopoly in any of our business activities and
as such are not subject to any legal actions or otherwise for
anti-competitive behaviour or anti-trust practices.
TAX

(GRI 207)

GPB honours all our obligations with regards to taxation
according to the respective laws in Malaysia such as the
Income Tax Act 1967.
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Sustainability Pillars (Continued) (GRI 102-31, 103-1)

ENVIRONMENT: Ensuring Balance with Nature
(GRI 301, 302, 303, 304, 305, 306, 307, 308)

Although there is as yet no hard evidence linking the
abrupt appearance of coronaviruses in recent times with
humankind’s impact on nature, an increasing number of
scientists have begun making the correlation.

These scientists point to the outbreaks of the current

COVID-19, Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome (SARS) at
the start of the new millennium and Middle East Respiratory

Syndrome (MERS) in 2012 as warning signs of excessive
encroachment into the natural environment.

It is also telling that the World Economic Forum (WEF)
recently published this wake-up call on its website, reporting

in its COVID-19 Risks Outlook: A Preliminary Mapping and its
Implications on 19 May 2020:

“The spread of COVID-19 has been hastened and

exacerbated by humanity’s long-term assault on the natural
world. The pandemic should serve as a wake-up call that
our impact on the environment is not just about carbon

emissions. It’s now time to start addressing the nature-related
risks caused by human activities.”

GPB has certainly taken note of such dire warnings and
is intent on striking a balance between our business
operations, particularly logging activities, and the renewal of

natural habitats including forests and wildlife. This goal will

be complemented by resource optimisation to reduce the
depletion of natural resources hastened by global economic
and social demands.
Our

goal

and

responsibility

are

to

contribute

to

environmental sustainability in order to help protect and
preserve this world we live in for generations to come.

Jeram Lesung, another area of outstanding natural beauty that is
part of our HCVF.
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CORPORATE ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY
While all our operational and manufacturing sites are guided by various regulations to safeguard the environment, we are
also committed towards managing the environmental footprint at our headquarters and site offices.
In 2019, we embarked on a campaign to instil a culture of sustainability among our employees in order to improve
disclosure pertaining to our environmental performance. We have set 2019 as the baseline year for our sustainability reporting
and this has provided us with the impetus to include green practices with the focus on conserving natural resources and
minimising the impact of our activities.
•

Green Practices

For four consecutive years from 2015 till 2018, we have been distributing our Annual Reports in CD-ROM format. Nominal
hard copies were printed in accordance with statutory requirements based on shareholders’ requests.

In 2020, we are poised to go one step further by distributing e-notifications for the 33rd AGM, Extraordinary General
Meeting and 2019 Annual Report to shareholders. With the onset of digitalisation, shareholders are encouraged to log

onto the company’s website at http://www.goldenpharos.com to access the relevant documents. Nominal copies of the
2018 and 2019 Annual Reports were printed on FSC® certified paper.

Our Board of Directors were given iPads to reduce the amount of paper used for circulation of Board papers. Our senior
management team, HODs and employees utilise digital touchscreen devices, laptops and smartphones during meetings
to share information electronically.

GPB’s 2018 and 2019 Annual
Reports was distributed digitally
to shareholders and nominal hard
copies were printed on FSC®
Certified paper.
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We also:

1
2
3
4
5

Encourage recycling of paper, plastic
and glass by sorting materials before
discarding
Encourage ‘bring your own’
containers for packing of purchased
food and drinks to minimise general
waste
Utilise alternative means of data
and information distribution via
emails and thumb drives
Conduct
video
and
voice
conferencing for meetings which
saves time and negates the need
to travel, where possible. This
contributes towards reducing our
carbon footprint
Switch off lights, appliances and
computers during break times and
after working hours to conserve
energy

MATERIALS
(GRI 301)

The Group’s production of sawn timber and wood chips are

supplied by the logs we harvest while our glass products
are made from sand and limestone. Apart from these base

materials, we also source for carton boxes and plastic film
for packaging.

Our efforts
to optimise
the use of
materials are
focused on
the following:

1
2
3

Recycling production materials internally for both
logging and sawmilling, and glass processing

Encouraging
Environmentally
Preferable
Purchasing (EPP) or Green Purchasing from
responsible suppliers not only for sourcing raw
materials and equipment for production, but also
for the workplace at head office and subsidiaries
i.e. office supplies which include stationery
items, cleaning agents for maintenance works
and electronic and electrical equipment and
appliances
Advocating
and
campaigning
for
nature
conservation, recycling and healthy lifestyles at
external events such as the Golden MTB Ride and
hiking activities in the Chemerong-BerembunLansir reserve

As per the guidelines in GRI Standards-Core Options, we will
compile statistics on the weight or volume of raw materials
used in production and packaging (GRI 301-1), amount
of recycled materials used (GRI 301-2) and proportion
of reclaimed products and their respective packaging
(GRI 301-3) for reporting in the next Sustainability Report.
This exercise is set to enhance material optimisation at all
levels of production and related activities.
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ENERGY
(GRI 302)

Energy conservation is a priority at GPB as a cost-saving measure as well as contribution towards the reduction of fossil fuels,
coal and other pollution-causing materials used in generating electricity.
Energy Management therefore was included as one of the 10 most material matters with action plans already in place to
reduce external power supply via the harnessing of solar power and biomass, details of which are featured in the section on
KPIs, Action Plans and Reporting Regime.
Beyond our commitment to conserve energy, we are also exploring ways to lower dependency on environmentally-unsound
fuels including generating power via mini-hydroelectric plants as a new business potential. Our extensive forest concession
areas house numerous rivers and tributaries ideal for the construction of mini-hydros, which are considered an environmentfriendly substitute to conventional dams.
Electricity usage at headquarters and our main subsidiary companies are presented in the charts below, which will represent
the baseline figures for our efforts to reduce our future consumption.
ELECTRICITY CONSUMPTION 2017 - 2019
TOTAL ANNUAL COST (RM)

Headquarters
25,436

FY2018: 21,299
FY2017: 23,199

2019
2018
2017

KPKKT
34,472

FY2018: 30,699
FY2017: 31,869

Pesaka
207,577

FY2018: 221,627
FY2017: 168,202

Pesama
505,215

FY2018: 493,499
FY2017: 454,815

GP Glass
1,759,211

FY2018: 1,865,839
FY2017: 2,114,448

PPSB
68,571

FY2018: 30,967
FY2017: 554

In 2019, the total electricity bill was RM2,600,482, representing a 2.4% reduction from RM2,663,930 in 2018.
This is the second consecutive year in which our electricity cost has gone down.
We intend to begin calculating our energy intensity (GRI 302-3) and the reduction in energy consumption
(GRI 302-4) in the next Sustainability Report. At this stage, we will defer the GRI indicators of 302-2 (energy
consumption outside the organisation) and 302-5 (reductions in energy requirements of products and
services) until such time when we are in a position to fulfil their reporting requirements.

2,600,482

RM

FY2018: RM2,663,930
FY2017: RM2,793,087
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WATER AND EFFLUENTS
(GRI 303-5)

GPB is committed to water conservation with our efforts in this area focused on consuming only the necessary amount of water
in our production and other activities. Similar to electricity, our use of water in 2019 displayed in the charts below will be the
reference point for future reductions in consumption.

WATER CONSUMPTION 2017 - 2019
TOTAL ANNUAL COST (RM)

Headquarters

KPKKT

Pesaka

Pesama

GP Glass

PPSB

1,021

1,900

32,858

42,343

107,845

2,442

FY2018: 810

FY2018: 2,050

FY2018: 22,366

FY2018: 33,848

FY2018: 102,172

FY2018: 5,423

FY2017: 1,074

FY2017: 1,991

FY2017: 14,601

FY2017: 19,005

FY2017: 91,600

FY2017: 932

2019
2018
2017

In 2019, the total cost for water bills was RM188,409 against RM166,669 in 2018 and RM129,203 in 2017.
This increase of consumption in 2019 was approximately 13.0% from 2018 and 45.8% from 2017.

We are also currently reviewing the reporting requirements for interactions with water as a shared resource

(GRI 303-1), management of water-discharge related impacts (303-2), water withdrawal (303-3) and water
discharge (303-4). Where relevant, we hope to begin tracking our performance and compiling results for the
next Sustainability Report.

188,409

RM

FY2018: RM166,669
FY2017: RM129,203
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Malaysia’s Forests,

over

130 million years old

BIODIVERSITY
(GRI 304-1, 304-2, 304-3, 304-4)

Having evolved over 130 million years, Malaysia’s forests are among the
oldest in the world and provide a repository for biodiversity in the form of
rich flora and fauna as well as wildlife to flourish.

The protection of this natural heritage counts among GPB’s imperatives

as a forest management concessionaire involved in harvesting logs

for supply to our downstream timber activities. It is no surprise that
biodiversity was selected as one of the Group’s 10 most material matters
by our stakeholders.

Our approach to forest resource management, biodiversity conservation,
climate amelioration and environmental protection is outlined in a 30year Forest Management Plan (FMP) 2008 – 2037, which was revisited and
updated in 2015 to take into consideration current as well as anticipated
changes in the future.

In essence, the FMP is a living blueprint to guide our policies and strategies

to sustainably manage and protect the invaluable biodiversity of wildlife,
flora and fauna.

The Meraga tree (Adira Polycephala) is one of the
major attractions for visitors to the ChemerongBerembun-Lansir (CBL) hiking trail.
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•

FOREST MANAGEMENT

The Group’s subsidiary company, KPKKT, manages the tropical forests at the Dungun Timber Complex (DTC) in
Dungun covering 106,697 hectares and the Cherul Forest Concession (CFC) in Kemaman covering 20,243 ha.

There are six Permanent Reserved Forests (PRF) at DTC while the CFC forms part of the Cherul Permanent
Reserved Forest.

PERMANENT RESERVED FORESTS (PRF) AT DUNGUN TIMBER COMPLEX (DTC)

N

Jerangau
9,710 ha

Pasir Raja
Barat
6,463 ha

Besut
Setiu

Hulu
Terengganu

Besul
Tambahan
1,157 ha

Kuala
Terengganu
Marang

Besul
6,190 ha

Pasir Raja
Selatan
31,512 ha

Dungun

Jengai
51,640 ha

Kemaman

KPKKT practises Sustainable Forest Management (SFM), which is guided by a Selective Management System (SMS) in
line with the principles and requirements of the Forest Stewardship Council (FSC®) and Malaysian Criteria and Indicators
(MC&I) for Forest Management Certification (Natural Forest).

We have been a holder of the FSC® Certification for well-managed forests under the purview of the Scientific Certification
Systems (SCS) since 21 April 2008. SCS conducts third-party auditing and certification of forest management operations
throughout the world. Since then, KPKKT has successfully complied with the SCS-FSC® Interim Standard for Forest
Management Certification in Malaysia Version 5.0.2014 and has been recertified until 27 February 2024.
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The guidelines for SFM cover the following:

1
2
3

Determination of annual working area to meet the Annual Allowable Cut (AAC) imposed by the
State Forestry Department
Proper boundary demarcation to prevent accidental encroachment beyond the annual working
area
Pre-felling inventory to determine cutting limits

4

Tree marking to identify logging selection

5

Road and bridge construction and maintenance to facilitate harvesting activities*

6

Selective felling operations to minimise unnecessary damage to the environment*

7

Efficient timber haulage and transportation to minimise forest damage

8

Post-felling operation to mitigate impact on the environment

9

Area rehabilitation and timber stand improvement to assess and return the forest back to
regenerated status**

*

To reduce the impact of logging activities on the biodiversity, we practise Reduced Impact Logging (RIL), and avoid ground cutting
of slip roads by using existing forests roads cleared during its first 30-year rotation of timber harvesting (KPKKT is already into the
second rotation).

**

A post-felling inventory operation is conducted several years after the completion of logging to assess the regeneration status of the
residual timber stand and decide on the appropriate timber stand improvement (TSI) operations for rehabilitation. The most common
TSI operation is open-area planting by using fast-growing indigenous species from the nursery, which KPKKT maintains in the Jengai
PRF covering an area of 0.56 ha and capable of accommodating 40,000 tree seedlings at any one time.
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The current AAC is 2,600 ha for standing timbers, a

Our forest protection measures focus on encroachment,

rivers and water bodies, buffer zones, sensitive sites, rock

measures include demarcation and control of boundaries,

maximum that excludes non-productive areas such as
outcrops, forest infrastructure, roads and others.

As per the recommendations of the FMP, KPKKT adheres
to stringent guidelines to protect the network of High

pests and disease outbreaks, fire and pollution. These

improvement in nursery practice and forest hygiene,
buffer zones, and training in fire-fighting skills for employees
and contract workers.

Conservation Value Forest (HCVF) including regular

Among the endangered tree species identified during a

biodiversity species.

along with the discovery of 35 new species in Terengganu,

assessments to preserve unique, threatened or endangered

In line with requirements for habitat protection and

survey carried out for the FMP were four dipterocarp species

of which 11 are endemic to Malaysia.

restoration, we preserved 61 ha of HCVF at Compartment

Apart from fauna, the survey also identified a potentially

during the year in review and this was externally audited

Swamp located in the DTC which is listed as an important

31 and 24 ha in Compartment 24, both in Jerangau,
and verified by the SCS. In addition, we have also entered

into a partnership with Forest Research Institute Malaysia

(FRIM) for protection and restoration of HCVF, a collaboration
which will strengthen our own independent measures.

We are also committed to reducing the impact of logging

on the environment by protecting residual potential crop

threatened and endangered ecosystem, the Pandan
water stress area.

Our forest areas are also home to species under the

International Union for Conservation of Nature (IUCN)

Red List and national conservation list under the Wildlife
Protection Act 2010, as follows:

trees (PCT), biodiversity, soil, water resources and habitats.

In the case of soil and peat management, we stringently

Keruing
Sarawak

adhere to standards and guidelines to reduce damage
such as destruction of vegetation and peat, and compaction

of soil from the use of heavy machinery. In addition, we carry
out constant monitoring of our logging areas to prevent soil
erosion.

Salacca
flabellate

Chengal

Eria
atrovinosa

To maintain the integrity and quality of water resources

within the concession areas, we maintain buffer zones

Macaranga

around rivers and streams. Other measures include careful

tree felling to prevent any from falling into rivers while no
felling activities are allowed on rainy and windy days.

Licuala

Rafflesia
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•

WILDLIFE PROTECTION

KPKKT collaborates with organisations such as the WWF to identify threatened and endangered mammal species.
A total of 19 such species listed in the IUCN Red List were recorded in our tropical rainforests including the Malayan

tiger, Asian elephant, Malayan tapir, dhole and white-handed gibbon. Over and above this, our forests are also home to
176 near-threatened, threatened and endangered bird species on the list.

ENDANGERED SPECIES IN OUR CONCESSION AREAS

Mammals:

Birds:

Tapirs (Tapirus indicus)

Hornbills (Family bucerotidae)

Tigers (Panthera tigris)

Malayan Peacock-pheasant/Crested Peacock-

Leopard (Panthera pardus)
Clouded Leopard (Neofelis nebulosa)

pheasant/Malaysian Peacock-pheasant
(Polyplectron malacense)

Leopard Cat (Prionailurus bengalensis)
Asian Golden Cat/Asiatic Golden Cat/

Temminck’s Golden Cat (Pardofelis temminckii)
Marbled Cat (Pardofelis marmorata)

Being aware that these areas are under threat and the survival of these species are under pressure, we have developed

various strategies to reduce poaching and encroachment such as regular patrols in concert with federal and state forestry

authorities. In addition, we conduct a community outreach programme to educate surrounding communities on the
importance of biodiversity.

We have instituted a policy of no hunting inside our logging areas and conduct training to contractors on how not to
disturb the wildlife.
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PROTECTED WILDLIFE
“TOWARDS MAINTAINING BIODIVERSITY”

SARAWAK HORNBILL

ELEPHANT

TAPIR

PORCUPINE

FOX

TIGER

JUNGLEFOWL

ANTELOPE

DEER
GREATER MOUSE DEER

PANGOLIN

MOUSE DEER

WHITE-RUMPED
SHAMA
GAUR
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EMISSIONS

EFFLUENTS AND WASTE

(GRI 305)

(GRI 306-2, 306-3, 306-5)

The Group ensures emission control for all our production

At GPB, our treatment and disposal of effluent and waste

the Environmental Quality (Clean Air) Regulations 1978

part of efforts to control pollution and contamination of the

and manufacturing activities, complying at all times with
under the DOE.

are in accordance with all relevant laws and regulations as
natural environment.

In 2020, we intend to compile results of, among others:

The bulk of the effluent produced from our operations

GHG emissions from consumption of electricity, heating,

a process by-product from polishing glass. To treat the

direct greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions (GRI 305-1);

cooling and others (GRI 305-2); GHG emissions intensity
(GRI 305-4); and reduction targets for GHG emissions

(GRI 305-5). At this stage, we will defer tracking results
of GHG emissions occurring outside the company from

upstream and downstream activities (GRI 305-3) for the
immediate future.

Waste Water Treatment Plant, GP Glass.
GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD

comes from subsidiary company GP Glass where it is
continuous flow of effluent, GP Glass has its own waste

water treatment plant to ensure treated effluent complies

with Standard B (Third Schedule of Environmental Quality
{Sewage and Industrial Effluent} Regulation 1979).
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In terms of solid waste, the following table shows GP Glass’s total non-hazardous waste produced and the disposal methods:
GP GLASS: NON-HAZARDOUS SOLID WASTE 2019
Item

Quantity (kg)

Disposal Method

Contaminated rags, gloves, plastics, papers, filters (SW410)

95

Landfill

Disposed containers, bags or equipment (SW409)

49

Landfill

Residue oil (SW315)

179

Landfill

Spent hydraulic oil (SW306)

179

Landfill

Spent mineral oil (SW307)

1,362

Landfill

Metal/Brine/Soap sludge containing metals such as chromium, copper, nickel,
zinc, lead, cadmium, aluminium, tin, vanadium and beryllium (SW204)

3,346

Landfill

Our timber subsidiary company Pesaka, however, recycles its only non-hazardous waste of engine oil, reusing 33 litres during
the year in review.
Meanwhile, our forest management subsidiary KPKKT stringently enforces all relevant regulations on employees and
contractors, especially on the use of potentially-polluting chemicals and lubricants as well as the approved disposal methods
for such materials.
Our subsidiary companies also have in place contingency plans to deal with any eventualities such as chemical spillage or
other accidents. There were no incidents of spillage of any kind during the year in review.
We are currently compiling data on water discharge by quality and destination (GRI 306-1), transport of hazardous waste
(GRI 306-4) and water bodies affected by water discharges and/or runoffs (GRI 306-5) and expect to feature baseline results
in the subsequent Sustainability Report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE

SUPPLIER ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT

(GRI 307-1)

(GRI 308)

The Group adheres to laws, treaties and

As yet, GPB does not have a structured evaluation of environmental

environment at the industry, national and

suppliers. However, we are reviewing this aspect of our supply chain

declarations on forestry, biodiversity and the

international levels as well as regulations and
standards related to manufacturing, as listed

considerations in its identification and selection of vendors and
and may include this requirement in the future.

below:

1

National Forestry Act 1984

2

National Forestry Policy 1997

3
4
5
6
7
8

Wildlife and National
Parks Act 2010
Environmental Quality
Act 1974
Occupational Safety and
Health Act 1994

FSC® Certification
MC&I for Forest Management
(Natural Forest)
National and International
Convention on Biological Diversity

During the year in review, there were no incidents

of non-compliance with any environmental laws
or regulations.

GPB CEO Dato’ Nadza Abdul injects inoculant into one of the Karas tree in the
presence of PPSB Chairman YB Maliaman Kassim during their visit to Melaka.
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SOCIAL: Enabling and Empowering Our Human
Resources (GRI 401 - 419)
Maintaining a balance between lives and livelihoods is the

Compliance to Regulations and Laws
Pertaining to Workplace Matters

ambit of the Social Pillar where companies are responsible
for providing rewarding employment in a safe, healthy

and conducive workplace. This corporate responsibility
extends to the marketplace where customers expect

quality products and reliable services at competitive prices

without having their wellbeing or privacy compromised.
The final subset of this Sustainability Pillar involves a

company’s outreach to society and its efforts to uplift the
community.

As an established business with deep and long-standing

ties in the workplace, marketplace and community,
GPB strongly believes in growing together with all
these stakeholders by always developing and sharing
opportunities.

1.

Employment Act 1955

2.

Occupational Safety And Health Act 1994

3.

Factories and Machinery (Noise Exposure)
Regulations 1989

4.

Malaysian Anti-Corruption Commission Act
2009

5.

Industrial Relations Act 1967

6.

Minimum Wages Order 2018

7.

Whistleblower Protection Act 2010

8.

National Wages Consultative Council Act
2011

Representatives from GPB,
Pesama and Perbadanan
Memajukan Iktisad Negeri
Terengganu visited the
new proposed location for
Pesama’s factory in Mak
Lagam, Kemaman.
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EMPLOYMENT
(GRI 102-8, 401-1, 401-2, 401-3)

GPB sets out employment terms and conditions for both executive and non-executive employees, which cover compensation,
promotion, privacy, talent development, industrial relations and discrimination.

The terms and conditions also spell out the working environment, schedule incorporating rest periods, holidays, cause and
procedures for disciplinary action and dismissal, maternity privileges and occupational safety and health.

No recruitment fee policy
Freedom of
Association
Policy

No retention of workers’
passports
Key highlights

Minimum
Wages & Leave
Pay Policies in
Malaysia

Foreign Workers
Recruitment
Guidelines &
Procedures in
Malaysia

and commitments

Paying the workers statutory
minimum wage

of Policies &

Guidelines for
Employment

Freedom of association
for the workers
Robust grievance mechanisms
and procedures
No discrimination of workers
and procedures for workers’
recruitment process
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As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a total permanent employee complement of 443 and a further 168 contract workers

for manual labour, especially during logging season. We do not engage part-time employees. The breakdown of employees
including new hires is provided in the following tables:

WORKPLACE DIVERSITY

WORKFORCE BY QUALIFICATION

443

2%

11%

87%

487
in FY2018

1%
in FY2018

11%
in FY2018

89%
in FY2018

77%

WORKFORCE BY CLASSIFICATION

total workforce

of total workforce are
permanent employees
70%
in FY2018

30%

of total workforce
are women
29%
in FY2018

43%

of total workforce are
below 40 years old

PhD & Masters

Degree

Diploma or below

6%

10%

84%

6%
in FY2018

9%
in FY2018

85%
in FY2018

Manager and above

Executive

Non-Executive

WORKFORCE BY RACE

82%

2%

5%

11%

79%
in FY2018

2%
in FY2018

5%
in FY2018

14%
in FY2018

Malay

Chinese

Indian

40%
in FY2018

TOTAL INTERNS AND TEMPORARY EMPLOYEES

6%

103

5

144
in FY2018

7
in FY2018

of employees are
new staff
15%
in FY2018

Contract

Foreigner

Trainee
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We provide fair remuneration to our employees at every

Via the Outsourced Contract for Services, GP Glass

well as a generous package of benefits encompassing

Myanmar.

level, in many cases higher than the market average, as

employs 48 foreign labourers from Nepal, Bangladesh and

healthcare, insurance, parental leave, retirement gratuity

Nepal
6

and stock options. These benefits are listed below:

Marriage leave

3

working days for first legal marriage

Myanmar
26

48
FOREIGN
EMPLOYEES

Bangladesh
16

Parental leave

60

days of maternity leave from birth, up to five children

1

day of paternity leave from birth
Statutory contributions
Employees Provident Fund (EPF), Social Security
Organisation (SOCSO) and Employment Insurance
System
Retirement benefits
Gratuity payment
Stock
Employee Share Option Scheme (ESOS) and
Executive Share Grant Scheme (ESGS).

GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD

Besides the above-mentioned employee benefits, GPB
provides housing allowances for all full-time employees, staff

quarters for factory workers at our sawmilling plants, and
rented terrace housing for the foreign labourers. Regular

inspections are conducted on such premises according to

guidelines prepared by the Labour Department to avoid
potential health and safety risks at work sites and workers’
housing premises.

The Employee Handbook clearly outlines the policies and

employee’s rights and this is communicated to all executive
and non-executive employees during the induction
session. It contains the legal obligations of the company
to its employees and also states the company’s culture and
expectations.
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Sustainability Pillars (Continued) (GRI 102-31, 103-1)
SOCIAL: Enabling and Empowering Our Human Resources (GRI 401 - 419)

LABOUR MANAGEMENT RELATIONS

POLICY OF NOTICE PERIOD FOR SIGNIFICANT

(GRI 402-1)

CHANGES IN OPERATIONS

The Group is committed to building and maintaining

Depending on the level of severity, priorities and impact

productive and collaborative relations with our employees,

of any major operational changes, the notice period may

with related policies and guidelines spelt out in the terms

vary from between 2 weeks and 12 months, or as and when

and conditions of employment.

required for employees to adapt and adjust accordingly.

Members from our senior management team and Board

The contractual offer letter of employment clearly states

members conduct site visits at both our logging and

the termination procedures. However, unless it differs, then

sawmilling, and glass processing sites, as and when.

procedures will follow the Employment Act 1955.

Apart from gaining a first-hand view of the processes and
operations, these visits encourage proactive engagement
among our senior management team, Board members and
employees on site.

OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH
(GRI 403-1, 403-2, 403-3, 403-4, 403-5, 403-6, 403-8, 403-9, 403-10)

The wellbeing and safety of our employees including permanent employees and contract workers take precedence over all
other considerations at GPB, particularly as our activities such as logging and manufacturing carries higher risks than most other
industries.
Golden Pharos Occupational Safety & Health Committee (GPOSHCOM) was established on 28 November 2018 to ensure our
employees and workers consistently operate in accordance with the Occupational Safety and Health Act 1994 (OSHA 1994)
and the Factories and Machinery Act 1967 (FMA 1967), which are enforced by the Department of Occupational Safety and
Health (DOSH) under the Ministry of Human Resources.
The OSHA 1994 and FMA 1967 provide the legislative frameworks to promote, stimulate and encourage high standards of
safety and health at work. All our workers, visitors and contractors including sub-contractors are to strictly follow the SOPs
for all statutory requirements, relevant standards, guidelines and code of practice in relation to safety and health as well as
human rights. GPOSHCOM reports to the CEO once every three months. GPOSHCOM will present safety and health reports
and activities during Group Management Committee (GMC) meetings which are held quarterly to address safety and health
issues, man hours, Lost Time Injury, Safety Programmes and compliances.
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Sustainability Pillars (Continued) (GRI 102-31, 103-1)
SOCIAL: Enabling and Empowering Our Human Resources (GRI 401 - 419)

Occupational safety and health also involves processes covering identification of hazards, assessment of risks and procedures
for investigation in the event of any untoward incidents. Among others, it includes processes for:

1

3

Hazard reporting

2

4

Stop work and evacuation from
any hazardous situations

Corrective actions

Continuous improvements

GPOSHCOM ORGANISATION CHART
Advisor

DATO’ NADZA ABDUL
(CEO GPB)

Chairman

NIK NUR HAFIZI BIN
NIK ZULKERNAIN

Secretary
NAHAIDA BINTI EMBONG

PPSB

Pesama

GPB

ROHALISA BINTI
ABD WAHAB

NIK NUR HAFIZI BIN
NIK ZULKERNAIN

KHAIRUDDIN
BIN KILAU

AHMAD FADHIL
BIN AHMAD

(Environmental Officer)

GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD

GP GLASS

MUHAMMAD
FAKQRUL FAISAL
BIN MOHD SHAROM

KPKKT

Pesaka

OSMADI
BIN OTHMAN

ABD MANAP
BIN MAT

MUHAMAD AL AMIN
BIN KAMARUZAMAN

(Environmental Officer)
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Sustainability Pillars (Continued) (GRI 102-31, 103-1)
SOCIAL: Enabling and Empowering Our Human Resources (GRI 401 - 419)

A flowchart of these processes is presented below:

SCOPE OF OSH MANAGEMENT SYSTEM
Scope of OSHMS
External
and internal
issues

Support
&
Operation

Plan

Context
of the
organisation

Needs and
expectations
of workers and
other interested
parties

Do

Leadership
and worker
participation

Planning

Act

Performance
evaluation

Intended
outcomes
of the
OSHMS

Check
Improvement

Source: based on ISO 45001 Occupational Safety & Health Management System

OSH best practices are vital components in our daily
operations, which extend to all visitors, contractors,
suppliers and vendors who are on the premises.
To prepare for potential incidents, we have an emergency
plan which includes regular training sessions and drills to
ensure the readiness of not only employees and workers of
the Group, but also includes the surrounding community
where we operate.

In addition, our Hazard Identification, Risk Assessment and
Risk Control (HIRARC) is a comprehensive framework to
further protect the health of our employees and contract
workers via regular Chemical Health Risk Assessments
(CHRA), noise monitoring and medical check-ups.
These health and safety measures are communicated to our
people by Group and subsidiary-level OSH committees,
which conduct sessions every quarter to brief as well as
consult with employees and contract workers. Over and
above these meetings, we also communicate any updates
and constant reminders on notice boards and through
memos, email and WhatsApp.
GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD

118

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

STRIVING TOWARDS SUSTAINABILITY

Sustainability Pillars (Continued) (GRI 102-31, 103-1)
SOCIAL: Enabling and Empowering Our Human Resources (GRI 401 - 419)

Training is mandatory for all relevant workers according to

All workers who handle chemicals at our work sites such as

(OSHWA) checklist, an exercise that also reviews the

pre-placement medical examinations as well as medical

an Occupational Safety and Health Workplace Assessment

effectiveness of respective programmes and trainers.
Since the launch of SOCSO’s free health screening
programme in 2013, all employees aged 40 and above

have undergone health screening at the appointed SOCSO
panel clinics.

treatment plant operators undergo pre-employment and
surveillance as required under the Occupational Safety

and Health (Use and Standard of Exposure of Chemicals

Hazardous to Health) Regulations, 2000 P.U.(A)131 enforced
by DOSH.

Our logging and sawmill workers are provided with personal

protective equipment (PPE) such as helmets and boots as
safeguards against potential accidents.
SOCSO HEALTH SCREENING

We are currently reviewing the reporting requirements for

the prevention and mitigation of OSH impacts linked by our
Health Screenings for Females
Blood and urine test

Blood pressure

Pap smears

business relationships (GRI 403-7).

During the year in review, our forest management company

KPKKT recorded two fatalities involving contract workers
of the appointed outsourced contractor, while there were

six cases of work-related injuries and ill health incidents at
glass producer GP Glass.

All the cases were duly reported to DOSH and other
relevant authorities. We have taken proactive steps to

Mammograms and a complete
report by the doctor

Health screening for males is lesser
compared with females where it
includes:
Blood and urine tests

conduct more rigid safety briefings in order to reduce the
number of incidents and accidents.

Given its importance, OSH is rightfully one of our 10 most
material matters. As presented in the Materiality Matters

section of this report, we have set KPIs to achieve zero
deaths and a maximum of four incidents at GP Glass for
FY2020.

Among the Action Plans outlined to achieve these targets
Blood pressure

are to conduct OSHWA inspections by the respective
Safety and Health Officer (SHO) or two Group Safety

Committee members twice a year at KPKKT and once a year
at all other subsidiaries.
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Sustainability Pillars (Continued) (GRI 102-31, 103-1)
SOCIAL: Enabling and Empowering Our Human Resources (GRI 401 - 419)

In order to reduce incident and accident rates, the following
measures are in place:

1
2
3
4

Having selected Training and Education as a most material

matter, we intend to capitalise on external funding such
as the HRDF for our employees to access relevant training

programmes. We will also focus on succession planning in

Regular toolbox meetings/
safety briefings to workers before
commencement of work

2020, starting off with the identification of key positions in
the Group and subsidiary companies.

The Operations Unit conducts periodic
training sessions for workers focusing
on SOPs, OSH and Sustainability

During the year in review, 90% of our executive employees
attended an average of 16 hours training while a similar

90% of non-executive employees took in an average three

hours of training. The bulk of the training sessions were
carried out in-house.

Safety and warning signages are
regularly updated

Total training cost in 2019 was RM178,240 (2018: RM89,704)

The SHO conducts an annual
Compliance and Sustainability Audit for
all operating units to ensure compliance
with all regulatory requirements and
GPB’s OSH Policy

which was almost double the cost in the previous year.

Both technical and soft skills training programmes were

stepped up in 2019 in efforts to upskill our employees’
skillsets, a key determiner of the Group’s focus on
continuously strengthening its performance.

TRAINING AND EDUCATION
(GRI 404-1, 404-2, 404-3)

Upskilling and reskilling of talents have become increasingly
essential

given

the

prevailing

tendencies

favouring

new business models and digital processes on both the
demand and supply sides. This has taken on even greater

urgency now that the COVID-19 pandemic has highlighted
the limitations in traditional ways of working and doing
business.

At GPB, we recognise this sweeping wave of change and
are committed towards continuous training and education
for our management and employees in order to gain and
maintain an advantage even in crisis situations.

90

90

%
of executive
employees

%
of non-executive
employees

16

3

hours
training

hours
training
Total Training Cost
RM

178,240
FY2018: 89,704
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Sustainability Pillars (Continued) (GRI 102-31, 103-1)
SOCIAL: Enabling and Empowering Our Human Resources (GRI 401 - 419)

TRAINING PROGRAMME & PROVIDER
1.

ALIBABA.COM Training Registration at LOCUS-T
ALIBABA.COM

2.

Analisis Keperluan Latihan
Orest Sdn. Bhd.

3.

Bengkel Tanggungjawab Majikan Terhadap Pekerja
KWSP

4.

TRAINING PROGRAMME & PROVIDER
23.

Effective Communication Training

24.

Employee Code of Conduct
GP Glass (Pn. Aslinah & Pn. Nor Filzah)

25.

Ergonomic Trained Person (ETP) , Initial Ergonomic Risk
Assessment (ERA)
Ergo Venture Training & Services

Basic Occupational First Aid, CPR & AED
AZM Global Solution Sdn Bhd

26.

ERM Awareness Kick of Session 1
Terengganu Incorporated (TI)

5.

Bengkel Pemantapan Pengeluaran Kayu Balak & Kursus Asas
Pertolongan Cemas
KPKKT

27.

ERM Awareness Kick of Session 2
Terengganu Incorporated (TI)

6.

Bengkel Pembangunan Generic Hirarc bagi Sektor
Pembuatan (Sawmill)
Jabatan Keselamatan & Kesihatan Pekerjaan (JKKP)

28.

Financial Modelling in Excel
TDM Berhad

29.

Forklift Operator and Safety Handling
Pesama (In-house training)

30.

FSC® Malaysia National Forest Stewardship Standards (NFSS)
Workshop
The Malaysian SDG

31.

Financial Instruments Updates - An Analysis of MFRS9 (2014)
Version

32.

GPB Sharing Session 2019
Golden Pharos Berhad

33.

Glass Handling & Safety Work In The Work Place

34.

Glass Surface Compression Training
GP Glass (Mr. Stanley Lau)

7.

Bengkel Pengurusan dan Pembangunan Ladang Hutan Getah
Lembaga Getah Malaysia

8.

Bengkel Protokol dan Etika
Golden Pharos Berhad

9.

Best Practices of Governance, Risk And Compliance
Malaysian Institute of Accountants

10.

Briefing/Dialogue Incentive On Green Technology
MIDA

11.

Building Infographics - Utilising Microsoft Excel for Data
Visualisation
Malaysian Institute of Accountants

12.

CePSWaM- Course for Certified Environmental Professional in
Scheduled
Greenvell (M) Sdn. Bhd. & Airwastewater Management
Sdn Bhd

35.

ISO 9001:2015
GP Glass (Muhammad Fakqrul Faisal)

36.

MBRS For Prepares - Financial Statements
The Malaysian Institute of Certified Public Accountants

13.

Certification in Training Needs Analysis (TNA)
HRDF

37.

Pengurusan Diri, Kualiti Kerja dan Produktiviti

14.

CIDB Green Card

38.

Production System Briefing (GSM)

15.

Competency Gap Workshop

39.

Improving Your Accounting Skills
Institute of Professional Advancement

16.

Corruption Risk Management Programme
Malaysian Anti-Corruption Academy (MACA)

40.

Initial Ergonomic Risk Assessment

17.

Critical Thinking

41.

Integrity and Risk Assessment Seminar

18.

DC Converter Unit Program Training

42.

Internal Audit Annual National Conference
The Institute of Internal Auditors Malaysia

19.

Demonstrasi Kebakaran 2019
KPKKT/GP Glass

43.

International Conference on Tropical Forest Science

20.

Demonstrasi Kebakaran Kedua Tahun 2019
KPKKT/GP Glass

44.

Investment Evaluation Risk Workshop

45.

21.

DOSH : Seminar OSH Wood Industry
Jabatan Keselamatan & Kesihatan Pekerjaan (JKKP)

Investment Monitoring Risk Workshop
Essential Skills Sdn Bhd (Training Beyond PLT)

46.

22.

DOSH Workshop HIRARC
Jabatan Keselamatan & Kesihatan Pekerjaan (JKKP)

Kursus Asas MGR
Pesama (In-house training)

47.

Kursus Asas Pengendalian Produk
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Sustainability Pillars (Continued) (GRI 102-31, 103-1)
SOCIAL: Enabling and Empowering Our Human Resources (GRI 401 - 419)

TRAINING PROGRAMME & PROVIDER

TRAINING PROGRAMME & PROVIDER

48.

Kursus Asas Pertolongan Cemas (BOFA) 2019
Pesama (In-house training)

69.

Program “Stakeholder Consultation & FSC® Mentoring” 2019
Pesama (In-house training)/KPKKT

49.

Kursus Transfromasi Diri “From Good To Great” 2019
Smart Global

70.

Program Pemimpin Kesihatan Rakyat 2019 anjuran Perkeso
PERKESO

50.

Latihan Cara Mengangkat Dengan Betul
Pesaka

71.

51.

Latihan Dalaman - Ergonomik & Manual Handling
Pesaka

Remote Wireless Broadband Internet Connectivity for Data
Communication and Surveillance
ATSB

72.

52.

Latihan Keselamatan Dlm Pekerjaan & Teknik Tebangan
Berarah kpd Penebang
KPKKT

Sales & Service Tax (SST) Updates And Its Current
Implementation Mechanism With 2019 Updates
LHDN

73.

Safety Committee Programme (Lawatan Sambil Belajar/Safety
Training)
Pesama (In-house training)

74.

Safety Induction
Pesaka

75.

Saya Majikan Bijak-Tunjuk Ajarku Sifu (LHDN)
LHDN

76.

Scheduled Waste Seminar

77.

Seminar - Hari Eksport Terengganu 2019 (MATRADE)
MATRADE

78.

Seminar bersama MTIB bagi Program CREANOVA
MTIB

79.

Seminar Kesedaran Penyakit Malaria Bersama KKM
Kementerian Kesihatan Malaysia

53.

Latihan Pemakaian PPE
Pesaka/KPKKT

54.

Latihan Penggunaan Ear Plug & Penjagaan Telinga
Pesaka

55.

Latihan Penjagaan Tulang Belakang & Cara Duduk Yang
Betul
Pesaka

56.

Legal Risk Workshop

57.

Major Chemical Spill and Leak Response

58.

Malaysia OSH: Legacy & Future Vision Of Excellent & OSH
National Conference 2019
Malaysian Society For Occupational Safety & Health
Academy

59.

Malaysian Timber Conference 2019-The Future Is Now
Malaysian Timber Council (MTC)

80.

Seminar Lesen Eksport Produk Kayu MTIB
MTIB

60.

MEF National Conference “Future of Work - Challenges &
Opportunities”
Malaysian Employers Federation

81.

Seminar On Solar By MIDA
MIDA

61.

MEF Seminar 2019 on “Corporate Liability Under the MACC
Act 2009
Malaysian Employers Federation

82.

Seminar Pematuhan Kualiti Alam Sekeliling (Udara Bersih) 2014
Dan Amalan Pengeluaran Bersih (Cleaner Production)
Jabatan Alam Sekitar

62.

MIA Conference 2019-Trust and Sustainability in A Digital
Economy
Malaysian Institute of Accountants

83.

Seminar Pengurusan Risiko Kebakaran
BOMBA

84.

Sesi Coaching, Perbincangan dan Verifikasi Program Systematic
Occupational Health Enchanment Level Programme (SoHELP)
DIY 2019 Kategori 2
Jabatan Keselamatan & Kesihatan Pekerjaan (JKKP)

63.

MIDA Briefing on Incentive For Manufacturing Industry
MIDA

64.

Modification on Chipper Crusher Drum Workshop

85.

65.

MTC Dialog
Malaysian Timber Council (MTC)

Simposium Usahawan Perabot Bumiputera Kebangsaan 2019
MTIB

86.

66.

MTIB : Kursus Meraut (Craving) Karas/Gaharu
MTIB

SSM National Conference 2019 - Future Proofing Business in
the Digital Age
Suruhanjaya Syarikat Malaysia (SSM)

67.

National Tax Seminar 2019
Lembaga Hasil Dalam Negeri Malaysia

87.

68.

Operation & Safety Briefing Regarding Operation Shutdown
Pesama (In-house training)/KPKKT

SST Seminar Important Points & Latest Update
Persatuan Pegawai Kanan Kastam Malaysia (PERKASA)
Selangor
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SOCIAL: Enabling and Empowering Our Human Resources (GRI 401 - 419)

TRAINING PROGRAMME & PROVIDER

We also conducted reviews on employees’
performance with the view of assessing areas of

88.

Strategic Business Plan 2020 - 2024 Workshop
Terengganu Incorporated (TI)

89.

Taklimat Arahan Pemeringkatan 2018
MTIB

90.

Taklimat Berkenaan Peluang Pelaburan Dalam Industri Teknologi
Hijau Di Terengganu
MIDA

91.

Taklimat dan Perbincangan isu-isu Teknikal dan Penguatkuasaan MTIB
MTIB

92.

Taklimat daripada Lembaga Perkhidmatan Kewangan Labuan
Terengganu Incorporated (TI)

93.

Taklimat Jom Guna Levi Siri IV - Focus Scheme (ALAT, OJT, ITS, SBL)
HRDF

94.

Taklimat Kesedaran Caruman PERKESO kepada Kontraktor/Majikan
KPKKT

95.

Taklimat Keselamatan & Kesihatan Pekerjaan
KPKKT/Pesama

96.

Taklimat Peraturan Eksport dan Import Produk Kayu dan Keluaran
Kayu 2019

97.

Taklimat Proses Aduan & Rungutan Dan “Chain of Custody” (CoC)
KPKKT/Pesama

*GPFP

HQ

98.

TIG Corporate Directors’ Training Programme

99.

To Design And Modification On Latch Shaft Key Training

Pesaka

Pesama

100. Tools & Techniques I : New Internal Auditor
The Institute of Internal Auditors Malaysia
101. Transfer Pricing
Ernst & Young

improvement and requirements for training. The

table below outlines the proportion of employees
who underwent performance reviews in FY2019:
PERFORMANCE REVIEWS
3
1%

130
29%

22
5%

35
8%

67
15%

443
EMPLOYEES

78
18%

108
24%

PPSB

KPKKT
GP Glass

* GP Forest Plantation Sdn Bhd
PERFORMANCE REVIEWS BY GENDER

102. Untimely/Inaccurate financial Reporting Workshop
103. Updates of the 2018 & 2019 MFRS - Preparing MFRS - Compliant
Financial Statements in 2018, 2019 and Thereafter
The Malaysian Institute of Certified Public Accountants
104. Working at Height
Niosh Kerteh
105. Training of machine operators in environmentally benign and
damage-limiting harvesting and forest engineering techniques
KPKKT/Pesama
106. Training in silviculturally significant tree marking procedures
KPKKT/Pesama
107. Training in silviculturally relevant stand treatment techniques
KPKKT/Pesama
108. Training on nursery technology and planting stock production
KPKKT/Pesama

MALE

FEMALE

310
70%

133
30%

FIXED TERM
CONTRACT
103
23%
PERFORMANCE
REVIEWS BY
EMPLOYMENT
CATEGORY
PERMANENT
340
77%
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Sustainability Pillars (Continued) (GRI 102-31, 103-1)
SOCIAL: Enabling and Empowering Our Human Resources (GRI 401 - 419)

All expenses for training programmes and employee
2019 TRAINING COURSES

engagement programmes conducted throughout 2019

were duly budgeted for and approved by the management,

NON-DISCRIMINATION
(GRI 406-1)

and all costs were audited by externally appointed auditors,

The Group maintains a non-discriminatory workplace,

aspect, please refer to the Financial Statements in this

disability or any other factor that distinguishes individual

Ernst & Young. For further information on the financial
Annual Report.

whether on the issue of race, religion, gender, age group,
employees apart from others. Our employment terms and
conditions specifically prohibits any form of discrimination

DIVERSITY AND EQUAL OPPORTUNITY
(GRI 405-1, 405-2)

while employees are also reminded from time to time
against discriminatory language or behaviour towards each

other. There were no incidents of discrimination of any kind

In line with the Group’s Gender and Diversity Policy,

recorded during the year in review.

we encourage diversity to promote a workplace that

is free of any form of harassment, which include race,
religion, national

origin, gender, ethnicity, ancestry,

30 OCTOBER 2019

non-disqualifying physical or mental disabilities, marital
status, and gender identity.

While the Group encourages our female employees to
continuously raise their proficiency levels in their roles and

responsibilities, the nature of our core businesses is male
dominated due to the labour intensive tasks involved.

BREAST CANCER AWARENESS CAMPAIGN
Pink was the colour of the day as employees of

GPB and its subsidiaries donned pink attire and

pink ribbons as a show of support for breast cancer
awareness, a campaign which was initiated by
Terengganu Inc.

Female talents in our Group are mainly involved in

management and administration, and equal opportunities

are given to both male and female employees in upgrading
their skills and career advancements.

Although males outnumber females by more than

double among permanent and fixed contract employees,
nevertheless, we strive to bolster the feminine ranks by

for instance offering higher remuneration to female entry-

level employees. These details were outlined earlier in the
Employment section of this report.

During the reporting period, no differently-abled persons
were employed throughout GPB.
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SOCIAL: Enabling and Empowering Our Human Resources (GRI 401 - 419)

FREEDOM OF ASSOCIATION AND COLLECTIVE

RIGHTS OF INDIGENOUS PEOPLE AND LAND TENURE

Although GPB does not practise collective bargaining in

We co-exist harmoniously and cooperatively with the orang

conditions and other issues, we keep an open door policy

concession areas. Although the orang asal do not live inside

BARGAINING (GRI 407)

determining employee remuneration, benefits, working

on any discussions and suggestions on such matters.
In any event, we consistently consult our employees to
better understand their needs and preferences in order to
maintain a contented and motivated work environment.
CHILD LABOUR

RIGHTS (GRI 411-1)

asal settlements in the immediate vicinity of our forest

the areas, our subsidiary companies, KPKKT and Pesama,
are always sensitive to their needs and will provide the
appropriate assistance in the event they trespass into the

forest sites. On this score, all employees and contractors
have been briefed to act accordingly.

(GRI 408)

With

We do not employ under-aged labour in accordance with

and sustainable use of land, forests and fisheries. This is

the relevant employment laws and regulations in Malaysia.
This restriction extends to existing and potential businesses
in our supply chain.

FORCED OR COMPULSORY LABOUR
(GRI 409)

GPB is against forced or compulsory labour internally as

regards

to

tenure

rights,

we

recognise

the

responsibilities, such as respect for the long-protection
done in accordance with national obligations, local laws
and regulations.

We respect the individual rights of indigenous and local
communities to give or withhold their Free, Prior and
Informed Consent (FPIC) to the development of land to
which they hold legal, communal or customary rights.

well as among our vendors and suppliers.

The Group ensures legal compliance and international best

SECURITY PRACTICES

no reported violations of rights of indigenous people living

(GRI 410-1)

practices where FPIC is implemented. In 2019, there were
in Malaysia.

The Group’s security guards come from a professional

KPKKT and Pesama are also members of the Joint

focused on premise protection and control of visitor access.

resolve any forest land ownership disputes, if any. There

security company where third party training is mainly

While they are not trained in our human rights policies,
nevertheless, their conduct is monitored by our Human
Resources and Administration Department.

GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD
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Sustainability Pillars (Continued) (GRI 102-31, 103-1)
SOCIAL: Enabling and Empowering Our Human Resources (GRI 401 - 419)

HUMAN RIGHTS ASSESSMENT
(GRI 412-1)

GPB is a strong supporter of human rights. However,
the Group does not have any specific policies or guidelines

on this issue, having never before been subject to any
human rights reviews or impact assessments. As yet, we
have never held any training on human rights policies

or procedures (GRI 412-2), or dealt with any investments
and contracts which specifically include related clauses or
requirements for screening (GRI 412-3).

However, we are committed to protect the rights of

our employees in accordance with all relevant legal

requirements and regulations as well as with the Universal

The rights of all our employees and contract workers at logging sites
(above) and sawmilling plants (below) are protected at all times.

Declaration of Human Rights.
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SOCIAL: Enabling and Empowering Our Human Resources (GRI 401 - 419)

FLOW CHART ON CONTROL OF SOCIAL ISSUES (STAKEHOLDERS)
REPORTS/COMPLAINTS/GRIEVANCE APPLICATIONS

COMPLAINTS AND GRIEVANCES
MANAGEMENT
Guidelines
to

handle

and

grievance

social-related

procedures

concerns

Report/Complaint/Grievance
Application form received

including sexual harassment are outlined
in

the

Whistleblowing

Policy

and

is

also available on the Group’s website
www.goldenpharos.com.
As

part

of

the

FSC®

certification,

our timber divisions are required to
organise
related

stakeholder

Government

Matter is handled at the
respective subsidiaries

meetings

agencies;

with

DOSH,

BOMBA, DOE, heads of communities,

FIRST MEETING
To be held between subsidiaries’
management and party concerned
14 working days after receiving the form

contractors and sub-contractors, schools

and employees as well as their families.
In 2019, several meetings were held to

CASE SETTLED

for stakeholders to give feedback on any

NO

provide a briefing of our operations and
issues.

We manage all grievances, complaints

YES

Report to GPB HQ

and conflicts in an open, transparent

and consultative manner with proper
procedures

for

handling, investigating

and resolving issues, either on social or
environmental concerns.

CASE SETTLED

CASE STUDY BY
SUBSIDIARIES’ MANAGEMENT
Recorded in File
- Records of communication
- Social Impact Assessment
(SIA)

INFORMATION GATHERING AND
INVESTIGATION PROCESS
(SIA is carried out by
independent consultants)
14 WORKING DAYS
Presentation of results to GPB
management for further action
14 WORKING DAYS
Action Taken
Either one or both negotiation
steps are undertaken
30 WORKING DAYS

CASE SETTLED

GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD

NEGOTIATION
Recommended ways
of settlement
1. Intermediation/
Discussion process
2. Responsible
approach by CSR
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Sustainability Pillars (Continued) (GRI 102-31, 103-1)
SOCIAL: Enabling and Empowering Our Human Resources (GRI 401 - 419)

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) AT GPB
Among our contributions were:

1
2
3
GPB’s CEO Dato’ Nadza Abdul (in orange jersey) cycles together
with 364 other participations in MAIDAM fun ride held in Marang.

LOCAL COMMUNITIES
(GRI 413-1, 413-2)

The Group engages in community outreach as much as
possible, believing in the tenets that we should give back

as much as we gain. The Group’s timber products are FSC®
certified. FSC® certification requires mandatory active
engagement with the local communities.

4

Sponsorship for the construction of a
wakaf school

Construction of public toilets and a surau
at Chemerong-Berembun-Lansir
Endownment to students from various
schools including Sekolah Kebangsaan
Seri Budiman, the latest beneficiary
Construction of observation deck 329
metres above sea level at Bukit Maras

Meanwhile, our CSR Policy sets out an allocation of either
0.5% of annual revenue or 10% of Profit Before Tax (PBT)

for community projects and direct contributions. These
contributions are allocated specifically for approved
organisations that are registered with the Registrar of

Societies Malaysia (ROS). The activities are to focus on

either social causes, education, sports activities or economic
development, which support the local society.

At the current time, we focus our community efforts on

encouraging education and sports activities among the

community and developing a safe environment for them.
We believe this focus will help alleviate poverty while

reducing pollution and health risks. To achieve these aims,
we have local community consultation committees which
collaborate on development programmes based on local
community needs.

GPB contributed RM50,000 for Terengganu Inc Classic, the
Terengganu Menteri Besar charity golf event.
GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD
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Sustainability Pillars (Continued) (GRI 102-31, 103-1)
SOCIAL: Enabling and Empowering Our Human Resources (GRI 401 - 419)

EXTRACT FROM CSR POLICY

NATURE AND
ENVIRONMENT

Forestry, logging, sawn-timber and plantations are the Company’s main business activities,
which are related to nature and environment.

COMMUNITY

To comply with the 10 FSC® certification principles, the Company shall contribute to
maintaining or enhancing the social and economic wellbeing of local communities affected
by operations.

SPORTS

To support and create public awareness of healthy lifestyle among its employees. The FSC®
certification also stresses that the Company shall maintain or enhance the social wellbeing
of workers.

EDUCATION

To support any educational activities and purposes in order to create awareness among
the public, which relates to nature and environment and complies with the categories
above.

Senior management personnel from the Group’s subsidiaries take part in a futsal friendly match organised by KPKKT in Kuala Terengganu.
GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD
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Sustainability Pillars (Continued) (GRI 102-31, 103-1)
SOCIAL: Enabling and Empowering Our Human Resources (GRI 401 - 419)

FLOWCHART FOR APPROVAL OF CSR CONTRIBUTION
Requester

Contribution Form

NO

Category

Reject

YES
NO

Budget

NO
To be reviewed

YES

Budget
<RM5,000

Budget
<RM25,000

Budget
<RM50,000

Budget
>RM50,000

HOS

CEO

GMC

BOD

Finance
Department
Payment/
Contribution
HOS= Head of Subsidiaries

GMC= Group Management Committee

CEO= Chief Executive Officer

BOD= Board of Directors

Our employees are encouraged to participate in programmes which have been organised by the Group or in collaboration

with other Non-Governmental Organisations (NGOs). Such programmes are a platform for meaningful engagements with the
communities where we operate and to further gain feedback on the Group.
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Sustainability Pillars (Continued) (GRI 102-31, 103-1)
SOCIAL: Enabling and Empowering Our Human Resources (GRI 401 - 419)

We carry out Social Impact Assessments (SIA) on a periodic
basis to ensure the interests of the forest-dependent
communities in the vicinity of our concession areas are
protected and catered for. The SIAs can show the way
towards uplifting the local economy and communities
through the creation of employment and business
opportunities.
KPKKT had previously commissioned independent
consultants to conduct SIAs in 2009 and 2014 with the
latest one completed in 2018 and subsequently updated
on 6 January 2020 with the objective to:

1
2
3
4

Identify the benefits and adverse effects on
the communities
Understand any negative perceptions
that might hinder local communities from
participating in project activities
Propose mitigation measures for any
negative effects
Propose stakeholder participation to
promote better understanding and
build rapport between KPKKT and the
communities

The latest SIA determined that the local population
does not depend on the forest for their livelihood due
largely to the availability of opportunities in other sectors.
Some communities, however, still regularly entered the
forest to collect forest produce for their own consumption
and these were limited to freshwater fish, fruits, vegetables,
timber and rattan.
A majority of respondents to the SIA survey felt that
KPKKT has managed the forest concession areas well
although some highlighted concerns over logging
activities on water resources. In addition, the SIA noted that
poorly-supervised forest activities could potentially impact
the non-timber forest produce (NTFP), which could in the
long run threaten the livelihood and job opportunities for
forest-dependent communities.
GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD

Among the 20 recommendations for mitigation measures
presented in the SIA were:

1
2
3
4
5
6
7

Creation of a database on pertinent social
and economic information
Image-building to portray KPKKT as
friendly and socially-acceptable company
Capacity building and education for
employees on community engagement
Implementation of an aggressive forest
rehabilitation programme, potentially with
the involvement of local residents
Better conservation measures
Enhancement of public relations via
increased CSR activities
Construction of better infrastructure for
villages in the vicinity

Likewise, Pesama last updated its SIA in April 2017
following the inaugural assessment carried out in 2012
featuring a similar scope as KPKKT’s SIA. In Pesama’s
case, the SIA focused on the four villages and an orang
asal settlement near its CFC and found that none of the
communities depended on the forest for their livelihood
although individuals continued to forage for food and
timber supplies.
Nevertheless, all five groups expressed concern over
the environment and the need to protect natural forest
resources such as drinking and non-drinking water, water
recreation, fisheries and tourism. Many of the mitigation
measures recommended by Pesama’s SIA were similar to
KPKKT’s version.
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Sustainability Pillars (Continued) (GRI 102-31, 103-1)
SOCIAL: Enabling and Empowering Our Human Resources (GRI 401 - 419)

1 SEPTEMBER 2019
GOLDEN MTB RIDE 2019 TV PROMOTION
GPB CEO Dato’ Nadza Abdul appeared on a live recording of RTM’s Selamat Pagi Malaysia at Angkasapuri, Kuala Lumpur
to promote the Group’s most prominent event, Golden MTB Ride 2019.

The annual cycling event is part of GPB’s CSR activities to promote a healthy lifestyle among its employees. In 2019, it was
the first time the event was opened to the public and it received overwhelming participation.
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Sustainability Pillars (Continued) (GRI 102-31, 103-1)
SOCIAL: Enabling and Empowering Our Human Resources (GRI 401 - 419)

17 OCTOBER 2019
CSR CONTRIBUTION FOR PUBLIC FACILITIES
Kumpulan Pengurusan Kayu-kayan Trengganu Sdn
Bhd, a subsidiary of GPB, contributed RM5,000 to
Malim Gunung Association to build public facilities
at Gunung Chemerong-Berembun-Lansir (CBL) at a

ceremony which was held at Tasik Puteri, Bukit Besi,
Dungun.

This was part of the company’s efforts to support

the pristine conditions of the mountain trail which
is located in Hulu Dungun, Terengganu. The 370 m

The trail and campsites are very well maintained and

waterfalls, the 1,038 m Gunung Berembun and the

only around 60 people a day to minimise and prevent any

Chemerong Waterfall, one of Malaysia’s highest
801 m Lansir Waterfall form the CBL track.

almost trash-free, and the trekking permits are limited to
negative environmental impact in the area.

1 NOVEMBER 2019
VISIT AT HOSPITAL SULTANAH NUR ZAHIRAH
GPB employees turned up at the Hospital Sultanah Nur Zahirah to visit breast cancer patients and survivors to support Pink
October, Breast Cancer Awareness Month.
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Sustainability Pillars (Continued) (GRI 102-31, 103-1)
SOCIAL: Enabling and Empowering Our Human Resources (GRI 401 - 419)

SUPPLIER SOCIAL ASSESSMENT
(GRI 414)

As of FY2019, GPB has yet to screen suppliers using

any social criteria. However, this issue is under

consideration for implementation in the years ahead.
PUBLIC POLICY
(GRI 415-1)

GPB is a Terengganu State GLC with no affiliations
with or make any contributions to any political

parties. While our Board members and senior
management personnel may participate in various
industry events and talks as well as consult with
industry authorities, they do not engage in any
public policy development or lobbying.
CUSTOMER HEALTH AND SAFETY
(GRI 416-1, 416-2)

The Group prioritises the health and safety of

customers by ensuring all our products conform

to the respective local and international standards.
As such, we are committed to quality and industry
best practices as set out by the requirements of
various certifications.

As of FY2019, we have 11 certifications from various

auditing and standards bodies including SIRIM

Berhad (formerly known as Standard and Industrial
Research Institute of Malaysia) for glass products
produced by subsidiary company GP Glass.

During the year in review, there was no record of

any incidents of non-compliance to health and

safety requirements resulting in fines and penalties
nor were there any incidents of non-compliance
resulting in warnings.

MARKETING AND LABELLING
(GRI 417-1, 417-2, 417-3)

Product labelling is an important part of consumer assurance as

it provides authentication on various concerns such as origin,
quality standards, components, materials and others. Our glass

products feature information such as glass type, SIRIM logo

and other pertinent data. During the year in review, we did not

record any incidents of non-compliance with regulations or in the
case of marketing communication.
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Sustainability Pillars (Continued) (GRI 102-31, 103-1)
SOCIAL: Enabling and Empowering Our Human Resources (GRI 401 - 419)

CUSTOMER PRIVACY

SOCIOECONOMIC COMPLIANCE

At all times, we respect customer privacy and did not
register any complaints on this issue during the year in
review. We are in full compliance with the Personal Data
Protection Act 2010 (PDPA).

GPB did not incur any fines or sanctions for non-compliance
of laws and regulations in the socioeconomic area.

CUSTOMER FEEDBACK AND SATISFACTION

Customers were also asked to share their general
opinions of GP Glass and its products. While the
majority did not comment, the matters most commonly
highlighted were product pricing, service support and
late feedback to customers. These are areas we will
prioritise in 2020 and beyond.

(GRI 418-1)

(GRI 419-1)

GPB engages with our customers on a regular basis in
order to build relations and also provide an avenue for
feedback on our quality of products and reliability of
service. Through our interactions with customers including
surveys, we are better placed to gauge and understand
their expectations.
During the year in review, our subsidiary company
GP Glass conducted a customer survey in December,
which underscored the need for our employees to
better understand proper procedures in responding
to customers as well as to improve the quality of our
products. The results of the survey, which rated customer
perception of various aspects of our service from a scale of
0 – 5 with 5 being the highest score, is shown below:
CUSTOMER FEEDBACK SURVEY RESULTS
2019
2018

URGENT DELIVERY SUPPORT

4.2
4.0

2019
2018

RESPONSIVENESS TO ENQUIRY

4.1
4.1

2019
2018

MANAGEMENT COMMITMENT ON TASKS

4.2
3.9

2019
2018

QUALITY OF PRODUCTS

4.1
4.1

2019
2018

COMPLETION OF DELIVERY

4.0
3.9

2019
2018

COST COMPETITIVENESS

4.0
3.7

Rating based on scale of 0 – 5, with 5 being highest

GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD

2019
2018

PRICE IS EXPENSIVE

3
0

2019
2018

GOOD SUPPORT

3
5

2019
2018

QUALITY NEEDS IMPROVEMENT

2
4

2019
2018

LATE FEEDBACK TO CUSTOMER

3
0

2019
2018

DELIVERY NEEDS IMPROVEMENT

2
0

2019
2018

NO COMMENT

*Number of responses

32
39
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Sustainability Pillars (Continued) (GRI 102-31, 103-1)
SOCIAL: Enabling and Empowering Our Human Resources (GRI 401 - 419)

OUR CSR CONTRIBUTION

RM256,142

RM500

Pembinaan Surau SK Seri Iman,
Cukai, Kemaman

RM60,900

RM1,000

Kayuhan MAIDAM Sumbangan
Wakaf Tunai

RM500

RM50,000

Golf Amal Menteri Besar Terengganu

RM2,000

Bantuan Persekolah Anak-Anak
kakitangan Kumpulan GPB

Sumbangan Sukan Kepada Pasukan
Handball Titans

RM9,492

Pemberian Kurma Sempena Ramadan
1440 Hijrah

RM500

Sumbangan Pembesaran Surau
Kg Banggol Peradong

Majlis Berbuka Puasa Kumpulan GPB

RM10,000

RM500

Majlis Jalinan Mesra Kumpulan GPB
Bersama CEO

Hari Raya Qurban Kepada Penduduk
Kg. Mengabang Telipot

RM15,000

Program Pendakian ChemerongBerembun-Lansir

RM16,000
Golden MTB Ride

RM5,000

Ekspo Perkayuan Terengganu Maju

PERKAYA

RM500

Sumbangan Persatuan Orang Pekak
Terengganu

Persatuan Golf Terengganu

RM43,150

RM25,100

RM15,000

Majlis Hari Raya Perdana Negeri
Terengganu

RM500

Program Terapi Berkuda Anak-Anak OKU

RM500

Ceramah Kesihatan
GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD
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GOING BEYOND COMPLIANCE
The novel COVID-19 disease caused a pandemic and
Malaysians were thrown into chaos as the wave of
infections swept across the nation. The nation’s healthcare
system was strained in attempts to contain the spread of
the virus. In the first half of 2020, authorities across the
globe implemented lockdown measures, which brought
economic and social activities to a grinding halt.
However, the upside to this was improved levels of air and
water quality, less waste, less noise as well as greater people
awareness to maintain better hygiene levels. Another
positive effect was the reduced impact on biodiversity and
wildlife with the restriction to activities during the various
phases of the Movement Control Order (MCO).
So how does this extraordinarily fluid situation affect our
planning and forecasting to focus on our areas of expertise?
What has been the takeaway where we are concerned?
While there exists myriad risks associated with a looming
global recession, we re-examined our priorities to ensure
we remain resilient even in the most challenging situation.
Stakeholders’ awareness and expectations are increasing
with concerns on how companies act. In the industries we
operate, we face a proliferation of both regulatory and
voluntary measures, which are continuously being upgraded
with regards to issues of environmental management.

These include even more stringent guidelines from the
DOE and State forestry authorities at the local level and the
FSC® and ISO certifications at the international level.
While the preparation of our Sustainability Reporting may
have been delayed, there have been several noteworthy
initiatives undertaken within the Group throughout 2019
leading into 2020.
There now exists a deeper understanding of how
sustainability practices in all areas of our business can lead
to cost savings, competitive differentiation and improved
risk management to grow our brand and reputation in the
markets we serve.
Striving Towards Sustainability, the theme for this year,
clearly indicates our intention to look beyond compliance
to address sustainability across our value chain and
integrate best practices into our supply chain.
From this point on, we can only improve ourselves in
fulfilling and reporting more of the GRI Standards-Core
Options indicators, taking us deeper into our journey
towards holistic sustainability. In the long run, we expect
our sustainability drive to be a platform from which we
will become a resourceful company returning better results
and greater returns to all our stakeholders.

ENHANCE • UNLEASH • PURSUE • STRENGTHEN

The Lansir waterfall is an area
of natural beauty located in
the Group’s forest concession
area. It has been designated
as a HCVF as part of our
commitment to preserve the
natural ecosystem.
GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD
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Policies
DIVIDEND POLICY
The Board of Directors (Board) of Golden Pharos
Berhad (GPB) is pleased to announce a revised
dividend policy as follows:
1.

This dividend policy was approved in
financial year 2018.

2.

GPB has adopted a dividend policy with a
dividend payout ratio of the higher of:
•

40% of the Group’s Profit After Tax (PAT);
OR

•

30%
of
the
Group’s
Earnings
Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation &
Amortization (EBITDA)

3.

The above dividend payout ratio is subject
to the cashflow and the financial position of
GPB.

4.

Pursuant to Section 131 of the Companies
Act 2016, GPB may only make a distribution
of dividend to the shareholders out of profit
of GPB available if GPB is solvent.

5.

Pursuant to Section 112 of the Companies
Act 2016, before making a distribution of
dividend, GPB must satisfy a solvency test
whereby:
•

•

GPB is able to pay its debts as they
become due during the period of 12
months immediately following the date
of dividend distribution; AND
The value of assets of GPB is greater
than the value of its liabilities.

CODE OF CONDUCT AND
WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY
The Group continues to adopt the Code of Conduct, which includes
the Whistleblowing Policy to ensure that all employees conduct
themselves with integrity and ethically.
This Code of Conduct (the Code) contains policies and guidelines
relating to the standards and ethics that all employees are expected to
observe and obey in the course of their employment in the Company.
The Code is intended to maintain discipline and order in the workplace.
It also sets out the circumstances in which such employees would be
deemed to have breached the Code and the actions that can be taken
against them if they do so.
The Whistleblowing Policy applies to the Company and all its
subsidiary companies (if any). Employees (including permanent,
contract, part time or casual employees), Directors, Shareholders,
Consultants, Contractors, outside agencies or any parties with a
business relationship with the Company or its subsidiaries (if any) are
encouraged to disclose any wrongdoings that may adversely impact
the Company.
All stakeholders are encouraged to make a report directly either
verbally or in writing including emails, telephone conversations and
letters which are to be addressed to one of the following personnel :
a) Chief Executive Officer;
b) Executive Director; or
c) Human Resources Manager;
GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD
66-2 Taman Seri Intan
Jalan Sultan Omar
20300 Kuala Terengganu
Phone : +609 630 1330
Fax
: +609 631 0617
Email : info@gpb.com.my
The Code of Conduct and Whistleblowing Policy are available on the
Company’s website at www.goldenpharos.com
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Policies (Continued)
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
(“CSR”) POLICY
GPB’s CSR Policy ensures that we rigorously adhere to the
highest standards in ethical behaviour, environmental
sustainability, active engagement with the communities
where we operate and more.
The CSR Programmes contribute to the harmonious and
sustainable development of society and the environment
with the intention of building and maintaining sound
relationships with the Group’s stakeholders.
In line with Group’s core businesses, the following are the
categories and justification for organising CSR Programmes:
CATEGORIES

JUSTIFICATION

Nature and
Environment

Forestry, logging, sawn-timber and
plantations are the Company’s main
business activities, which are related to
nature and environment.

Community

To comply with the 10 Forest Stewardship
Council (FSC) certification principles, the
Company shall contribute to maintaining
or enhancing the social and economic
wellbeing of local communities affected
by management activities.

Sports

To support and create public awareness
of healthy lifestyle among its employees.
The FSC certification also stresses that
the Company shall maintain or enhance
the social wellbeing of workers.

Education

To support any educational activities
purposes in order to create awareness
among public about nature and
environment, that comply with the
categories above.

CSR activities and contributions must be based on the
approved annual CSR budget, where the amount budgeted
should be lower than 0.5 % of annual revenue or 10 %
of Profit Before Tax (PBT). Contributions are allocated for
approved organisations, where GPB and subsidiaries are
operating, which support social causes, education, sports
activities and economic developments.
Approved organisations are organisations that are registered
with The Registrar of Societies Malaysia (ROS) and actively
involved in the local society.

KUMPULAN PENGURUSAN KAYU-KAYAN TRENGGANU
SDN. BHD.

DASAR PERLINDUNGAN HUTAN KPKKT
(FOREST PROTECTION POLICY)
Kumpulan Pengurusan Kayu-Kayan Trengganu Sdn. Bhd.
(KPKKT) diberi tanggungjawab oleh Kerajaan Negeri
Terengganu untuk mengurus hutan jangka panjang di
Dungun Timber Complex (DTC) secara lestari merangkumi
keluasan 106,697 ha.
KPKKT bertanggungjawab untuk mengawal dan memelihara
dari sebarang aktiviti pencerobohan tanah dan hutan atau
aktiviti yang tidak sah bagi memastikan kelestarian hutan
terus terpelihara.
KPKKT komited mengamalkan kaedah tebangan secara
memilih (SMS) serta menjalankan aktiviti pengusahahasilan
hutan secara ril sebagaimana peraturan pensijilan MC&I dan
FSC disamping mematuhi ISO yang ditetapkan oleh Jabatan
Perhutanan Semenanjung Malaysia (MS ISO 9001/2008).
KPKKT akan melaksanakan pemantauan dan kawalan secara
tetap ke atas kawasan operasi supaya tidak dicerobohi dan
setiap aktiviti dijalankan mengikut kehendak peraturan
perhutanan dan alam sekitar.
Dari semasa ke semasa, KPKKT akan berhubung dan
bekerjasama dengan Pejabat Hutan Daerah serta agensiagensi berkaitan dalam usaha untuk sama-sama menjaga
kawasan hutan dan menyalurkan maklumat sekiranya
kawasan hutan dicerobohi.
KPKKT akan memberi latihan kepada kontraktor dan
kakitangan mengenai peraturan dan undang-undang
perhutanan.
Adalah menjadi harapan kami supaya syarikat ini terus
menjadi badan yang terunggul di Malaysia serta menjaga
nama baik syarikat dalam menguruskan hutan secara
berkekalan dari sebarang pencerobohan dan ancaman dari
pihak yang tidak bertanggungjawab.
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Policies (Continued)

KUMPULAN PENGURUSAN KAYU-KAYAN TRENGGANU
SDN. BHD.

PESAKA TRENGGANU BERHAD

POLISI KESIHATAN DAN
KESELAMATAN PEKERJA
(OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH
AND SAFETY POLICY)

POLISI KESIHATAN DAN
KESELAMATAN PEKERJA
(OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH
AND SAFETY POLICY)

Adalah dengan ini syarikat sentiasa memberikan
komitmen sepenuhnya terhadap keselamatan, kesihatan
dan kesejahteraan untuk semua kakitangan serta semua
individu yang terlibat dengan aktiviti syarikat. Syarikat juga
BERTANGGUNGJAWAB menjaga kebajikan terhadap
keselamatan dan kesihatan kakitangannya dan menyediakan
tempat kerja yang selamat selesa dan sesuai serta tidak
terdedah kepada sebarang risiko terhadap keselamatan dan
kesihatan.

Dengan objektif bagi mewujudkan suasana kerja yang aman,
selesa, selamat dan berkesan, maka pihak pengurusan
menggariskan perkara berikut:

Ini selaras dengan kehendak peruntukan-peruntukan yang
terdapat di dalam AKTA KESELAMATAN DAN KESIHATAN
DALAM PEKERJAAN (AKTA 514).
Dalam merealisasikan hasrat di atas, syarikat akan sentiasa
memberi sokongan kepada program-program dan latihan
yang berkaitan dengan keselamatan dan kesihatan di tempat
kerja. Syarikat juga akan menyemak dan mengemaskini
polisi ini dari semasa ke semasa. SEMUA PEKERJA DAN
PENGURUSAN sedia memberi kerjasama bagi memastikan
semua program yang dirancang berjalan dengan lancar.
Perlu ditekan, semua individu mesti mempunyai kesedaran
serta bertanggungjawab dalam menjalankan aktiviti syarikat
dengan kaedah dan cara kerja yang selamat.
“UTAMAKAN KESELAMATAN DUNIA DAN AKHIRAT”

i.

Menyediakan dan menyelenggara jentera atau mesin
supaya sentiasa dalam keadaan sempurna dan selamat.

ii.

Mewujudkan sistem kerja atau peraturan kerja di mana
ciri-ciri keselamatan diberi keutamaan.

iii.

Memberikan maklumat dan panduan secukupnya
kepada kakitangan supaya dapat menjalankan
kerja secara betul dan bagi menghadapi masalah
yang timbul.

iv.

Mengadakan sistem kawalan dan pemeriksaan dari
masa ke semasa bagi menjamin keselamatan di
samping menyiasat semua laporan kemalangan.

v.

Menyediakan kemudahan dan peralatan yang sesuai
untuk keselamatan dan kebajikan pekerja.

vi.

Mematuhi Akta Keselamatan dan Kesihatan Pekerjaaan
1994 serta lain-lain peraturan berkaitan.

vii. Menyemak, meminda serta mengemaskini polisi ini dari
masa ke semasa menurut kesesuaian.
Bagi tujuan tersebut di atas, pihak pengurusan syarikat akan
sentiasa memberi sokongan serta kerjasama sepenuhnya
kepada Jawatankuasa Keselamatan dan Kesihatan Pekerja.
“KERJA BERHEMAT JIWA SELAMAT”
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PESAMA TIMBER CORPORATION SDN. BHD.

GOLDEN PHAROS GLASS SDN. BHD.

POLISI KESIHATAN DAN
KESELAMATAN PEKERJA
(OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH
AND SAFETY POLICY)

POLISI KESIHATAN DAN
KESELAMATAN PEKERJA
(OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH
AND SAFETY POLICY)

Selaras dengan moto ‘PEKERJA AKTIF PESAMA PRODUKTIF,
PEKERJA BERDEDIKASI PENGELUARAN BERKUALITI’,
syarikat memberikan komitmen sepenuhnya terhadap
keselamatan, kesihatan dan kesejahteraan untuk semua
kakitangan serta semua individu yang terlibat dengan
aktiviti syarikat. Syarikat juga BERTANGGUNGJAWAB
menjaga kebajikan terhadap keselamatan dan kesihatan
kakitangannya dan menyediakan tempat kerja yang selamat,
selesa dan sesuai serta tidak terdedah kepada sebarang
risiko terhadap keselamatan dan kesihatan.

Golden Pharos Glass Sdn. Bhd. (GP Glass) is committed
to providing a safe and healthy working environment in
accordance with the Occupational Safety and HealthAct and any
applicable law.

Ini selaras dengan kehendak peruntukan-peruntukan yang
terdapat di dalam AKTA KESELAMATAN DAN KESIHATAN
DALAM PEKERJAAN (AKTA 514).
Dalam merealisasikan hasrat di atas, syarikat akan sentiasa
memberi sokongan kepada program-program dan latihan
yang berkaitan dengan keselamatan dan kesihatan di
tempat kerja. SEMUA PEKERJA DAN PENGURUSAN sedia
memberi kerjasama bagi memastikan semua program yang
dirancang berjalan dengan lancar.
Perlu ditekankan, semua individu mesti mempunyai
kesedaran serta bertanggungjawab dalam menjalankan
aktiviti syarikat dengan kaedah dan cara kerja yang selamat.
“UTAMAKAN KESELAMATAN DUNIA DAN AKHIRAT”

GP Glass will ensure that the safety and health of workers
is assured because employees are the main assets of
the company.
In order to ensure that the policy objective are achieved,
GP Glass will strive to: •
Provide and maintain a safe workplace that complies
with the local and international laws and safety
standards.
•
Provide training and safety procedures as a guideline to
enable employees to work safely and efficiently.
•
Provide safety equipment according to the workplace
requirements and provide briefing of the use of safety
equipment.
The duties and responsibilities of employees are to fully
cooperate on the implementation of security policies
through: •
Working safely and efficiently.
•
Use safety equipment according to workplace
requirements.
•
Report accidents that occur, near accidents and
hazardous sites that may cause injury as soon as
possible.
•
Comply with company rules and procedures to ensure
a safe workplace.
Safety and health policy will be reviewed and updates as
necessary.
“TOGETHER WE PRACTICE SAFETY AND HEALTH”
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Corporate Governance
Overview Statement
The Board of Directors of Golden Pharos Berhad (“GPB” or “the Company”) presents this statement to provide shareholders
and investors with an overview of the corporate governance (“CG”) practices of the Company under the leadership of the
Board during financial year 2019. This overview takes guidance from the key CG principles as set out in the Malaysian Code
on Corporate Governance (“MCCG”).
This statement is prepared in compliance with Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”) Main Market Listing
Requirements (“MMLR”) and it is to be read together with the CG Report 2019 of the Company (CG Report) which is available
on GPB’s website http://www.goldenpharos.com. The CG Report provides the details on how the Company has applied each
Practice as set out in the MCCG during financial year 2019.
EMBRACING THE CG CULTURE
In building a sustainable business and discharging its regulatory role, the Board is mindful of its accountability to shareholders
and various stakeholders of GPB. Towards this, the Board is committed to ensuring that it provides effective leadership and
promotes uncompromising ethical standards in the organisation. One of the ways in which the Board achieves this is by
requiring adherence to good governance principles and practices throughout the Company.
The Board is pleased to present this statement and explain how GPB has applied the three (3) principles which are set out in
the MCCG.
a)
b)
c)

Board Leadership & Effectiveness
Effective Audit & Risk Management
Integrity in Corporate Reporting & Meaningful Relationship with Stakeholders

GPB’s Corporate Governance Framework is premised upon the following statutory provisions, best practices, policies
and guidelines:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

Companies Act 2016
(“CA 2016”)

GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD

MMLR of
Bursa Securities

MCCG 2017

Corporate Governance
Guide 3rd Edition
issued by
Bursa Malaysia Berhad

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

STRIVING TOWARDS SUSTAINABILITY

143

Corporate Governance Overview Statement (Continued)

PRINCIPLE
A:
EFFECTIVENESS

BOARD

LEADERSHIP

AND

Role of the Board
The Board’s pivotal role is to lead and establish GPB Group’s
vision, strategic direction, key policies and framework,
including the management of the succession planning
process of the Group and the appointment of key senior
management.
The roles and responsibilities of the Chairman, Board, CEO
and Company Secretary is clearly defined in a Board Charter.
In view thereof, the Board’s roles and responsibilities include
but are not limited to the following:
•

•

Reviewing and approving the strategic business plans
of the Group developed by Management in alignment
with the approved risk appetite and taking into
account the sustainability of the Group’s businesses.
This encompasses the annual budget, medium term
aspirations, new investments/divestments as well as
mergers and acquisitions.
Overseeing the conduct of the business to ascertain
its proper management including setting clear
objectives and policies within which senior executives
are to operate.

•

Identifying and approving policies pertaining to
the management of all risk categories including
but not limited to credit, financial, market, liquidity,
operational, legal and reputational risks.

•

Reviewing the adequacy and the integrity of internal
controls and management information systems,
including systems for compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations, directives and guidelines.

•

Reviewing the leadership and succession planning
of the Group with a view to ensuring the Group’s
continued ability to sustain and compete effectively in
the market.

•

Serving as the ultimate approving authority for all
significant financial expenditure.

•

Promoting sound corporate culture and overseeing
the Group’s adherence to high standards of conduct,
ethics and corporate professional behaviour.

Roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
remain separate and distinct. The Chairman of the Board
is Non-Independent and Non-Executive. The Chairman
plays an important leadership role within the Group and is
responsible for:
•

Setting the agenda for meetings of the Board that
focus on strategic direction and performance.

•

Maintaining on-going dialogue and relationship of
trust with and between the Directors and management.

•

Ensuring clear and relevant information is provided to
Directors in a timely manner.

•

Ensuring sufficient time is allowed for the discussion
of complex or critical issues.

The Board delegates the authority and responsibility for
managing the everyday affairs of the Group to the Chief
Executive Officer, and through him and subject to his
oversight, to other Senior Management. The Board monitors
the performance of the Chief Executive Officer on behalf of
the shareholders.
Role of the Company Secretary
The Company Secretary reports directly to the Board and is
the source of guidance and advice to the Directors on areas
of corporate governance, relevant legislation, regulations
and policies, besides ensuring compliance with the MMLR
of Bursa Securities and other regulatory requirements.
The Company Secretary attends Board and Board
Committee meetings and is responsible for the accuracy
and adequacy of records of the proceedings of Board and
Board Committee meetings and resolutions.
The Company Secretary also serves closed period notices
to Directors and Senior Management for trading in the
Company’s shares and briefs the Board on the content
and timing of sensitive or material announcements to
Bursa Securities.
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Board Composition
The Board is chaired by a Non-Independent Non-Executive Director and currently comprises seven (7) Directors, four (4) of
whom are Non-Independent Non-Executive Directors (“NINED”) and three (3) Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INED”).
The Board continues to achieve a balance of skills, knowledge, experience and perspective among its Directors. The profiles of
the Directors are set out on pages 36 to 39 of this Annual Report.
The Directors collectively provide the necessary mix of skills, knowledge and experience in key areas. These include
accountancy, finance, legal, risk management, governance, economics, international relations and forestry.
Board Diversity
The Board acknowledges the importance of diversity, including gender, ethnicity, age and business experience to the effective
functioning of the Board.
While it is important to promote such diversity, the normal selection criteria of a Director, based on an effective blend of
competencies, skills, extensive experience and knowledge in areas identified by the Board, should remain a priority so as not
to compromise on effectiveness in carrying out the Board’s functions and duties. Hence, the Board is committed to ensure
that its composition not only reflects the diversity as recommended by MCCG, as best as it can, but also has the right mix of
skills and balance to contribute to the achievement of the Group’s goals.
The Board currently has no female Director but the Board seeks to appoint in the future a female Director who meets the
pre-determined skill sets and competencies.
As at 31 December 2019, the Board Diversity for GPB is set out in the table below.

COMPOSITION

GENDER

Non-Independent
Non-Executive Directors

4

Female

NIL

Independent
Non-Executive Directors

3

Male

7

GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

STRIVING TOWARDS SUSTAINABILITY

145

Corporate Governance Overview Statement (Continued)

TENURE

More than 2 years
and up to 3 years

AGE

1

More than 1 year
and up to 2 years

6

Up to 1 year

NIL

66 – 70 years

1

61 – 65 years

1

56 – 60 years

2

51 – 55 years

1

46 – 50 years

1

40 – 45 years

1

14%
57%

Corporate Governance

57%

Breadth of Business Experience
Forestry Field
Government Experience

EXPERIENCE
&
SKILLS

14%

Legal/Regulatory
Human Capital

14%
86%
29%
14%

Accounting/Financial Management
Corporate CEO
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Forestry
Field

Government
Experience

Corporate
Governance

Breadth of
Business
Experience

YBM Dato’ Haji
Tengku Hassan
bin Tengku
Omar

3

3

3

Dato’ Bentara
Dalam Dato’
Haji A. Rahman
bin Yahya

3

3

3

Dr Wan
Ahmad
Rudirman bin
Wan Razak

3

3

Associate
Professor Dr
Mohd Zaki bin
Hamzah
Muhammad
Ramizu bin
Mustaffa

Legal/
Regulatory

Human
Capital

Accounting/
Financial
Management

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

Mohd
Badaruddin
bin Ismail

3

3

Haji Saiffuddin
bin Othman

3

Total
b.

3

57%

86%

3
14%

29%

14%

14%

57%

14%

When assessing a person for nomination to the Board, the qualifications and skills to be considered by the NRC shall
include, but are not limited to:
•
•
•
•
•

c.

Corporate
CEO

Whether or not the person qualifies as a Director who is ‘independent’ under applicable laws and regulations,
including applicable provisions of the MMLR of Bursa Securities, and whether the person is qualified under
applicable laws and regulations to serve as a Director of the Company.
Whether or not the person meets the ‘fit and proper’ criteria under applicable laws and regulations.

Whether or not the person is willing to serve as a Director and to commit the time necessary to perform the duties
as a Director.
The contribution that the person can make to the Board and to the overall desired Board composition, taking into
account the person’s business experience, education and such other factors as the Board may consider relevant.
The character and integrity of the person.

The NRC may identify Director candidate(s) using executive search firms and/ or via recommendation from other Directors.
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Procedures

Policies

a.

The NRC will perform a preliminary assessment of
potential candidates based on referrals from executive
search firms or other Directors.

a.

Retirement of Directors by rotation will follow the
requirements stipulated in the constitution of the
Company.

b.

NRC will assess the suitability in terms of technical
expertise, experience and the behavioural and
cultural fit with the Board in addition to ascertaining
the candidates’ interest, availability and terms of
appointment. This will be tabled at the NRC for further
discussion and deliberation on whether candidates
are suitable to be recommended to the Board for
appointment.

b.

Tenure of Directorship will follow the requirements
stipulated in the MCCG 2017.

Procedures
a.

The NRC will assess the performance and contribution
of each Director to the Board and Board Committees
based on the results of the annual Board Assessments
and individual Directors’ self and peer assessment.

b.

Director Induction

The NRC will consider the current Directors in the same
manner as other candidates, taking into consideration
the Director’s performance during his term, including
consideration of the following factors:

a.

Newly-appointed Board members would attend the
Company’s Induction Programme which includes a
Mandatory Accreditation Programme as required by
MMLR.

•

Compliance
with
governing
legislation,
regulations or guidelines, particularly conflict of
interest, confidentiality, fit and proper criteria,
and duty of care provisions.

b.

The new Board members are fully briefed on the terms
of their appointment, duties and responsibilities, as
well as on the nature, operations and current issues of
the Company.

•

Whether or not an independent director still
qualifies as ‘independent’ under applicable laws
and regulations, including applicable provisions
of the MMLR of Bursa Securities.

c.

The NRC will review the induction process on a
periodic basis to ensure that all pertinent information
are provided to Directors, and that adequate time has
been given for Directors to familiarise themselves with
the Company, its Board and operations.

c.

The Board will deliberate on the recommended
candidate(s) and, if deemed appropriate, appoint the
candidate.

c.

Based on the assessment results, the NRC will
recommend the Directors seeking re-election/reappointment to the Board, who will then recommend
to the shareholders for approval at the AGM.

Re-election and re-appointment of Directors

Annual Board Effectiveness Evaluation (“BEE”) for
FY2019

A candidate who is appointed as Director of the Company
must seek re-election by shareholders at the next Annual
General Meeting (“AGM”). The Constitution of the Company
further provides for the rotation of Directors whereby one
third or more of the Directors are to retire at every AGM of
the Company and that all Directors must retire at least once
in three (3) years and shall be eligible for re-election.

Our Board undergoes an annual assessment to review
its performance. Apart from being an assessment of
past performance, the BEE is used as a tool to identify
the strengths and weaknesses of our Board, Board
Committees and individual Directors to enable them to
raise the bar on Board performance, which is a key trait of a
progressive Board.

Directors who are due for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM and who have given their written consent to be
re-appointed, are set out in the Notice of the AGM. Directors
who are due for re-election/re-appointment are also subject
to the following policies and procedures:
GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD

148

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

STRIVING TOWARDS SUSTAINABILITY

Corporate Governance Overview Statement (Continued)

Similar to the previous year, the BEE for FY2019 was conducted by our NRC and supported by our Company Secretary.
BEE FY2019 was a 360° evaluation process with feedback from our individual Directors. The results did not indicate
any significant weaknesses and found that our Board, Board Committees and each individual Director have continued
to perform their duties satisfactorily and that the level of independence shown by INEDs is high. Based on the findings,
our Board has recommended the re-election of several Directors who will be retiring at the forthcoming 2020 AGM
and will consider increasing the level of independent representation on our Board to bring it in line with
the MCCG’s recommendation. In respect of Board responsibilities, enhancing board oversight over the execution of
strategies and transformation plans is a key focus in FY2020.
The scope of the BEE for FY2019 covered the following areas:

BOARD
COMMITTEE

INDIVIDUAL DIRECTOR

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Industry
Sales and marketing
Strategy and
entrepreneurship
Legal and regulatory
requirements
Corporate governance, risk
management
Audit, accounting, financial
reporting and taxation
Human capital
Information technology

•
•
•

Board committee
effectiveness
Appointment based on
appropriate criteria
Sufficient, recent and
relevant expertise in
fulfilling their duties

BOARD AS
A WHOLE

•
•
•
•
•
•

Board composition
Board role and functioning
Information management
Work functionally as a team
Positive communication
Mix skills

Meetings and Time Commitment
The calendar of meetings of the Board and Board Committees is drawn up and distributed to the Board in the quarter preceding
the beginning of the new calendar year. This is to enable the members of the Board to meet the time commitment for the
meetings.
In addition to the above, all Directors of the Company have complied with the MMLR of Bursa Securities of not holding
more than five (5) directorships in listed issuers at any given time. This is to ensure the Directors do not have competing time
commitments that may impair their ability to discharge their responsibilities effectively.
The Board may from time to time and if deemed appropriate, consider and approve and/ or recommend routine and
administrative matters via circular resolution in writing.
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Board Meeting attendance in FY2019:
No. of Board Meetings
Held During Tenure
in Office

Attendance

%

YBM Dato’ Haji Tengku Hassan bin Tengku Omar (Chairman)

8

7

88

Dato’ Bentara Dalam Dato’ Haji A. Rahman bin Yahya

8

8

100

Dr Wan Ahmad Rudirman bin Wan Razak

8

7

88

Associate Professor Dr Mohd Zaki bin Hamzah

8

8

100

Muhammad Ramizu bin Mustaffa

8

8

100

Mohd Badaruddin bin Ismail

8

7

88

Haji Saiffuddin bin Othman

8

6

75

Name of Directors

Board Committees
The Board delegates certain responsibilities to the Board Committees. The Committees that assist the Board are as follows:

Audit Committee

GPB
Board

Nomination and Remuneration
Committee

Long Term Incentive Plan
Committee
Strategy and Investment
Committee

The criteria for membership are based on a Director’s skills and experience as well as their ability to add value to the
Board Committee.
The Chief Executive Officer and other Senior Management are invited to attend relevant Board Committee meetings.
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a.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC)
The committee comprises exclusively of the following Non-Executive Directors, a majority of whom are independent:
Name

Designation

Directorship

Associate Professor Dr Mohd Zaki bin Hamzah

Chairman

Independent

Dr Wan Ahmad Rudirman bin Wan Razak

Member

Non-Independent

Mohd Badaruddin bin Ismail

Member

Independent

Haji Saiffuddin bin Othman

Member

Independent

The Committee is responsible for:
•

Regularly reviewing the overall composition of the Board, in terms of the appropriate size, skills, experience, qualification
and diversity in terms of gender, ethnicity and age as well as the balance between Executive Directors, Non-Executive
Directors and Independent Directors.

•

Recommending the appointment of Directors to the Board and Committees of the Board as well as annually reviewing
the mix of skills, experience and competencies that Non-Executive and Executive Directors should bring to the Board.

•

Assessing the performance and effectiveness of individuals and collective members of the Board and Board Committees
of the Company and its subsidiaries.

•

Recommending to the Board a formal and transparent procedure for developing the remuneration policy for Directors,
key management personnel, the Head of Internal Audit and staff for the approval of the Board. The Committee shall
ensure that compensation is competitive and consistent with the Group’s culture, objectives and strategy and reflects
the responsibility and commitment which goes with Board membership and key management personnel.

The Committee met four (4) times during FY2019:
No. of NRC Meetings
Held During Tenure
in Office

Attendance

%

Associate Professor Dr Mohd Zaki bin Hamzah (Chairman)

4

4

100

Dr Wan Ahmad Rudirman bin Wan Razak

4

3

75

Mohd Badaruddin bin Ismail

4

4

100

Haji Saiffuddin bin Othman

4

4

100

Name of Directors
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b.

Long Term Incentive Plan Committee (LTIP Committee)
The Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) was approved by the shareholders of GPB at an Extraordinary General Meeting
held on 26 June 2018 and on 8 August 2018, the board approved the formation of the LTIP Committee.
The primary function of the LTIP Committee is to completely administer the implementation of the Employee Share
Option Scheme (“ESOS”) and the Executive Share Grant Scheme (“ESGS”) in accordance with the approved By-Laws.
The LTIP Committee has the full authority to make final and binding decisions on matters which fall within the purpose
and responsibilities of the LTIP Committee in accordance with the By-Laws. The CEO is a member of LTIP Committee and
he shall not participate in the deliberation or discussion of his own allocation.
The appointments to the LTIP Committee were as follows:
Name

Designation

Directorship

Muhammad Ramizu bin Mustaffa

Chairman

Non-Independent

Dato’ Bentara Dalam Dato’ Haji A. Rahman bin Yahya

Member

Non-Independent

Associate Professor Dr Mohd Zaki bin Hamzah

Member

Independent

Dato’ Ahmad Nadzarudin bin Abdul Razak

Member

-

The Committee met three (3) times during FY2019:
Held During Tenure
in Office

Attendance

%

Muhammad Ramizu bin Mustaffa (Chairman)

3

3

100

Dato’ Bentara Dalam Dato’ Haji A. Rahman bin Yahya

3

2

67

Associate Professor Dr Mohd Zaki bin Hamzah

3

3

100

Name of Directors

c.

Audit Committee (AC)
The AC currently comprises four (4) members, of whom three (3) are Independent Directors and one (1) is a
Non-Independent Director. The AC is chaired by Mohd Badaruddin bin Ismail, the Independent Director. None of
the current members of the AC is a former key audit partner involved in auditing the Group. The AC has policies and
procedures to review, assess and monitor the performances, suitability and independence of the external auditors.
Prior to the commencement of the annual audit, the AC will seek confirmation from the external auditors as to
their independence. This confirmation would be re-affirmed by the external auditors to the AC upon their completion of
annual audit.
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The appointments to the AC were as follows:
Name

Designation

Directorship

Mohd Badaruddin bin Ismail

Chairman

Independent

Associate Professor Dr Mohd Zaki bin Hamzah

Member

Independent

Muhammad Ramizu bin Mustaffa

Member

Non-Independent

Haji Saiffuddin bin Othman

Member

Independent

The Committee met six (6) times during FY2019:
Held During Tenure
in Office

Attendance

%

Mohd Badaruddin bin Ismail (Chairman)

6

6

100

Associate Professor Dr Mohd Zaki bin Hamzah

6

6

100

Muhammad Ramizu bin Mustaffa

6

6

100

Haji Saiffuddin bin Othman

6

6

100

Name of Directors

The activities of the AC are disclosed on pages 166 to 171 of this Annual Report.
d.

Strategy and Investment Committee (SIC)
The SIC was established to consider and evaluate strategic equity investment and/ or divestment related proposals of
GPB Group for recommendation to the Board. It is also tasked with considering and deliberating all proposals relating
to GPB Group’s properties (i.e. land and buildings).
The combined experience and knowledge of the members enables SIC to assess and evaluate strategic and major
proposals objectively. SIC remains strong and productive in its deliberations and provide clear guidance to management
on key issues and concerns before submitting any recommendations to the Board for endorsement.
The appointments to the SIC were as follows:
Name

Designation

Directorship

Dato’ Bentara Dalam Dato’ Haji A. Rahman bin Yahya

Chairman

Non-Independent

Dr Wan Ahmad Rudirman bin Wan Razak

Member

Non-Independent

Muhammad Ramizu bin Mustaffa

Member

Non-Independent

No meetings were held during FY2019.
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Board Charter
During the Financial Year, the Board reviewed and
realigned a number of existing governance policies and
documents within the GPB Board Charter. The GPB Board
Charter supports good standards of corporate governance
through the collation and regular review of a number of key
matters, including:
•

The division of responsibilities between the Chairman
and CEO; and

•

The respective roles, responsibilities and authorities
of the Board, its Committees and Management.

The GPB Board Charter is provided to each Director and the
Board reviews its Charter periodically, subject to changes in
regulations and best practices.
Directors’ Training & Development
The Board recognises the importance of ensuring that
Directors are continuously being developed to acquire or
enhance the requisite knowledge and skills to discharge
their duties effectively.

All new Directors appointed to the Board attend a formal
induction programme to familiarise themselves with
the Group’s strategy and aspiration, line of businesses
and corporate functions, key financial highlights, audit,
compliance and risk management. The programme is
conducted by the Chief Executive Officer as well as Senior
Management.
As required by the listing requirements of Bursa Securities,
all Directors have successfully completed the Mandatory
Accreditation Programme (“MAP”) within the stipulated
time frame of four months from their respective date of
appointment. Apart from the MAP, all Directors appointed
to the Board have also attended other relevant training
programmes, talks, seminars, dialogue sessions and focus
group sessions organised by regulatory authorities and
professional bodies to further enhance their business
acumen and professionalism in discharging their duties to
the Group.
The Board also continuously evaluates and determines
the training needs of the directors. Training must aid the
director in the discharge of his or her duties as a director.
The Directors of the Company attended the following
training programmes, talks, seminars, dialogue sessions
and focus group sessions during the FY2019:

Directors Training for FY2019
Name of Directors

Courses/ Training Programmes attended
•

YBM Dato’ Haji Tengku Hassan bin
Tengku Omar

•

Terengganu Inc Group Corporate Directors’ Programme 2019:
>
Highlights of the Companies Act 2016: What Directors
need to know
>
Financial Statements for Non-Finance Professionals
>
Embracing Risk Management
>
Corporate Talk by YBhg. Tan Sri Abdul Wahid Omar
>
Corporate Liability Provision pursuant to Amendment to
MACC Act 2018
Golden Pharos Berhad Group Sharing Session 2019:
Directorship Compliance to Companies Act, 2016.
Concept and Practical Approach; Carbon Credit; Wood base
Product Scenarios; Evaluation of Safety Glass
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Name of Directors

Courses/ Training Programmes attended
•

Dato' Bentara Dalam
Dato’ Haji A. Rahman bin Yahya
•

•

Dr Wan Ahmad Rudirman bin Wan Razak
•

•

Associate Professor Dr Mohd Zaki bin Hamzah
•

GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD

Terengganu Inc Group Corporate Directors’ Programme 2019:
>
Highlights of the Companies Act 2016: What Directors
need to know
>
Financial Statements for Non-Finance Professionals
>
Embracing Risk Management
>
Corporate Talk by YBhg. Tan Sri Abdul Wahid Omar
>
Corporate Liability Provision pursuant to Amendment to
MACC Act 2018
Golden Pharos Berhad Group Sharing Session 2019:
Directorship Compliance to Companies Act, 2016; SFS-SMS:
Concept and Practical Approach; Carbon Credit; Wood base
Product Scenarios; Evaluation of Safety Glass
Terengganu Inc Group Corporate Directors’ Programme 2019:
>
Highlights of the Companies Act 2016: What Directors
need to know
>
Financial Statements for Non-Finance Professionals
>
Embracing Risk Management
>
Corporate Talk by YBhg. Tan Sri Abdul Wahid Omar
>
Corporate Liability Provision pursuant to Amendment to
MACC Act 2018
Golden Pharos Berhad Group Sharing Session 2019:
Directorship Compliance to Companies Act, 2016; SFS-SMS:
Concept and Practical Approach; Carbon Credit; Wood base
Product Scenarios; Evaluation of Safety Glass
Terengganu Inc Group Corporate Directors’ Programme 2019:
>
Highlights of the Companies Act 2016: What Directors
need to know
>
Financial Statements for Non-Finance Professionals
>
Embracing Risk Management
>
Corporate Talk by YBhg. Tan Sri Abdul Wahid Omar
>
Corporate Liability Provision pursuant to Amendment to
MACC Act 2018
Golden Pharos Berhad Group Sharing Session 2019:
Directorship Compliance to Companies Act, 2016; SFS-SMS:
Concept and Practical Approach; Carbon Credit; Wood base
Product Scenarios; Evaluation of Safety Glass
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Name of Directors

Courses/ Training Programmes attended
•

Muhammad Ramizu bin Mustaffa
•

•

Mohd Badaruddin bin Ismail
•

•

Haji Saiffuddin bin Othman
•

Terengganu Inc Group Corporate Directors’ Programme 2019:
>
Highlights of the Companies Act 2016: What Directors
need to know
>
Financial Statements for Non-Finance Professionals
>
Embracing Risk Management
>
Corporate Talk by YBhg. Tan Sri Abdul Wahid Omar
>
Corporate Liability Provision pursuant to Amendment to
MACC Act 2018
Golden Pharos Berhad Group Sharing Session 2019:
Directorship Compliance to Companies Act, 2016; SFS-SMS:
Concept and Practical Approach; Carbon Credit; Wood base
Product Scenarios; Evaluation of Safety Glass
Terengganu Inc Group Corporate Directors’ Programme 2019:
>
Highlights of the Companies Act 2016: What Directors
need to know
>
Financial Statements for Non-Finance Professionals
>
Embracing Risk Management
>
Corporate Talk by YBhg. Tan Sri Abdul Wahid Omar
>
Corporate Liability Provision pursuant to Amendment to
MACC Act 2018
Golden Pharos Berhad Group Sharing Session 2019:
Directorship Compliance to Companies Act, 2016; SFS-SMS:
Concept and Practical Approach; Carbon Credit; Wood base
Product Scenarios; Evaluation of Safety Glass
Terengganu Inc Group Corporate Directors’ Programme 2019:
>
Highlights of the Companies Act 2016: What Directors
need to know
>
Financial Statements for Non-Finance Professionals
>
Embracing Risk Management
>
Corporate Talk by YBhg. Tan Sri Abdul Wahid Omar
>
Corporate Liability Provision pursuant to Amendment to
MACC Act 2018
Golden Pharos Berhad Group Sharing Session 2019:
Directorship Compliance to Companies Act, 2016; SFS-SMS:
Concept and Practical Approach; Carbon Credit; Wood base
Product Scenarios; Evaluation of Safety Glass
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Remuneration
The Board believes in a competitive and transparent remuneration framework that supports the Directors’ and Senior
Management’s responsibilities and fiduciary duties in managing the Group to achieve its long-term objectives and enhance
stakeholders’ value.
One of the principle authorities of the Board delegated to the NRC is to review, deliberate and recommend to the Board a
remuneration policy for Directors and Senior Management guided by the Group Human Resource policy, market norms and
industry practice.
The Directors are paid Directors’ fees, Board Committee allowance, other allowances, directors & officers insurance coverage
and out-patient medical claims.
Aggregate Remuneration of the Directors
The details of the aggregate remuneration of the Directors of the Company [comprising remuneration received and/or
receivable from the Company during FY2019], including Directors who have resigned are as follows:
Fees

Other
Emoluments

Total

YBM Dato’ Haji Tengku Hassan bin Tengku Omar

12,500

182,360

194,860

Dato’ Bentara Dalam Dato’ Haji A. Rahman bin Yahya

25,000

20,204

45,204

Dr Wan Ahmad Rudirman bin Wan Razak

10,417

25,976

36,393

Associate Professor Dr Mohd Zaki bin Hamzah

10,417

38,392

48,809

Muhammad Ramizu bin Mustaffa

10,417

37,968

48,385

Mohd Badaruddin bin Ismail

10,417

31,909

42,326

Haji Saiffuddin bin Othman

10,417

35,568

45,985

Board Member resigned on 1/8/2018
Dato' Haji Muhammad Pehimi bin Yusof

17,500

-

17,500

Haji Jusoh bin Ali

14,583

-

14,583

Dato’ Sabri bin Mohd Noor

14,583

-

14,583

Dato' Mohamad Nor bin Ibrahim

14,583

-

14,583

Rosli bin Abd Rahman

14,583

-

14,583

Zainudin bin Abu Bakar

14,583

-

14,583.

TOTAL
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The number of Directors whose remuneration fall within the following bands are:
Number of Directors
Number of Directors
Directors Remuneration

Executive Directors

Non-Executive Directors

Less than RM50,000

-

12

RM50,000 to RM100,000

-

-

RM100,001 to RM150,000

-

-

RM150,001 to RM200,000

-

1

RM200,001 and above

-

-

PRINCIPLE B –
MANAGEMENT
1.

EFFECTIVE

AUDIT

AND

RISK

Audit Committee
Effective and Independent Audit Committee:
•

The Chairman of the AC is not the Chairman of
the Board.
The Chairman of the AC is an independent
director who is not the Chairman of the
Board.

•

Cooling-off Period for a Former Audit Partner to
be appointed as AC Member.
The AC has a 2-year cooling-off period
policy for a candidate who was a former
audit partner before appointment as a
member of the AC as recommended by
Practice Note 8.2 of the MCCG. However,
the said policy currently does not apply
to the AC given none of the AC nor Board
members is a former audit partner as at the
date of this CG Statement.

•

Policies and Procedures for Assessment of
Suitability, Objectivity and Independence of
External Auditors.

The AC maintains a transparent and professional
relationship with the external auditors of the
Company. The external auditors fill an essential
role by enhancing the reliability of the Company’s
Annual Audited Financial Statements and by giving
assurance to stakeholders of the reliability of the
Annual Audited Financial Statements. The external
auditors have an obligation to bring any significant
defects in the Company’s system of control and
compliance to the attention of the Management; and
if necessary, to the AC and the Board.
The AC is empowered by the Board to review
any matters concerning the appointment and reappointment, resignations or dismissals of external
auditors and review and evaluate factors relating to
the independence of the external auditors. The terms
of engagement for services provided by the external
auditors are reviewed by the AC prior to submission
to the Board for approval. Feedback based on the
assessment areas is obtained from the AC, the internal
auditor, and senior management and the Head of
Departments.
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The AC undertakes an annual assessment of the
suitability and independence of the external auditors
in accordance with the independence criteria set out
by the International Federation of Accountants and
the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“MIA”). Under
this policy, only non-audit services which are able to
provide clear efficiencies and value-added benefits to
the Group and do not impede the external auditors’
audit works will be accepted by the AC.
On the other hand, the AC also seeks written
assurance from the external auditors, confirming that
they are, and have been, independent throughout the
conduct of the audit engagement with the Company
in accordance with the independence criteria set
out by the MIA. The external auditors provide such
declaration in their annual audit plan presented to
the AC prior to the commencement of audit for a
particular financial year.
2.

Risk Management and Internal Control Framework
The Company has put in place a systematic risk
management framework and processes to identify,
evaluate and monitor principal risks and to implement
appropriate internal control processes to manage risks
across the Group. Risks include long-term business
strategies, regulatory and compliance concerns,
substitution and technology applications and
fraudulent practices. Although many risks are outside
the Company’s direct control, a range of activities
are in place to mitigate the key risks identified, as
set out in the Statement on Risk Management and
Internal Control. The risk management and internal
control system is regularly reviewed and mitigated
by Management to ensure that the Group’s assets
and shareholders’ investments are protected and
preserved.
The Board is of the view that the system of risk
management and internal controls in place during
2019, is sound and sufficient to safeguard the Group’s
assets, as well as shareholders’ investments, and
the interests of customers, regulators, employees
and other stakeholders. The details of the Risk
Management and Internal Control Framework are set
out in the Statement on Risk Management and Internal
Control of this Annual Report.
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The Statement on Risk Management and Internal
Control is set out on pages 163 to 165 of this
Annual Report.
PRINCIPLE
C – INTEGRITY IN CORPORATE
REPORTING AND MEANINGFUL RELATIONSHIP WITH
STAKEHOLDERS
1.

Communication with Stakeholders
To ensure Timely and High-Quality Disclosure.
•

Effective,
Transparent
and
Regular
Communication with its Stakeholders.
The Group recognises the importance
of prompt and timely dissemination of
information to shareholders and investors
in order for these stakeholders to be able to
make informed investment decisions. Towards
this, the Company’s website incorporates an
announcement section which provides all
relevant information on the Company and is
accessible by the public. This announcement
section enhances the investor relations function
by including all announcements made, annual
reports as well as the quarterly reports.
The Board ensures that shareholders are
provided with a balanced and meaningful
evaluation of the Company’s financial
performance, its current position and future
prospects, through the issuance of the
Annual Audited Financial Statements and
quarterly financial reports, as well as corporate
announcements on significant developments
affecting the Company in accordance with the
Listing Requirements.
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The Company allows a member to appoint a
proxy who may but need not be a member of
the Company. If the proxy is not a member of the
Company, he or she need not be an advocate,
an approved company auditor or a person
approved by the Registrar of Companies.

In ensuring equal and fair access to information
by the investing public, various channels of
communications are employed. Examples
include
quarterly
announcements
on
financial results to Bursa Securities, relevant
announcements and circular via Bursa LINK as
required under the Listing Requirements, the
Annual and Extraordinary General Meetings
and through the Company’s website at
www.goldenpharos.com, from which shareholders
and
prospective
investors
can
access
corporate information, annual reports, press
releases, financial information and Company
announcements.
2.

Where special business items appear in the
Notice of the AGM, a full explanation is provided
to shareholders on the effect of the proposed
resolution emanating from the special business
item. The AGM is the principal opportunity
for the Board to meet shareholders and for
the Chairman to provide an overview of the
Company’s progress and receive questions from
shareholders.

Conduct of General Meetings
To strengthen Relationship between the Company
and Shareholders.
•

Encourage Shareholder Participation at General
Meetings.
The Company recognises the importance of
maintaining transparency and accountability to
its shareholders. The Board believes that they
are not only accountable to shareholders, but
is also responsible for managing a successful
and productive relationship with the Company’s
stakeholders. In this regard, the Board will
ensure that all the Company’s shareholders and
stakeholders are treated equitably and the rights
of all investors, including minority shareholders,
are protected.
The Company dispatched its Notice of AGM to
shareholders 50 days before the AGM in 2019.
The Board believes the current practice would
allow the shareholders to make necessary
arrangements to attend and participate either
in person, by corporate representative, by proxy
or by attorney together with the Notice of AGM,
which provides information to shareholders with
regard to, among others, details of the AGM,
their entitlement to attend the AGM, the right
to appoint proxy and also qualification of proxy.

•

Effective
Communication
Engagements.

and

Proactive

All the Directors shall endeavour to be present
in person to engage directly with, and be
accountable to the shareholders for their
stewardship of the Company at the 33rd AGM.
The proceedings of the AGM will include the
Chairman’s briefing on the Company’s overall
performance for FY2019, the presentation of
the external auditors’ unqualified report to the
shareholders, and a Q&A session during which
the Chairman will invite shareholders to raise
questions pertaining to the Company’s financial
statements and other items for adoption at the
meeting, before putting a resolution to vote.
The Directors, CEO and external auditors will be
in attendance to respond to the shareholders’
queries.
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•

Facilitate Greater Shareholder Participation at
General Meetings.
Under Paragraph 8.29A(1) of the Listing
Requirements, a listed company must, among
others, ensure that any resolution set out in
the notice of any general meeting, is voted by
poll. For this purpose, the share registrar will
be appointed as the Poll Administrator and an
independent scrutineer will be appointed to
validate the votes cast at the 33rd AGM.
The Board will consider leveraging technology
to facilitate electronic poll voting and remote
shareholder participation in the coming
general meetings in order to more fairly reflect
shareholders’ views and to ensure accurate and
efficient outcomes of the voting process.

At the commencement of all general meetings, the
Chairman will inform the shareholders of their rights
to a poll voting. Separate resolutions are proposed
for substantially separate issues at the meeting and
the Chairman will declare the number of proxy votes
received, both for and against each separate resolution
where appropriate. The outcome of a general
meeting will be announced to Bursa on the same
meeting day.
Statement of Directors’ Responsibility in respect of the
Audited Financial Statements
The Board is required by the Companies Act 2016 to
prepare financial statements for each financial year which
give a true and fair view of the Group and its state of affairs,
results and cash flows at the end of the financial year.
Following discussions with the statutory external auditors,
the Directors consider if the appropriate accounting policies
are consistently applied and supported by reasonable
as well as prudent judgements and estimates, and that
all accounting standards which they consider applicable
have been followed during the preparation of the financial
statements.
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The Board of Directors is responsible for ensuring that the
Group keeps accounting records which are disclosed with
reasonable accuracy, and for ensuring that the financial
statements comply with the Companies Act 2016.
The Board and Board Committees have the general
responsibility for taking such steps to safeguard the assets
of the Group.
Statement on Compliance with the Requirements of
Bursa Securities in Relation to Application of Principles
of MCCG 2017 Pursuant to Paragraph 15.25 of the
MMLR
The Board has reviewed, deliberated and approved
this Corporate Governance Overview Statement and is
pleased to report to its shareholders that to the best of
its knowledge, the Company has complied with and shall
remain committed to continuously apply the Principles laid
down in the MCCG 2017.
This Corporate Governance Overview Statement is made
in accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors
dated 25 February 2020.
OTHER INFORMATION REQUIRED BY THE BURSA
SECURITIES LISTING REQUIREMENTS
Utilisation of Proceeds Raised from Corporate Proposals
There were no proceeds raised from corporate proposals in
the year under review.
Audit and Non-Audit Fees
For the financial year ended 31 December 2019, the
amounts of audit fees payable by the Company and the
Group to the external auditors, Ernst & Young are as follows:
Company
Audit Fee
Non-Audit Fee

: RM66,000
: RM20,000

Group
Audit Fee
Non-Audit Fee

: RM160,000
: RM20,000
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Material Contracts
There were no material contracts entered into by the
Company and its subsidiaries, involving the interest of
directors and major shareholders, either still subsisting at
the end of the year or, if not then subsisting, entered into
since the end of the previous year.
Recurrent Related Party Transactions of a revenue or
trading nature
There were no recurrent related party transactions of
revenue nature which required shareholders’ mandate
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

•

Duration
5 years, with an option for additional 5 years.

•

Eligible person
- ESOS - All directors and confirmed Malaysian
		 employees of the Group.
- ESGS - Executive directors (if any) and confirmed
		 senior
managerial
employees
of
		 the Group.

•

Basis of allocation
At the discretion of the LTIP Committee after taking
into consideration:
- For directors – contribution to the performance of
the Group and positions in board committees; and
- For employees – performance, seniority, length of
service and contribution to the performance of the
Group.
- Directors and senior management must not
participate in the deliberation or discussion of their
own allocation.

•

Retention period
Pursuant to the Listing Requirements, non-executive
directors must not sell, transfer or assign the new GPB
Shares obtained within 1 year from the date of offer of
the ESOS options.

Long Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP”)
The Company's Long Term Incentive Plan ("LTIP" or
"Scheme") is governed by the By-Laws which was approved
by the shareholders on 26 June 2018, and is administered
by the LTIP Committee which is appointed by the Board
of Directors, in accordance with the By-Laws of LTIP.
The LTIP was implemented on 30 August 2018,
30 August 2019 and 4 November 2019. The LTIP consist
of the followings:
i.

ii.

Employee Share Option Scheme (“ESOS”) - Eligible
Persons are granted ESOS options to subscribe for
Shares at a pre-determined subscription price.
Executive Share Grant Scheme (“ESGS”) - Eligible
Persons are awarded Shares subject to the achievement
of performance targets to be determined by the
Company.

Details of LTIP:
•

Size
Up to 15% of the total number of issued shares of the
Company. Based on the number of shares on 26 June
2018 of 134,546,515 shares, up to 20,181,977 shares
can be issued under the Proposed LTIP.

The total number of options granted, exercised, lapsed and
outstanding under the ESOS and ESGS for the year under
review are set out in the table below:
TESGS
At 1 January
Granted
Vested/ exercised
At 31 December

ESOS

43,640

3,998,060

1,270,000

1,125,000

(1,019,975)

-

293,665

5,123,060
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All the Directors of GPB have been granted ESOS Options at the end of the financial year in options over shares in the
Company during the financial year were as follows:
ESOS
Aggregate options
Granted

Aggregate options
Exercised/ Lapsed

Aggregate options
Balance

Dato' Haji Tengku Hassan bin
Tengku Omar

125,000

-

125,000

Dato' Bentara Dalam Dato' Haji A.
Rahman bin Yahya

100,000

-

100,000

Dr Wan Ahmad Rudirman bin Wan
Razak

75,000

-

75,000

Associate Professor Dr. Mohd Zaki
bin Hamzah

100,000

-

100,000

Muhammad Ramizu bin Mustaffa

100,000

-

100,000

Mohd Badaruddin bin Ismail

100,000

-

100,000

75,000

-

75,000

Haji Saiffuddin bin Othman

Pursuant to the approval of the shareholders at an EGM on 26 June 2018, Dato’ Ahmad Nadzarudin bin Abdul Razak,
the Chief Executive Officer of GPB, has been granted the following:
ESOS

Dato’ Ahmad Nadzarudin bin
Abdul Razak

ESGS

Aggregate
options
Granted

Aggregate
options
Exercised

Aggregate
options
Balance

Aggregate
Shares
Granted

Aggregate
Shares
Vested

Aggregate
Shares
Balance

250,000

-

250,000

1,000,000

425,000

575,000

In accordance with the Company's ESOS By-Laws, not more than eighty per cent (80%) of the new ordinary shares available
under the Scheme shall be allocated in aggregate to the managerial employees of the Group.
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Statement on Risk Management
and Internal Control
The Board of Directors (“Board”) acknowledges the importance of a sound system of internal control to safeguard
shareholders’ investments and the Group’s assets.
Set out below is the Board’s statement about the state of risk management and internal control of the Group during the
year. The statement is consistent with the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control: Guidelines for Directors of
Listed Issuers (“SORMIC”), as referred to in Practice Note 9 - Internal Control and Corporate Governance Statement of the
Main Market Listing Requirements (“MMLR”) of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”).
Board Responsibilities
The Board affirms its overall responsibility for maintaining
sound internal control systems, and for reviewing the
adequacy and integrity of those systems. The system
of internal control covers risk management, financial,
operational and compliance controls.
In view of the limitations that are inherent in any system of
internal control, it is imperative to note that the systems are
designed to mitigate rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives. Accordingly, the system
can only provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement, loss or fraud.
The Board has received assurance from the Chief
Executive Officer (“CEO”) and the Head of Finance
that the Group’s risk management and internal control
system is operating adequately and effectively in all
material aspects, based on the risk management and
internal control system of the Group.
Risk Management
The Board subscribes to the fact that an effective risk
management practice is a critical component of a
sound system of risk management and internal control.
Accordingly, the Board confirms that there is in place a formal
and an on-going process to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks faced by the Group that may impede the
achievement of the Group’s objectives throughout the
year and that a review on the adequacy and effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control system has
been undertaken.

The Group recognises that it is obliged to systematically
manage and regularly review its risk profile at a strategic,
financial, compliance and operational level. The Group’s
Enterprise Risk Management (“ERM”) framework defines our
Group’s risk management process in managing the Group’s
key risks on a continuous basis and also action plans towards
effective risk management and internal control practices.
The Board believes that the risk management framework is
adequately overseen by the Audit Committee and assisted
by the management via the Group Risk Management
Steering Committee (“GRMSC”), represented by divisional
heads at head office who co-ordinate the implementation
of the risk management process throughout the Group.
The GRMSC has meetings to discuss principal risks
identified, relevant controls that are in place and the action
plans with the working committee of each subsidiary
company. At the subsidiary level, the Risk Management
Working Committee (“RMWC”) is chaired by the Head
of Company and the members comprise the Head of
Divisions. This Committee implements risk management
process and control systems for their business and report
to the RMSC. The management reports the Group risk
assessment, risk register and the risk action plans to the
Audit Committee and the Board quarterly for review and
endorsement.
Risk assessments are also carried out before committing
resources to new projects and initiatives by identifying its
impact on current operations and business objectives,
which are reported in proposal papers to approving
management and/or board committees.
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Internal Control (Continued)
Other key elements of internal control
The Board is committed to ensure that a proper control
structure and environment is maintained within the Group
in order to achieve a sound system of internal control. The
Board has the following elements in place:
•

There is in place a clearly defined responsibility and
authority of Board Committees. These Committees
report back to the Board with their recommendation
for approval by the Board.

•

The Group has an organisation structure that clearly
defines lines of responsibility and delegation
of authority to ensure proper identification of
accountability and segregation of duties.

•

Operating policies and procedures, which incorporate
regulatory and internal requirements, are prescribed
in the standard operating procedures and circulars.
The documents are updated as and when necessary
to meet the changing operational needs.

•

The Board meets quarterly to review the Group’s
operational and financial performance against the
approved budget, approve quarterly reports to Bursa
Securities and deliberate on issues that require Board
approval. In addition, the Board is also updated
on changes in the business environment that may
adversely affect business performance and relevant
actions taken.

•

To review the Group’s performance against budget,
to solve business issues including internal control
matters and to undertake risk management, the CEO
conducts regular meetings as follows:
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1.

Weekly with the Heads of Department at Group
level.

2.

Monthly with all Heads of Timber Companies.

3.

Monthly with all Heads of Subsidiaries.

4.

Quarterly with the Board of Directors of all
subsidiaries.

5.

Periodically with the President of the Holding
Company.

•

The annual budget is deliberated thoroughly between
the management at head office and the business unit
before tabling to the Board for consideration and
approval.

•

The Audit Committee, with the assistance of the
internal audit department, provides an independent
assessment on the adequacy, efficiency and
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system
and advises management on areas that require
improvement. The internal audit department also
reviews the extent to which its recommendations have
been accepted and implemented by the management.

•

Internal audit reports are tabled at the Audit Committee
meetings, which in turn reports to the Board its
assessments and recommendations. Internal control
deficiencies and issues highlighted are addressed by
the management appropriately.

•

The Strategy and Investments Committee (“SIC”)
assists the Board in reviewing and recommending to
the Board, significant matters related to all existing and
potential investments of the Group. The SIC shall also
review and assess all risks associated with investments
and the management thereof.

•

The Group risk assessment, risk register and risk
action plans are reported to the Audit Committee and
the Board quarterly for review and endorsement.
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Reporting to Shareholders/Stakeholders
External stakeholder relations and communication is given a high priority in view of the types of risks faced by the Group.
Specifically, sustainability issues require appropriate engagement with NGOs and other interested parties. The Group, being a
state government linked company, necessitates an effective external communications strategy to ensure the reputation of the
Group is protected.
The Group has established processes and procedures to ensure the quarterly and annual accounts, which cover the Group’s
performance, are submitted to Bursa Securities for release to shareholders and stakeholders on a timely basis. All quarterly
results are reviewed and approved by the board prior to announcement.
The annual reports of the Company that include the annual audited financial statements together with the auditors’
and directors’ reports are issued to the shareholders within the stipulated time prescribed under the MMLR
of Bursa Securities.
Review of the statement by external auditors
As required by Paragraph 15.23 of the MMLR of Bursa Securities, the external auditors have reviewed this
Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control for inclusion in the Annual Report for the year ended 2019.
Their limited assurance review was performed in accordance with the Recommended Practice Guide (RPG) 5 (Revised) issued
by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants. RPG 5 (Revised) does not require the external auditors to form an opinion on the
adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of the Group.
Based on their review, nothing has come to their attention that cause them to believe that the Statement on Risk
Management and Internal Control to be included in the Annual Report is inconsistent with their understanding of the process
the Board of Directors has adopted in the review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group.
Conclusion
The system of risk management and internal control described in this statement is considered by the Board to be
adequate within the context of the business environment throughout the Group’s businesses. The Board continues
to take appropriate initiatives to enhance the internal control system to ensure that it remains relevant over time in an evolving
business environment.
This statement is made in accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors dated 25 February 2020.
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Audit Committee Report
Members and Meetings
The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-Executive Directors and one Non Independent Director of
the Board. The Committee held five (5) meetings during the financial year. Details of the members and the attendance of their
meetings are as follows:
No. of Meetings Attended
Held During Tenure
in Office

Attendance

%

Mohd Badaruddin bin Ismail
Chairman (Independent Non-Executive)

6

6

100

Associate Professor Dr Mohd Zaki bin Hamzah
(Independent Non-Executive)

6

6

100

Haji Saiffuddin bin Othman
(Independent Non-Executive)

6

6

100

Muhammad Ramizu bin Mustaffa
(Non Independent Non-Executive)

6

6

100

Name of Directors

The External Auditor was invited to attend the meeting

when the annual financial statement was being tabled.

ii.

The Internal Audit Head, the Chief Executive Officer and

presented by the Internal Audit Department on
findings and recommendations with regards to

the Head of Finance were in attendance at the meetings to

system and control weaknesses noted in the course of

table the internal audit reports and to present the

their audit and management’s response thereto and

performance results of the Company and the Group.

Other members of senior management of the Group

Reviewed a total of five (5) internal audit reports

to ensure material findings are adequately addressed
by management.

attended some of these meetings upon invitation by the

iii.

Reviewed the quarterly results of the Group and made

Summary of Activities

iv.

Reviewed any related party transactions and conflict

v.

Evaluated the performance of the external auditors

Chairman of the Committee.

During the period, the Audit Committee carried out its
duties as set out in the terms of reference. Other main
issues discussed by the Audit Committee were as follows:
i.

Reviewed the Annual Audit Plan for the year 2019

to ensure adequate scope and coverage over the
activities of the Group.
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of interest situations that arose within the Group.

and made recommendations to the Board on their
appointment, scope of work and audit fees.
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vi.

Reviewed quarterly the risk profile of the Group

The Group practices a risk-based approach to auditing and

manage and/or mitigate business risks as identified

the basis for continually improving the risk management

(including risk registers) and risk action plans to
from time to time.

monitoring of controls. The monitoring process also forms
process in the Group’s overall goals.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTIONS

During the year under review, the Internal Audit Department

The Group has its own Internal Audit Department, which

subsidiaries of the Group. Audit reports were issued

carries out the internal audit function and assists the Audit

Committee in ensuring compliance with the established

policies and procedures, monitoring significant risks,
highlighting areas that need improvement and reviews
to the extent that its recommendations in addressing

the internal control issues are implemented. The Internal

carried out audit assignments on various operating
to the Audit Committee and the respective companies
incorporating findings and recommendations with regard

to the system and control weaknesses noted during the
course of the audit and management’s responses on the
audit findings.

Auditors report directly to the Audit Committee and assist

The Internal Audit Department also followed up on

to risks and contribute to the improvement of the internal

recommendations.

the Board of Directors in monitoring significant exposures
control system.

The role of the Internal Audit Department is to provide
the Committee with independent and objective reports

on the state of internal control of the various operating
subsidiaries within the Group and the extent of compliance

the implementation and disposition of all findings and

During the year, all the internal audit activities were

performed in-house and the total cost incurred was
RM252,895.10 covering manpower, training, travelling and
accommodation.

of the operating subsidiaries with the established policies

The Audit Committee Report was made in accordance with

the audits of all operating subsidiaries. The Internal Audit

25 February 2020.

and procedures. The scope of the Internal Audit covers

carries out audit assignments based on an audit plan that is

the resolution of the Board of Directors duly passed on

reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee.

TERMS OF REFERENCE OF AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Group in-house internal audit function is carried out by

MEMBERSHIP

the Head of Internal Audit, En. Muhamad bin Sulong until

1

the Group Internal Audit Department which was headed by
his retirement on 31 January 2020. It is independent from

the activities or operation of other operating units within
the Group and reports directly to the Audit Committee. The

Group is in the process of finding a replacement for the
Head of Internal Audit.

		

The Audit Committee (“AC”) shall be appointed by the

Board of Directors from among their number and shall
comprise not less than three (3) members who fulfill
the following requirements:i.

All the AC members must be Non-Executive
Directors, with

a

majority

Independent Directors; and

of

them

being
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ii.

all the AC members should be financially literate;

4

iii. at least one (1) member:

audit committee, the Board of Directors shall within

must be a member of the Malaysian Institute
of Accountants (MIA); or

		

(b) if he is not a member of the MIA, he must have

at least three (3) years’ working experience
and:
•

•

in the non-compliance of the listing requirements
of Bursa Securities pertaining to composition of the

		
(a)

In the event of any vacancy in the Committee resulting

he must have passed the examinations

three months of that event fill the vacancy.
MEETINGS
		
1

Frequency

		

specified in Part 1 of the 1st Schedule of
the Accountants Act 1967; or

he must be a member of one of the

associations of accountants specified

a.

Meetings shall be held not less than four times a

b.

Upon the request of the external auditor, the

in Part II of the 1st Schedule of the
•

Accountants Act 1967; or
fulfils

such

prescribed
Malaysia

iv.

v.

other

or

approved

Securities

Securities”).

requirements
by

Berhad

matter the external auditor believes should
be brought to the attention of the Directors or

Bursa

No alternate Director shall be appointed as a
member of the AC.

Former key audit partners may be appointed as a
member of the AC, but must observe a cooling-off

period of at least two (2) years prior to his or her

shareholders.
2

The chairman of the AC shall be appointed by the
Board from among their Independent Directors who
must not be the Chairman of the Board.

3

The terms of office and performance of the Committee

and each of its members must be reviewed by the
Board of Directors at least once every 3 years to

determine whether the Committee and its members
have carried out their duties in accordance with their
terms of reference.
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Quorum

		
a.

3

A quorum shall consist of a majority of
Independent Directors.

Secretary

		
a.

appointment.
2

Chairman of the Committee shall convene a
meeting of the Committee to consider any

as

(“Bursa

year.

The Company Secretary shall be the Secretary of

the Committee or in his or her absence, another

person authorised by the Chairman of the
Committee.

			
4

Attendance

		
a.

The Chief Executive Officer, the Head of

Internal Audit, the Head of Finance, and the
representative of the external auditor shall
normally attend meetings.
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b.

c.

Other Directors and employees may attend

RIGHTS

invitation, specific to the relevant meeting.

The Committee in performing its duties shall in accordance

any particular meeting only at the Committee’s

At least once a year, the Committee shall meet

with the external auditors without any executive
Board members present.

5

Reporting Procedure

		
a.

The minutes of each meeting shall be circulated
to all members of the Board together with the

		

with a procedure to be determined by the Board of
Directors:
a.

have authority to investigate any matter within its

b.

have the resources which are required to perform its

c.

have full and unrestricted access to any information

d.

have direct communication channels with the external

Board meeting papers.

			
6

Meeting Procedure

a.

the calling of meetings;

b.

the notice to be given of such meetings;

c.

the

voting

meetings;

and

proceedings

of

pertaining to the Company;

auditor and person(s) carrying out the internal audit

e.

be able to obtain independent professional or other

f.

be able to convene meetings with external auditors,

advice; and

the internal auditors or both, excluding the attendance

of other directors and employees of the Company,
such

d.

the keeping of minutes; and

e.

the custody, production and inspection of such
minutes.

			
7

duties;

function or activity;

The Committee shall regulate its own procedure, in
particular:-

terms of reference;

whenever deemed necessary.

		

FUNCTIONS
The Committee shall, amongst others, discharge the
following functions:
		
1

To review with the external auditor:

Circular Resolution

a.

the audit plan;

a.

b.

his evaluation of

c.

his audit report; and

d.

his management letter and management’s

Circular Resolutions signed by all the members

shall be valid and effective as if it had been
passed at a meeting of the Committee.

control;

the system of

internal

response;
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2

To review:

4

a.

the

assistance

given

by

the

Company’s

b.

the quarterly results and year-end financial

employees to the external auditor;

statements, prior to the approval by the Board of
Directors, focusing particularly on:

c.

(i)

the going concern assumption;

(ii)

changes in or implementation of major

(iii)

significant and unusual events; and

(iv)

compliance with accounting standards and

In respect of the internal audit function:
a.

carry out its work;
b.

c.

d.

auditors:
a.

appointment

e.

of

external

f.

to review any appraisal or assessment of the

performance of members of the internal audit
to approve any appointment or termination
of senior staff members of the internal audit
to inform itself of any resignation of internal audit
staff member and provide the resigning staff

to consider the nomination of a person or
persons as external auditors and the audit
to consider any questions of resignation or

the internal audit function must be independent
of the activities it audits; the internal audit

in determining the scope of internal audit,

grounds) to believe that the external auditors is

GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD

investigation

activity should be free from interference

to review whether there is reason (supported by

dismissal of external auditors.

processes

for resigning.

fee;
c.

or

processes, the results of the internal audit

member an opportunity to submit his reasons

performing work, and communicating results;

not suitable for reappointment;
b.

programme,

function;

the approval by the Board of Directors.
the

audit

internal audit function;

the Statement of Corporate Governance prior to

of

internal

function;

interest situation that may arise within the

respect

the

action is taken on the recommendations of the

other legal requirements.

questions on management integrity.

In

review

undertaken and whether or not appropriate

accounting policy changes;

procedure or course of conduct that raises

3

to

programme,

any related party transaction and conflict of

		

competency and resources of the internal audit
function and that it has the necessary authority to

Company or Group including any transaction,

d.

to review the adequacy of the scope, functions,

and
g.

the internal audit function reports directly to the
Audit Committee.
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5

In respect of risk management
a.

Review the context within which risk is managed in relation to the Company’s strategic direction and objectives;

b.

Oversee and provide oversight and direction for implementation of risk management in the Company and consistent

c.

Oversee the formulation of the Group’s overall ERM and strategies, including policies, procedures, systems,

application of Enterprise Risk Management (“ERM”) principles;

capability and parameters to identify, assess and manage risks, including any new or emerging trends of threats to
ensure their relevance and appropriateness to the Group’s position and business;

d.

Advise and report on the overall risk appetite, tolerance and strategy on managing business risks;

e.

Review and deliberate the report by the management on the Group’s key business risks and to ensure that internal
controls and business plan in place are adequate and effective and that appropriate timely mitigation measures and
actions are taken by the management to address, manage and monitor the risks;

f.

Recommend to the Board, the approval of and/or amendments to the Group risk management framework and the

g.

Periodically review the Company’s risk management framework and supporting structure;

h.

Consider the risks in context and recommend to the Board, mitigation of the risks identified;

i.

Review the risk profile of the Group (including risk registers) and risk action plans to manage and/or mitigate

j.

Review the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control (“SORMIC”) of the Group and recommend to the

strategies, including policies, procedures, systems, capability and parameters, as relevant;

business risks as identified from time to time; and

Board of Directors for approval and for inclusion in the Annual Report.

6

To promptly report such matters to Bursa Securities if the Committee is of the view that the matter reported by it to the

7

To carry out other functions as may be agreed to by the Committee and the Board of Directors.

Board of Directors has not been satisfactorily resolved resulting in a breach of the Listing Requirements.
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List of Properties
Properties

Description

Land area
(sq.
metre)

Tenure
of land

Age of
building

Net book
value
31/12/2019
(RM)

Industrial land

12,141

99 years
leasehold
expiring on
11.6.2086

29 years

10,332,141

P. T. No. 105 H.S. (D) 4961
Mukim Ulu Paka, District of Dungun
State of Terengganu

Plywood mill

219,850

60 years
leasehold
expiring on
14.7.2042

37 years

7,566,116

3.

Lot No. 1431, 1432 and 1433
Bandar Al-Muktafi Billah Shah
District of Dungun
State of Terengganu

3 units hostel

2,359

99 years
leasehold
expiring on
15.4.2096

37 years

257,157

4.

Lot No. 3164 Mukim of Batu Burok
District of Kuala Terengganu
State of Terengganu

Freehold

26 years

873,802

5.

P. T. No. 109 H.S. (D) 569
Mukim Ulu Paka
District of Dungun
State of Terengganu

Vacant
industrial land

48,980

60 years
leasehold
expiring on
24.2.2058

-

1,386,020

6.

Lot No. 2049, Mukim Ulu Paka
District of Dungun
State of Terengganu

Vacant
industrial land

138,000

60 years
leasehold
expiring on
17.6.2060

-

3,385,258

7.

Lot No. 2050, Mukim Ulu Paka
District of Dungun
State of Terengganu

Vacant
industrial land

48,420

60 years
leasehold
expiring on
17.6.2060

-

1,187,294

8.

Lot No. 2051, Mukim Ulu Paka
District of Dungun
State of Terengganu

Vacant
industrial land

17,840

60 years
leasehold
expiring on
17.6.2060

-

436,649

9.

Lot No. 7348, Mukim Jerangau
District of Dungun
State of Terengganu

Sawmill

145,682

30 years
leasehold
expiring on
4.3.2038

39 years

1.

Lot 6720 & 6721, Jalan Perak
Telok Panglima Garang
State of Selangor

2.
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3.5 storey
office
building

130

3,944,861
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Properties

Tenure
of land

Age of
building

Net book
value
31/12/2019
(RM)

10. Lot No. 16388 & 16389,
Mukim Kuala Paka,
District of Dungun
State of Terengganu

Vacant
industrial land

23,518

30 years
leasehold
expiring on
15.10.2037

-

489,631

11. Lot No. 743, Mukim Telok Kalong,
District of Kemaman
State of Terengganu

Vacant
industrial land

25,231

60 years
leasehold
expiring on
25.4.2029

-

763,638

12. P. T. 6401
Mukim Jerangau
District of Dungun
State of Terengganu

1 unit single
storey office

7,834

60 years
leasehold
expiring on
24.9.2054

25 years

599,239

13. Lot No. 12556, Mukim of Chukai
District of Kemaman
State of Terengganu

Sawmill and
timber
downstream
processing

35,728

50 years
leasehold
expiring on
15.10.2045

44 years

6,362,651

14. Lot No. 9803, Mukim of Chukai
District of Kemaman
State of Terengganu

Sawmill and
timber
downstream
processing

31,126

60 years
leasehold
expiring on
15.10.2053

44 years

3,642,508

15. Lot No. S22-33, Perumahan Jalan Kenari
44110 Lembah Beringin
State of Selangor

1 unit single
storey terrace
house

133

Freehold

-

13,000

16. Lot No. S22-44, Perumahan Jalan Kenari
44110 Lembah Beringin
State of Selangor

1 unit single
storey terrace
house

133

Freehold

-

13,000

60 years
leasehold
expiring on
21.2.2071

-

11,808,150

17. Lot No. PT 60056, Mukim of Banggol
District of Kemaman
State of Terengganu

*

Description

Land area
(sq.
metre)

Vacant industrial
land

198,290

The last revaluation carried out by the Group was on 5 January 2020, 15 January 2020, 21 January 2020 and 13 May 2020.
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Directors’ Report
The directors hereby submit their report together with the audited financial statements of the Group and of the Company for
the financial year ended 31 December 2019.
Principal activities
The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and provision of management services to the subsidiaries.
The principal activities of the subsidiaries are manufacturing and trading of glass, investment holding, sawmiling, moulding,
producing finger joint and furniture and kiln drying, harvesting and sustainable forest management, and rental of buildings,
plant and machinery, selling of logs and right to log, and manufacture and sale of veneer.
Other information relating to the subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 19 to the financial statements.
Results
			
Group	Company
			
RM’000
RM’000
(Loss)/profit net of tax 			

(9,206)

5,142

There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year other than as disclosed in the
financial statements.
In the opinion of the directors, the results of the operations of the Group and of the Company during the financial year were
not substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature.
Dividends
The amount of dividend declared and paid by the Company since 31 December 2018 were as follows:

In respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2018:
			 			
A first interim and final tax exempt (single-tier) dividend of 1.27 sen per share
on 135,773,193 ordinary shares declared on 20 June 2019 and paid on 19 July 2019.

RM’000

1,737
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Directors
The names of the directors of the Company in office since the beginning of the financial year to the date of this report are:
Dato’ Haji Tengku Hassan bin Tengku Omar
Dato’ Bentara Dalam Dato’ Haji A. Rahman bin Yahya
Dr. Wan Ahmad Rudirman bin Wan Razak
Associate Professor Dr. Mohd Zaki bin Hamzah
Haji Saiffuddin bin Othman
Muhammad Ramizu bin Mustaffa
Mohd Badaruddin bin Ismail
The names of the directors of the Company’s subsidiaries since the beginning of the financial year to the date of this report (not
including those directors listed above) are:
Golden Pharos Glass Sdn. Bhd.
Mohd Nurkhuzaini bin Ab Rahman
Dato’ Ahmad Nadzarudin bin Abdul Razak
Zulkifli bin Ali
GP Forest Plantation Sdn. Bhd.
Dato’ Ahmad Nadzarudin bin Abdul Razak
Suhairi bin Sulong
Syukri bin Ali
Golden Pharos Overseas Sales Sdn. Bhd.
Dato’ Ahmad Nadzarudin bin Abdul Razak
Suhairi bin Sulong
Zulkifli bin Omar
Golden Pharos Overseas Sdn. Bhd.
Dato’ Ahmad Nadzarudin bin Abdul Razak
Suhairi bin Sulong
Zulkifli bin Omar
Golden Pharos Fiber Sdn. Bhd.
Dato’ Ahmad Nadzarudin bin Abdul Razak
Suhairi bin Sulong
Zulkifli bin Omar
GP Tropical Furniture Sdn. Bhd.
Dato’ Ahmad Nadzarudin bin Abdul Razak
Suhairi bin Sulong
Zulkifli bin Omar
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Directors (continued)
Permint Timber Corporation Sdn. Bhd.
Dato’ Ahmad Nadzarudin bin Abdul Razak
Suhairi bin Sulong
Zulkifli bin Omar
Pesama Timber Corporation Sdn. Bhd.
Ir. Saiful Azmi bin Suhaili
Dato’ Ahmad Nadzarudin bin Abdul Razak
Haji Johan bin Ibrahim
Haji Wan Ali bin W Yusof
Mohd Hafiz bin Adam
Pesaka Trengganu Berhad
Haji Wan Hassan bin Mohd Ramli
Dato’ Ahmad Nadzarudin bin Abdul Razak
Haji Ghazali bin Sulaiman
Haji Zainal Abidin bin Mohamed
Kumpulan Pengurusan Kayu-Kayan Trengganu Sdn. Bhd.
Haji Satiful Bahari bin Mamat
Dato’ Ahmad Nadzarudin bin Abdul Razak
Abdul Hadi bin Ripin @ Ariffin
Mohd Harun bin Esa
Muhamad bin Abdullah
Associate Professor Dr. Mohd Zaki bin Hamzah
Mohd Rahim bin Rani
Dato’ Haji Ahmad Fadzil bin Abdul Majid

(appointed on 2 February 2020)
(appointed on 1 April 2019)
(appointed on 1 April 2019 and resigned on 10 October 2019)
(resigned on 1 April 2019)

Permint Plywood Sdn. Bhd.
Haji Maliaman bin Kassim 		
Dato’ Ahmad Nadzarudin bin Abdul Razak 		
Mohd Badaruddin bin Ismail
(appointed on 1 April 2019)		
Haji Anuar bin Awang
(appointed on 2 February 2020) 		
		
GP Dynamic Venture Sdn. Bhd.		
Dato’ Ahmad Nadzarudin bin Abdul Razak 		
Zulkifli bin Omar 		
Syukri bin Ali 		
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Holding company
The holding company is Terengganu Incorporated Sdn. Bhd., a company incorporated in Malaysia.
Directors’ benefits
Neither at the end of the financial year, nor at any time during that year, did there subsist any arrangement to which the
Company was a party, whereby the directors might acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company or any other body corporate, other than those arising from the share options granted under the Employee Share
Option Scheme (“ESOS”).
Since the end of the previous financial year, no director has received or become entitled to receive a benefit (other than
benefits included in the aggregate amount of emoluments received or due and receivable by the directors or the fixed salary of
a full-time employee of the Company as shown below) by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation
with any director or with a firm of which he is a member, or with a company in which he has a substantial financial interest.
The directors’ benefits are as follows:
			
Group	Company
			RM’000	RM’000
Fees 			
Share option granted under ESOS 			
Other emoluments 			

324
6
997

180
5
367

			

1,327

552

Directors’ interests
According to the register of directors’ shareholdings, the interests of the directors in office at the end of the financial year in
options over shares in the Company and its related corporations during the financial year were as follows:
	Number of options over ordinary shares
			Exercised/
Name of directors
1.1.2019
Granted
lapsed
31.12.2019
Dato’ Haji Tengku Hassan bin Tengku Omar
Dato’ Bentara Dalam Dato’ Haji A. Rahman bin Yahya
Dr. Wan Ahmad Rudirman bin Wan Razak
Associate Professor Dr. Mohd Zaki bin Hamzah
Haji Saiffuddin bin Othman
Muhammad Ramizu bin Mustaffa
Mohd Badaruddin bin Ismail
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-

125,000
100,000
75,000
100,000
75,000
100,000
100,000

-

125,000
100,000
75,000
100,000
75,000
100,000
100,000
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Issue of shares
During the financial year, the Company increased its issued and paid-up capital by way of allotment of 1,019,975 new ordinary
shares pursuant to the vesting of shares under the Executive Share Grant Scheme (“ESGS”). The new ordinary shares rank pari
passu in all respects with the existing ordinary shares of the Company.
Executive Share Grant Scheme (“ESGS”) and Employee Share Options Scheme (“ESOS”)
The Company’s Long Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP” or “Scheme”) is governed by the By-Laws which was approved by the
shareholders on 26 June 2018, and is administered by the LTIP Committee which is appointed by the Board of Directors, in
accordance with the By-Laws of LTIP.
The LTIP comprised of ESGS and ESOS. The salient features, terms and details of the LTIP are disclosed in Note 31 to the
financial statements.
During the financial year, the Company granted 1,270,000 shares under the ESGS and 1,125,000 options under the ESOS to
eligible directors and employees of the Company and/or its eligible subsidiary companies.
Other statutory information
(a)

(b)

Before the statements of comprehensive income and statements of financial position of the Group and of the Company
were made out, the directors took reasonable steps:
(i)

to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the making of provision
for doubtful debts and satisfied themselves that all known bad debts had been written off and that adequate
allowance had been made for doubtful debts; and

(ii)

to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to realise their value as shown in the accounting records in the
ordinary course of business had been written down to an amount which they might be expected so to realise.

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which would render:
(i)

the amount written off for bad debts or the amount of the allowance for doubtful debts inadequate to any substantial
extent; and

(ii)

the values attributed to the current assets in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company
misleading.
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Other statutory information (continued)
(c)

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which have arisen which would render
adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of the Group and of the Company misleading or
inappropriate.

(d)

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise dealt with in this report or the
financial statements of the Group and of the Company which would render any amount stated in the financial statements
misleading.

(e)

At the date of this report, there does not exist:

(f)

(i)

any charge on the assets of the Group or of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial year which
secures the liabilities of any other person; or

(ii)

any contingent liability of the Group or of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial year.

In the opinion of the directors:
(i)

no contingent or other liability has become enforceable or is likely to become enforceable within the period of
twelve months after the end of the financial year which will or may affect the ability of the Group or of the Company
to meet their obligations when they fall due; and

(ii)

no item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature has arisen in the interval between the end of the
financial year and the date of this report which is likely to affect substantially the results of the operations of the
Group or of the Company for the financial year in which this report is made.

Subsequent events 									
										
The details of the subsequent events are disclosed in Note 40 to the financial statements.					
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

Auditors
The auditors, Ernst & Young PLT, have expressed their willingness to continue in office.
Auditors’ remuneration is as follows:
			
			
Ernst & Young PLT

			

Group 	Company
RM’000
RM’000
160

66

To the extent permitted by law, the Company has agreed to indemnify its auditors, Ernst & Young PLT, as part of the terms of
its audit engagement against claims by third parties arising from the audit (for an unspecified amount). No payment has been
made to indemnify Ernst & Young PLT for the financial year ended 31 December 2019.

Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors dated 24 June 2020.

Dato’ Haji Tengku Hassan bin Tengku Omar

Mohd Badaruddin bin Ismail
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Statement by Directors

Pursuant to Section 251(2) of the Companies Act 2016
We, Dato’ Haji Tengku Hassan bin Tengku Omar and Mohd Badaruddin bin Ismail, being two of the directors of
Golden Pharos Berhad, do hereby state that, in the opinion of the directors, the accompanying financial statements set
out on pages 188 to 302 are drawn up in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial
Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2019 and of their financial performance and cash flows
for the year then ended.
Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors dated 24 June 2020.

Dato’ Haji Tengku Hassan bin Tengku Omar

Mohd Badaruddin bin Ismail

Statutory Declaration

Pursuant to Section 251(1)(b) of the Companies Act 2016
I, Syukri bin Ali, being the officer primarily responsible for the financial management of Golden Pharos Berhad, do solemnly
and sincerely declare that the accompanying financial statements set out on pages 188 to 302 are in my opinion correct, and
I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true and by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory
Declarations Act 1960.

Subscribed and solemnly declared by the
abovenamed Syukri bin Ali at Kuala Terengganu
in the state of Terengganu Darul Iman on 24 June 2020.

Before me,

Golden Pharos Berhad

Syukri bin Ali
MIA 23519
(I/C No.: 750701-11-5007)
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Independent Auditors’ Report
to the members of Golden Pharos Berhad (Incorporated in Malaysia)

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Golden Pharos Berhad, which comprise the statements of financial position as
at 31 December 2019 of the Group and of the Company, and statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes
in equity and statements of cash flows of the Group and of the Company for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, as set out on pages 188 to 302.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of
the Company as at 31 December 2019, and of their financial performance and their cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of
the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.
Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on
Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Independence and other ethical responsibilities
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics, Conduct and Practice) of the
Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the By-Laws and the IESBA Code.
Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. For the matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.
We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of
our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to
respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our audit procedures,
including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis of our audit opinion on the accompanying
financial statements.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

to the members of Golden Pharos Berhad (Continued)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Key audit matters (continued)
Revenue recognition
We draw your attention to summary of significant accounting policies in Note 2.22 and the disclosure of revenue in Note 4 to
the financial statements.
For the financial year ended 31 December 2019, the Group recorded revenue of approximately RM57,472,000 mainly derived
from its harvesting, sawmilling, kiln drying of timber, sales of logs and rights to log, and glass manufacturing segments. We
identified revenue as an area of audit focus because of the significance of the amount of the revenue to the Group’s financial
statements at the reporting date. Further, we also assessed the risk of material misstatement in respect of revenue recognition
to be higher as the key performance indicator for the key management personnel are measured based on the financial
performance (where revenue is the key determinant of the overall financial performance) of the Group. Specifically, we focused
our audit efforts to determine the possibility of overstatement of revenue.
In addressing the matter above, we have amongst others performed the following audit procedures:
(i)

Tested the Group’s internal controls over timing and amount of revenue recognised.

(ii)

Inspected the terms of sales documentation to determine the point of transfer of control.

(iii)

Inspected documents which evidenced the delivery of goods to customers.

(iv)

Focused on testing the recording of sales transactions close to the year end, including credit notes issued after year end,
to establish whether the transactions were recorded in the correct accounting period.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries
We draw your attention to summary of significant accounting policies in Note 2.11, significant accounting judgements and
estimates in Note 3.2(f) and the disclosure of investments in subsidiaries in Note 19 to the financial statements.
As at 31 December 2019, the net carrying amount of investments in subsidiaries of the Company stood at approximately
RM76,024,000 of which, RM67,571,000 relates to investment in Permint Timber Corporation Sdn. Bhd. (“PTC”). During the
financial year, the Company has made full reversal of impairment loss in the investment in PTC.
MFRS 136: Impairment of Assets requires the Company to re-assess the recoverable amount of the investments in subsidiaries
as at the reporting date, due to the impairment on the investments in prior financial year. As a result of the assessment, the
Company recorded a reversal of impairment of RM8,729,000 during the financial year.
We focused on this area because of the significance of the carrying amount of the investment in subsidiaries which represents
99% of the total assets of the Company as at the reporting date.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

to the members of Golden Pharos Berhad (Continued)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Key audit matters (continued)
Impairment of investments in subsidiaries (continued)
In addressing the matter above, we have amongst others performed the following audit procedures:
(i)

Obtained an understanding of the relevant internal process in estimating the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs”) or groups of CGUs.

(ii)

Obtained an understanding of the Company’s policies and procedures to identify reverse indications of impairment and
evaluating the assumptions and methodologies used by the Company in performing the assessment.

(iii)

Assessed the adequacy of the Company’s disclosures within the financial statements.

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon
Other information consists of the information included in the Company ’s 2019 Annual Report other than the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon. Management is responsible for the other information. The Company’s 2019 Annual Report is
expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above
when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the Group and of the Company
that give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting
Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. The directors are also responsible for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements of the Group and of the
Company that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s
and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

to the members of Golden Pharos Berhad (Continued)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the Group and of the Company
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
-

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

-

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s and of the
Company’s internal control.

-

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

-

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s or the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements of the Group
and of the Company or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group or
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

-

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements of the Group and of the Company represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

-

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the financial statements of the Group. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

to the members of Golden Pharos Berhad (Continued)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)
We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with the relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
Other matter
This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 266 of the Companies
Act 2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other person for the content
of this report.

Ernst & Young PLT
202006000003 (LLP0022760-LCA) & AF 0039
Chartered Accountants

Muhammad Affan bin Daud
No. 03063/02/2022 J
Chartered Accountant

Kuala Terengganu, Terengganu Darul Iman, Malaysia
24 June 2020

Golden Pharos Berhad

188

Annual Report 2019

Striving towards sustainability

Statements of
Comprehensive Income
For the financial year ended 31 December 2019

Group	Company
	Note
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
		
RM’000 	RM’000
RM’000	RM’000
			
(Restated) 		
(Restated)
57,472

70,399

5,332

3,812

(49,660)

(56,035)

-

-

Gross profit 		
7,812
14,364
5,332

3,812

Other items of income
Interest income
Dividend income
Other income

44
8,760

6,394

Revenue

4

Cost of sales 		

5
6
7

Other items of expense
Selling and distribution expenses 		
Administrative expenses 		
Finance costs
8
Other expenses 		
Share of results of an associate 		

429
68
438

366
67
313

(1,444)
(15,922)
(350)
(205)
197

(1,674)
(15,421)
(141)
(215)
42

(8,971)
(23)
-

(4,924)
(13)
-

9

(8,977)

(2,299)

5,142

5,269

12

(229)

(593)

-

-

(Loss)/profit net of tax		
(9,206)
(2,892)
			
(Loss)/profit attributable to:			
Owners of the parent		
(9,206)
(2,892)
		

5,142

5,269

5,142

5,269

(Loss)/profit before tax
Income tax expense
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Statements of Comprehensive Income (Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2019

Group	Company
	Note
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
		
RM’000 	RM’000
RM’000	RM’000
			
(Restated) 		
(Restated)
Other comprehensive income:
Items that will be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Net gain/(loss) on fair value
changes of fair value through
other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI”) financial assets
Net gain on remeasurement of
defined benefit obligations

30

848

27

-

(1,069)

-

-

1,203

-

405

-

405

Other comprehensive income,
net of tax		
848
134
Total comprehensive (loss)/
income for the year, net of tax		
(8,358)

(2,758)

5,142

5,674

Total comprehensive (loss)/
income attributable to:
Owners of the parent		

(8,358)

(2,758)

5,142

5,674

(6.79)

(2.14)

Loss per share attributable
to owners of the parent
(sen per share):
Basic

13

Diluted
13
(6.54)
(2.08)
						
					

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory information form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statements of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2019

		Note
31.12.2019
			
RM’000
				

Group
31.12.2018
1.1.2018
RM’000 	RM’000
(Restated)
(Restated)

Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment		
Right-of-use assets		
Investment properties		
Intangible assets		
Goodwill		
Investments in associates		
Deferred tax assets		
Investment securities		

14,984
26,712
18,540
2,405
3,514
1,878
2,211

43,415
19,048
1,184
3,354
1,515
1,364

45,801
19,281
2,099
3,312
789
2,434

			
70,244

69,880

73,716

Current assets
Inventories		
23
Trade and other receivables		
24
Prepayments		
Tax recoverable			
Cash and bank balances		
25

6,298
10,508
2,815
1,590
22,242

7,414
12,878
3,120
852
19,119

7,606
13,740
3,127
2,121
11,413

			
43,453

43,383

38,007

Total assets			 113,697

113,263

111,723

580
2,823
25
30,324
4

992
496
30,600
21

400
837
25,794
15

			
33,756

32,109

27,046

14
15
16
17
18
20
21
22

Equity and liabilities
Current liabilities
Defined benefit obligations		
27
Borrowings		
26
Lease liabilities		
15
Trade and other payables		
28
Tax payable			

Net current assets			 9,697
11,274
10,961
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Statements of Financial Position (Continued)
As at 31 December 2019

Group
		Note
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
1.1.2018
			
RM’000
RM’000 	RM’000
				
(Restated)
(Restated)
			
Equity and liabilities (continued)			
			
Non-current liabilities			
Defined benefit obligations
27
7,332
7,368
8,906
Borrowings
26
9,686
1,271
797
Lease liabilities
15
27
			
		
17,045
8,639
9,703
			
Total liabilities		
50,801
40,748
36,749
			
Net assets		 62,896
72,515
74,974
			
Equity attributable to owners of the parent			
Share capital
29
68,447
68,192
67,898
Retained earnings		
14,936
25,879
27,568
Other reserves
30
(20,487)
(21,556)
(20,521)
			
Equity attributable to owners of the parent		
62,896
72,515
74,945
Non-controlling interest		
29
				
Total equity		
62,896
72,515
74,974
Total equity and liabilities		
113,697
113,263
111,723
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Statements of Financial Position (Continued)
As at 31 December 2019

		Note
31.12.2019
			
RM’000
				
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment		
14
423
Right-of-use assets		
15
108
Investment properties		
16
Investments in subsidiaries		
19
76,024
			
			
76,555

Company
31.12.2018
1.1.2018
RM’000 	RM’000
(Restated)
(Restated)

574
68,370

514
7,293
64,940

68,944

72,747

Current assets
Other receivables		
24
1,780
Prepayments			
2
Cash and bank balances		
25
4,643
			
			
6,425

12,171
2
1,318

4,001
2
88

13,491

4,091

Total assets			
82,980

82,435

76,838

24
84
36
26,744

144
29,896

106
30,069

			
26,888

30,040

30,175

Net current liabilities			
(20,463)

(16,549)

(26,084)

Equity and liabilities
Current liabilities
Defined benefit obligations		
Borrowings		
Lease liabilities		
Other payables		

Non-current liabilities
Defined benefit obligations		
Borrowings		
Lease liabilities		

27
26
15
28

227
168
72

237
233
-

566
145
-

			
467

470

711

Total liabilities			
27,355

30,510

30,886

Net assets			
55,625

51,925

45,952

27
26
15
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Statements of Financial Position (Continued)
As at 31 December 2019

Company
		Note
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
1.1.2018
			
RM’000
RM’000 	RM’000
				
(Restated)
(Restated)
				
Equity and liabilities (continued)					
					
Equity attributable to owners of the Company					
Share capital		
29
68,447
68,192
67,898
Accumulated losses			
(13,834)
(17,239)
(22,913)
Other reserves		
30
1,012
972
967
					
Total equity			
55,625
51,925
45,952
					
Total equity and liabilities			
82,980
82,435
76,838
					

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory information form an integral part of the financial statements.

Golden Pharos Berhad

Opening balance at 1 January 2019,
as restated		
72,515
68,192
25,879 (21,556)
			 		
Loss for the year		
(9,206)
(9,206)
		
		
Other comprehensive income
		
		
Net gain on fair value changes of
FVTOCI financial assets
30
848
848
			 		
Total comprehensive (loss)/income		
(8,358)
(9,206)
848
			 		
Transactions with owners			 		
Issuance of ordinary shares: Exercise
of ESGS
29
255
255
Share-based payment under the LTIP:
Grant of ESOS
30
221
221
Dividend
38
(1,737)
(1,737)
			 		
Total transactions with owners		
(1,261)
255
(1,737)
221
			 		
Closing balance at 31 December 2019		 62,896
68,447
14,936 (20,487)

Group			 		
			 		
Opening balance at 1 January 2019,
as previously stated		
75,641
68,192
29,005 (21,556)
Prior year adjustments
39
(3,126)
(3,126)
-

(134)
-

848
848

714

-

-

1,262

(134)
-

1,262

1,262
-

(22,718)

-

255

221

221
-

-

-

-

-

34

34
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Employee
share	Nonoptions controlling
reserve
interest
RM’000
RM’000

Annual Report 2019

-

-

-

-

-

(22,718)

(22,718)
-

Attributable to owners of the parent
	NonDistridistributable
butable 	Non-distributable
						
Equity 		
						
contri-		Reserve
					Other
bution Fair value
arising
		
Equity,
Share
Retained
reserves,
from adjustment
from
		
total
capital
earnings
total
owners
reserve
merger
	Note
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
		
		
(Note 29) 		 (Note 30)
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Statements of Changes in Equity

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019

(2,758)

Total comprehensive loss		

Closing balance at 31 December 2018		

Total transactions with owners
72,515

299

34
(29)

1,203

27

30

(1,069)

30

Other comprehensive income
Net loss on fair value changes of
FVTOCI financial assets
Net gain on remeasurement on
defined benefit obligations

294

(2,892)

Loss for the year, as restated		

29

74,974

As at 1 January 2018, as restated

Transactions with owners
Issuance of ordinary shares:
Exercise of ESGS
Share-based payment under the LTIP:
Grant of ESOS
Acquisition of non-controlling interest

74,357
617

Opening balance at 1 January 2018,
as previously stated		
Prior year adjustments
39

Group (continued)

68,192

294

-

294

-

-

-

-

67,898

67,898
-

25,879

-

-

-

(1,689)

1,203

-

(2,892)

27,568

26,951
617

(21,556)

34

34
-

-

(1,069)

-

(1,069)

-

(20,521)

(20,521)
-

1,262

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,262

1,262
-

(134)

-

-

-

(1,069)

-

(1,069)

-

935

935
-

(22,718)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(22,718)

(22,718)
-

34

34

34
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(29)

(29)

-

-

-

-

-

29

29
-

Attributable to owners of the parent
	NonDistridistributable
butable
Non-distributable			
			Equity 		
						
contri-		Reserve Employee
					Other
bution Fair value
arising
share	Non		
Equity,
Share
Retained
reserves,
from adjustment
from
options controlling
		
total
capital
earnings
total
owners
reserve
merger
reserve
interest
	Note
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
		
(Note 29) 		 (Note 30)
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Statements of Changes in Equity (Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2019
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39

(1,737)
(13,834)

255

(1,442)

Total transactions with owners		

Closing balance at 31 December 2019		
55,625
68,447

(1,737)

-

40
(1,737)

-

5,142

(17,239)

(39,254)
22,015

30
38

255

-

68,192

68,192
-

255

5,142

51,925

29,910
22,015

29

Transactions with owners
Issuance of ordinary shares: Exercise of ESGS
Share-based payment under the LTIP:
Grant of ESOS
Dividend

Profit for the year, representing total
comprehensive income		

As at 1 January 2018, as restated

Opening balance at 1 January 2019,
as restated
Prior year adjustment

1,012

40

40
-

-

-

972

972
-

967

-

-

-

-

967

967
-

45

40

40
-

-

-

5

5
-

Non-distributable
						Equity
						
contri- 	Employee
						
bution
share
		
Equity,
Share
Accumulated
Other
from
options
		
total
capital
losses
reserve
owners
reserve
	Note
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000 	RM’000
		
(Note 29) 		 (Note 30)
Company
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2019
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The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory information form an integral part of the financial statements.

5

Closing balance at 31 December 2018		
51,925
68,192
(17,239)
972
967
						

-

5

294

-

299

Total transactions with owners

-

-

-

-

5

-

-

967

967
-

-

-

-

-

967

967
-

Transaction with owners							
Issuance of ordinary shares: Exercise of ESGS
29
294
294
Share-based payment under the LTIP:
Grant of ESOS
5
5
-

5,674

405

5,269

(22,913)

(42,898)
19,985

-

-

-

-

67,898

67,898
-

-

5,674

Total comprehensive income		

5,269

Profit for the year, as restated
Other comprehensive income
Net gain on remeasurement on defined
benefit obligations
405

45,952

As at 1 January 2018, as restated

27

25,967
19,985

Opening balance at 1 January 2018,
as previously stated		
Prior year adjustment
39

Non-distributable
						Equity
						
contri- 	Employee
						
bution
share
		
Equity,
Share
Accumulated
Other
from
options
		
total
capital
losses
reserve
owners
reserve
	Note
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000 	RM’000
		
(Note 29) 		 (Note 30)
Company (continued)
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Statements of Cash Flows
For the financial year ended 31 December 2019

Group
	Note
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
		
RM’000
RM’000
			
(Restated)
Cash flows from operating activities
(Loss)/profit before tax		
(8,977)
(2,299)
Adjustments for:
Dividend income from:
- Subsidiaries
4
- Investment securities
6
Profit and interest income from deposits
with licensed banks
5
Profit income from Al-Mudharabah
7
Reversal of allowance for impairment on
trade receivables
7
Reversal of impairment losses on
investments in subsidiaries
7
Finance costs
8
Depreciation of:
- Property, plant and equipment
9
- Right-of-use assets
9
- Investment properties
9
Amortisation of intangible assets
9
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
9
Gain on disposal of investment properties
9
Property, plant and equipment written off
9
Inventories written off
9
Allowance for impairment on:
- Trade receivables
9
- Other receivables
9
Impairment losses on
investments in subsidiaries
9
Share of results of an associate 		
Share-based payment under the LTIP:
- Exercise of ESGS
10
- Grant of ESOS
10
Provision for defined benefit obligations
10
Provision for short-term accumulating
compensated absences
10
Total adjustments

Golden Pharos Berhad

Company
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
RM’000
RM’000
(Restated)
5,142

5,269

(68)

(67)

(2,953)
-

(1,467)
-

(429)
(30)

(366)
(58)

(44)
-

(5)

-

(55)

-

350

141

2,698
779
508
2,611

3,566
233
2,611

196
72
-

173
146
-

(63)
71

(190)
87
-

-

45
(3,003)
-

17
21

6
44

3,309

239

(42)

1,075
-

-

(197)

(8,729)
23

(3,430)
13

255
221
803

294
34
1,109

255
40
42

294
5
76

94

94

11

10

7,641

7,441

(6,703)

(6,904)
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Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2019

Group
	Note
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
		
RM’000
RM’000
			
(Restated)
Operating cash flows before changes
in working capital		 (1,336)
Changes in working capital:
Increase in inventories		
Decrease/(increase) in trade and
other receivables		
Decrease in prepayments		
(Decrease)/increase in trade
and other payables		
Total changes in working capital		

5,142

(1,561)

(1,635)

1,045

192

-

2,332
305

(857)
7

7,082
-

(426)
-

4,712

(3,157)

(183)

4,054

3,925

(609)

9,196
58
(50)
284
(661)
(514)

2,364
(28)

(2,244)
5
-

2,336

(2,239)

(370)
3,312

Cash flows from/(used in) operations		
1,976
Profit received from Al-Mudharabah		
30
Finance costs paid		
(307)
Income taxes refunded		
944
Income taxes paid		
(2,250)
Defined benefit paid
27
(1,251)

Net cash flows (used in)/from
operating activities		
(858)
8,313
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
14
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment		
Proceeds from disposal of investment
properties		
Addition of right-use-assets		
Addition of intangible assets
17
Placement of deposits with licensed banks		
Withdrawal of deposits with licensed banks		
Net cash outflow on acquisition of
non-controlling interest		
Dividend received from:
- Subsidiaries		
- Investment securities		
Profit and interest received		

Company
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
RM’000
RM’000
(Restated)

(1,295)
110
(3,832)
(200)
68
429

(998)
190
3,490
(3,701)
12
(29)
67
366

(45)
(200)
-

-

(37)
1
2,150
-

-

-

2,953
44

1,467
-

Net cash flows (used in)/from						
investing activities		
(4,720)
(603)
2,752
3,581
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Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2019

Group
	Note
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
		
RM’000
RM’000
			
(Restated)
Cash flows from financing activities
Contractual lease payments
Dividend paid on ordinary shares
Drawdown of borrowings
Repayments of borrowings
Repayments of obligations under
finance leases
Interest paid

15
38

Net cash flows from/(used in)
financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

25

Company
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
RM’000
RM’000
(Restated)

(30)
(1,737)
9,743
(506)

1,436
(552)

(78)
(1,737)
-

(282)
(43)

(785)
(91)

(125)
(23)

(100)
(12)

(1,963)

(112)

7,145

8

1,567
18,079

7,718
10,361

3,125
1,318

1,230
88

19,646

18,079

4,443

1,318

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory information form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019

1. 	Corporate information
The Company is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia, and is listed on the
Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. The registered office of the Company is located at Wisma TI,
PT 3071, Chendering, 21080 Kuala Terengganu, Terengganu Darul Iman.
The principal place of business of the Company is located at 66-2, Taman Sri Intan, Jalan Sultan Omar, 20300
Kuala Terengganu, Terengganu Darul Iman.
The holding company is Terengganu Incorporated Sdn. Bhd., a company incorporated in Malaysia.
The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and provision of management services to the subsidiaries.
The principal activities of the subsidiaries are manufacturing and trading of glass, investment holding, sawmiling,
moulding, producing finger joint and furniture and kiln drying, harvesting and sustainable forest management, and rental
of buildings, plant and machinery, sales of logs and right to log, and manufacture and sale of veneer.
There have been no significant changes in the nature of the principal activities during the financial year.
Other information relating to the subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 19 to the financial statements.
2. 	Summary of significant accounting policies
2.1 Basis of preparation
The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Malaysian
Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRS”), International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and the requirements
of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.
The financial statements of the Group and of the Company are prepared under the historical cost convention except
as disclosed in the summary of significant accounting policies.
The financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”) and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (RM’000) except when otherwise indicated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2019

2.	Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.2	Changes in accounting policies
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except as follows:
On 1 January 2019, the Group and the Company adopted the following new and amended MFRSs and interpretation
mandatory for annual financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.
		
		
Description
Amendments to MFRS 9: Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation
MFRS 16: Leases
Amendments to MFRS 119: Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement
IC Interpretation 23: Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2015 – 2017 Cycle
- Amendments to MFRS 3: Business Combinations: Previously held
interests in a joint operation
- Amendments to MFRS 11: Joint Arrangements: Previously held
interests in a joint operation
- Amendments to MFRS 112: Income Taxes: Income tax consequences
of payments on financial instruments classified as equity
- Amendments to MFRS 123: Borrowing Costs: Borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation

Effective for annual
periods beginning
on or after

1 January 2019
1 January 2019
1 January 2019
1 January 2019

1 January 2019
1 January 2019
1 January 2019
1 January 2019

The adoption of standards and interpretation above did not have any material impact on the financial statements of
the Group and of the Company except for the following:
MFRS 16: Leases
MFRS 16: Leases (“MFRS 16”) replaces MFRS 117: Leases (“MFRS 117”), IC Interpretation 4: Determining whether
an Arrangement contains a Lease (“IC 4”), IC Interpretation 115: Operating Lease-Incentives (“IC 115”) and IC
Interpretation 127: Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease (“IC 127”). MFRS 16
sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees
to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to the accounting for finance leases under
MFRS 117.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019

2.	Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.2	Changes in accounting policies (continued)
MFRS 16: Leases (continued)
Classification of cash flows will also be affected as operating lease payments under MFRS 117 are presented
as operating cash flows, whereas under MFRS 16, the lease payments will be split into a principal (which will be
presented as financing cash flows) and an interest portion (which will be presented as operating cash flows).
Lessor accounting under MFRS 16 is substantially the same as the accounting under MFRS 117. Lessors will continue
to classify all leases using the same classification principle as in MFRS 117 and distinguish between two (2) types of
leases: operating and finance leases. MFRS 16 also requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures
than under MFRS 117.
Transition to MFRS 16
The Group and the Company adopted MFRS 16 on 1 January 2019, using the modified retrospective method and
did not restate comparative information. The Group and the Company recognised the right-of-use assets at an
amount equal to the lease liabilities at the date of initial application. The Group and the Company also elected to
apply the standard to contracts that were previously identified as leases applying MFRS 117 and IFRIC 4. Therefore,
the Group and the Company did not apply the standard to contracts that were not previously identified as containing
a lease applying MFRS 117 and IFRIC 4.
The Group and the Company elected to use the exemptions proposed by the standard on lease contracts for which
the lease terms ends within twelve months as of the date of initial application, and lease contracts for which the
underlying asset is of low value.
For leases where the Group and the Company are lessee, the Group and the Company elected not to separate
the non-lease components from lease components, and instead accounted for both components as a single lease
component.
Below is the impact of adopting MFRS 16 to opening balances to the Group and the Company:
Increase/(decrease)
			
Group 	Company
			RM’000 	RM’000
Statements of financial position
Right-of-use assets (non-current)			
Property, plant and equipment (non-current)			
Lease liabilities (current and non-current)			

27,491
(27,412)
(79)

180
(180)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2019

2.	Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.2	Changes in accounting policies (continued)
MFRS 16: Leases (continued)
Reconciliation for the differences between operating lease commitments disclosed as at 31 December 2018 and
lease liabilities recognised at the date of initial application of 1 January 2019 are as follows:
			
Group	Company
			RM’000	RM’000

2.3

Operating lease commitments as at 31 December 2018 			
Effects from discounting at the incremental borrowing
rate (“IBR”) of 5.0%			

82

186

(3)

(6)

Lease liabilities recognised as at 1 January 2019 			

79

180

Standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective
The standards and interpretations that are issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the Group’s and
of the Company’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Group and the Company intend to adopt these
standards, if applicable, when they become effective.
		Effective for annual
		
periods beginning
Description
on or after
Amendments to MFRS 2: Share-Based Payments
Amendments to MFRS 3: Business Combinations: Definition of a Business
Amendments to MFRS 6: Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources
Amendments to MFRS 14: Regulatory Deferral Accounts
Amendments to MFRS 108: Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors: Definition of Material
Amendments to MFRS 134: Interim Financial Reporting
Amendments to MFRS 137: Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Asset
Amendments to MFRS 138: Intangible Assets
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019

2.	Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.3 	Standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective (continued)

		
Description
Amendments to MFRS 9: Financial Instruments, MFRS 139:
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurements and
MFRS 7: Financial Instruments: Disclosure - Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
Amendments to IC Interpretation 12: Service Concession Arrangements
Amendments to IC Interpretation 20: Stripping Costs in the
Production Phase of a Surface Mine
Amendments to IC Interpretation 22: Foreign Currency
Transactions and Advance Consideration
Amendments to IC Interpretation 132: Intangible Assets Web Site Costs
Amendment to MFRS 16: Leases - Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions
MFRS 17: Insurance Contracts
Amendments to MFRS 101: Presentation of Financial Statements
- Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
Amendments to MFRSs contained in the document entitled
“Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 2018–2020”
Amendments to MFRS 3: Business Combinations - Reference
to the Conceptual Framework
Amendments to MFRS 116: Property, Plant and Equipment - Property,
Plant and Equipment - Proceeds before Intended Use
Amendments to MFRS 137: Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets - Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract
Amendments to MFRS 10 and MFRS 128: Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

Effective for annual
periods beginning
on or after

1 January 2020
1 January 2020
1 January 2020
1 January 2020
1 January 2020
1 June 2020
1 January 2021
1 January 2022
1 January 2022
1 January 2022
1 January 2022
1 January 2022
Deferred

The initial application of the standards and interpretations is not expected to have any material financial impact to
the current period or prior period financial statements of the Group and of the Company.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2019

2.	Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.4	Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries as at
the reporting date. The financial statements of the subsidiaries used in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements are prepared for the same reporting date as the Company. Consistent accounting policies are applied
to like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
The Company controls an investee if and only if the Company has all the following:
(a)
(b)
(c)

Power over the investee (i.e existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee);
Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its investment with the investee; and
The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

When the Company has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, the Company considers the following
in assessing whether or not the Company’s voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power over the
investee:
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

The size of the Company’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other
vote holders;
Potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote holders or other parties;
Rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
Any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Company has, or does not have, the current
ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at
previous shareholders’ meetings.

Subsidiaries are consolidated when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Company
loses control of the subsidiary. All intra-group balances, income and expenses and unrealised gains and losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full.
Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non-controlling interests even if that results in a deficit balance.
Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the noncontrolling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. The resulting
difference is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019

2.	Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.4	Basis of consolidation (continued)
When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interest, is recognised in profit or
loss. The subsidiary’s cumulative gain or loss which has been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit or loss or where applicable, transferred directly to retained earnings.
The fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date control is lost is regarded as the cost
on initial recognition of the investment.
	Business combinations
Acquisitions of subsidiaries are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured
as the aggregate of the consideration transferred, measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree. The Group elects on a transaction-by-transaction basis whether to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. Transaction costs incurred are expensed and included in administrative expenses.
When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the
acquiree.
If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date through profit or loss.
Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument and within the scope
of MFRS 9: Financial Instruments (“MFRS 9”), is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in accordance with MFRS 9. Other contingent consideration that is not within the scope of
MFRS 9 is measured at fair value at each reporting date with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If
this consideration is lower than fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised in
profit or loss. The accounting policy for goodwill is set out in Note 2.7.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2019

2.	Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.5	Subsidiaries
A subsidiary is an entity over which the Group has all the following:
(a)
(b)
(c)

Power over the investee (i.e existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee);
Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its investment with the investee; and
The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

In the Company’s separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment
losses. On disposal of such investments, the difference between net disposal proceeds and their carrying amounts
is included in profit or loss.
2.6	Investments in associates
An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those policies.
On acquisition of an investment in associate, any excess of the cost of investment over the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill and included in the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee over the cost of investment is excluded from the carrying amount of the investment and is
instead included as income in the determination of the Group’s share of the associate’s profit or loss for the period
in which the investment is acquired.
An associate is equity accounted for from the date on which the investee becomes an associate.
Under the equity method, on initial recognition the investment in an associate is recognised at cost, and the carrying
amount is increased or decreased to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate after the date of acquisition. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equal or
exceeds its interest in the associate, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.
Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream transactions between the Group and its associate are
recognised in the Group’s financial statements only to the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate.
Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019

2.	Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.6	Investments in associates (continued)
After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an additional
impairment loss on the Group’s investment in its associates. The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its
carrying value and recognises the amount in profit or loss.
The financial statements of the associates are prepared as of the same reporting date as the Company. Where
necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.
In the Company’s separate financial statements, investments in associates are accounted for at cost less impairment
losses. On disposal of such investments, the difference between net disposal proceeds and their carrying amounts
is included in profit or loss.
2.7 Goodwill
Goodwill is initially measured at cost. Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.
The cash-generating units to which goodwill have been allocated is tested for impairment annually and whenever
there is an indication that the cash-generating unit may be impaired. Impairment is determined for goodwill by
assessing the recoverable amount of each cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised for goodwill are not reversed in
subsequent periods.
Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that cash-generating unit
is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance
is measured based on the relative fair values of the operations disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating
unit retained.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2019

2.	Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.8 Property, plant and equipment
All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment is recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Subsequent to recognition, property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be
replaced in intervals, the Group and the Company recognise such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciation, respectively. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying
amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
Leasehold land is depreciated over the period of lease ranging from 30 years to 99 years. Freehold land has an
unlimited useful life and therefore is not depreciated. Work-in-progress included in property, plant and equipment
are not depreciated as these are assets not yet available for use. Depreciation of other property, plant and equipment
is provided for on a straight-line basis to write off the cost of each asset to its residual value over the estimated useful
lives of the assets, at the following annual rates and useful life:
Buildings
Plant and machinery
Furniture, fittings and equipment
Motor vehicles
Road and bridge

2% 5% 5% 10% 5% -

5%
20%
20%
20%
20%

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.
The residual value, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year-end, and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on derecognition of the asset is included in the profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019

2.	Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.9	Investment properties
Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including transaction costs. Investment properties are measured
using cost model. Thus, subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Investment properties are derecognised when either they have been disposed of or when the investment property
is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss
on the retirement or disposal of an investment property is recognised in profit or loss in the year of retirement or
disposal.
Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer from investment
property to owner-occupied property, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value at the date of
change in use. For a transfer from owner-occupied property to investment property, the property is accounted for
in accordance with the accounting policy for property, plant and equipment set out in Note 2.8 up to the date of
change in use.
2.10	Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured initially at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is their fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial acquisition, intangible assets
are measured at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised over the estimated useful lives and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method are reviewed at least at each financial year-end. Changes in the expected useful life or the
expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing
the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The
amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in profit or loss.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives or not yet available for use are tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently if the events and circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired either individually or
at the cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset
with an indefinite useful life is reviewed annually to determine whether the useful life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.
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2.	Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.10	Intangible assets (continued)
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.
2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets
The Group and the Company assess at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, or when an annual impairment assessment for an asset is required, the
Group and the Company make an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. For the
purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units (“CGU”)).
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount,
the asset is written down to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of a CGU or groups
of CGUs are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to those units or groups of
units and then, to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit or groups of units on a pro-rata basis.
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.
An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable
amount. That increase cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation,
had no impairment loss been recognised previously. Such reversal is recognised in profit or loss, unless the asset
is measured at revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. Impairment loss on
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.
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2.	Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.12 Financial assets
Financial assets are recognised in the statements of financial position when, and only when, the Group and the
Company become a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
(a)	Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”), and fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”).
The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash
flow characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing them.
With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which
the Group has applied the practical expedient, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair value
plus, in the case of a financial asset not at FVTPL, transaction costs.
Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied
the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under MFRS 15.
In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI, it needs to give rise
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding.
This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level.
The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in
order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place (“regular way trades”) are recognised on the trade date, that is
the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
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2.	Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.12 Financial assets (continued)
(b)	Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four (4) categories:
(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
Financial assets at FVTOCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)
Financial assets designated at FVTOCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon
derecognition (equity instruments)
Financial assets at FVTPL

The Group does not have any financial assets at FVTOCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt
instruments) or financial assets at FVTPL.
Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
This category is the most relevant to the Group and the Company. The Group and the Company measure
financial assets at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:
-

The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

-

The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPI on
the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (“EIR”) method and
are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised,
modified or impaired.
The Group’s and the Company’s financial assets at amortised cost comprises trade and other receivables,
and cash and bank balances.
Financial assets designated at FVTOCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon
derecognition (equity instruments)
Upon initial recognition, the Group and the Company can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments
as equity instruments designated at FVTOCI when they meet the definition of equity under IAS 32: Financial
Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is determined in an instrument-byinstrument basis.
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2. 	Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.12 Financial assets (continued)
(b)	Subsequent measurement (continued)
Financial assets designated at FVTOCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon
derecognition (equity instruments) (continued)
Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as
other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been established, except when
the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case,
such gains are recorded in other comprehensive income. Equity instruments designated at FVTOCI are not
subject to impairment assessment.
(c)

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s and the Company’s statements of financial position)
when:
(i)

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

(ii)

The Group and the Company have transferred their rights to receive cash flows from the asset or have
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party
under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either: (a) the Group and the Company have transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group and the Company have neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but have transferred control
of the asset.

When the Group and the Company have transferred their rights to receive cash flows from an asset or have
entered into a pass-through arrangement, they evaluate if, and to what extent, they have retained the risks
and rewards of ownership. When they have neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group and the Company continue to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement. In that case, the Group and the Company
also recognise an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group and the Company have retained.
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
and the Company would be required to repay.
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2. 	Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.13 Impairment of financial assets
The Group and the Company recognise an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments
not held at FVTPL. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group and the Company expect to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.
ECLs are recognised in two (2) stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12-months (a 12-months ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected
over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).
For trade receivables, the Group and the Company apply a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore,
the Group and the Company do not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group and the Company have established a provision matrix that is
based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.
The Group and the Company consider a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 365 days past
due. However, in certain cases, the Group and the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default
when internal or external information indicates that the Group and the Company are unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Group
and the Company. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.
2.14	Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and short-term deposits in the statements of financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and
short-term deposits with a maturity of three months or less.
For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits,
as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdraft.
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2. 	Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.15	Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition are accounted for as follows:
-

Raw materials and consumable materials: purchase costs on a first-in first-out basis.

-

Finished goods and work-in-progress: costs of direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing
overheads based on normal operating capacity.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
2.16 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group and the Company have a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the obligation
and the amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably.
Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer
probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.
If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre tax rate that
reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.
2.17 Financial liabilities
(a)	Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVTPL and loans and borrowings.
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.
The Group’s and the Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, and loans
and borrowings.
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2. 	Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.17 Financial liabilities (continued)
(b)	Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated
upon initial recognition as at FVTPL.
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing
in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments that are not designated as
hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by MFRS 9. Separated embedded derivatives are
also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.
Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at FVTPL are designated at the initial date of
recognition, and only if the criteria in MFRS 9 are satisfied. The Group has not designated any financial
liabilities at FVTPL.
Other financial liabilities
The Group’s and the Company’s other financial liabilities include trade and other payables, and loans and
borrowings.
This is the category most relevant to the Group and the Company. After initial recognition, trade and other
payables, and loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the effective interest rate amortisation process.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
(c)

Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the profit or loss.
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2. 	Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.18 Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
2.19 Financial guarantee contracts
A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantees are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, financial guarantees are recognised
as income in profit or loss over the period of the guarantee. If it is probable that the liability will be higher than
the amount initially recognised less amortisation, the liability is recorded at the higher amount with the difference
charged to profit or loss.
2.20 Employee benefits
(a)

Short-term benefits
Wages, salaries, bonuses and social security contributions are recognised as an expense in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees of the Group and the Company. Short-term accumulating
compensated absences such as paid annual leave are recognised when services are rendered by employees
that increase their entitlement to future compensated absences, and short-term non-cumulating compensated
absences such as sick leave are recognised when the absences occur.

(b)

Defined contribution plans
The Group and the Company participate in the national pension schemes as defined by the laws of the
countries in which it has operations. The Malaysian companies in the Group make contributions to the
Employee Provident Fund in Malaysia, a defined contribution pension scheme. Contributions to defined
contribution pension schemes are recognised as an expense in the period in which the related service is
performed.

(c)

Defined benefit plans
The net defined benefit liability or asset is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit obligation
(derived using a discount rate based on high quality corporate bonds) at the end of the reporting period
reduced by the fair value of plan assets (if any), adjusted for any effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset
to the asset ceiling. The asset ceiling is the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of
refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan.
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2. 	Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.20 Employee benefits (continued)
(c)

Defined benefit plans (continued)
The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plans is determined separately for each plan using
the projected unit credit method.
Defined benefit costs comprise the following:
-

Service cost
Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset
Remeasurements of net defined benefit liability or asset

Service costs which include current service costs, past service costs and gains or losses on non-routine
settlements are recognised as expense in profit or loss. Past service costs are recognised when plan
amendment or curtailment occurs.
Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is the change during the period in the net defined
benefit liability or asset that arises from the passage of time which is determined by applying the discount
rate based on high quality corporate bonds to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Net interest on the net
defined benefit liability or asset is recognised as expense or income in profit or loss.
Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and losses, return on plan assets and any change in the effect
of the asset ceiling (excluding net interest on defined benefit liability) are recognised immediately in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. Remeasurements are recognised in retained
earnings within equity and are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.
Plan assets are assets that are held by a long-term employee benefit fund or qualifying insurance policies.
Plan assets are not available to the creditors of the Group, nor can they be paid directly to the Group. Fair
value of plan assets is based on market price information. When no market price is available, the fair value
of plan assets is estimated by discounting expected future cash flows using a discount rate that reflects both
the risk associated with the plan assets and the maturity or expected disposal date of those assets (or, if they
have no maturity, the expected period until the settlement of the related obligations).
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2. 	Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.20 Employee benefits (continued)
(c)

Defined benefit plans (continued)
The Group’s and the Company’s right to be reimbursed of some or all of the expenditure required to settle a
defined benefit obligation is recognised as a separate asset at fair value when and only when reimbursement
is virtually certain.

(d)

Termination benefits
Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated before the normal retirement date or
whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Group and the
Company recognise termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to either to terminate the
employment of current employees according to the detailed plan without possibility of withdrawal; or
providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. In the case
of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the measurement of termination benefits is based on
the number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the
reporting date are discounted to present value.

(e)	Share-based payment transactions
The Group and Company operate an equity-settled share-based long term incentive plan (“LTIP” or “Scheme”)
which comprises the Executive Share Grant Scheme (“ESGS”) and Employee Share Option Scheme (“ESOS”)
for its employees.
ESGS
Managerial employees are entitled to ESGS when the Vesting Conditions are fully and duly satisfied pursuant
to By-Laws 13.1.
The ESGS are settled by way of issuance and transfer of new shares upon vesting. The total fair value of ESGS
granted is recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding increase in the share options reserve within
equity over the vesting period after taking into account the probability that the ESGS will vest.
At each reporting date, the Group and the Company revise its estimates of the number of ESGS that are
expected to vest on vesting date. It recognises the impact of the revision of original estimates, if any, in profit
or loss and a corresponding adjustment to equity over the remaining vesting period. The equity amount is
recognised in the share-based payment reserve.
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2. 	Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.20 Employee benefits (continued)
(e)	Share-based payment transactions (continued)
ESOS
The ESOS allows the Group’s and the Company’s employees to acquire shares of the Company. The total fair
value of share options granted is recognised as an employee cost with the corresponding increase in share
options reserve within equity over the vesting period and taking into account the probability that the options
will vest.
The fair value of share options is measured at grant date using the binominal model, taking into account, if
any, the market vesting conditions upon which the options were granted but excluding the impact of any
non-market vesting conditions. Non-market conditions are included in assumptions about the number of
options that are expected to become exercisable on vesting date.
At each reporting date, the Group and the Company revise its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to become exercisable on vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision of original
estimates. If any, in profit or loss and a corresponding adjustment to equity over the remaining vesting period.
The equity amount is recognised in the share-based payment reserve.
The fair value of the share options recognised in the share-based payment reserve is transferred to share
capital when the share options are exercised, or transferred to retained earnings upon expiry of the sharebased payment options.
The proceeds received net of any direct attributable transactions costs are credited to equity when the option
are exercised.
2.21	Leases
Accounting policies applied from 1 January 2019
(i)	As lessee
The Group and the Company apply a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except
for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group and the Company recognise lease liabilities
to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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2. 	Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.21	Leases (continued)
Accounting policies applied from 1 January 2019 (continued)
(i)	As lessee (continued)
Right-of-use assets
The Group and the Company recognise a right-of-use assets at the lease commencement date. The right-ofuse assets are initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liabilities adjusted
for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and
an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or site
on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.
The right-of-use assets are subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement
date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use assets or the end of the lease term. The
estimated useful lives of the right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant
and equipment, as follows:
Leasehold land
Buildings

30 - 99 years
2 years

Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the right-of-use assets is assessed and
written down immediately to its recoverable amount. The policy for the recognition and measurement of
impairment losses is in accordance with Note 2.11.
Lease liabilities
At the commencement date of the lease, the Group and the Company recognise lease liabilities measured
at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain
to be exercised by the Group and the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group and the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce
inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.
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2. 	Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.21	Leases (continued)
Accounting policies applied from 1 January 2019 (continued)
(i)	As lessee (continued)
Lease liabilities (continued)
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group and the Company use the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease
liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments
(e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease
payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.
The Group and the Company apply the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of
equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of twelve (12) months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption
to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and
leases of low value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
(ii)	As lessor
Leases in which the Group and the Company do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to
its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.
Accounting policies applied until 31 December 2018
(i)	As lessee
Leasehold land classified as property, plant and equipment
Leasehold land is initially measured at cost. Following initial recognition, leasehold land is measured at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. The leasehold land is amortised over the
lease terms of 30 to 99 years.
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2. 	Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.21	Leases (continued)
Accounting policies applied until 31 December 2018 (continued)
(i)	As lessee (continued)
Finance leases
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group and the Company assume substantially all
the benefits and risks of ownership are classified as finance leases. Assets acquired under finance lease
arrangements are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of the leased
property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The capital element of the leasing
commitments is shown under borrowings. The lease rentals are treated as consisting of capital and interest
element. The capital element is applied to reduce the outstanding obligations and the interest element is
charged to profit or loss so as to give a constant periodic rate of interest on the outstanding liability at the
end of each accounting period. Assets acquired under finance lease are depreciated or amortised over the
useful lives of equivalent owned assets or its lease term, if shorter.
(ii)	As lessor
Leases of assets where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor
are classified as operating leases.
Lease rental payments on operating leases are charged to profit or loss in the financial period they become
payable, on a straight line basis over the lease term.
When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment required to
be made to the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as an expense in the period in which termination
takes place.
2.22	Revenue
The Group and the Company recognise revenue from contracts with customers based on the five-steps model as
set out below:
(a)

Identify contract with a customer. A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that
creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria that must be met.

(b)

Identify performance obligations in the contract. A performance obligation is a promise in a contract with a
customer to transfer a good or service to the customer.
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2. 	Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.22	Revenue (continued)
The Group and the Company recognise revenue from contracts with customers based on the five-steps model as
set out below (continued):
(c)

Determine the transaction price. The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Group and
the Company expect to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer,
excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

(d)

Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract. For a contract that has more
than one performance obligation, the Group and the Company allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the Group expects
to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation.

(e)

Recognise revenue when (or as) the Group satisfies a performance obligation.

The Group and the Company satisfy a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time if the Group’s
and the Company’s performance:
(a)

Do not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the Company and have an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to-date; or

(b)

Create or enhance an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

(c)

Provide benefits that the customer simultaneously receives and consumes as the Group and the Company
perform.

For performance obligations where any one of the above conditions is not met, revenue is recognised at the point
in time at which the performance obligation is satisfied.
The Group and the Company have generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements because
it typically controls the goods or services before transferring them to the customer.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable.
(a) 	Sale of goods
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time upon control of the goods are transferred to
the customers, generally on delivery of goods.
b) 	Sale of logging compartments
Sale of logging compartments is recognised upon performance obligation stated in the contracts is met and
at the point in time upon control of the goods are transferred to the customers.
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2019

2. 	Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.22	Revenue (continued)
(c) 	Rental income
Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. The aggregate costs of incentives
provided to lessees are recognised as a reduction of rental income over the lease term on a straight-line
basis.
(d)

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the Group’s and the Company’s right to receive payment is established.

(e)

Management fees
Management fees are recognised when services are rendered.

(f)	Interest income
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.
2.23 Income taxes
(a)	Current tax
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date.
Current taxes are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that the tax relates to items recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
(b)

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the reporting date between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences, except:
-

where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

-

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Golden Pharos Berhad

228

Annual Report 2019

Striving towards sustainability

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2019

2. 	Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.23	Income taxes (continued)
(b)

Deferred tax (continued)
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised except:
-

where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

-

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax
assets to be utilised.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.
Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss.
Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity and deferred tax arising from a business combination is adjusted against goodwill
on acquisition.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

Golden Pharos Berhad

Annual Report 2019

Striving towards sustainability

229

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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2. 	Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.24	Segment reporting
For management purposes, the Group is organised into operating segments based on their products and services
which are independently managed by the respective segment managers responsible for the performance of
the respective segments under their charge. The segment managers report directly to the management of the
Company who regularly review the segment results in order to allocate resources to the segments and to assess
the segment performance. Additional disclosures on each of these segments are shown in Note 37, including the
factors used to identify the reportable segments and the measurement basis of segment information.
2.25	Share capital and share issuance expenses
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group and the Company
after deducting all of its liabilities. Ordinary shares are equity instruments.
Ordinary shares are recorded at the proceeds received, net of directly attributable incremental transaction costs.
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the period in
which they are declared.
2.26 Current versus non-current classification
Assets and liabilities in the statements of financial position are presented based on current/non-current
classification. An asset is current when it is:
-

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;
Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or
Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:
It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;
It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
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2. 	Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.27 Fair value measurements
The Group and the Company measure its financial instruments, such as, derivatives, at fair value at each reporting
date. Also, fair values of financial instruments measured at amortised cost are disclosed in Note 34(b).
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
(i)
(ii)

In the principal market for the asset or liability; or
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.
The Group and the Company use valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:
Level 1 -

Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 -

Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 -

Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group and the
Company determine whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.
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2. 	Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.28 Foreign currency
(a)

Functional and presentation currency
The individual financial statements of each entity in the Group and the Company are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”), which is also the
Company’s functional currency.

(b)

Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are measured in the respective functional currencies of the Company
and its subsidiaries and are recorded on initial recognition in the functional currencies at exchange
rates approximating those ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date. Non-monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at historical cost are translated using the
exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions.
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at the
reporting date are recognised in profit or loss.

3.	Significant accounting judgements and estimates
The preparation of the Group’s and the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities at the reporting date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected
in the future.
3.1 Judgements made in applying accounting policies
There were no significant judgements made in applying the accounting policies of the Group and the Company
which may have significant effects of the amounts recognised in the financial statements.
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3.	Significant accounting judgements and estimates (continued)
3.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below.
(a)	Estimated useful lives of plant and machinery
The cost of plant and machinery for the manufacture of glass and wood related products is depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the assets useful lives. Management estimates the useful lives of these plant and
machinery to be within 5 to 20 years. These are common life expectancies applied in the industry. Changes in
the expected level of usage and technological developments could impact the economic useful lives and the
residual values of these assets, therefore, future depreciation charges could be revised.
The net carrying amount of the Group’s plant and machinery at the reporting are disclosed in Note 14.
(b)

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unabsorbed tax losses and unutilised capital allowances to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses and capital allowances
can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies.
Assumptions about generation of future taxable profits depend on management’s estimates of future cash
flows. These depend on estimates of future production and sales volume, operating costs, capital expenditure,
dividends and other capital management transactions. Judgement is also required about application of
income tax legislation. These judgements and assumptions are subject to risks and uncertainty, hence there is
a possibility that changes in circumstances will alter expectations, which may impact the amount of deferred
tax assets recognised in the statement of financial position and the amount of unrecognised tax losses and
capital allowances.
The carrying amount of the Group’s deferred tax assets at the reporting date is disclosed in Note 21.
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3.	Significant accounting judgements and estimates (continued)
3.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
(c)

Provision for expected credit losses (“ECLs”) of trade and other receivables
The Group and the Company use a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade and other receivables. The
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns (e.g. by geography, product type, customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit and
other forms of credit insurance).
The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s and the Company’s historical observed defaults rates.
The Group and the Company will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with
forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast economic condition (e.g gross domestic product)
are expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in the
manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At every reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.
The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may
also not be representative of customer’s actual default in the future.
The information about ECLs in the Group’s trade receivables is disclosed in Note 35(a).

(d)

Defined benefit plan
The cost of defined benefit pension plan is determined using the actuarial valuations. The actuarial valuation
involves making assumptions about discount rates, future salary increases and mortality rates. All assumptions
are reviewed at each reporting date.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s and of the Company’s defined benefit plan at the reporting date and
related assumptions are disclosed in Note 27.
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3.	Significant accounting judgements and estimates (continued)
3.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
(e)	Leases - estimating the incremental borrowing rate
The Group and the Company unable to determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its
incremental borrowing rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group and
the Company would has to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to
obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore
reflects what the Group and the Company ‘would have to pay’, which require estimation when no observable
rates are available or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease. The Group
and the Company estimate the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and
is required to make certain entity-specific estimates.
(f)	Investments in subsidiaries
MFRS 136: Impairment of Assets requires entities to assess at each reporting date whether there is any
indication that an impairment loss may no longer exist or may have decreased. If there is any such indication,
the entity is required to recalculate the recoverable amount of the asset, which is the higher of its fair value less
costs to sell and its value in use.
Judgements made by the management in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies in respect
of investments in subsidiaries includes determination whether reversal of impairment following certain
indications such as, amongst others, evidence from internal reporting that the economic performance of the
subsidiaries is or will be, better than expected.
The carrying amount of the investments in subsidiaries at the reporting date are disclosed in Note 19.
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4.	Revenue

Sale of goods
Sale of logging compartments
Rental income (Note 16)
Dividend income from subsidiaries
Management fees from subsidiaries

Group	Company
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
(Restated)
53,791
68,050
3,583
2,323
98
26
608
2,953
1,467
2,379
1,737
57,472

70,399

5,332

3,812

All revenue are recognised on the products and service transferred at a point in time.
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Group’s revenue from contracts with customers:
Group
For the financial year ended 31 December 2019
Harvesting Manufacturing
Others
Total
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
Primary geographical markets:
Malaysia
United Kingdom
East Asia
Other regions

36,080
387
902

19,653
352

98
-

55,831
387
1,254

Total revenue from contracts with customers

37,369

20,005

98

57,472

Major product or service line:
Logs
Logging compartments
Sawn timbers
Mouldings
Woodchips
Veneer
Karas
Manufactured glasses
Rental income

645
3,583
32,203
938
-

1,222
1,054
83
17,646
-

98

645
3,583
32,203
938
1,222
1,054
83
17,646
98

Total revenue from contracts with customers

37,369

20,005

98

57,472
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4.	Revenue (continued)			
			
Group 		
For the financial year ended 31 December 2018
Harvesting Manufacturing
Others
Total
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
			
Primary geographical markets:			
Malaysia
44,932
23,563
26
68,521
United Kingdom
683
683
East Asia
74
74
Other regions
465
656
1,121
Total revenue from contracts with customers
46,154
24,219
26
			
Major product or service line:			
Logs
345
Logging compartments
2,323
Sawn timbers
42,264
Mouldings
1,222
Woodchips
1,757
Manufactured glasses
22,462
Rental income
26

70,399

345
2,323
42,264
1,222
1,757
22,462
26

Total revenue from contracts with customers
46,154
24,219
26
70,399
			
			
5.	Interest income			
Group	Company
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
			
Profit and interest income from
deposits with licensed banks
429
366
44
			
			
6.
Dividend income			
Group	Company
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
Dividend income from:					
FVTOCI financial assets					
- Equity instruments (quoted in Malaysia)
68
67
-
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7.	Other income
Group	Company
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
			
(Restated)
Reversal of impairment losses on
trade receivables (Note 24(a))
Sale of scrap and other products
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Gain on disposal of investment
properties
Reversal of impairment losses on
investments in subsidiaries
Realised gain on foreign exchange
Profit income from Al-Mudharabah
Insurance compensation
Miscellaneous

8.

120

55
9

-

63

190

-

-

-

-

3,003

20
30
150
55

58
1

8,729
31

3,430
5
1

438

313

8,760

6,394

(45)

Finance costs
Group	Company
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000

Interest expense on:
- Obligations under finance leases
43
99
17
13
- Bankers’ acceptances
4
4
- Term loan
223
- Bank overdraft
77
38
- Lease liabilities (Note 15)
3
6
					
350
141
23
13
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9.

(Loss)/profit before tax
The following items have been included in arriving at (loss)/profit before tax:

Group	Company
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
		
(Restated) 		
(Restated)
Auditors’ remuneration:
- Current year
160
175
66
63
- Other services
20
40
20
40
Employee benefits expense (Note 10)
21,240
21,274
2,593
2,315
Non-executive directors’ remuneration excluding
benefits-in-kind (Note 11)
1,265
1,067
552
519
Depreciation of:
- Property, plant and equipment (Note 14)
2,698
3,566
196
173
- Right-of-use assets (Note 15)
779
72
- Investment properties (Note 16)
508
233
146
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 17)
2,611
2,611
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant
and equipment
(63)
(190)
45
Property, plant and equipment written off
87
Inventories written off (Note 23)
71
Allowance for impairment on:
- Trade receivables (Note 24(a))
17
6
- Other receivables (Note 24(c))
21
44
3,309
239
Impairment losses on investments in subsidiaries
1,075
Rental of equipment
36
29
8
2
Rental of land and buildings
29
29
77
77
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10.	Employee benefits expense
Group	Company
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
Wages and salaries
Social security contributions
Contributions to defined
contribution plan
Provision for defined benefit
obligations (Note 27)
Share-based payment under the LTIP:
- Exercise of ESGS
- Grant of ESOS
Provision for short-term accumulating
compensated absences
Other benefits

15,273
229

14,293
214

1,759
15

1,142
13

1,915

1,845

279

241

803

1,109

42

76

255
221

294
34

255
40

294
5

94
2,450

94
3,391

11
192

10
534

21,240

21,274

2,593

2,315

Included in employee benefit expense of the Group is executive director’s remuneration amounting to RM62,000
(31.12.2018: RM7,000) as further disclosed in Note 11.

11. Directors’ remuneration
The details of remuneration received and receivable by the directors of the Company during the year are as follows:

Group	Company
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
					
Executive director:					
Fees
24
Other emoluments
38
7
Total executive directors’ remuneration (Note 10)

62

7

-

-
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11. Directors’ remuneration (continued)

Non-executive directors:
Fees
Share option granted under ESOS
Other emoluments

Group	Company
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
300
6
959

298
769

180
5
367

180
339

Total non-executive directors’ remuneration
(excluding benefits-in-kind) (Note 9)
Benefits-in-kind

1,265
5

1,067
73

552
-

519
17

Total non-executive directors’ remuneration
(including benefits-in-kind)

1,270

1,140

552

536

Total directors’ remuneration

1,332

1,147

552

536

The number of directors of the Company whose total remuneration during the financial year fell within the following
bands is analysed below:
Number of directors
			
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
Non-executive directors:
Below RM50,000			
1
6
RM50,001 to RM100,000			
5
1
Above RM100,000			
1
-

12.	Income tax expense
Major components of income tax expense
The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 are:

Group	Company
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
		
(Restated) 		
Profit or loss:					
Current income tax: 					
- Malaysian income tax
481
1,692
- Under/(over) provision in respect of previous years
111
(115)
					
592
1,577
-
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12.	Income tax expense (continued)
Group	Company
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
		
(Restated)
Deferred tax (Note 21):
- Relating to origination or reversal
of temporary differences
(59)
(810)
- Overprovision in respect of previous years
(304)
(174)
(363)

(984)

-

-

229

593

-

-

Total income tax expense recognised in profit or loss

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting (loss)/profit
The reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting (loss)/profit multiplied by the applicable corporate
tax rate for the financial years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 is as follows:
			
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
			
RM’000
RM’000
				
(Restated)
Group
Loss before tax			

(8,977)

(2,299)

Tax at Malaysian statutory tax rate of 24% (31.12.2018: 24%)

(2,154)

(552)

		

Adjustments:
Income not subject to tax			
(16)
(132)
Non-deductible expenses			
716
1,645
Effect of tax exempt and relief			
(12)
(10)
Utilisation of current year’s reinvestment allowances			
(175)
Utilisation of unabsorbed capital allowances and unutilised 			
(413)
tax losses
Deferred tax assets not recognised			
1,935
529
Share of tax of an associate
		
(47)
(10)
Overprovision of deferred income tax in respect of previous years			
(304)
(174)
Under/(over) provision of income tax in respect of previous years			
111
(115)
					
Total income tax expense recognised in profit or loss			
229
593
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12.	Income tax expense (continued)
			
			
Company

31.12.2019
RM’000

31.12.2018
RM’000

Profit before tax			

5,142

5,269

Tax at Malaysian statutory tax rate of 24% (31.12.2018: 24%)			

1,234

1,265

(2,803)
1,181

(1,961)
163

Adjustments:
Income not subject to tax			
Non-deductible expenses			
Deferred tax assets not recognised on unutilised tax losses,
unabsorbed capital allowances and other temporary differences			
Total income tax expense recognised in profit or loss			

388

533

-

-

Current income tax is calculated at the statutory tax rate of 24% (31.12.2018: 24%) of the estimated assessable (loss)/
profit for the year.
Tax savings during the financial year arising from:

Utilisation of:
- Current year’s tax losses
- Previously unutilised tax losses

Group	Company
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
67
445

919
-

18
-

1
-

13.	Loss per share
(a)	Basic
Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the Group’s loss net of tax, attributable to owners of the parent of
RM9,206,000 (31.12.2018: RM2,892,000) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the
financial year, of approximately 135,645,000 (31.12.2018: 135,135,000).
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13.	Loss per share (continued)
(b)

Diluted
Diluted loss per share is calculated by dividing the Group’s loss net of tax, attributable to owners of the parent of
RM9,206,000 (31.12.2018: RM2,892,000) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the
financial year plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on the conversion of all
the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.
The following reflects the loss and share data used in the computation of basic and diluted loss per share for the
financial years ended 31 December:

		Group
			
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
				
(Restated)
Loss net of tax, attributable to owners of the parent (RM’000)			
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (‘000)			
Effect of dilution (‘000)
- Employee Share Option Scheme (“ESOS”)

		

(9,206)

(2,892)

135,645

135,135

5,123

3,998

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for diluted
loss per share (‘000)			
140,768
139,133
					
Loss per share (sen):			
Basic			
(6.79)
(2.14)
Diluted			

(6.54)

(2.08)
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14. Property, plant and equipment
			 Furniture,
			
fittings
Land and Plant and
and
buildings* machinery equipment
	RM’000
RM’000
RM’000

Motor
vehicles
RM’000

Road and
bridge
RM’000

Work-inprogress
RM’000

Total
RM’000

Group
Cost:
At 1 January 2018,
as previously stated
Reclassification adjustments
(Note 39)

51,121

74,734

12,958

12,172

1,593

1,878

154,456

(8,459)

-

-

-

-

-

(8,459)

At 1 January 2018, as restated
Additions
Disposals
Write offs
Reclassifications

42,662
260
841

74,734
775
(555)
(264)
1,037

12,958
115
(113)
(1,895)
-

12,172
264
(1,810)
(345)
-

1,593
(865)
-

1,878
(1,878)

145,997
1,414
(2,478)
(3,369)
-

At 31 December 2018 and
1 January 2019, as restated
Effect of adoption of MFRS
16 (Note 15)

43,763

75,727

11,065

10,281

728

-

141,564

(33,301)

-

-

-

-

-

(33,301)

At 31 December 2018 and
1 January 2019, as restated
Additions
Disposals
Write offs

10,462
566
-

75,727
314
-

11,065
129
(1)
(65)

10,281
717
(584)
-

728
-

-

108,263
1,726
(585)
(65)

11,028

76,041

728

-

At 31 December 2019

Golden Pharos Berhad

11,128

10,414

109,339

Annual Report 2019

Striving towards sustainability

245

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019

14. Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
			 Furniture,
			
fittings
Land and Plant and
and
buildings* machinery equipment
	RM’000
RM’000
RM’000

Motor
vehicles
RM’000

Road and
bridge
RM’000

Work-inprogress
RM’000

Total
RM’000

Group (continued)
Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 January 2018
Reclassification adjustments
(Note 39)
At 1 January 2018, as restated
Depreciation charge for the year
(Note 9)
Disposals
Write offs
Reclassifications
At 31 December 2018 and
1 January 2019, as restated
Effect of adoption of MFRS 16
(Note 15)
At 31 December 2018 and
1 January 2019, as restated
Depreciation charge for the year
(Note 9)
Disposals
Write offs
At 31 December 2019

10,898

68,499

12,205

9,327

840

-

101,769

(1,573)

-

-

-

-

-

(1,573)

9,325

68,499

12,205

9,327

840

-

100,196

1,438
52

796
(555)
(264)
-

211
(113)
(1,893)
-

883
(1,663)
(261)
-

186
(864)
-

52
(52)

3,566
(2,331)
(3,282)
-

10,815

68,476

10,410

8,286

162

-

98,149

(5,889)

-

-

-

-

-

(5,889)

4,926

68,476

10,410

8,286

162

-

92,260

625
-

951
-

207
(1)
(65)

898
(537)
-

17
-

-

2,698
(538)
(65)

5,551

69,427

179

-

10,551

8,647

94,355

Net carrying amount:
At 1 January 2018 (restated)
33,337
6,235
753
2,845
753
1,878
45,801
							
At 31 December 2018 (restated)
32,948
7,251
655
1,995
566
43,415
								
At 31 December 2019
5,477
6,614
577
1,767
549
14,984
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14. Property, plant and equipment (continued)
*Land and buildings of the Group:

Group (continued)

Freehold
land
RM’000

Leasehold
land
RM’000

Buildings
RM’000

Total
RM’000

Cost: 		
At 1 January 2018, as previously stated
409
41,531
9,181
51,121
Reclassification adjustments
(19)
(8,230)
(210)
(8,459)
At 1 January 2018, as restated
Addition
Reclassification

390
-

33,301
-

8,971
260
841

42,662
260
841

At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019, as restated
Effect of adoption of MFRS 16

390
-

33,301
(33,301)

10,072
-

43,763
(33,301)

At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019, as restated
Addition

390
-

-

10,072
566

10,462
566

At 31 December 2019

390

-

10,638

11,028

Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 January 2018, as previously stated
Reclassification adjustments

-

6,607
(1,511)

4,291
(62)

10,898
(1,573)

At 1 January 2018, as restated
Depreciation charge for the year
Reclassification

-

5,096
793
-

4,229
645
52

9,325
1,438
52

At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019, as restated
Effect of adoption of MFRS 16

-

5,889
(5,889)

4,926
-

10,815
(5,889)

At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019, as restated
Depreciation charge for the year

-

-

4,926
625

4,926
625

At 31 December 2019

-

-

5,551

5,551

Net carrying amount: 				
At 1 January 2018 (restated)
390
28,205
4,742
33,337

At 31 December 2018 (restated)
390
27,412
5,146
32,948
					
At 31 December 2019
390
5,087
5,477
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14. Property, plant and equipment (continued)
		
		
		
		
Company

Furniture,
fittings and
equipment
RM’000

Motor
vehicles
RM’000

Cost:
At 1 January 2018 		
Addition 		
Disposal 		

862
15
(488)

592
264
-

1,454
279
(488)

At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 		
Addition 		
Disposal 		
Write off 		

389
45
(1)
(3)

856
-

1,245
45
(1)
(3)

Total
RM’000

At 31 December 2019 		
433
856
1,289
Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 January 2018 		
Depreciation charge for the year (Note 9) 		
Disposal 		

734
42
(442)

206
131
-

940
173
(442)

At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 		
Depreciation charge for the year (Note 9) 		
Disposal 		
Write off 		

334
25
(1)
(3)

337
171
-

671
196
(1)
(3)

At 31 December 2019 		 358

508

866

Net carrying amount:
				
At 31 December 2018 		
55
519
574
				
At 31 December 2019 		
75
348
423
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14. Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Assets held under finance lease
During the financial year, the Group and the Company acquired motor vehicles with an aggregate cost of RM431,000
(31.12.2018: RM416,000) and RMNil (31.12.2018: RM242,000) respectively, by means of finance lease. The cash
outflow on acquisition of property, plant and equipment of the Group and of the Company amounted to RM1,295,000
(31.12.2018: RM998,000) and RM45,000 (31.12.2018: RM37,000) respectively.
The net carrying amount of plant and machinery, equipment and motor vehicles of the Group and of the Company
held under finance leases at the reporting date were RM883,000 (31.12.2018: RM861,000) and RM317,000
(31.12.2018: RM516,000) respectively.

15.	Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
The Group and the Company have lease contracts for various items of leasehold land and buildings used in its
operations. The lease has lease terms from 2 to 99 years.
Set out below are the net carrying amounts of rights-of-use assets of the Group and of the Company recognised
and the movements during the year:
	Leasehold land 	Buildings	Total
		
RM’000	RM’000 	RM’000
Group
At 1 January 2019		
Effects of adoption of MFRS 16:
- Reclassification from property, plant and
equipment, net (Note 14)		
27,412
27,412
- Commitments recognised		
79
79
Depreciation expense (Note 9)		
(733)
(46)
(779)
At 31 December 2019		

26,679

33

26,712

				
Buildings
			RM’000
Company
At 1 January 2019				
Effect of adoption of MFRS 16				
180
Depreciation expense (Note 9)				
(72)
At 31 December 2019				
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15.	Right-of use assets and lease liabilities (continued)
Set out below are the net carrying amounts of lease liabilities of the Group and of the Company recognised and the
movements during the year:
			
Interest 		
rate
Maturity

31.12.2019
Group
Company
RM’000
RM’000

At 1 January 2019			Effect of adoption of MFRS 16			
79
Accretion of interest (Note 8)			
3
Payments			
(30)

180
6
(78)

As at 31 December 2019			

52

108

Current

5.00%

2020

25

36

Non-current

5.00%

2021 - 2022

27

72

The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss:
		
31.12.2019
			
Group
Company
			
RM’000
RM’000
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets (Note 9)			
Interest expense on lease liabilities (Note 8)			

779
3

72
6

Total amount recognised in profit or loss			

782

78

The Group’s and the Company’s total cash outflows for leases is RM30,000 and RM78,000, respectively.
Assets pledged as securities						
						
In addition to assets held under finance leases, the Group’s land with net carrying amount of RM15,340,000 (2018:
RM5,136,000) are mortgaged to secure the Group’s bank borrowings (Note 26).					
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16.	Investment properties
		Leasehold land
		
RM’000
Group

Buildings
RM’000

Total
RM’000

Cost:
At 1 January 2018, as previously stated		
Reclassification adjustments (Note 39)		

13,880
8,249

139
210

14,019
8,459

At 1 January 2018/31 December 2018,
as restated/31 December 2019		

22,129

349

22,478

Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 January 2018 , as previously stated		
Reclassification adjustments (Note 39)		

1,612
1,511

12
62

1,624
1,573

At 1 January 2018 , as restated 		
Depreciation charge for the year (Note 9)		

3,123
230

74
3

3,197
233

At 31 December 2018, as restated/1 January 2019		
Depreciation charge for the year (Note 9)		

3,353
502

77
6

3,430
508

At 31 December 2019		

3,855

83

3,938

Net carrying amount:
At 1 January 2018 (restated)		

19,006

275

19,281

At 31 December 2018 (restated)		

18,776

272

19,048

At 31 December 2019		

18,274

266

18,540

Leasehold land
Buildings
Total
		
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
Company				
Cost:				
At 1 January 2018		
3,000
5,290
Disposals		
(3,000)
(5,290)

8,290
(8,290)

At 31 December 2018/1 January 2019				
31 December 2019		
-
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16.	Investment properties (continued)

		
Leasehold
		
land
Buildings
Total
	RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
Company (continued)
Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 January 2018		
Depreciation charge for the year (Note 9)		
Disposals		
At 31 December 2018/1 January 2019
31 December 2019		

281
40
(321)

716
106
(822)

997
146
(1,143)

-

-

-

At 31 December 2019		

-

-

-

At 31 December 2018		

-

-

-

Net carrying amount:

Fair value information
The Group has engaged an independent professional valuer, who holds a recognised relevant professional qualification
and has recent experience in the locations and categories of the investment properties valued to determine the fair value
of its investment property. A valuation is conducted at each financial year end.

Based on the valuation report dated 5 January 2020, 15 January 2020, 16 January 2020, 21 January 2020 and 13 May
2020, fair values of leasehold land and buildings of the Group as at 31 December 2019 were RM25,564,000 (31.12.2018:
RM21,428,000) and RM353,000 (31.12.2018: RM326,000) respectively. 						
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16.	Investment properties (continued)
Level 3 fair values
Fair value of the leasehold land and buildings have been generally derived using the sales comparison approach.
Sales price of comparable properties in close proximity are adjusted for differences in key attributes such as property size,
location and physical characteristics to arrive at market value. The most significant input into this valuation approach is
price per square foot of comparable properties.
The following is recognised in profit or loss in respect of investment properties:
Group
			
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
			
RM’000
RM’000
				
(Restated)
Rental income (Note 4)			

98

26

17.	Intangible assets

		
(a) Premium
(b) Right
Total
		
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
Group
Net carrying amount
At 1 January 2018, as previously stated		
Reclassification adjustments (Note 39)		

1,744

355

2,099

At 1 January 2018, as restated		
Additions		
Amortisation expenses (Note 9)		

1,744
3,661
(2,611)

355
40
-

2,099
3,701
(2,611)

At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019		

2,794

395

3,189

At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019, as previously stated		
Reclassification adjustments (Note 39)		
789
395
1,184
		
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019, as restated		
789
395
1,184
Additions		
3,784
48
3,832
Amortisation expenses (Note 9)		
(2,594)
(17)
(2,611)
				
At 31 December 2019		
1,979
426
2,405
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17.	Intangible assets (continued)
(a)

Being premium paid by the Group to Jabatan Perhutanan Negeri Terengganu (“JPNT”) in respect of logging
compartments in which the license for logging activities has been granted by JPNT. The amortisation of the premium
to profit or loss is based on unit of logs production.

(b)

Being right to fell and extraction of Karas trees located in the Terengganu Forest Reserve granted by JPNT to the
Group. The amortisation of the right to profit or loss is based on unit of trees felled and extracted.

18. Goodwill

			
			

Group
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
RM’000
RM’000

Cost:
At 1 January/31 December			
613

613

Accumulated impairment losses:			

At 1 January/31 December			
(613)
(613)
					
Net carrying amount:
At 31 December			
-
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19.	Investments in subsidiaries

		
31.12.2019
		
RM’000
			

Company
31.12.2018
RM’000
(Restated)

118,824
(42,814)

118,824
(50,468)

Unquoted shares, at cost 		
Less: Accumulated impairment losses		

1.1.2018
RM’000
(Restated)
118,824
(53,898)

		
76,010
68,356
64,926
14

Provision for financial guarantee		

14

14

		
76,024
68,370
64,940
During the financial year, the Company recorded a net reversal of impairment lossess on the investments of RM7,654,000
(31.12.2018: RM3,430,000) based on its recoverable amount, determined based on fair value less costs to sell of the
subsidiaries’ net assets.
(a)

Details of subsidiaries are as follows:

	Country of
Names
incorporation

Principal activities

31.12.2019 31.12.2018

Held by the Company:
GP Forest Plantation Sdn. Bhd.

Proportion (%) of
ownership interest

Malaysia

100

100

Inactive

Golden Pharos Glass Sdn. Bhd.
Malaysia
100
100
				

Manufacturing and trading
of glass

Golden Pharos Overseas
Sales Sdn. Bhd.

Inactive

Malaysia

100

100

Golden Pharos Overseas
Malaysia
100
100
Dormant
Sdn. Bhd.**					
						
Golden Pharos Fiber Sdn. Bhd.
Malaysia
100
100
Dormant
								
Permint Timber
Malaysia
100
100
Investment holding
Corporation Sdn. Bhd.					
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19.	Investments in subsidiaries (continued)									
	Country of
Names
incorporation

Proportion (%) of
ownership interest

Principal activities

31.12.2019 31.12.2018				
												
Held through Permint Timber Corporation Sdn. Bhd.:
Pesama Timber
Malaysia
100
100
Corporation Sdn. Bhd.				
				

Sawmilling, harvesting, moulding,
producing finger joint and
furniture, and kiln drying

Pesaka Trengganu
Berhad

Sawmilling

Malaysia

100

100

Kumpulan Pengurusan
Malaysia
100
100
Harvesting and sustainable forest
Kayu-Kayan Trengganu				
management
Sdn. Bhd.
		
Permint Plywood Sdn. Bhd.
Malaysia
100
100
Rental of buildings, plant and
				
machinery, selling of logs, sale of
				
right to log, trading of woodchips
				
and manufacture and sale of
				
veneer
GP Tropical Furniture
Malaysia
50.39*
50.39*
Dormant
Sdn. Bhd.									
Held through Permint Plywood Sdn. Bhd.: 								
		
GP Dynamic Venture
Malaysia
100
100
Dormant		
Sdn. Bhd.									
*

Percentage of ownership interest was held by non-controlling interest equal to the proportion of voting rights
held.											
**
This subsidiary holds 19% equity interest in Prestige Doors PLC, a company incorporated in the United
Kingdom.										
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20.	Investments in associates

		
31.12.2019
		
RM’000
			

Group
31.12.2018
RM’000
(Restated)

1.1.2018
RM’000
(Restated)

3,981
7,764

3,981
7,764

3,981
7,764

Unquoted ordinary shares, at cost		
Unquoted preference shares, at cost		

		
11,745
11,745
11,745
Share of post-acquisition reserves		
2,651
2,491
2,449

		
14,396
14,236
14,194
Less: Accumulated impairment losses		
(10,882)
(10,882)
(10,882)
		 3,514

3,354

3,312

Represented by:
Share of net tangible assets		

3,354

3,312

3,514

Details of the associates are as follows:
	Country of
Names
incorporation

Proportion (%) of
ownership interest

Principal activities

31.12.2019 31.12.2018
Konsortium Perumahan
Rakyat Terengganu Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia

35

35

Kemaman Furniture
Industries Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia

43.59

43.59

Housing development

Dormant

Pesama Renors (M)
Malaysia
25
25
Dormant
Sdn. Bhd.						
						
GPB Seabridge
United
20
20
Dormant
International, Inc.+
States of				
	America				
						
+
Audited by a firm of auditors other than Ernst & Young PLT.					
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20.	Investments in associates (continued)
Konsortium Perumahan Rakyat Terengganu Sdn. Bhd.
The summarised financial information of the associate, not adjusted for the proportion of ownership interest held by the
Group, is as follows:
(i)

Summarised statement of financial position

		
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
1.1.2018
		
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
			
(Restated)
(Restated)
Assets and liabilities:
Total assets		
24,282
25,414
26,545
Total liabilities		
(ii)

(15,734)

(17,323)

(18,573)

Summarised statement of comprehensive income

		
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
			
RM’000
RM’000
				
(Restated)
Results:
Revenue			
10,759
8,359
Profit for the year			
(iii)

457

119

Reconciliation of the summarised financial information presented above to the carrying amount of the Group’s
interest in associate:

		
31.12.2019
		
RM’000
			

31.12.2018
RM’000
(Restated)

1.1.2018
RM’000
(Restated)

Net assets at 1 January		
8,091
7,972
7,034
Profit for the year		
457
119
938
				
Net assets at 31 December 2019/31 December 2018/
1 January 2018		
8,548
8,091
7,972
35%

35%

35%

		 2,992
Goodwill		
522

2,832
522

2,790
522

		 3,514

3,354

3,312

Interest in associate		

Golden Pharos Berhad

Golden Pharos Berhad

(1,039)
-

120
(919)
(984)

(5,160)
(7,804)
(789)

(65)

(2,605)
(39)

7,015

338

338

-

338
-

-

(Note 12) 		

(Note 39) 		

(Note 12)

(80)

(80)

(80)

-

-

(1,515)

(8,465)

(5,120)

(3,306)
(39)

6,950

(363)

(291)

1,171

(1,462)
-

(72)

(1,878)

(8,756)

(3,949)

(4,768)
(39)

6,878

Deferred tax assets						

(1,878)

(1,515)

Annual Report 2019

Group
						
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
						
RM’000
RM’000
							
(Restated)
Presented after offsetting as follows:						

Deferred tax assets:
Provisions and defined benefit
obligations
Other payables
Unutilised tax losses,
unabsorbed reinvestment
allowances and capital allowances

Deferred tax liabilities:
Property, plant and equipment

Group

		

As at Recognised
	ReAs at Recognised
As at
1 January
in profit Recognised classifciation 31 December
in profit 31 December
2018
or loss
in equity adjustments
2018
or loss
2019
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
		 (Restated)
(Restated)
(Restated)
(Restated)

Deferred income tax as at 31 December relates to the following:

21. Deferred tax
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21. Deferred tax (continued)
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items:

Unutilised tax losses
Unabsorbed capital allowances
Unutilised reinvestment allowances

31.12.2019
RM’000

Group
31.12.2018
RM’000

Company
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
RM’000
RM’000

193,473
9,500
2,774

186,125
8,785
2,774

8,048
1,705
-

6,551
1,585
-

205,747

197,684

9,753

8,136

The above deferred tax assets have not been recognised due to uncertainty of its recoverability.
The availability of unutilised tax losses for offsetting against future taxable profits of a subsidiary in Malaysia is subject to
no substantial changes in the shareholding of the subsidiary under the Income Tax Act 1967 and guidelines issued by the
tax authority. With effect from year of assessment (“YA”) 2019, unutilised business losses arising from a YA is allowed to
only be carried forward from YA 2018 for utilisation up to 7 consecutive YAs from that YA. In addition, any accumulated
unabsorbed business losses brought forward from YA 2018 shall be allowed to be utilised for 7 consecutive YAs (i.e. until
YA 2025).

		
22.	Investment securities

		
Group
			
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
			
RM’000
RM’000
Non-current
Fair value through other comprehensive income 			
(“FVTOCI”) financial assets					
Quoted in Malaysia:				
- Equity instruments			
1,335
531
- Unit trust, Amanah Saham Darul Iman (“ASDI”)			
876
833
					
			 2,211
1,364
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23.	Inventories

		
31.12.2019
		
RM’000
			
At cost:
Raw materials		
2,820
Consumables		
467
Work-in-progress		
577
Finished goods		
2,034

Group
31.12.2018
RM’000
(Restated)

1.1.2018
RM’000
(Restated)

5,816
543
962
93

6,718
510
18
360

		
5,898
7,414
7,606
At net realisable value:
Raw materials		
Finished goods		

127
273

-

-

		 400

-

-

		
6,298
7,414
7,606
During the financial year, the amount of the Group’s inventories recognised as an expenses in cost of sales of the Group
was RM31,784,000 (31.12.2018: RM37,337,000).
During the year, the Group’s inventories amounting to RM71,000 were written off (Note 9).

24.	Trade and other receivables

Group
Company
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
		
(Restated)
Trade receivables 					
Third parties
19,041
20,352
Less: Allowance for impairment				
- Third parties
(11,929)
(11,946)
					
Trade receivables, net
7,112
8,406
-
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24.	Trade and other receivables (continued)

31.12.2019
RM’000

Group
31.12.2018
RM’000
(Restated)

1,104
8,087
2,518

1,104
8,869
3,272

81,291
4,665
432
7,083
15

88,453
4,665
429
7,006
15

428

82

-

-

12,137

13,327

93,486

100,568

(1,104)
(7,637)

(1,104)
(7,751)

(80,041)
(4,665)
(7,000)

(76,732)
(4,665)
(7,000)

(8,741)

(8,855)

(91,706)

(88,397)

3,396

4,472

1,780

12,171

Total trade and other receivables
Add: Cash and bank balances (Note 25)
Less: GST receivable

10,508
22,242
(428)

12,878
19,119
(82)

1,780
4,643
-

12,171
1,318
-

Total financial assets carried at
amortised cost

32,322

31,915

6,423

13,489

Other receivables
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Loans to subsidiaries
Amounts due from associates
Sundry receivables
Deposits
Goods and Services Tax (“GST”)
receivable

Less: Allowance for impairment
- Amounts due from subsidiaries
- Loans to subsidiaries
- Amounts due from associates
- Sundry receivables

Other receivables, net

Company
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
RM’000
RM’000

(a)	Trade receivables
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30 to 90 days (31.12.2018: 30 to 90 days) terms.
They are recognised at their original invoice amounts which represent their fair values on initial recognition.
Included in trade receivables is an amount of RM4,995,000 (31.12.2018: RM4,995,000) due from affiliated
companies, which were fully impaired. Affiliated companies refer to companies related to Golden Pharos Berhad’s
associates.
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24.	Trade and other receivables (continued)
(a)	Trade receivables (continued)
Ageing analysis of trade receivables
The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables is as follows:
		
			
			

Group
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
RM’000
RM’000

Neither past due nor impaired			

4,011

3,711

1 to 30 days past due not impaired 			
31 to 60 days past due not impaired			
61 to 90 days past due not impaired			
91 to 120 days past due not impaired			
More than 121 days past due not impaired			

1,168
603
429
562
339

1,887
1,293
700
320
495

			
3,101

4,695

Impaired			 11,929

11,946

			
19,041

20,352

Receivables that are neither past due nor impaired
Trade and other receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are creditworthy debtors with good payment
records with the Group.
None of the Group’s trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired have been renegotiated during the
financial year.
Receivables that are past due but not impaired
The Group has trade receivables amounting to RM3,101,000 (31.12.2018: RM4,695,000) that are past due at the
reporting date but not impaired.
Based on past experience and no adverse information to date, the directors of the Group are of the opinion that no
allowance for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant change in the
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. 					
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24.	Trade and other receivables (continued)
(a)	Trade receivables (continued)
Receivables that are impaired
The Group’s trade receivables that are impaired at the reporting date and the movement of the allowance for
expected credit losses of trade receivables are as below:
		

Group
	Individually impaired
			
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
			
RM’000
RM’000
Trade receivables - nominal amount			
Less: Allowance for impairment			
			

11,929
(11,929)
-

11,946
(11,946)
-

Movement in allowance accounts:
		
		
Group
			
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
			
RM’000
RM’000
At 1 January			
Charge for the year (Note 9) 			
Reversal for the year (Note 7)			
Write off			

11,946
17
(34)

11,995
6
(55)
-

At 31 December			

11,929

11,946

Trade receivables that are individually determined to be impaired at the reporting date relate to debtors that are in
significant financial difficulties and have defaulted on payments. These receivables are not secured by any collateral
or credit enhancements.
(b)	Related party balances
Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are repayable on demand.
Loans to subsidiaries are unsecured, bear interest ranging from 2.5% to 4.0% per annum (31.12.2018: 2.5% to 4.0%
per annum) and are repayable on demand.								
Amounts due from associates are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are repayable on demand.
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24.	Trade and other receivables (continued)
(c )	Other receivables
Other receivables that are impaired
At the reporting date, the Group and the Company have provided allowance of impairment of RM8,741,000
(31.12.2018: RM8,855,000) and RM91,706,000 (31.12.2018: RM88,397,000) respectively, for other receivables.
Movement in allowance accounts:
31.12.2019
RM’000

Group
31.12.2018
RM’000

Company
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
RM’000
RM’000

At 1 January
Charge for the year (Note 9)
Write off

8,855
21
(135)

8,811
44
-

88,397
3,309
-

88,158
239
-

At 31 December

8,741

8,855

91,706

88,397

25.	Cash and bank balances
Group
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
RM’000
RM’000
		
(Restated)
Cash in hand and at banks
Deposits with licensed banks

Company
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
RM’000
RM’000

10,603
11,639

9,008
10,111

443
4,200

1,318
-

22,242

19,119

4,643

1,318

Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Deposits are made for varying periods
of between 1 day to 365 days depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interests at the
respective deposit rates. The weighted average effective interest rate as at 31 December 2019 for the Group was 3.70%
(31.12.2018: 3.40%) per annum.
						
Deposits with licensed banks of the Group amounting to RM600,000 (31.12.2018: RM600,000) are pledged as securities
for borrowings (Note 26). 							
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25.	Cash and bank balances (continued)
For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following at the reporting
date:
Group
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
RM’000
RM’000
		
(Restated)

Company
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
RM’000
RM’000

Cash in hand and at banks
Less: Deposits with licensed banks with
maturity period more than 90 days
Bank overdrafts

22,242

Cash and cash equivalents

19,646

18,079

Maturity

31.12.2019
	RM’000

Group
31.12.2018
RM’000

On demand
On demand
2020

176
1,356
1,033

205
3

-

-

2020

258

288

84

144

		 2,823

496

84

144

19,119

(1,240)
(1,356)

(1,040)
-

4,643
(200)
4,443

1,318
1,318

26.	Borrowings

Current
Secured:
Bankers’ acceptances
Bank overdrafts
Term loans
Obligations under finance
leases (Note 33(b))

Company
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
RM’000
RM’000

Non-current
Secured:
Term loans
2021 - 2030
9,069
832
Obligations under finance						
leases (Note 33(b))
2021 - 2027
617
439
168
233
					
		
9,686
1,271
168
233

Total borrowings		
12,509
1,767
252
377
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26.	Borrowings (continued)
The remaining maturities of the borrowings as at 31 December 2019 are as follows:

On demand or within one year
More than 1 year and less than 2 years
More than 2 years and less than 5 years
More than 5 years

31.12.2019
RM’000

Group
31.12.2018
RM’000

Company
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
RM’000
RM’000

2,823
941
5,941
2,804

496
234
1,037
-

84
33
135
-

126
84
100
67

12,509

1,767

252

377

Bankers’ acceptances
The weighted average interest rate at the reporting date for bankers’ acceptances was 3.83% (2018: 3.83%) per annum.
The bankers’ acceptances are secured by corporate guarantee provided by the Company to its subsidiaries.
Bank overdrafts
Bank overdrafts are denominated in RM, and are secured by a corporate guarantee by the holding company and deposit
with a licensed bank (Note 25).
Term loans
These loans are secured by certain property, plant and equipment (Note 14) and corporate guarantee by the Company
to a subsidiary. These loans bore an interest rate range from 4% to 8.6% (31.12.2018: 8.6%) per annum.
Obligations under finance leases
These obligations are secured by a charge over the leased assets (Note 14). The discount rate implicit in the leases is
range from 2.64% to 16.84% (31.12.2018: 3.19% to 8.97%) per annum.
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26.	Borrowings (continued)
Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities
		Obligations
				
under
Bankers’
Bank
Term
finance
acceptances
overdrafts
loans
leases
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
Group
Balance at 1 January 2018
350
902
Drawdown of:
- Bankers’ acceptances
- Term loan

Total
RM’000
1,252

407
-

-

840

189

407
1,029

407

-

840

189

1,436

(552)

-

-

-

(552)

-

-

-

(785)

(785)

(552)

-

-

(785)

(1,337)

(145)

-

840

(596)

99

-

-

-

416

416

Balance at 31 December 2018
and 1 January 2019

205

-

840

722

1,767

Drawdown of:
- Bankers’ acceptances
- Term loans

374
-

-

9,369

-

374
9,369

374

-

9,369

-

9,743

Repayments of:
- Bankers’ acceptances
- Obligations under finance
leases

Total changes from financing
cash flows
New finance leases,
representing total liabilities

Repayments of:				
- Bankers’ acceptances
(403)
(403)
- Term loans
(103)
(103)
- Obligations under finance 						
leases
(282)
(282)
(403)

-

(103)

(282)

(788)
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26.	Borrowings (continued)
Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities (continued)
		
			Obligations
				
under
Bankers’
Bank
Term
finance
acceptances
overdrafts
loans
leases
Total
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
Group (continued)
Total changes from financing
cash flows
New finance leases,
representing total liabilities
Balance at 31 December 2019

(29)

-

9,266

(282)

8,955

-

1,356

-

431

1,787

176

1,356

10,106

871

12,509

					
Obligations
					
under
					
finance
					
leases
					
RM’000
Company
Balance at 1 January 2018					

251

Repayments of obligations under finance leases, representing total changes from
financing cash flows					

(100)

New finance leases, representing total liabilities

226

				

Balance at 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019
			
377
						
Repayments of obligations under finance leases, representing total changes from 			
financing cash flows					
(125)
Balance as at 31 December 2019					
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27. Defined benefit obligations
The Group operates an unfunded, defined benefit Retirement Benefit Scheme (“the Scheme”) for eligible employees.
The Group’s obligations under this Scheme are determined based on triennial actuarial valuation using the projected unit
credit method.
The amounts recognised in the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income are as follows:

Charged to profit or loss:
- Current service cost
- Past service cost
- Interest cost
Total included in employee benefits
expense (Note 10)
Charged to other comprehensive income:
- Net gain on remeasurement of defined
benefit obligations, net of tax

Group
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
RM’000
RM’000

Company
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
RM’000
RM’000

403
400

504
41
564

31
11

45
31

803

1,109

42

76

-

1,203

-

405

The amounts recognised in the statements of financial position are determined as follows:

Present value of unfunded defined
benefit obligations

Group
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
RM’000
RM’000
7,912

8,360

Company
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
RM’000
RM’000
251

237

Changes in present value of defined benefit obligations are as follows:
Group
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
RM’000
RM’000

Company
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
RM’000
RM’000

At 1 January
8,360
9,306
237
566
Recognised in profit or loss (Note 10)
803
1,109
42
76
Recognised in other comprehensive income:				
- Net gain on remeasurement of defined 					
benefit obligations
(1,541)
(405)
Benefits paid
(1,251)
(514)
(28)
				
At 31 December
7,912
8,360
251
237
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27. Defined benefit obligations (continued)

Analysed as:
Current
Non-current
Later than 1 year but not later than 2 years
Later than 2 years but not later than 5 years
Later than 5 years

Group
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
RM’000
RM’000

Company
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
RM’000
RM’000

580

992

24

-

875
2,001
4,456

507
3,030
3,831

44
183

21
38
178

7,332

7,368

227

237

7,912

8,360

251

237

In calculating the defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and past service cost using the Projected
Unit Credit Method for the Group and the Company, the following assumptions were used and calculated on a weighted
average basis.
			
			

31.12.2019
%

31.12.2018
%

Discount rate			
Expected rate of salary increase			

4.85
5.00

4.85
5.00

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligations to changes in the relevant actuarial assumptions is as follows:
Group
Increase
Decrease
RM’000
RM’000
Discount rate (50 basis point of movement)
Expected rate of salary increase
(50 basis point of movement)

Company
Increase
Decrease
RM’000
RM’000

49

68

13

58

514

498

44

27

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the potential actual change in the defined benefit
obligations as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the
assumptions may be correlated.				
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28.	Trade and other payables

		
Group
		
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
1.1.2018
		
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
			
(Restated)
(Restated)
Trade payables
Third parties		
5,488
1,311
1,086
Other payables
Amount due to holding company		
Amount due to a corporate shareholder		
Accruals		
Sundry payables		

12,127
640
3,123
8,946

15,273
640
6,975
6,401

15,268
640
6,542
2,258

		
24,836
29,289
24,708
Total trade and other payables		
Add: Lease liabilities (Note 15)		
Add: Borrowings (Note 26)		

30,324
52
12,509

30,600
1,767

25,794
1,634

Total financial liabilities carried at amortised cost		

42,885

32,367

27,428

	Company
			
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
			
RM’000
RM’000
				
(Restated)
Other payables
Amount due to holding company			
12,127
12,121
Amount due to a corporate shareholder			
640
640
Amounts due to subsidiaries			
13,217
16,478
Accruals			
497
435
Sundry payables			
263
222
Total other payables			
Add: Lease liabilities (Note 15)			
Add: Borrowings (Note 26)			

26,744
108
252

29,896
377

Total financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
		
					
(a)	Trade payables						

27,104

30,273

These amounts are non-interest bearing. Trade payables are normally settled on 60 days (31.12.2018: 60 days;
1.1.2018: 60 days) terms.
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28.	Trade and other payables (continued)									
		
											
(b)	Other payables											
													
These amounts are non-interest bearing. Other payables are normally settled on an average term of three months
(31.12.2018: average term of three months; 1.1.2018: average term of three months).					
										
(c)	Amount due to holding company										
											
The amount is unsecured, non-interest bearing and is repayable on demand.					
												
(d)	Amount due to a corporate shareholder									
											
The amount relates to advances for working capital purposes named as Al-Mudharabah, which is non-interest
bearing and is repayable on demand.										
												
(e)	Amounts due to subsidiaries										
The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are repayable on demand. The amounts relate to funds
placed by certain subsidiaries in the Pool Fund Account (“the Fund”) managed by the Company. The Fund is to be
used for working capital requirements by the companies within the Group.					
											
29.	Share capital				
								
Group and Company
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
	Unit’000	Unit’000	RM’000	RM’000
Issued and fully paid:
Ordinary shares
At 1 January
135,773
134,547
68,192
67,898
Issuance of shares arising from exercise of ESGS
1,020
1,226
255
294
At 31 December

136,793

135,773

68,447

68,192

During the financial year, the Company increased its issued and paid-up capital by way of allotment of 1,019,975 new
ordinary shares pursuant to the vesting of shares under the Executive Share Grant Scheme (“ESGS”). The new ordinary
shares rank pari passu in all respects with the existing ordinary shares of the Company. New ordinary shares rank
pari passu in all respects with the existing ordinary shares of the Company.						
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by the Company. All ordinary
shares carry one vote per share without restrictions and rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.		
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30.	Other reserves

Group
At 1 January 2018

Equity 		
contribution
Fair value
from
adjustment
owners
reserve
RM’000
RM’000

1,262

Other comprehensive loss:
Investment securities: FVTOCI
financial assets
- Net loss on fair value changes

-

Transaction with owners:
Share-based payment under the LTIP:
Grant of ESOS

-

At 31 December 2018
and 1 January 2019
Other comprehensive loss:
Investment securities: FVTOCI
financial assets
- Net gain on fair value changes

935

(1,069)

-

1,262

(134)

-

848

Reserve
arising
from
merger
RM’000

Employee
share
options
reserve
RM’000

(22,718)

-

(20,521)

-

-

(1,069)

-

34

(22,718)

-

34

-

Total
RM’000

34

(21,556)

848

Transaction with owners:			
- Share-based payment under the LTIP:
Grant of ESOS
221
221
						
At 31 December 2019
1,262
714
(22,718)
255
(20,487)
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30.	Other reserves (continued)

		
Equity
Employee
		 contribution
share
		
from
options
		
owners
reserve
Total
		
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
Company
At 1 January 2018		

967

-

967

Transaction with owners:
Share-based payment under the LTIP: Grant of ESOS		

-

5

5

At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019		

967

5

972

Transaction with owners:
Share-based payment under the LTIP: Grant of ESOS		

-

40

40

At 31 December 2019			

967

45

1,012

(a)	Equity contribution from owners
The amount represents waiver of amount due to the Group’s holding company.
(b)

Fair value adjustment reserve
Fair value adjustment reserve represents the cumulative fair value changes, net of tax, of fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) financial assets until they are disposed of or impaired.

(c)	Reserve arising from merger
Reserve arising on merger represents the difference between the nominal value of the shares issued as consideration
for the acquisition of Permint Timber Corporation Sdn. Bhd. and its subsidiaries and the nominal value of the shares
transferred for these investments.
(d)	Employee share options reserve
Employee share options reserve represents the grant of share options to the Group’s and the Company’s employees.
The reserve is made up of the cumulative value of services received from employees recorded over the vesting
period commencing from the grant date of the share options, and is reduced by the expiry of exercise of the share
options.		
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31.	Executive Share Grant Scheme (“ESGS”) and Employee Share Options Scheme (“ESOS”) 			
											
The Long Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP” or “Scheme”) was implemented on 30 August 2018, 30 August 2019 and 4 November
2019. The LTIP which comprises the ESGS and ESOS allows the Company to grant shares and/or share options under
ESGS and ESOS respectively to eligible employees of the Group and of the Company up to 15% of the issued and paidup share capital of the Company. The LTIP is governed by the By-Laws of the LTIP which was approved by the shareholders
on 26 June 2018 and is administered by the LTIP Committee and as such the LTIP shall be in force for a period of 5 years
up to 29 August 2023, 29 August 2024 and 3 November 2025.								
												
The main features of the Scheme are as follows:									
													
(a) The maximum number of new ordinary shares which may be made available under the Scheme at the point in time
when an LTIP award is offerred shall not be more than fifteen percent (15%) of the issued and paid-up ordinary share
capital of the Company.												
											
(b) The LTIP awards shall be awarded after taking into consideration the employee’s position, contribution and
performance (where applicable) or such criteria as the LTIP Committee may deem fit subject to the following:		
													
(i)
that the number of new ordinary shares made available under the Scheme shall not exceed the amount
stipulated in (a) above,										
												
(ii) not more than 10% of the total number of ordinary shares to be issued under Scheme at the point in time
when an LTIP award is offered be allocated to any employee who, either singly or collectively through persons
connected with the employee, holds 20% or more of the total number of issued shares of the Company,
and
(iii)

(c)

(d)

not more than 80% of the new ordinary shares available under the Scheme shall be allocated in aggregate to
the managerial employees of the Group.									
													
In the case of the ESGS, the shares will be vested with the grantee at no consideration on the vesting date, while in
the case of ESOS, the option price will be determined based on the five (5) days volume weighted average market
price of the ordinary shares on the date the ESOS award is offered with a potential discount of not more than ten
percent (10%) there from or such other percentage or discount as may be permitted by Bursa Malaysia Securities
Berhad and/or any other relevant authorities as may be amended from time to time.			
The shares and share options granted under the ESGS and ESOS will vest over a period of up to five (5) years from
the date of the LTIP award.											
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31.	Executive Share Grant Scheme (“ESGS”) and Employee Share Options Scheme (“ESOS”)
(continued)
The movement during the financial year in the number of shares and share options in which employees of the Group and
of the Company are entitled to are as follows:
	ESGS	ESOS
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
At 1 January
Granted
Vested/exercised
At 31 December

43,640
1,270,000
(1,019,975)
293,665

1,270,000
(1,226,360)
43,640

3,998,060
1,125,000
-

3,998,060
-

5,123,060

3,998,060

The fair values of the shares and share options granted under the ESGS and ESOS to which MFRS 2 applies were
determined using binomial model. The significant inputs into the model were as follows:
		 ESGS
Exercise price
*
Date of grant			
5.10.2018
Fair value at grant date (per ordinary share)			
RM0.24
Vesting period/option life			
5 years
Weighted average share price on grant date			
RM0.21
		
Exercise price
Date of grant		
Fair value at grant date (per ordinary share)		
Vesting period/option life		
Weighted average share price on grant date		

RM0.27
30.8.2018
RM0.27
5 years
RM0.22

ESOS
RM0.18
30.8.2019
RM0.21
5 years
RM0.21

*
4.7.2019
RM0.25
5 years
RM0.22

RM0.16
4.11.2019
RM0.18
5 years
RM0.21

*The shares under the ESGS will vest with the grantee at no consideration on the vesting date.
The expected life of the shares and share options are based in historical data and is not necessarily indicative of the
exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of
future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome. No other features of the shares and/or share options
granted were incorporated into the measurement of fair value.							
							
							

Golden Pharos Berhad

Annual Report 2019

Striving towards sustainability

277

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019

32.	Related party transactions
(a)

In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the following significant
transactions between the Company and related parties took place at terms agreed between the parties during the
financial year:
Group
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
RM’000
RM’000
With holding company:
Secretarial fee charged
With subsidiaries:
Rental income from land and building
charged (Note 4)
Management fees charged (Note 4)
Dividend income (Note 4)
Building rental charged by a subsidiary

3

(98)
-

5

(26)
-

Company
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
RM’000
RM’000

3

(2,379)
(2,953)
48

5

(608)
(1,737)
(1,467)
48

(b)	Compensation of key management personnel
Group
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
RM’000
RM’000
Short-term employee benefits
Defined contribution plan
Defined benefit plan
Share-based payment under the LTIP

Company
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
RM’000
RM’000

3,489
505
214
288

4,388
470
216
299

1,219
195
40
276

1,466
142
63
297

4,496

5,373

1,730

1,968

Included in compensation of key management personnel is:						
Group
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
RM’000
RM’000

Company
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
RM’000
RM’000

Directors’ remuneration (Note 11)
1,332
1,147
552
536
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33.	Commitments
(a)	Capital commitments
Capital expenditure as at reporting date is as follows:

Approved but not contracted for:
Property, plant and equipment
Approved and contracted for:
Property, plant and equipment
(b)

Group
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
RM’000
RM’000

Company
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
RM’000
RM’000

7,015

1,250

200

200

1,250

4,700

-

-

Finance lease commitments
The Group and the Company have finance leases for certain items of plant and machinery and motor vehicles (Note 14).
These leases do not have terms of renewal, but have purchase options at nominal values at the end of the lease term.
Future minimum lease payments under finance leases together with the present value of the net minimum lease
payments are as follows:
Group
Company
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
Minimum lease payments:
Not later than 1 year
302
302
95
141
More than 1 year and less than 2 years
222
218
41
95
More than 2 years and less than 5 years
471
366
146
187
995
(120)

886
(89)

282
(30)

423
(46)

Present value of minimum lease payments

875

797

252

377

Present value of payments:
Not later than 1 year
More than 1 year and less than 2 years
More than 2 years and less than 5 years

258
162
455

288
197
242

84
26
142

126
84
167

875
(258)

727
(288)

252
(84)

377
(144)

Total minimum lease payments
Less: Amounts representing finance charges

Present value of minimum lease payments
Less: Amount due within 12 months (Note 26)

Amount due after 12 months (Note 26)
617
439
168
233
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34. Fair value of financial instruments
(a)

Fair value of financial instruments by classes that are not carried at fair value and whose carrying amounts are not
reasonable approximation of fair value

31.12.2019
Financial liabilities:
Borrowings (non-current)
- Obligations under finance leases (Note 33(b))
- Term loans
31.12.2018
Financial liabilities:
Borrowings (non-current)
- Obligations under finance leases (Note 33(b))
- Term loans
(b)

Carrying
amount
RM’000

Group

Fair
value
RM’000

Company
Carrying
Fair
amount
value
RM’000
RM’000

617
9,069

630
9,426

168
-

169
-

439
832

460
839

233
-

254
-

Determination of fair value
Financial instruments that are not carried at fair value and whose carrying amounts are reasonable approximation
of fair value
The following are classes of financial instruments that are not carried at fair value and whose carrying amounts are
reasonable approximation of fair value:

		
Trade and other receivables (current)
Borrowings (current)
Trade and other payables (current)

Note
24
26
28

The carrying amounts of these financial assets and liabilities are reasonable approximation of fair values due to their
short-term nature.
						
The carrying amounts of the current portion of borrowings are reasonable approximations of fair values due to the
insignificant impact of discounting.				

Golden Pharos Berhad

280

Annual Report 2019

Striving towards sustainability

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2019

34. Fair value of financial instruments (continued)
(b)

Determination of fair value (continued)
The following methods and assumptions are used to estimate the fair values of the following classess of financial
instruments:
(i)

Amounts due from/to subsidiaries and associates, and loans from/to subsidiaries
The Group and the Company do not anticipate the carrying amounts recorded at the reporting date that
would eventually be received or settled to be significantly different from the fair values as the amounts are
repayable on demand.

(ii)

Quoted equity instruments
Fair value is determined directly by reference to their published market bid price at the reporting date.

(iii)

Financial guarantee
Fair value is determined based on probability weighted discounted cash flow method. The probability has
been estimated and assigned for the following key assumptions:
-

(c)

The likelihood of the guaranteed party defaulting within the guaranteed period;
The exposure on the portion that is not expected to be recovered due to the guaranteed party’s default;
and
The estimated loss exposure if the party guaranteed were to default.

Valuation of financial instruments
The table below analyses financial instruments, measured at fair value at the end of the reporting date, by the level
in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorised:

	Level 1
		Note
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
			
RM’000
RM’000
Group				
Financial assets:					
Investment securities: FVTOCI		
22
2,211
1,364
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35. Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group and the Company are exposed to financial risks arising from their operations and the use of financial
instruments. The key financial risks include credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and market
price risk.
It is, and has been throughout the current and previous financial year, the Group’s policy that no derivatives shall be
undertaken except for the use as hedging instruments where appropriate and cost-efficient. The Group and the Company
do not apply hedge accounting.
The following sections provide details regarding the Group’s and Company’s exposure to the above-mentioned financial
risks and the objectives, policies and processes for the management of these risks.
(a)	Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments should a counterparty default
on its obligations. The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to credit risk arises primarily from trade and other
receivables. For other financial assets (including investment securities and cash and bank balances), the Group and
the Company minimise credit risk by dealing exclusively with high credit rating counterparties.
The Group’s objective is to seek continual revenue growth while minimising losses incurred due to increased
credit risk exposure. The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy
that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Group’s exposure to bad debts is
not significant.
The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which comprise cash and cash equivalents and non-current
investments, arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of
these financial assets. Information regarding credit enhancements for trade and other receivables is disclosed in
Note 24.
Exposure to credit risk
The Group does not have any significant exposure to any individual customer or counterparty nor does it have any
major concentration of credit risk related to any financial assets.
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit
losses. The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions. Any receivables having significant balances past due more than 365 days, which are
deemed to have higher default risk, are monitored individually. 						
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35. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
(a)	Credit risk (continued)
Exposure to credit risk (continued)
At the reporting date, the Group’s and the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by:
(i)

The carrying amount of each class of financial assets recognised in the statements of financial position.

(ii)		 Corporate guarantees provided by the Company to banks for credit facilities granted to subsidiaries.
Credit risk concentration profile
The Group determines concentrations of credit risk by monitoring the country and industry sector profile of its
trade receivables on an ongoing basis. The credit risk concentration profile of the Group’s trade receivables at the
reporting date are as follows:

		
Group
31.12.2019		31.12.2018
RM’000
% of total
RM’000
% of total
By industry sectors:
Harvesting, sawmilling, kiln drying of timber,
and sales of logs and logging compartments
1,593
22%
2,223
26%
Manufacturing
5,519
79%
5,819
68%
Others
0%
364
4%
7,112

100%

8,406

100%

(b)	Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group or the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting financial obligations due
to shortage of funds. The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from mismatches of
the maturities of financial assets and liabilities. The Group’s and the Company’s objective is to maintain a balance
between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of stand-by credit facilities. 				
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35. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
(b)	Liquidity risk (continued)
Analysis of financial instruments by remaining contractual maturities
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s and of the Company’s liabilities at the reporting date
based on contractual undiscounted repayment obligations.
31.12.2019
	RM’000
	On demand or
One to
More than
within one year
five years
five years
Group
Financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables
30,324
Lease liabilities
25
27
Borrowings
1,532
2,028
9,069

Total
30,324
52
12,629

Total undiscounted financial liabilities

31,881

2,055

9,069

43,005

Company
Financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables
Borrowings

26,714
95

187

-

26,714
282

Total undiscounted financial liabilities

26,809

187

-

26,996

31.12.2018
	RM’000
	On demand or
One to
More than
within one year
five years
five years
Group
Financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables
30,600
Borrowings
510
1,416
-

Total
30,600
1,926

Total undiscounted financial liabilities
31,110
1,416
32,526
					
Company				
Financial liabilities:				
Trade and other payables
29,896
29,896
Lease liabilities
36
72
108
Total undiscounted financial liabilities

29,896

72

-

29,896
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35. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
(c)	Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. As the Group and the Company have no significant interest-bearing financial
assets, the Group’s and the Company’s income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes
in market interest rates.
The Group’s and the Company’s interest-bearing financial assets are mainly short-term in nature and have been
mostly placed in fixed deposits.
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from interest-bearing borrowings. Borrowings at floating rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group manages its interest rate exposure by maintaining a mix of fixed
and floating rate borrowings. Borrowings obtained at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.
The information on maturity dates and effective interest rates of financial assets and liabilities are disclosed in their
respective notes.
		
(d) Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates.
The Group has transactional currency exposure arising from sales or purchases that are denominated in a currency
other than the respective functional currencies of Group entities, primarily RM. The foreign currencies in which these
transactions are denominated are mainly United States Dollars (“USD”).
The net unhedged financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group that are not denominated in their functional
currencies are as follows:
			
			
Financial assets:
Trade and other receivables			
(e)

31.12.2019
RM’000

31.12.2018
RM’000

10

168

Market price risk

Market price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Group’s financial instruments will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices (other than interest or exchange rates).
		
The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from its investment in quoted equity instruments. The quoted
equity instruments in Malaysia are listed on the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. These instruments are classified
as available-for-sale financial assets. The Group does not have exposure to commodity price risk, other than timber
price.
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36.	Capital management
The primary objectives of the Group’s and the Company’s capital management are to ensure that they maintain a strong
credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.
The Group and the Company manage their capital structure and make adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group and the Company may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes during the financial years ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018.
The Group and the Company monitor capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt.
The Group and the Company include within net debt, loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and bank
balances. Capital includes equity attributable to the owners of the parent less fair value adjustment reserve.

	Note
		
Borrowings
Trade and other payables
Less: Cash and bank balances

26
28
25

Net debts		

Group	Company
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
12,509
30,324
(22,242)

1,767
30,600
(19,119)

252
26,744
(4,643)

377
29,896
(1,318)

20,591

13,248

22,353

28,955

Equity attributable to the owners of the parent		
62,896
72,515
55,625
51,925
(Less)/add: Fair value adjustment reserve
30
(714)
134
					
Total capital		
62,182
72,649
55,625
51,925
						
Capital and net debt		
82,773
85,897
77,978
80,880
						
Gearing ratio		25%
15%
29%
36%
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37.	Segment information
For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units based on their products and services, and has
three reportable operating segments as follows:
(i)

Harvesting, sawmilling, kiln drying of timber, and sales of logs and logging compartments;

(ii)

Manufacturing: manufacturing and trading of glass, veneer and woodchips;

(iii)

Others: including investment holding, rental of properties, none of which are of a sufficient size to be reported
separately.

Except as indicated above, no operating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable operating segments.
Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on operating profit or loss
which, in certain respects as explained in the table below, is measured differently from operating profit or loss in the
consolidated financial statements. Group financing (including finance costs) and income taxes are managed on a group
basis and are not allocated to operating segments.

Golden Pharos Berhad

Manufacturing

RM’000

RM’000

RM’000

RM’000

eliminations

financial statements

(2,695)
2,862

(2,386)

230

335

895

1,890
-

1,288
437

(5,624)

201

164

1,224
313

73
-

20,005

20,005
-

1,028

54

3

798
-

134
-

24,219

24,219
-

8,040

348

-

195
72

45
5,911

8,437

98
8,339

RM’000

RM’000

RM’000

RM’000

Note

RM’000

RM’000

4,884

333

-

878
-

1
2,892

5,311

26
5,285

(9,007)

-

9

(9)
(43)

(5,911)

(27,921)

(27,921)

A

2,698
779

429
68

57,472

57,472
-

(11,073)

3,784

C

B

(8,977)

1,444

-		 508

-

(2,892)

(33,875)

- 		
(33,875)
A

(2,299)

1,476

233

3,566
-

366
67

70,399

70,399
-

(Restated) 		 (Restated) 			 (Restated)

Assets
Additions to
non-current assets
857
156
824
10,833
45
1,627
(11,202)
D
1,726
1,414
Segment assets
96,396 100,272
45,049
47,979 120,456 109,182 (148,204) (144,170)
E
113,697 113,263
												
Liabilities												
Segment liabilities
41,702
40,829
23,214
20,662 149,688 153,363 (163,803) (174,106)
F
50,801
40,748

Other non-cash
expenses
Segment (loss)/
profit

Depreciation of:
- Property, plant
and equipment
- Right-of-use assets
- Investment
properties

231
67

74,744

56,951

Total revenue

311
68

46,154
28,590

37,369
19,582

Revenue
External customers
Inter-segment

		 (Restated) 		 (Restated)

Results
Interest income
Dividend income

Others

31.12.2019 31.12.2018 31.12.2019 31.12.2018 31.12.2019 31.12.2018 31.12.2019 31.12.2018 		 31.12.2019 31.12.2018

compartments

sales of logs and logging			Adjustments and	As per consolidated

kiln drying of timber, and

Harvesting, sawmilling,

37.	Segment information (continued)
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37.	Segment information (continued)
Notes Nature of adjustments and eliminations to arrive at amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements
A

Inter-segment revenues and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

B

Other non-cash expenses consist of the following items as presented in the respective notes to the financial
statements:

		Note
			
Reversal of allowance for impairment on
trade receivables		
7
Inventories written off		
9
Share-based payment under the LTIP:
- Exercise of ESGS		
10
- Grant of ESOS		
10
Provision for defined benefit obligations		
10
Provision for short-term accumulating compensated absences
10

C

31.12.2019
RM’000
71

31.12.2018
RM’000
(55)
-

255
221
803
94

294
34
1,109
94

			
1,444

1,476

The following items are (deducted from)/added to segment (loss)/profit to arrive at “loss before tax” presented in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income:

			
		Note

31.12.2019
RM’000

Dividend		
4
(2,953)
Reversal of impairment losses on investment
in subsidiaries		
7
(8,729)
Allowance for impairment on trade and other
receivables		
9
3,309
Impairment losses on investment in subsidiaries		
9
1,075
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment		
9
Share of results of associate			
(197)
Loss from intercompanies’ sales			
(1,512)
			
			
(9,007)
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31.12.2018
RM’000
(1,467)
(3,430)
239
(3,003)
(42)
(3,370)
(11,073)
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37.	Segment information (continued)
Notes Nature of adjustments and eliminations to arrive at amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements
(continued)
D

Additions to non-current assets consist of:

			
			

31.12.2019
RM’000

31.12.2018
RM’000

Property, plant and equipment (Note 14)			

1,726

1,414

E

The following items are deducted from segment assets to arrive at total assets reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position:

			
31.12.2019
			 RM’000
Inter-segment assets			
F

(148,204)

31.12.2018
RM’000
(144,170)

The following items are deducted from segment liabilities to arrive at total liabilities reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position:

		
			
		
Inter-segment liabilities			

31.12.2019
RM’000
(163,803)

31.12.2018
RM’000
(174,106)

Geographical information
Revenue based on the geographical location of customers is as disclosed in Note 4 to the financial statements.

38. Dividend	

Group and Company
			
31.12.2019
31.12.2018
			
RM’000
RM’000
Recognised during the financial year:					
In respect of financial year 2018:					
Dividends on 135,773,193 ordinary shares:					
- First and final tax exempt (single-tier) dividend for 2018: 					
RM0.0127 (31.12.2017: RMNil) per share			
1,737
-
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39. Prior year adjustments and reclassification adjustments
(a)

Prior year adjustments (“PYAs”)
(i)

Group
-

In prior years, there was net understatement in carrying amount of inventories.
In prior years, there was error in equity accounting for investment in an associate.
In prior year, there was over recognition of deferred tax assets.
In prior years, there was unreconciled inter-companies’ balances that were not properly eliminated in the
Group’s financial statements.
In prior year, there was overstatement of revenue in respect of sale of logging compartments to a third
party.

(ii)	Company

(b)

In prior years, there was understatement of net carrying amount of investment in a subsidiary.
		
Reclassification adjustments
Certain comparative figures have been restated to conform with current year’s presentation.
The effects to the Group’s and the Company’s statements of financial position and statements of comprehensive
income are as follows:
(a)

Reconciliation adjustments to the statements of financial position as at 31 December 2018

Group
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Intangible assets
Goodwill
Investments in associates
Deferred tax assets
Investment securities

Golden Pharos Berhad

As previously
stated
RM’000

Prior year
adjustments
RM’000

Reclassification
RM’000

As
restated
RM’000

50,301
12,162
2,548
1,064
1,364

806
371
-

(6,886)
6,886
1,184
80
-

43,415
19,048
1,184
3,354
1,515
1,364

67,439 			

69,880
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39. Prior year adjustments and reclassification adjustments (continued)
The effects to the Group’s and the Company’s statements of financial position and statements of comprehensive income
are as follows (continued):
(a)

Reconciliation adjustments to the statements of financial position as at 31 December 2018 (continued)

Group (continued)
Assets (continued)
Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Prepayments
Tax recoverable
Cash and bank balances

Total assets
Equity and liabilities
Current liabilities
Defined benefit obligations
Borrowings
Trade and other payables
Tax payable

Net current assets

As previously
stated
RM’000

Prior year
adjustments
RM’000

Reclassification
RM’000

As
restated
RM’000

7,326
12,662
4,304
932
18,812

88
-

216
(1,184)
(80)
307

7,414
12,878
3,120
852
19,119

44,036 			

43,383

111,475

		

113,263

(234)
-

992
496
30,600
21

27,195 			

32,109

16,841 			

11,274

992
496
25,686
21

5,148
-
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39. Prior year adjustments and reclassification adjustments (continued)
The effects to the Group’s and the Company’s statements of financial position and statements of comprehensive income
are as follows (continued):
(a)

Reconciliation adjustments to the statements of financial position as at 31 December 2018 (continued)

Group (continued)
Equity and liabilities (continued)
Non-current liabilities
Defined benefit obligations
Borrowings

As previously
stated
RM’000

Prior year
adjustments
RM’000

Reclassification
RM’000

As
restated
RM’000

7,368
1,271

-

-

7,368
1,271

8,639 			

8,639

Total liabilities

35,834

		

40,748

Net assets

75,641 			

72,515

Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Share capital
Retained earnings
Other reserves

68,192
29,005
(21,556)

(3,883)
-

757
-

Total equity
75,641 			
			
Total equity and liabilities
111,475 			
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019

39. Prior year adjustments and reclassification adjustments (continued)
The effects to the Group’s and the Company’s statements of financial position and statements of comprehensive income
are as follows (continued):
(a)

Reconciliation adjustments to the statements of financial position as at 31 December 2018 (continued)
As previously
stated
RM’000

Prior year
adjustments
RM’000

Reclassification
RM’000

As
restated
RM’000

574
46,355

22,015

-

574
68,370

46,929 			

68,944

12,171
2
1,318

-

12,171
2
1,318

13,491 			

13,491

Total assets

60,420 			

82,435

Equity and liabilities
Current liabilities
Borrowings
Trade and other payables

144
29,896

-

144
29,896

30,040 			

30,040

(16,549)			

(16,549)

Company
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets
Trade and other receivables
Prepayments
Cash and bank balances

Net current liabilities

-

-
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2019

39. Prior year adjustments and reclassification adjustments (continued)
The effects to the Group’s and the Company’s statements of financial position and statements of comprehensive income
are as follows (continued):
(a)

Reconciliation adjustments to the statements of financial position as at 31 December 2018 (continued)
As previously
stated
RM’000

Prior year
adjustments
RM’000

Reclassification
RM’000

As
restated
RM’000

237
233

-

-

237
233

470 			

470

Total liabilities

30,510 			

30,510

Net assets

29,910 			

51,925

Company (continued)
Equity and liabilities (continued)
Non-current liabilities
Defined benefit obligations
Borrowings

Equity attributable to
owners of the Company
Share capital
68,192
68,192
Retained earnings
(39,254)
22,015
(17,239)
Other reserves
972
972
				
Total equity
29,910 			
51,925
				
Total equity and liabilities
60,420 			
82,435
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019

39. Prior year adjustments and reclassification adjustments (continued)
The effects to the Group’s and the Company’s statements of financial position and statements of comprehensive income
are as follows (continued):
(b)

Reconciliation adjustments to the statements of financial position as at 1 January 2018

Group
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Intangible assets
Goodwill
Investments in associates
Deferred tax assets
Investment securities

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Prepayments
Tax recoverable
Cash and bank balances

Total assets

As previously
stated
RM’000

Prior year
adjustments
RM’000

Reclassification
RM’000

As
restated
RM’000

52,687
12,395
2,198
789
2,434

1,114
-

(6,886)
6,886
2,099
-

45,801
19,281
2,099
3,312
789
2,434

70,503 			

73,716

7,565
13,740
5,226
2,121
11,413

(2,099)
-

7,606
13,740
3,127
2,121
11,413

40,065 			

38,007

110,568 			

111,723

41
-

Equity and liabilities
Current liabilities
Defined benefit obligations
400
400
Borrowings
837
837
Trade and other payables
25,256
538
25,794
Tax payable
15
15
					
26,508 			
27,046
					
Net current assets
13,557 		
10,961
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2019

39. Prior year adjustments and reclassification adjustments (continued)
The effects to the Group’s and the Company’s statements of financial position and statements of comprehensive income
are as follows (continued):
(b)

Reconciliation adjustments to the statements of financial position as at 1 January 2018 (continued)
As previously
stated
RM’000

Prior year
adjustments
RM’000

Reclassification
RM’000

As
restated
RM’000

8,906
797

-

-

8,906
797

9,703 			

9,703

Total liabilities

36,211 			

36,749

Net assets

74,357 			

74,974

Group (continued)
Equity and liabilities (continued)
Non-current liabilities
Defined benefit obligations
Borrowings

Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Share capital
Retained earnings
Other reserves

67,898
26,951
(20,521)

Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Non-controlling interest

74,328 			
29
-

74,945
29

Total equity

74,357

		

74,974

110,568

		

111,723

Total equity and liabilities
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019

39. Prior year adjustments and reclassification adjustments (continued)
The effects to the Group’s and the Company’s statements of financial position and statements of comprehensive income
are as follows (continued):

(b)

Reconciliation adjustments to the statements of financial position as at 1 January 2018 (continued)

As previously
Prior year
ReAs
stated
adjustments classification
restated
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
Company				
Assets
Non-current assets					
Property, plant and equipment
514
514
Investments properties
7,293
7,293
Investments in subsidiaries
44,955
19,985
64,940
					
52,762 			
72,747
Current assets
Trade and other receivables
Prepayments
Cash and bank balances

4,001
2
88

-

4,001
2
88

4,091 			

4,091

Total assets

56,853 			

76,838

Equity and liabilities
Current liabilities
Borrowings
Trade and other payables

106
30,069

-

106
30,069

		

30,175

(26,084)			

(26,084)

30,175
Net current liabilities

-

-
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2019

39. Prior year adjustments and reclassification adjustments (continued)
The effects to the Group’s and the Company’s statements of financial position and statements of comprehensive income
are as follows (continued):

(b)

Reconciliation adjustments to the statements of financial position as at 1 January 2018 (continued)

Company (continued)
Equity and liabilities (continued)
Non-current liabilities
Defined benefit obligations
Borrowings

As previously
stated
RM’000

Prior year
adjustments
RM’000

Reclassification
RM’000

As
restated
RM’000

566
145

-

-

566
145

711 			

711

Total liabilities

30,886

		

30,886

Net assets

25,967 			

45,952

Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Share capital
Retained earnings
Other reserves

67,898
(42,898)
967

Total equity

25,967 			

45,952

Total equity and liabilities

56,853 			

76,838
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019

39. Prior year adjustments and reclassification adjustments (continued)
The effects to the Group’s and the Company’s statements of financial position and statements of comprehensive income
are as follows (continued):
(c)

Reconciliation adjustment to the statements of profit and loss and other comprehensive income for the
financial year ended 31 December 2018

		
As previously
Prior year
As
		
stated
adjustments
restated
		
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
Group
Revenue		
74,118
(3,719)
70,399
Cost of sales		
(56,031)
(4)
(56,035)
Gross profit		

18,087

Other items of income
Interest income		
Dividend income 		
Other income		

366
67
313

-

366
67
313

Other items of expense
Selling and distribution expenses		
Administrative expenses		
Finance costs		
Other expenses		
Share of results of associates		

(1,589)
(15,423)
(141)
(215)
350

(85)
2
(308)

(1,674)
(15,421)
(141)
(215)
42

1,815 		

(2,299)

Profit/(loss) before tax		
Income tax expense		
Profit/(loss) net of tax		

(1,302)

14,364

709

(593)

513 		

(2,892)

Other comprehensive income:
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Net loss on fair value changes of FVTOCI financial assets		
(1,069)
(1,069)
Net gain on remeasurement of defined benefit
obligations, net of tax		
1,541
(338)
1,203
					
Other comprehensive income, net of tax		
472 		
134
					
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax		
985 		
(2,758)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2019

39. Prior year adjustments and reclassification adjustments (continued)
The effects to the Group’s and the Company’s statements of financial position and statements of comprehensive income
are as follows (continued):
(c)

Reconciliation adjustment to the statements of profit and loss and other comprehensive income for the
financial year ended 31 December 2018 (continued)

		
As previously
Prior year
As
		
stated
adjustments
restated
		
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
Company
Revenue		
3,812
3,812
Other items of income
Other income		

4,364

2,030

6,394

Other items of expense
Administrative expenses		
Finance cost		

(4,924)
(13)

-

(4,924)
(13)

Profit before tax		

3,239 		

Income tax expense		
Profit net of tax		

-

5,269

-

-

3,239 		

5,269

Other comprehensive income:
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Net gain on remeasurement of defined benefit 		
obligations, representing other comprehensive					
income for the year		
405
405
				
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax		
3,644 		
5,674
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019

40.	Subsequent events
(a)	COVID-19 pandemic
The COVID-19 pandemic has significantly disrupted many business operations around the world. With widespread
concerns about the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, the Government of Malaysia had on 16 March 2020 declared
the Movement Control Order (“MCO”) to be effective from 18 March to 3 May 2020. The MCO encompasses complete
restriction of movement and assembly nationwide, and closure of all government and private premises except
those involved in essential services. The MCO was revised to the Conditional Movement Control Order (“CMCO”)
on 4 May 2020 and was subsequently extended to 9 June 2020 with various economic and social activities allowed,
subject to conditions such as the implementation of standard operating procedures which have been set by the
Government. For the Group, the impact on business operations has not been a direct consequence of the COVID-19
outbreak, but a result of the measures taken by the Government of Malaysia (“the Government”) to contain it.
As the outbreak continues to evolve, it is challenging to predict the full extent and duration of its impact on business
and the economy. The occurrence of the COVID-19 outbreak is not an adjusting post balance sheet event.
Up to the date of this financial statements, the Group has seen an impact of COVID-19 outbreak on the Group’s
key financial position such as revenue. At this juncture, it is not possible to estimate the full impact of the outbreak’s
short-term and longer-term effects or the Government’s varying efforts to combat the outbreak and support
businesses.
The Group further noted that its revenue for the 3-month period ended 31 March 2020 has decreased due to
temporary closure of operations in logging compartments, sawnmill, factory as well as workplace disruption.
These conditions indicate potential impairment of certain assets subsequent to 31 December 2019. Accordingly,
there is a significant risk that an impairment loss of certain assets may be recorded within the next financial year.
The Group will continue to monitor the development of this event and will implement the following measures to
mitigate the impact of COVID-19 to the Company’s business:
a)

Operating cost saving such as freezing corporate social responsibilities (“CSR”) program, reviewing ‘Zakat’
payment to religious authority and reducing long distance travelling.					
						
b)
Manpower cost saving such as freezing new hiring, no payment of bonus and limiting staff to work overtime or
during weekends.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2019

40.	Subsequent events (continued)
(b)

Proposed settlement to holding company via issuance of Redeemable Preference Shares (“RPS”)
On 4 June 2020, the Company had made an announcement to Bursa Malaysia of the following:
(i)

Proposed settlement of amount owing to Terengganu Incorporation Sdn. Bhd. (“TISB”), a major shareholder of
the Company, via the issuance of 12,000,000 RPS (“Proposed Settlement”); and

(ii)

Proposed amendments to the constitution of the Company to facilitate the issuance of the RPS pursuant to the
Proposed Settlement (“Proposed Amendments”).

The Company shall issue 12,000,000 units of RPS to TISB at RM1 per RPS as full settlement of the amount due to
TISB of RM 12 million. The Agreement is conditional upon the Company obtaining the approval of its shareholders
at an extraordinary general meeting to be convened.

41.	Authorisation of financial statements for issue
The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution
of the directors on 24 June 2020.
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Analysis of Shareholdings
As at 29 May 2020

Total Issued Capital

:

RM68,447,577

Total Number of Ordinary Shares Issued

:

136,792,850

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDINGS AS AT 29 MAY 2020
Category
		

No. of
Shares

% Over
Total Shares

No. of
Holders

% Over Total
Shareholders

1,013
1,045,761
6,106,060
12,842,050
18,960,085
97,837,881

0.000
0.764
4.463
9.387
13.860
71.522

49
1,090
1,440
401
76
3

1.601
35.632
47.074
13.108
2.484
0.098

136,792,850

100.00

3,059

100.00

No. of Shares

%

TERENGGANU INCORPORATED SDN BHD

86,365,281

63.135

LEMBAGA TABUNG AMANAH WARISAN NEGERI TERENGGANU

11,472,600

8.386

97,837,881

71.521

1 - 99		
100 - 1,000
1,001 - 10,000
10,001 - 100,000
100,001 - 6,839,641 (*)
6,839,642 and above (**)
GRAND TOTAL

Remark: * less than 5% of issued shares 		
** 5% and above of issued shares

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AS AT 29 MAY 2020
Name		

TOTAL 				
DIRECTORS SHAREHOLDING AS AT 29 MAY 2020
Name of Directors

No. of Shares

YBM DATO’ HAJI TENGKU HASSAN BIN TENGKU OMAR

-

DATO’ BENTARA DALAM DATO’ HAJI A. RAHMAN BIN YAHYA

-

DR WAN AHMAD RUDIRMAN BIN WAN RAZAK

-

ASSOCIATE PROFESSOR DR MOHD ZAKI BIN HAMZAH

-

MUHAMMAD RAMIZU BIN MUSTAFFA

-

MOHD BADARUDDIN BIN ISMAIL

-

HAJI SAIFFUDDIN BIN OTHMAN

-
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Analysis of Shareholdings (Continued)
As at 29 May 2020

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER SHAREHOLDING AS AT 29 MAY 2020
Name		

No. of Share

%

435,000

0.317

Normal Holdings

%

DATO’ AHMAD NADZARUDIN BIN ABDUL RAZAK

LIST OF TOP 30 SHAREHOLDERS/ DEPOSITORS AS AT 29 MAY 2020
Name		
1.

TERENGGANU INCORPORATED SDN BHD

72,931,281

53.315

2.

TERENGGANU INCORPORATED SDN BHD

13,434,000

9.820

3.

LEMBAGA TABUNG AMANAH WARISAN NEGERI TERENGGANU

11,472,600

8.386

2,134,000

1.560

5. RHB NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
		 PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR TAN GAIK SUAN

901,300

0.658

6. UOB KAY HIAN NOMINEES (ASING) SDN BHD
		 EXEMPT AN FOR UOB KAY HIAN PTE LTD ( A/C CLIENTS )

888,800

0.649

7. RHB CAPITAL NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
		 PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR WENDY LEE YOKE PENG
		 (CEB)

832,000

0.608

685,800

0.501

593,100

0.433

498,400

0.364

450,000

0.328

12.		 AHMAD NADZARUDIN BIN ABDUL RAZAK

435,000

0.317

13.		 SYED OMAR SHAHABUDDIN BIN SYED ABDULLAH

400,000

0.292

14.		 TAY ONG NGO @ TAY BOON FANG

330,000

0.241

15.		 AMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
		 PHANG SAY HAP

309,000

0.225

16.		 TAN BON TIONG

305,500

0.223

4. MAYBANK NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
		 PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR TAY ONG NGO @ TAY BOON FANG

8.

KHOO KAY LEONG

9. TAY BOON TECK
		
10. PUBLIC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
		 PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR TAN YOK SON @ TAN SIEW TUAN (E-BPT)
11.

CHIA PHAY CHENG
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Analysis of Shareholdings (Continued)
As at 29 May 2020

LIST OF TOP 30 SHAREHOLDERS/ DEPOSITORS AS AT 29 MAY 2020 (CONTINUED)
Name		

Normal Holdings

%

17.		 CHUA KENG KIONG

300,000

0.219

18 .

292,100

0.213

19.		 PUBLIC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
		 PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR LIM KIAN LEONG (E-BPT)

288,300

0.210

20.

287,000

0.209

21. PUBLIC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
		 PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR ANG KAR HENG (E-SJA)

286,900

0.209

22. CITIGROUP NOMINEES (ASING) SDN BHD
		 EXEMPT AN FOR OCBC SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
		 (CLIENT A/C-NR)

280,000

0.204

23. HLB NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
		 PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR WONG LUP MUN @ WONG
		 CHENG HOH

279,800

0.204

24.

263,000

0.192

25. RHB NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
		 PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR TEH TEAW KEE

250,600

0.183

26. PUBLIC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
		 PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR TAN THIAM MOOI (E-KTN/MTK)

250,000

0.182

27. PUBLIC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
		 PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR LING TUNG KONG (E-SRK)

205,300

0.150

28. AFFIN HWANG NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN. BHD.
		 PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR ESA BIN MOHAMED

200,000

0.146

29. CGS-CIMB NOMINEES (ASING) SDN BHD
		 PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR WALTER WURTZ

200,000

0.146

30. CGS-CIMB NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
		 PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR NG GEOK WAH (BBRKLANG-CL)

200,000

0.146

OOI SAY HUP

CHEONG PANG KWAN

LIM KENG JIN

		
Total
		
		
Total No of Depositors
		
		 Total Percentage (%)

110,183,781
30
80.547
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Thirty-Third Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at
Gamelan 3, Primula Beach Hotel, Jalan Persinggahan, 20400 Kuala Terengganu, Terengganu Darul Iman
on Tuesday, 28th July 2020 at 10.30 a.m. for the following purposes:
1.

To receive the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2019 together with the Reports of
the Directors and Auditors thereon.
(Please refer to the Explanatory Notes to the Agenda)

2.

Directors’ Fees and any benefits payable
To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions:
(a) “THAT the payment of Directors’ Fees payable of RM180,000 for the financial year ended 31 December 2019
be approved.”
(Ordinary Resolution 1)
		
(b) “THAT the payment of Directors’ Benefits (excluding Directors’ Fees) payable of RM623,400 for the financial period
from 1 July 2020 to 30 June 2021 be approved.”
(Ordinary Resolution 2)

3.

To re-elect the following Directors retiring in accordance with Clause 76 of the Constitution of the Company:
(a) YBhg Dato’ Bentara Dalam Dato’ Haji A. Rahman bin Yahya		

(Ordinary Resolution 3)

(b) YBM Dato’ Haji Tengku Hassan bin Tengku Omar 		

(Ordinary Resolution 4)

4.

To re-appoint Messrs Ernst & Young as the Auditors of the Company and to authorise the Board of Directors to fix
their remuneration.
(Ordinary Resolution 5)
		
AS SPECIAL BUSINESS:
To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following as Special Resolution:
5.

Proposed Amendments to the Constitution of the Company
“THAT the proposed modifications, deletions and/or additions to the Constitution of the Company as set out below be
hereby approved AND THAT the Directors be authorised with full powers to assent to any conditions, modifications,
variations and/or amendments as may be required and to do all such acts and things and to take such steps that are
necessary to give effect to the same:
No.

Existing Clause

71 (1) An instrument appointing a proxy:
(a) must be in writing and executed by or on behalf
of the appointing Member in substantially
the form and in the manner as specified in
“Appendix A” annexed hereto or in such other
permitted form (including the electronic proxy
appointment and voting manner) as the Board
of Directors may determine from time to time;

No.

Proposed Clause

71 (1) An instrument appointing a proxy:
(a) must be in writing and executed by or on behalf
of the appointing Member in substantially
the form and in the manner as specified in
“Appendix A” annexed hereto or in such other
permitted form (including the electronic proxy
appointment and voting manner) as the Board
of Directors may determine from time to time;”
(Special Resolution 1)
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Notice of Annual General Meeting (Continued)
6.

To transact any other business of which due notice shall have been given.

By Order of the Board
Suraya Binti Mohd Hairon (LS 0007314)
(SSM Practising Certificate No.: 202008000100)
Company Secretary
Kuala Terengganu
29 June 2020
Notes:
1. For the purpose of determining who shall be entitled to attend this Meeting, the Company shall be requesting Bursa Malaysia Depository
Sdn Bhd to make available to the Company, a Record of Depositors as at 21 July 2020. Only a member whose name appears on this Record
of Depositors shall be entitled to attend this General Meeting or appoint a proxy to attend, speak and vote on his/her/its behalf.
2. A member entitled to attend and vote at this General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy or attorney or in the case of a corporation, to
appoint a duly authorised representative to attend, participate, speak and vote in his place. A proxy may but need not be a member of the
Company.
3. A member of the Company who is entitled to attend and vote at a General Meeting of the Company may appoint not more than two (2)
proxies to attend, participate, speak and vote instead of the member at the General Meeting.
4. If two (2) proxies are appointed, the entitlement of those proxies to vote on a show of hands shall be in accordance with the listing
requirements of the stock exchange.
5. Where a member of the Company is an authorised nominee as defined in the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act 1991
(“Central Depositories Act”), it may appoint not more than two (2) proxies in respect of each securities account it holds in ordinary shares
of the Company standing to the credit of the said securities account.
6. Where a member of the Company is an exempt authorised nominee which holds ordinary shares in the Company for multiple beneficial
owners in one securities account (“omnibus account”), there is no limit to the number of proxies which the exempt authorised nominee
may appoint in respect of each omnibus account it holds. An exempt authorised nominee refers to an authorised nominee defined under
the Central Depositories Act which is exempted from compliance with the provisions of Section 25A(1) of the Central Depositories Act.
7. Where a member appoints more than one (1) proxy, the proportion of shareholdings to be represented by each proxy must be specified
in the instrument appointing the proxies.
8. The appointment of a proxy may be made in a hard copy form or by electronic means in the following manner and must be received by the
Company not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the time appointed for holding the General Meeting or adjourned General Meeting at
which the person named in the appointment proposes to vote:
(i)
In hard copy form
In the case of an appointment made in hard copy form, this proxy form must be deposited at the registered office of the Company
situated at 66-2 Taman Sri Intan, Jalan Sultan Omar, 20300 Kuala Terengganu, Terengganu Darul Iman or Share Registrar’s office
at Unit 32-01, Level 32, Tower A, Vertical Business Suite, Avenue 3, Bangsar South, No. 8, Jalan Kerinchi, 59200 Kuala Lumpur or
alternatively, the Customer Service Centre at Unit G-3, Ground Floor, Vertical Podium, Avenue 3, Bangsar South, No. 8, Jalan Kerinchi,
59200 Kuala Lumpur.
(ii) By electronic means via facsimile
In the case of an appointment made by facsimile transmission, this proxy form must be received via facsimile at +609-631 0617.
(iii) By electronic means via email
In the case of an appointment made via email transmission, this proxy form must be received via email at suraya@gpb.com.my.
For options (ii) and (iii), the Company may request any member to deposit original executed proxy form to its registered office before or on
the day of meeting for verification purpose.
(iv) Online
In the case of an appointment made via online lodgement facility, please login to the link website as shown below:
https://tiih.online.
		
9. Any authority pursuant to which such an appointment is made by a power of attorney must be deposited at the registered office of the
Company situated at 66-2 Taman Sri Intan, Jalan Sultan Omar, 20300 Kuala Terengganu, Terengganu Darul Iman not less than forty-eight
(48) hours before the time appointed for holding the General Meeting or adjourned General Meeting at which the person named in
the appointment proposes to vote. A copy of the power of attorney may be accepted provided that it is certified notarially and/or in
accordance with the applicable legal requirements in the relevant jurisdiction in which it is executed.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting (Continued)
10. Please ensure ALL the particulars as required in this proxy form are completed, signed and dated accordingly.
11. Last date and time for lodging this proxy form is Sunday, 26 July 2020 at 10.30 a.m.
12. Please bring an ORIGINAL of the following identification papers (where applicable) and present it to the registration staff for verification:
a. Identity card (NRIC) (Malaysian), or
b. Police report (for loss of NRIC) / Temporary NRIC (Malaysian), or
c. Passport (Foreigner).
13. For a corporate member who has appointed a representative instead of a proxy to attend this meeting, please bring the ORIGINAL
certificate of appointment executed in the manner as stated in this proxy form if this has not been lodged at the Company’s registered
office earlier.
Explanatory Notes on Ordinary Business:
(i) Item 1 of the Agenda
This item is meant for discussion only. The provisions of Section 340(1) of the Companies Act 2016 require that the audited financial
statements and the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon be laid before the Company at its Annual General Meeting. As such this
Agenda item is not a business which requires a motion to be put to vote by shareholders.
(ii) Item 2 of the Agenda – Ordinary Resolution 1 and 2
Directors’ Fees and any benefits payable
Pursuant to Section 230(1) of the Companies Act 2016, the fees of the directors and any benefits payable to the directors of a listed
company and its subsidiaries, shall be approved at a general meeting.
The Ordinary Resolutions 1 and 2 proposed under item 2 are in accordance with Section 230 (1)(b) of the Companies Act 2016, and if
passed, will authorise the payment of directors’ fees and any benefits payable to directors of the Company for their services as directors
during the financial year ended 31 December 2019 and for the financial period from 1 July 2020 to 30 June 2021 respectively.
Directors benefits includes allowances and other emoluments payable to directors and in determining the estimated total the Board had
considered various factors including the number of scheduled meetings for the Board and Board Committees which covers the period
from 1 July 2020 to 30 June 2021 (the due date for which the next Annual General Meeting should be held).
Explanatory Notes on Special Business:
(iii) Proposed Amendments to the Constitution of the Company
The proposed amendments to the Constitution of the Company will provide flexibility in the issuance of proxy forms and to improve
administrative efficiency.

Statement Accompanying
Notice of Annual General Meeting

(Pursuant to Paragraph 8.27(2) of the Main Market Listing Requirements of
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad)
There is no person seeking election at the Annual General Meeting.
Kindly refer to item (iii) of the Explanatory Notes on Special Business on page 308.
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Proxy Form

GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD
[Registration No:198601003051 (152205-W)]
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

CDS Account No.

No. of shares held

I/We										

(Full name in block, NRIC/Passport/Company No.)

Tel:

of

being member (s) of Golden Pharos Berhad, hereby appoint:
Full Name (in Block)

NRIC/Passport No.

Proportion of Shareholdings
No. of Shares

%

Address
and / or* (delete as appropriate)
Full Name (in Block)

NRIC/Passport No.

Proportion of Shareholdings
No. of Shares

%

Address

or failing him, the Chairperson of the Meeting, as my/our proxy to vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 33rd Annual General Meeting of
the Company to be held at Gamelan 3, Primula Beach Hotel, Jalan Persinggahan, 20400 Kuala Terengganu, Terengganu Darul Iman on
Tuesday, 28 July 2020 at 10.30 a.m., or any adjournment thereof, and to vote as indicated below:

Description of Resolution

Resolution

For

Against

ORDINARY RESOLUTION
To approve payment of Directors’ Fees payable of RM180,000 for the financial year ended 31 December 2019.

1

To approve payment of Directors’ benefits (excluding Directors’ Fees) payable of RM623,400 for the financial
period from 1 July 2020 to 30 June 2021.

2

To re-elect YBhg Dato' Bentara Dalam Dato’ Haji A. Rahman bin Yahya as Director.

3

To re-elect YBM Dato’ Haji Tengku Hassan bin Tengku Omar as Director.

4

To re-appoint Messrs Ernst & Young as the Auditors of the Company and to authorise the Board of Directors
to fix their remuneration.

5

SPECIAL RESOLUTION
Proposed Amendments to the Constitution of the Company

1

Please indicate with an “X” in the space provided whether you wish your votes to be cast for or against the resolutions. In the absence of specific
direction, your proxy will vote or abstain as he thinks fit.

Signed this

✂

*

day of

Manner of execution:

Signature*
Member

(a)

If you are an individual member, please sign where indicated.

(c)

If you are a corporate member which does not have a common seal, this proxy form should be affixed with the rubber stamp of your company (if any) and executed by:

(b)

If you are a corporate member which has a common seal, this proxy form should be executed under seal in accordance with the constitution of your corporation.
(i)

(ii)

at least two (2) authorised officers, of whom one shall be a director; or

any director and/or authorised officers in accordance with the laws of the country under which your corporation is incorporated.

Notes:
1. For the purpose of determining who shall be entitled to attend this Meeting, the Company shall be requesting Bursa Malaysia Depository Sdn Bhd to make available to the
Company, a Record of Depositors as at 21 July 2020. Only a member whose name appears on this Record of Depositors shall be entitled to attend this General Meeting or appoint
a proxy to attend, speak and vote on his/her/its behalf.
2. A member entitled to attend and vote at this General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy or attorney or in the case of a corporation, to appoint a duly authorised representative
to attend, participate, speak and vote in his place. A proxy may but need not be a member of the Company.
3. A member of the Company who is entitled to attend and vote at a General Meeting of the Company may appoint not more than two (2) proxies to attend, participate, speak and
vote instead of the member at the General Meeting.
4. If two (2) proxies are appointed, the entitlement of those proxies to vote on a show of hands shall be in accordance with the listing requirements of the stock exchange.
5. Where a member of the Company is an authorised nominee as defined in the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act 1991 (“Central Depositories Act”), it may appoint not
more than two (2) proxies in respect of each securities account it holds in ordinary shares of the Company standing to the credit of the said securities account.
6. Where a member of the Company is an exempt authorised nominee which holds ordinary shares in the Company for multiple beneficial owners in one securities account
(“omnibus account”), there is no limit to the number of proxies which the exempt authorised nominee may appoint in respect of each omnibus account it holds. An exempt
authorised nominee refers to an authorised nominee defined under the Central Depositories Act which is exempted from compliance with the provisions of Section 25A(1) of the
Central Depositories Act.
7. Where a member appoints more than one (1) proxy, the proportion of shareholdings to be represented by each proxy must be specified in the instrument appointing the proxies.
8. The appointment of a proxy may be made in a hard copy form or by electronic means in the following manner and must be received by the Company not less than forty-eight (48)
hours before the time appointed for holding the General Meeting or adjourned General Meeting at which the person named in the appointment proposes to vote:
(i) In hard copy form
In the case of an appointment made in hard copy form, this proxy form must be deposited at the registered office of the Company situated at 66-2 Taman Sri Intan, Jalan
Sultan Omar, 20300 Kuala Terengganu, Terengganu Darul Iman or Share Registrar’s office at Unit 32-01, Level 32, Tower A, Vertical Business Suite, Avenue 3, Bangsar South,
No. 8, Jalan Kerinchi, 59200 Kuala Lumpur or alternatively, the Customer Service Centre at Unit G-3, Ground Floor, Vertical Podium, Avenue 3, Bangsar South, No. 8,
Jalan Kerinchi, 59200 Kuala Lumpur.
(ii) By electronic means via facsimile
In the case of an appointment made by facsimile transmission, this proxy form must be received via facsimile at +609-631 0617.
(iii) By electronic means via email
In the case of an appointment made via email transmission, this proxy form must be received via email at suraya@gpb.com.my.

For options (ii) and (iii), the Company may request any member to deposit original executed proxy form to its registered office before or on the day of meeting for
verification purpose.
(iv) Online
In the case of an appointment made via online lodgement facility, please login to the link website as shown below:
https://tiih.online.
9. Any authority pursuant to which such an appointment is made by a power of attorney must be deposited at the registered office of the Company situated at 66-2 Taman Sri Intan,
Jalan Sultan Omar, 20300 Kuala Terengganu, Terengganu Darul Iman not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the time appointed for holding the General Meeting or adjourned
General Meeting at which the person named in the appointment proposes to vote. A copy of the power of attorney may be accepted provided that it is certified notarially and/or
in accordance with the applicable legal requirements in the relevant jurisdiction in which it is executed.
10. Please ensure ALL the particulars as required in this proxy form are completed, signed and dated accordingly.
11. Last date and time for lodging this proxy form is Sunday, 26 July 2020 at 10.30 a.m.
12. Please bring an ORIGINAL of the following identification papers (where applicable) and present it to the registration staff for verification:
a.
Identity card (NRIC) (Malaysian), or
b.
Police report (for loss of NRIC) / Temporary NRIC (Malaysian), or
c.
Passport (Foreigner).
13. For a corporate member who has appointed a representative instead of a proxy to attend this meeting, please bring the ORIGINAL certificate of appointment executed in the
manner as stated in this proxy form if this has not been lodged at the Company’s registered office earlier.

Fold here

AFFIX
STAMP

The Share Registrar
GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD

[Registration No:198601003051 (152205-W)]

Tricor Investor & Issuing House Services Sdn Bhd
Unit 32-01, Level 32 Tower A
Vertical Business Suite, Avenue 3
Bangsar South, No. 8, Jalan Kerinchi
59200 Kuala Lumpur

GOLDEN PHAROS BERHAD
(198601003051) (152205-W)

66-2, Taman Seri Intan, Jalan Sultan Omar
20300 Kuala Terengganu,
Terengganu Darul Iman, Malaysia
+609 630 1330
+609 631 0617
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